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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this repaat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Thexseafrd-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future resflbur business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words “believe,” “expect,” “dicipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” * ‘intend,” “should,” “may,” “would,”

“will” or similar expressions, we intend to idaft forward-looking statements. Statements regagdhe following subjects, among others, ar
forward-looking by their nature:

e our business and investment strate

e our ability to maintain existing financing arraments, obtain future financing arrangements aadaims of such arrangements,
particularly in light of the restatement and othmatters discussed in this Form-K;

e our ability to timely file our periodic reports withe Securities and Exchange Commission, or ¢
e our expectations regarding materiality or significe;

e the effectiveness of our disclosure controls amdgdures

e material weaknesses in our internal controls owvemtial reporting

e additional information that may arise from the @egtion of our financial statemen

e inadequacy of or weakness in our internal costookr financial reporting of which we are not emtlty aware or which have not been
detected

e general volatility of the securities markets in @hive invest

e the impact of and changes to various governmermrpros;

e our expected investmen

e changes in the value of our investme

e interest rate mismatches between our investment®anborrowings used to finance such purche
e changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayaes;

e effects of interest rate caps on our adjus-rate investment:

e rates of default, delinquencies or decreased regaages on our investmen

e prepayments of the mortgage and other loans lymdgiour mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS, theo asset-backed securities, or
ABS;

e the degree to which our hedging strategies mayayr mot protect us from interest rate volatili

e the potential delisting of our common stock frora tlew York Stock Exchange, or NYS

e impact of and changes in governmental regulatitzoslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikters;
e availability of investment opportunities in reatas-related and other securitie

e availability of qualified personne




e estimates relating to our ability to make distribos to our stockholders in the futu

e our understanding of our competitic

e market trends in our industry, interest rates,diblet securities markets or the general econc

e our ability to maintain our classification as alrestate investment trust, or REIT, for federabime tax purposes; al

e our ability to maintain our exemption from regisioa under the Investment Company Act of 1940,rasraded, or 1940 Ac

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futurtopaance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoulit place undue reliance on these forward-lookiatestents. These beliefs, assumptions ant
expectations can change as a result of many pessieints or factors, not all of which are knownigoSome of these factors are described
under the caption “Risk Factors” in this 2012 FRof0-K. If a change occurs, our business, findrcadition, liquidity and results of
operations may vary materially from those expressenir forward-looking statements. Any forwardkamy statement speaks only as of the
date on which it is made. New risks and uncertagndirise from time to time, and it is impossibleus to predict those events or how they may
affect us. Except as required by law, we are btigated to, and do not intend to, update or reaisg forwardlooking statements, whether &
result of new information, future events or othessvi

Special Note Regarding this Form 10-K

Chimera Investment Corporation restated its preshipissued (i) Consolidated Statements of Finar€@idition included in its Annual Report
on Form 10-K as of December 31, 2010 and (ii) Cbdated Statements of Operations and Comprehetisdzene (Loss), Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, @owisolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the geded December 31, 2010, including
the cumulative effect of the Restatement on Reth@anings (accumulated deficit) (the “Restatenjentnless otherwise indicated herein or
as may be required by law (including, without liatibn, to reflect the effects of the Restatementjefined above), the disclosure included in
this Form 10-K is presented as of December 31, 2@kZordingly, this Form 10-K does not reflect@ents occurring after December 31,
2012 (except as required by law, or as required®¢ 855, Subsequent Events), and we have not wkeerto update each and every item
included in this Form 10-K to reflect such everitherefore, this Form 10-K should be read in cogjiam with our filings we have previously
made with the SEC subsequent to December 31, 2012.




PART |
Item 1. Business
The Company

We are a specialty finance company that invedtiseedirectly or indirectly through our subsidiajén residential mortgage-backed securities,
or RMBS, residential mortgage loans, commercialtgage loans, real estatelated securities and various other asset claddfeselected to b
taxed as a REIT for federal income tax purposesneenting with our taxable year ended December 347 2@ herefore, we generally will not
be subject to federal income tax on our taxablerme that is distributed to our stockholders. Weewscorporated in Maryland in June 2007
and commenced operations in November 2007. Walistir common stock on the NYSE in November 20@i7teade under the symbol
“CIM”.

We are externally managed by Fixed Income Discéuivisory Company, which we refer to as our ManagefIDAC. Our Manager is an
investment advisor registered with the SEC. Addaily, our Manager is a wholly-owned subsidianAoialy Capital Management, Inc., or
Annaly, a NYSE-listed REIT, which has a long traekord of managing investments in U.S. governmgahey mortgag&acked securities, |
Agency RMBS, and other real-estate related investsne

Our Manager

We are externally managed and advised by FIDAGealfincome management company, pursuant to a neamagt agreement. All of our
officers are employees of our Manager or one ddffitiates. We believe our relationship with ddanager enables us to leverage our
Manager’s well-respected and established portiomagement resources for each of our targeted @dasees and we utilize our Manager’s
infrastructure, including its investment professilsnthat focus on residential mortgage loans, Agé&idBS, that are guaranteed by the Fed
National Mortgage Association, or Fannie Mae, teddfal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or Freddée Mind the Government Natiol
Mortgage Association, or Ginnie Mae, Non-Agency RMBommercial mortgage loans, commercial mortgagsdd securities, or CMBS,
and ABS. Additionally, we utilize our Manager'sidince and administration functions, which addressunting, legal, compliance, investor
relations and operational matters, including pdicfonanagement, trade allocation and executioryri#es valuation, risk management and
information technologies in connection with thefpenance of its duties. Our Manager commenced@datvestment management operations
in 1994,

Our Manager is responsible for administering owitess activities and day-to-day operations. Runtsto the terms of the management
agreement, our Manager provides us with our managetaam, including our officers, along with appiate support personnel. Our Mana
is at all times subject to the supervision and sigtt of our board of directors and has only sugttfions and authority as we delegate to it.

Our Investment Strategy

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, jrifg through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achigi® objective by investing in a diversified intaent portfolio of RMBS, residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitievandus other asset classes, subject to maintasundREIT status and exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, B3/ and collateralized debt obligations, or CDOs,purchase may include investment-
grade and non-investment grade classes, includm@®B-rated, B-rated and non-rated classes.

We rely on our Manager's expertise in identifyirggats within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldatre¢ value, risk-adjusted returns, current andggeted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentaogcted supply and demand, credit and markietcoscentration limits, liquidity, cost (
financing and financing availability, as well asimaining our REIT qualification and our exemptilvam registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek sonmiee the returns from our investment
portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined wotlr Manager’s experience, will enable us to paydéinds and achieve capital appreciation
throughout changing interest rate and credit cyatesprovide attractive long-term returns to inoest




Our targeted asset classes and the principal imneggs we have made and may in the future investdras follows:

Asset Class

RMBS

Residential Mortgage Loans

Principal Investments

Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and norestment grade classes,
including the BE-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe!

Agency RMBS.
Interes-only RMBS.

Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loansctiveform to the underwriting
guidelines of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, whiclrefer to as Agency Guidelines; and
jumbo prime mortgage loans, which are mortgageddahat conform to the Agen
Guidelines except as to loan si

Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans thay have been originated using
documentation standards that are less stringentthieadocumentation standards applied by
certain other first lien mortgage loan purchasey@mms, such as the Agency Guidelines,
have one or more compensating factors such aseviberwith a strong credit or mortgage
history or significant asset:

FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loans twahply with the underwriting
guidelines of the Federal Housing Administratiorlf&) or Department of Veteran Affairs
(VA) and which are guaranteed by the FHA or VA pexgtively.

Mortgage servicing rights associated with residémtiortgage loans, which reflect the ve
of the future stream of expected cash flows froendbntractual rights to service a given
pool of residential mortgage loan




Commercial Mortgage Loans e First or second lien loans secured by multifamigperties, which are residential rental
properties consisting of five or more dwelling sniand mixed residential or other
commercial properties; retail properties; officeerties; or industrial properties, which
may or may not conform to the Agency Guidelir

Other Asse-Backed Securitie e CMBS.
e Debt and equity tranches of CD(

e Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgesdde and non-investment grade
classes, including the E-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe!

Hedging Instrument e Swaps
e Swaptions
e Futures
e Index options
e Mortgage option:

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquiNiog-Agency and Agency RMBS
and on purchasing residential mortgage loans that been originated by select originators, inclgdire retail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. Our investment portfolio at Deber 31, 2012 was weighted toward Non-Agency RMBS.December 31, 2012, based
on the principal value of our interest earning tsssspproximately 74.6% of our investment portfalias Non-Agency RMBS, 14.7% of our
investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and 10.7%wof investment portfolio was securitized residdntiartgage loans. At December 31,
2011, based on the principal value of our inteeeshing assets, approximately 75.4% of our investipertfolio was Non-Agency RMBS,
21.1% of our investment portfolio was Agency RMB8&d 3.5% of our investment portfolio was securdizesidential mortgage loans. We
expect that over the near term, our investmenfgartwill continue to be weighted toward RMBS, $eitt to maintaining our REIT
qualification and our 1940 Act exemption.

Following our initial public offering we initiallengaged in transactions with residential mortgagdihg operations of leading commercial
banks and other originators in which we identiféed re-underwrote residential mortgage loans oviayeslich entities, and purchased and
securitized such residential mortgage loans ouesehn the past we have also acquired formerly Aa#ed Non-Agency RMBS and
immediately re-securitized those securities. Wd #te resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS antireed the rated or unrated mezzanine
RMBS. More recently we have engaged in transastwith residential mortgage lending operationseafling commercial banks and other
originators in which we identified and re-underverogsidential mortgage loans owned by such entiied rather than purchasing and
securitizing such residential mortgage loans ouesglwe and the originator or another entity, sashn investment bank, structured the
securitization and purchased the resulting mezeaaid subordinate Non-Agency RMBS. Structuringstieuritizations in this manner
enabled us to only acquire the resulting mezzaaimesubordinate Non-Agency RMBS without havingdtually acquire the loans underlying
the securitizations. Our investment decisions, dnew, will depend on prevailing market conditionsl @ur business opportunities at such time
and we expect that these will change over time a Assult, we cannot predict the percentage ohesets that will be invested in each asset
class or whether we will invest in other classemweéstments. We may change our investment siated policies without a vote of our
stockholders.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We will adjust our
strategy to changing market conditions by shiftig asset allocations across these various asssted as interest rate and credit cycles ct
over time. We believe that our strategy, combwétl our Manager's experience, will enable us tg gavidends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. eifgect to take a long-term view of assets andliliais, and our reported earnings and
estimates of the fair value of our investment$atdnd of a financial reporting period will notrigcantly impact our objective of providing
attractive risk-adjusted returns to our stockhdadmrer the long-term.




We use leverage to seek to increase our potertialns and to fund the acquisition of our assétsr income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income wre@aour assets and the cost of our borrowings. eWpect to finance our investments using
a variety of financing sources including, when &fale, repurchase agreements, warehouse facitidsecuritizations. We may manage our
debt by utilizing interest rate hedges, such ar@st rate swaps, to reduce the effect of inteatstfluctuations related to our debt.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT and opeuateusiness to be exempt from registration undel840 Act, and therefore we are
required to invest a substantial majority of owseds in loans secured by mortgages on real estdteeal estate-related assets. Subject to
maintaining our REIT qualification and our 1940 Asemption, we do not have any limitations on tants we may invest in any of our
targeted asset classes.

Investment Portfolio
The following briefly discusses the principal typg#snvestments that we have made and may in thedunake:
Residential Mortgag-Backed Securities

We have invested in and intend to continue to inleRMBS which are typically pass-through certfies created by the securitization of a
pool of mortgage loans that are collateralizeddsidential real estate properties.

The securitization process is governed by one aerabthe rating agencies, including Fitch Ratirgspdy’s Investors Service, Standard &
Poor’s, and DBRS Limited which determine the refipedond class sizes, generally based on a segupayment structure. Bonds that are
rated from AAA to BBB by the rating agencies arasidered “investment grade.” Bond classes thasaberdinate to the BBB class are
considered “below-investment grade” or “non-investingrade.” The respective bond class sizes deerdmed based on the review of the
underlying collateral by the rating agencies. Pphgments received from the underlying loans ard tsenake the payments on the

RMBS. Based on the sequential payment priority,risk of nonpayment for the investment grade RNWBIBwer than the risk of nonpayment
for the non-investment grade bonds. Accordindig, investment grade class is typically sold atweloyield compared to the non-investment
grade classes which are sold at higher yields.

We invest in investment grade and non-investmesdgRMBS. We evaluate certain credit charactesistf these types of securities,
including, but not limited to, loan balance distrifon, geographic concentration, property type upemcy, periodic and lifetime caps,
weighted-average loan-to-value and weighted-aveFaielsaac Corporation (“FICQO”) score. Qualifyisgcurities are then analyzed using
base line expectations of expected prepaymenttoandeverities, issuers and the current stateedfixedincome market and broader econc
in general. Losses and prepayments are stressettaeously based on a credit risk-based modeturgies in this portfolio are monitored
for variance from expected prepayments, severitisses and cash flow. The due diligence procegsartgcularly important and costly with
respect to newly formed originators or issuers bsedhere may be little or no information publiakailable about these entities and
investments.

We may invest in net interest margin securitied\is, which are notes that are payable from amdisa by excess cash flow that is
generated by RMBS or home equity line of creditieacsecurities, or HELOCS, after paying the debtise, expenses and fees on such
securities. The excess cash flow represents allpmrtion of a residual that is generally retaibgdhe originator of the RMBS or

HELOCs. The residual is illiquid, and thus thegorator will monetize the position by securitizitige residual and issuing a NIM, usually in
the form of a note that is backed by the exceds ftaw generated in the underlying securitizatidiie may also invest in interest-only (“10”)
Agency and Non-Agency RMBS. These |0 RMBS repretf@mtCompany’s right to receive a specified praparbf the contractual interest
flows of the collateral.




We may invest in mortgage pass-through certifica®sed or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae, Fannie M&gexidie Mac which are securities
representing interests in “pools” of mortgage los@sured by residential real property where paysehboth interest and principal, plus pre-
paid principal, on the securities are made mortthlyolders of the security, in effect passing tigtomonthly payments made by the individual
borrowers on the mortgage loans that underlie ¢lcarities, net of fees paid to the issuer/guarasmarservicers of the securities. We may als
invest in collateralized mortgage obligations, &1@s, issued by the Agencies. CMOs consist of pl@tclasses of securities, with each class
bearing different stated maturity dates. Monthyments of principal, including prepayments, argt fieturned to investors holding the
shortest maturity class; investors holding the @ngaturity classes receive principal only after finst class has been retired.

Agency RMBS are collateralized by either fixed-ratertgage loans, or FRMs, adjustable-rate mortd@ayes, or ARMs, or hybrid

ARMSs. Hybrid ARMs are mortgage loans that havernest rates that are fixed for an initial periggpig¢ally three, five, seven or ten years) anc
thereafter reset at regular intervals subject tieré@st rate caps. Our allocation between secsigttlateralized by FRMs, ARMs or hybrid
ARMSs will depend on various factors including, Imat limited to, relative value, expected futuregagment trends, supply and demand, costs
of financing, costs of hedging, expected futureri@st rate volatility and the overall shape ofith8. Treasury and interest rate swap yield
curves. We take these factors into account whemualee these types of investments.

Residential Mortgage Loan

We have invested in and may in the future invesegidential mortgage loans (mortgage loans sedwedsidential real property) primarily
through direct purchases from selected mortgaggnatiors. We may enter into additional mortgagmlpurchase agreements with a number
of primary mortgage loan originators, including mgage bankers, commercial banks, savings and kEsocetions, home builders, credit
unions and mortgage conduits. We may also puramastgage loans on the secondary market. We exipest loans to be secured primarily
by residential properties in the United States.

The residential mortgage loans in which we haveiptsly invested were primarily underwritten to aecifications. The originators
performed the credit review of the borrowers, thpraisal of the properties securing the loan, aathtained other quality control

procedures. We generally considered the purchdsarms when the originators have verified the baers’ income and assets, verified their
credit history and obtained appraisals of the priigge We or a third party performed an independederwriting review of the processing,
underwriting and loan closing methodologies thatdhginators used in qualifying a borrower fopan. Depending on the size of the loans,
we may not have reviewed all of the loans in a pluot rather selected loans for underwriting revimged upon specific risk-based criteria
such as property location, loan size, effectivenlaavalue ratio, borrower’s credit score and ottriteria we believe to be important indicators
of credit risk. Additionally, before the purchasfdoans, we obtained representations and warsafrien each originator stating that each loan
was underwritten to our requirements or, in thenewaderwriting exceptions have been made, we wéoemed so that we may evaluate
whether to accept or reject the loans. An originatho breaches these representations and wasamtieaking a loan that we purchase ma
obligated to repurchase the loan from us. As adeéedrity, we used the services of a third-parigudrent custodian to insure the quality and
accuracy of all individual mortgage loan closingdments and to hold the documents in safekeephsga result, all of the original loan
collateral documents that are signed by the borrpather than the original credit verification dogents, were examined, verified and held by
the third-party document custodian.

We may originate mortgage loans or provide othpesyof financing to the owners of real estate. deently do not intend to establish a loan
servicing platform, but expect to retain highlyedtservicers to service any mortgage loan portimkcacquire. We have previously purchasec
certain residential mortgage loans on a servicetgined basis. In the future, however, we maydéeto originate mortgage loans or other
types of financing, and we may elect to servicetgage loans and other types of assets.

We expect that all servicers servicing any loanswaguire will be highly rated by the rating agesci&Ve also conduct a due diligence review
of each servicer before executing a servicing agese. Servicing procedures would typically foll&&nnie Mae guidelines but will be
specified in each servicing agreement. All sengcagreements will meet standards for inclusiomigily rated mortgage-backed or asset-
backed securitizations.

We expect that any loans we acquire will be fiiext | single-family residential traditional fixedtea adjustable-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate
loans with original terms to maturity of not mohaih 40 years and are either fully amortizing oriaterest-only for up to ten years, and fully
amortizing thereafter. Fixed-rate mortgage loager lan interest rate that is fixed for the lifalad loan. All adjustable-rate and hybrid
adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans wilk lz@einterest rate tied to an interest rate indéwst loans have periodic and lifetime
constraints on how much the loan interest ratect@mge on any predetermined interest rate reset ddite interest rate on each adjustable-rat
mortgage loan resets monthly, semi-annually or atyyand generally adjusts to a margin over a Ur8asury index or London Interbank
Offer Rate, or LIBOR, index. Hybrid ARMs have add rate for an initial period, generally threddn years, and then convert to ARMs for
their remaining term to maturity.




We have in the past and may in the future acqes&lential mortgage loans for our portfolio witle fintention of either securitizing them and
retaining them in our portfolio as securitized ngade loans, or holding them in our residential gege loan portfolio. To facilitate the
securitization or financing of our loans, we magate subordinate certificates, which provide ai§pecamount of credit enhancement. We
may issue securities through securities undervgréiad either retain these securities or finance tinehe repurchase agreement market. The
is no limit on the amount we may retain of theslewanvestment-grade subordinate certificates. illim¢ securitize our residential mortgage
loans, we expect to finance our residential morgagn portfolio through the use of warehouse itéesl and repurchase agreements.

As a result of the Restatement and our failureateettimely financial statements we withdrew ouetlises in various jurisdictions to avoid not
being in good standing under such licenses. Theréaio maintain licenses or our good standingarious jurisdictions, as a result of the
Restatement or otherwise, may require us to cessairt business strategies or modify the way incivlwe execute such strategies. For
example, without the state licenses necessaryrithpse residential mortgage loans, it was nece$saung to structure securitization
transactions in a different manner than we mayretise have chosen to do. This may, among othegshicause us to be unable to execute
aspects of our business which may have otherwise pmfitable, or we may incur additional costatedl to such business operations that we
otherwise would not have. These conditions maeleamaterial adverse effect on our business, finhoondition and results of operations.

Commercial Mortgage Loans

We may invest in commercial mortgage loans. Gdliyerge may invest in first or second lien loanswed by multifamily properties, which
are residential rental properties consisting of fiv more dwelling units, or by mixed residentiabther commercial properties, retail
properties, office properties or industrial profest These loans may or may not conform to then8geuidelines.

Other Asset-Backed Securities

We may invest in securities issued in various CDBf@rimgs to gain exposure to bank loans, corpdoateds, ABS, mortgages, RMBS, CMBS,
and other instruments. To avoid any actual orgieed conflicts of interest with our Manager, andstment in any such security structured or
managed by our Manager will be approved by a ngjofiour independent directors.

We may invest in CMBS, which are secured by, odence ownership interests in, a single commercaatgage loan or a pool of mortgage
loans secured by commercial properties. Theseaitesunay be senior, subordinated, investmentgacon-investment grade. We intend tc
invest in CMBS that will yield current interest oroe and where we consider the return of princip&le likely. We intend to acquire CMBS
from private originators of, or investors in, matg loans, including savings and loan associatimnstgage bankers, commercial banks,
finance companies, investment banks and otheiesntit

Investment Guidelines

We have adopted a set of investment guidelinesstitadut the asset classes, risk tolerance ledigkssification requirements and other criteria
used to evaluate the merits of specific investmastaell as the overall portfolio composition. QMdanager’s Investment Committee
periodically reviews our compliance with the invaent guidelines. Our board also reviews our imaesit portfolio and related compliance
with our investment policies and procedures anésitment guidelines at each regularly scheduleddbafadirectors meeting.




Our board of directors and our Manager’s Investn@orhmittee have adopted the following guidelingsoiar investments and borrowings:
e No investment shall be made that would cause It qualify as a REIT for federal income taxrposes
e No investment shall be made that would cause be tegulated as an investment company under the A4

e With the exception of real estate and housingsingle industry shall represent greater than 20%esecurities or aggregate risk
exposure in our portfolio; ar

e Investments in non-rated or deeply subordinatB& Ar other securities that are non-qualifying tsst®& purposes of the 75% REIT
asset test will be limited to an amount not to excB0% of our stockholde equity.

These investment guidelines may be changed by arityapf our board of directors without the apprbehour stockholders.

Our board of directors has also adopted a sepseats investment guidelines and procedures tomowver relationships with FIDAC. We
have also adopted detailed compliance policie®t@m our interaction with FIDAC, including when¥AC is in receipt of material non-
public information.

Our Financing Strategy

We use leverage to increase potential returnsitatogkholders. We are not required to maintanspecific debt-tcequity ratio as we beliey
the appropriate leverage for the particular assetare financing depends on the credit quality résidof those assets. At December 31, 2012
our ratio of debt-to-equity was 1.1:1. For purmosécalculating this ratio, our equity is equattie Total stockholders’ equity on our
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition, @amddebt consists of repurchase agreements andtsesd debt. As part of our borrowir
we have entered into a RMBS repurchase agreeménR@ap Securities, Inc., or RCAP, which is a wiallvned subsidiary of Annaly. As
December 31, 2012, Annaly owns approximately 4.838%ur outstanding shares of common stock. Aseddnber 31, 2012 and 2011, we
had no financing under our agreement with RCapdate, we have not had any counterparties to ourrcepse agreement borrowing
arrangements terminate any relationships as atrafsoilir failure to be current in our reporting négments with the SEC. However, for the
period from the fourth quarter of 2011 through Deber 31, 2012, we proactively reduced the amoubbafowings under our master
repurchase agreements with respect to Agency RMEBdure that we are able to meet any margin @alisduce our borrowing amounts as
required by our counterparties.

Subject to our maintaining our qualification aslE2IR we may use a number of sources to financanwastments, including the following:

e Repurchase Agreemer. We have financed certain of our assets throbghuse of repurchase agreements. We anticipdte tha
repurchase agreements will be one of the sourcesilivese to achieve our desired amount of leverfag@ur residential real estate
assets. We maintain formal relationships with ipldtcounterparties to obtain financing on favoeatarms

e Warehouse Facilities We have utilized and may in the future utilizedit facilities for capital needed to fund ouretss We intend
to maintain formal relationships with multiple caerparties to maintain warehouse lines on favortéias.

e Securitization We have acquired and may in the future acqeiselential mortgage loans for our portfolio witle tintention of
securitizing them and retaining a portion of theusitized mortgage loans in our portfolio. To faate the securitization or financing
of our loans, we generally create subordinatefazates, providing a specified amount of creditamtement, which we intend to
retain in our portfolio

e Re-REMICs.We have acquired and may in the future acquire Ngancy RMBS for our portfolio with the intention of-securitizing
them and retaining a portion of the re-securitikemh-Agency RMBS in our portfolio, typically the sordlinate certificates. To
facilitate the re-securitization, we transfer Nogelicy RMBS to a special purpose entity that has ferened as a securitization
vehicle that will issue multiple classes of sedesitsecured by and payable from cash flows onidenlying No-Agency RMBS.




Our Interest Rate Hedging and Risk Management Straggy

We may, from time to time, utilize derivative fingal instruments to hedge all or a portion of thieiest rate risk associated with our
borrowings. Under the federal income tax laws i@pple to REITs, we generally enter into certaamsactions to hedge indebtedness that we
incur, or plan to incur, to acquire or carry restiage assets, although our total gross income $ch hedges and other non-qualifying sources
must not exceed 25% of our gross income.

We may engage in a variety of interest rate managétechniques that seek to mitigate changes @éndst rates or other potential influence
the values of our assets. The federal incomeutas mpplicable to REITs may require us to implehoentain of these techniques through a
taxable REIT subsidiary, or TRS, that is fully sedijto corporate income taxation. Our interes rahnagement techniques may include:

e puts and calls on securities or indices of se@as;

e Eurodollar futures contracts and options on sugtireots;

e interest rate caps, swaps and swapti

e U.S. Treasury securities and options on U.S. Tmgasecurities; an
e other similar transaction

We may attempt to reduce interest rate risks amdimimize exposure to interest rate fluctuationstigh the use of match funded financing
structures, when appropriate, whereby we seeh (hdtch the maturities of our debt obligations wita maturities of our assets and (ii) to
match the interest rates on our investments whtitkind debt (i.e., floating rate assets are fieghwith floating rate debt and fixed-rate assets
are financed with fixedate debt), directly or through the use of interagt swaps, caps or other financial instrumemtthrough a combinatic
of these strategies. This will allow us to minimthe risk that we have to refinance our liab#itiefore the maturities of our assets and to
reduce the impact of changing interest rates oreatmings.

Compliance with REIT and Investment Company Requirenents

We monitor our investment securities and the incénom these securities and, to the extent we énterthedging transactions, we monitor
income from our hedging transactions as well, sma&nsure at all times that we maintain our gicalifon as a REIT and our exempt status
under the 1940 Act.

Employees

We are externally managed and advised by our Mamagsuant to a management agreement as discusked bVe have no employees. All
our named executive officers are employees of camdger or one of its affiliates. Our Manager isatigated to dedicate certain of its
employees exclusively to us, nor is it or its enyples obligated to dedicate any specific portioitsofime to our business. Our Manager uses
the proceeds from its management fee in part tacpaypensation to its officers and employees whtwitlestanding that certain of them also
are our officers, receive no cash compensatiorcijrérom us.

Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managenges¢ment with FIDAC, which provided for an initiekrm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestitto certain termination rights. The Compersatommittee of the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decermp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, we paid to our Managguarterly management fee equal
to 1.50% per annum of our gross Stockholders’ Bais defined in the management agreement). Eféeblovember 28, 2012, the
management fee was reduced to 0.75% per annunosd Gtockholders’ Equity, which reduction will ramian effect until we are current on

all of our filings required under applicable setias laws.

We are obligated to reimburse our Manager forastincurred under the management agreementditian, the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for its qata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationbege expenses are allocated between ou
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfignoss assets compared to the gross assets ethbpg@ur Manager as calculated at each
quarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levesdgompared to our Manager’s other funds and a¢spun
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March 2013 Amendment to Management Agreel

Because of the Restatement, we amended the manaigagneement on March 8, 2013. In the amendmentnemorialized the reduction in
the management fee. Additionally, our Manager egte pay all past and future expenses that weoandf Audit Committee incur to: (1)
evaluate our accounting policy related to the apion of accounting principles generally accepetthe United States, or GAAP, to our Non-
Agency RMBS portfolio (the “Evaluation”); (2) restaour financial statements for the period cove88 through 2011 as a result of the
Evaluation (the “ Restatement Filing " ); and (8yéstigate and evaluate any shareholder derivdgweands arising from the Evaluation and/ol
the Restatement Filing (the “Investigation”); prded, however, that our Manageobligation to pay expenses applies only to expenst pair
by our insurers under our insurance policies. Bsps shall include, without limitation, fees andtsancurred with respect to auditors, outside
counsel, and consultants engaged by us and/or wdit Eommittee for the Evaluation, Restatemenngiland the Investigation.

The amendment also provides that the independeettdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 ddige @t any time in their sole discretion
without the payment of a termination fee. Addittip, we may terminate the management agreemesttafé immediately if (i) our Manager
engages in any act of fraud, misappropriation afif) or embezzlement against us, (ii) there isvanteof any gross negligence on the part of
our Manager in the performance of its duties unldemanagement agreement, (iii) there is a comnmeactof any proceeding relating to our
Manager’s bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there dissolution of our Manager, or (v) our Managecasivicted of (including a plea of nolo
contendere) a felony.

Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar@ 20& Manager earned management fees of $49.bmi$#52.0 million and $40.9
million, respectively and received expense reimémmsnt of $447 thousand, $625 thousand and $465ahdurespectively. From our
inception through 2009, our Manager waived itstrigirequire us to pay our pro rata portion of réslfephone, utilities, office furniture,
equipment, machinery and other office, internal anerhead expenses of our Manager and its afflisgquired for our operations.

Competition

Our net income depends, in large part, on ourtghidi acquire assets at favorable spreads oveln@uowing costs. In acquiring real estate-
related assets, we will compete with other mortgRBé€T's, specialty finance companies, savings aad &ssociations, banks, mortgage
bankers, insurance companies, mutual funds, itistital investors, investment banking firms, finadénstitutions, hedge funds, governmental
bodies (including the U.S. Federal Reserve) andrathtities. In addition, there are numerous nag#gREITs with similar asset acquisition
objectives, and others that may be organized irfiuhee. These other REITs will increase competitior the available supply of mortgage
assets suitable for purchase. Many of our compstéoe significantly larger than we are, have actegreater capital and other resources anc
may have other advantages over us. In additiongesaf our competitors may have higher risk toleesnar different risk assessments, which
could allow them to consider a wider variety oféstments and establish more favorable relationghgswe can. Current market conditions
may attract more competitors, which may increasecimpetition for sources of financing. An incee@asthe competition for sources of
funding could adversely affect the availability asast of financing, and thereby adversely affeetrtiarket price of our common stock.

Distributions

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we mustdbute substantially all of our REIT taxable ine®to our stockholders for each year, and
we intend to distribute all such taxable incomedtisfy such requirement. We have declared ardinegular quarterly dividends in the past
and intend to do so in the future. The Board aBBtors declared and paid common stock cash did&len$0.09 per common share for the
first three quarters of 2013. The Board of Direstioas declared common stock dividends of $0.0e@®mon share for the fourth quarter of
2013. The Board of Directors has also determinatittrere will be a regular quarterly dividend of@per share for each of the first two
quarters of 2014. The Board of Directors also deda special dividend of $0.20 per share payabléanuary 31, 2014 to shareholders of
record on January 8, 2014.
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Available Information

Our investor relations website is www.chimerareitic We make available on the website under "lrreéRelations/SEC filings," free of
charge, our annual report on Form 10-K, our quigrteports on Form 10-Q, our current reports omf8rK and any other reports (including
any amendments to such reports) as soon as redgpnatticable after we electronically file or fish such materials to the SEC. Information
on our website, however, is not part of this AnriRaport on Form 10-K. All reports filed with th&S may also be read and copied at the
SEC'’s public reference room at 100 F Street, NAE&shington, D.C. 20549. Further information regagdhe operation of the public reference
room may be obtained by calling 1-800-SEC-0330addition, all of our filed reports can be obtairsedhe SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following factdogether with all the other information includiedthis 2012 Form 10-K, in evaluating our
company and our business. If any of the followisks actually occur, our business, financial cdmui and results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected, and the valueusfstock could decline. Additional risks and @rainties not presently known to us or that
we currently deem immaterial also may impair ousibess operations. As such, you should not conthigelist to be a complete statement of
all potential risks or uncertainties.

Risks Associated With the Restatement and Related &fters

Our failure to prepare and file timely our periodic reports with the SEC limits us from accessing theublic markets to raise debt or
equity capital.

We did not file this 2012 Form 10-K within the tiframe required by the SEC, and we have not yed filur Forms 10-Q for the first, second
and third quarters of 2013. Because we are nogcuin our reporting requirements with the SEC amelimited in our ability to access the
public markets to raise debt or equity capital.r Duited ability to access the public markets ebptevent us from pursuing transactions or
implementing business strategies that we beliewdldvioe beneficial to our business. As a resutiwffailure to file our SEC filings by the
filing date required by the SEC (including the grgeriod permitted by Rule 12b-25 under the SdesriExchange Act of 1934, as amended),
we are not eligible to use our current shelf regtiin statement on Form S-3 (or file a new For@ 18gistration statement) to conduct public
offerings until filings with the SEC have been tisnmade for a full year. Our ineligibility to userm S-3 during this time period will have a
negative impact on our ability to quickly access plublic capital markets because we would be reduw file a long-form registration
statement and wait for the SEC to declare suclstragion statement effective.

Our failure to be current in our reporting requirem ents with the SEC may diminish our ability to enterinto borrowing arrangements
with counterparties who do not have transparency ito our financial performance.

We currently finance only that portion of our potib that is Agency RMBS. To date, we have not Aag counterparties to our repurchase
agreement borrowing arrangements terminate angiaeships as a result of our failure to be curiardur reporting requirements with the
SEC. However, since the fourth quarter of 201lhawee proactively reduced the amount of borrowinuen our master repurchase agreen
with respect to Agency RMBS to ensure that we ate 8 meet any margin calls or reduce our borrgveimounts as required by our
counterparties and have kept our borrowings attheduced levels.

Our failure to timely file the financial statementsincluded in our delinquent SEC reports has causeds to modify some of our business
strategies and withdraw from certain state licenses

In order to engage in some business strategieareveequired to maintain licenses in certain juctiohs. As a result of the Restatement and
our failure to have timely financial statementswithdrew our licenses in various jurisdictions t@mal not being in good standing under such
licenses. The failure to maintain licenses or amodystanding in various jurisdictions, as a resfithe Restatement or otherwise, may requil

to cease certain business strategies or modifw#yein which we execute such strategies. For examathout the state licenses necessary tc
purchase residential mortgage loans, it was nege8waus to structure securitization transactiona different manner than we may otherwise
have chosen to do. This may, among other thirgssesus to be unable to execute aspects of ourdsssivhich may have otherwise been
profitable, or we may incur additional costs retate such business operations that we otherwisddawmt have. These conditions may have &
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

We cannot be certain that any remedial measures weave taken or intend to take will in the future ensire that we design, implement
and maintain adequate controls over our financial pocesses and reporting with respect to future filigs with the SEC, accordingly,
additional material weaknesses may occur in the fute.

As a result of our review of issues identified onoection with the Restatement, we have deterntimstda material weakness in internal
controls over financial reporting existed at ther@any as of December 31, 2012. Specifically, vdendit design and maintain adequate
procedures or effective review and approval costoser routine processes and significant estimatedetailed description of this material
weakness is provided in “Item 9A, Controls and Bchoes.” Due to this material weakness, managehantoncluded that we did not
maintain effective internal control over financiaporting as of December 31, 2012 (which also teduh our disclosure controls and
procedures being ineffective as of December 312201
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It is possible that additional control deficiencimay be identified in the future that may represerd or more material weaknesses that could,
among other things, cause us to fail to file timaly periodic reports with the SEC; prevent us fimnoviding reliable and accurate financial
information and forecasts or from avoiding or détecfraud; or require us to incur additional costslivert management resources to, among
other things, comply with Section 404 of the Sagsa®xley Act of 2002.

We may become subject to litigation arising from tle Restatement or related matters, and any such lgation may have a material
adverse effect on our business.

We have received shareholder demand letters regptidé Restatement and related matters. Thesesletimong other things, generally
request that our Board of Directors take variou®as to recover purported damages for our benétitese letters further reserve the
shareholders’ rights to commence a shareholdevatent action.

We may incur costs and expenses as a result of tRestatement, which may have a material adverse effeon results of operations.

While we currently expect to be reimbursed by oanlsiger for certain costs associated with the Rastait (including legal, audit and
consulting related costs), we may incur additiartets as a result of the Restatement, or such vegaiment may not fully offset our
expenses. Under these circumstances, our re$ufseoations may be materially adversely affect8de “Item 3, Legal Proceedings.”

Risks Associated With Adverse Developments in the dftgage Finance and Credit Markets

Difficult conditions in the financial markets and the economy generally have caused us and may continto cause us market value loss
related to our holdings.

Our results of operations are materially affectg@dnditions in the mortgage market, the finangiarkets and the economy generally.
Concerns over monetary policy, inflation, energgtspgeopolitical issues, the availability and afstredit, the mortgage market and the real
estate market may contribute to increased volatilitd diminished expectations for the economy aadkats going forward.

A substantial portion of our assets are classiiiedccounting purposes as “available-for-sale” eadied at fair value. Changes in the fair
values of those assets are directly charged oitecetb Other comprehensive income (loss), or @Gla result, a decline in values may reduce
the book value of our assets. Moreover, if theidedh value of an available-for-sale security tisay-than-temporary, such decline will reduce
earnings.

All of our repurchase agreements and interestsatgp agreements are subject to bilateral margis icethe event that the collateral securing
our obligations under those facilities exceedsamsdnot meet our collateralization requirements.céfeprovide no assurances that we can fin
funding which may result in us having to disposassgets at an inopportune time when prices aresegad.

We rely on the availability of financing to acquiesidential mortgage loans, real estate-relatedrgies and real estate loans on a leveraged
basis. Institutions from which we will seek to dhtéinancing may own or finance residential mortgdgans, real estate-related securities and
real estate loans, which may decline in value ause them to suffer losses based on conditiorfeiresidential mortgage market. This may
cause lenders and institutional investors to redua®ase to provide funding to borrowers, inclgdither financial institutions. Under these
conditions, it may be more difficult for us to oistdinancing on favorable terms or at all. Our jadfility may be adversely affected if we are
unable to obtain cost-effective financing for oovéstments.
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Mortgage loan modification programs, future legisldive action and changes in the requirements necesgdo qualify for refinancing a
mortgage may adversely affect the value of, and theturns on, the assets in which we invest.

The U.S. Government, through the Federal HousingpiAtstration, or FHA, and the Federal Deposit lasuwe Corporate, or FDIC, has
implemented programs designed to provide homeowmighsassistance in avoiding residential mortgagalforeclosures including the Hope
for Homeowners Act of 2008, which allows certaisttissed borrowers to refinance their mortgagesHhtA-insured loans and the Home
Affordable Modification Program, or HAMP, which prides a detailed, uniform model for one-time magdfion of eligible residential
mortgage loans. The programs may also involve ngnather things, the modification of mortgage lotmeeduce the principal amount of the
loans or the rate of interest payable on the loang extend the payment terms of the loans. s&te@an modification programs, including
future legislative or regulatory actions and ameedts to the bankruptcy laws, that result in the ification of outstanding mortgage loans, as
well as changes in the requirements necessaryaiiygfor refinancing a mortgage may affect theuabf, and the returns on, our Non-Agency
RMBS and Agency RMBS. Depending on whether ommpurchased an instrument at a premium or discthmtyield we receive may be
positively or negatively impacted by any modificeti

The U.S. Government's efforts to encourage refinameg of certain loans may affect prepayment rates fomortgage loans in mortgage-
backed securities.

In addition to the increased pressure upon resalenbrtgage loan investors and servicers to engafess mitigation activities, the U.S.
Government is pressing for refinancing of certaians, and this encouragement may affect prepayratas for mortgage loans in mortgage-
backed securities.

To the extent these and other economic stabilizatrcstimulus efforts are successful in increagirepayment speeds for residential mortgage
loans, such as those in mortgage-backed secuthiscould potentially have a negative impact onincome and operating results,
particularly in connection with loans or mortgageeked securities purchased at a premium or oueisit®nly securities.

Any further downgrade, or perceived potential of adowngrade, of U.S. sovereign credit ratings by thearious credit rating agencies
may have a materially adverse effect on our busines

During the summer of 2011, S&P downgraded the Bo8ereign credit rating in response to the protihcebate over the U.S. debt ceiling
limit and S&P’s perception of the U.S. Governmeiattslity to address its long-term budget defidit.addition, the credit rating of government
sponsored enterprises, or GSEs, was also downgad8&P in response to the downgrade in the U.$ersign credit rating, as the value of
the Agency MBS issued by such GSEs and their ghditmeet their obligations under such Agency MB&ripacted by the support providet
them by the U.S. Government and market perceptibiize strength of such support and the likelihobids continuity. Additionally, in
October 2013 a second protracted debate over Beddbt ceiling occurred along with a shutdowrheflt).S. federal government. To the
extent that the credit rating of any or all of tA8Es were to be downgraded by other credit ratijggeies or further downgraded by S&P, the
value of our Agency MBS could be negatively impdcta addition, we could be negatively affectedinumber of ways in the event of a
default by the U.S. Government or a downgrade efts. sovereign credit rating by other creditngthgencies or a further downgrade by
S&P. Such negative impacts could include changésdriinancing terms of our repurchase agreemaiigsteralized by Agency MBS, which
could include higher financing costs and/or a réidudn the amount of financing provided based luamarket value of collateral posted unde
these agreements. These outcomes could in turrriedgt@dversely affect our operations and finahci@ndition in a number of ways,
including a reduction in the net interest spreavben our assets and associated repurchase agtdsnenvings or by decreasing our ability
to obtain repurchase agreement financing on adokeptarms, or at all.

The conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie Madheir reliance upon the U.S. Government for solveng and related efforts that
may significantly affect Fannie Mae and Freddie Maand their relationship with the U.S. Government, nay adversely affect our
business, operations and financial condition.

Due to increased market concerns about Fannie Ma&reddie Mas ability to withstand future credit losses assedavith securities held i
their investment portfolios and on which they pdevguarantees, without the direct support of tt& Government, Congress passed the
Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008, or tlERA. Among other things, the HERA establishedRlkderal Housing Finance Agency,
or FHFA, which has broad regulatory powers ovemi@Mae and Freddie Mac. On September 6, 2008;#A placed Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac into conservatorship and, together thighTreasury, established a program designeddstlimvestor confidence in Fannie Mae’s
and Freddie Mac’s debt and mortgage-backed sezsiriths the conservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie, khe FHFA controls and directs
their operations and may (1) take over the asgetadoperate Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac witthellpowers of their shareholders, directors
and officers of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and gondll business of Fannie Mae and Freddie Macg@8%ct all obligations and money due
to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (3) perform all fiors of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac which are apast with the conservator’s
appointment; (4) preserve and conserve the assétgraperty of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; anad@}ract for assistance in fulfilling any
function, activity, action or duty of the conseiwat
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The problems faced by Fannie Mae and Freddie Madtieg in their placement into federal conservsitqr and receipt of significant U.S.
Government support have sparked debate among smaeaf policy makers regarding the continued réka® U.S. Government in providing
liquidity for mortgage loans and mortgage-backezisées. With Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s fatunder debate, the nature of their
guarantee obligations could be considerably limitddtive to historical measurements. Any charigaébe nature of their guarantee obligati
could redefine what constitutes a mortgage-backedrgty and could have broad adverse implicationgle market and our business,
operations and financial condition. If Fannie Mad-reddie Mac are eliminated, or their structualegnge radically (i.e., limitation or removal
of the guarantee obligation), we may be unabletuige Agency RMBS.

Although the Treasury previously committed captitaFannie Mae and Freddie Mac through 2012, atldenmeport issued on February 11,
2011 by the U.S. Department of Treasury titled ‘BRefing America’s Housing Finance Market” committedoroviding sufficient capital to
enable Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to meet theiestiand future guarantee obligations, there camob@ssurance that these actions will be
adequate for their needs. If these actions areepazate, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could contimgeffer losses and could fail to honor
their guarantees and other obligations. Furtheemtbe current credit support provided by the Tueato Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, and
any additional credit support it may provide in fbaure, could have the effect of lowering the et rates we expect to receive from RMBS,
and tightening the spread between the interestane@ our RMBS and the cost of financing thosetass

Future policies that change the relationship betwegnnie Mae and Freddie Mac and the U.S. Goverprimafuding those that result in their
winding down, nationalization, privatization, oimgination, may create market uncertainty and haeeeffect of reducing the actual or
perceived credit quality of securities issued cairgnteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. As a resuth policies could increase the risk of
loss on investments in mortgage-backed securitiasagteed by Fannie Mae and/or Freddie Mac. dtialpossible that such policies could
adversely impact the market for such securitiesahdr securities types and spreads at which tiaelet All of the foregoing could materially
and adversely affect our business, operationsiaaddial condition.

We have exposure to European financial counterpargis.

A significant portion of our Agency RMBS are finattwith repurchase agreements. We secure our biagewnder these agreements by
pledging our Agency RMBS as collateral to the lendé&e collateral we pledge exceeds the amounteobbrrowings under each agreement,
typically with the extent of over-collateralizatitveing at least 5% of the amount borrowed. If thenterparty to the repurchase agreement
defaults on its obligations and we are not abletwver our pledged assets, we are at risk ofdasia over-collateralized amount. The amount
of this exposure is the difference between the arhlmaned to us plus interest due to the countgrend the fair value of the collateral
pledged by us to the lender including accrued @stereceivable on such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouesttete risks. Under these swap agreements, wWgekegency RMBS as collateral as part of
a margin arrangement for interest rate swaps tieainaan unrealized loss position. If a counterpantre to default on its obligation, we would
be exposed to a loss to a swap counterparty textemt that the amount of our Agency RMBS pledgesteded the unrealized loss on the
associated swaps and we were not able to recowexttess collateral.

Over the past several years, several large Eurofireancial institutions have experienced finanddficulty and have been either rescuec
government assistance or by other large Europeahksbar institutions. Some of the§eancial institutions or their U.S. subsidiarieavk
provided us financing under repurchase agreemanigechaveentered into interest rate swaps with such ingtiigt We have entered it
repurchase agreements and/or interest rate swalpsiwifinancial institution counterparties thae aither domiciled in Europe or a U lsase:
subsidiary of aEuropean domiciled financial institution. It is gdde that European credit crisis may impact therafions of the U..
subsidiaries of a European domiciled financialitosbn. Our financings and operations could beexdely affected by such events.
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We have received financing from a wholly-owned sulidiary of Annaly, which is a significant shareholde of ours and which owns our
Manager.

Our ability to fund our investments on a leverabadis depends to a large extent upon our abiliseture warehouse, repurchase and/or crec
financing on acceptable terms. The current statheoNon-Agency mortgage sector has made it difffou us to obtain shorterm financing o
favorable terms. As a result, we have completed &&uritizations in order to obtain long-term fineng and terminated our un-utilized whole
loan repurchase agreements in order to avoid payngisage fees under those agreements. In additiormearing in 2009, we entered int
RMBS repurchase agreement with RCap, a wholly-oveudxidiary of Annaly. Annaly owns approximatel@8% of our outstanding shares
of common stock as of December 31, 2012. This ageeé contains customary representations, warraatidsovenants contained in such
agreements including RCap having the right to nrakegin calls if the value of our RMBS collateratigithe agreement falls. As of Decembel
31, 2012 and 2011, we had no amounts outstandidgruhis agreement. We cannot assure you that R@lagrovide us with financing in the
future. If RCap does not provide us with financaig time we are unable to obtain other financiveycould be forced to sell our assets at an
inopportune time when prices are depressed.

Risks Associated With Our Management and Relationsh With Our Manager
We are dependent on our Manager and its key persomhfor our success.

We have no separate facilities and are complegdignt on our Manager. We have no employees. @orenl executive officers are employees
of our Manager, which has significant discretiort@athe implementation of our investment and opegapolicies and strategies. Accordingly,
we depend on the diligence, skill and network aibess contacts of the senior management of oualyean Our Manager’'s employees
evaluate, negotiate, structure, close and monitoinvestments; therefore, our success will degentheir continued service. The departur
any of the senior managers of our Manager coulé laawmaterial adverse effect on our performancedtition, we can offer no assurance tha
our Manager will remain our investment managehat tve will continue to have access to our Managsehior managers. If the managemen
agreement is terminated and no suitable replaceimémind to manage us, we may not be able to éeemur business plan. Moreover, our
Manager is not obligated to dedicate certain oiitgployees exclusively to us nor is it obligatedédlicate any specific portion of its time to
our business, and none of our Manager's employeesoatractually dedicated to us under our manageagreement with our Manager. The
only employees of our Manager who are primarilyidad to our operations are Matthew Lambiase Pvasident and Chief Executive
Officer, Robert Colligan, our Chief Financial Officand Secretary, Mohit Marria, our Chief Investin@fficer, and William B. Dyer, our He:

of Underwriting.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshipwith our Manager and Annaly, which could result indecisions that are not in the best
interests of our stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interest arising oubur relationship with Annaly and our Managém Annaly executive officer is our
Manager’s sole director and one of Annaly’s empésyis a director. Specifically, each of our adficalso serves as an employee of our
Manager or its affiliates. As a result, our Magagnd our officers may have conflicts betweenrttieties to us and their duties to, and
interests in, Annaly or our Manager.

There may also be conflicts in allocating investtaewhich are suitable both for us and Annaly. Apmaay compete with us with respect to
certain investments which we may want to acquind, @s a result we may either not be presentedthétiopportunity or have to compete with
Annaly to acquire these investments. Our Managdrour officers may choose to allocate favoramestments to Annaly instead of to

us. The ability of our Manager and its officensl@mployees to engage in other business actiwit@sreduce the time our Manager spends
managing us. Further, during turbulent conditionghe mortgage industry, distress in the creditlets or other times when we will need
focused support and assistance from our Managevalfwill likewise require greater focus and atienf placing our Manager’s resources in
high demand. In such situations, we may not wectiie necessary support and assistance we requireuld otherwise receive if we were
internally managed. There is no assurance tlealtbcation policy that addresses some of thelictfelating to our investments will be
adequate to address all of the conflicts that miga In addition, we have entered into a repwsetaegreement with RCap, our Manager’s
affiliate, to finance our RMBS. This financing angement may make us less likely to terminate camager. It could also give rise to further
conflicts because RCap may be a creditor of oAssone of our creditors, RCap’s interests may djgdrom the interests of our stockholders.
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We pay our Manager substantial management feesdiega of the performance of our portfolio. Ouamager’s entitlement to substantial
nonperformance-based compensation might redugecstive to devote its time and effort to seekimgestments that provide attractive risk-
adjusted returns for our portfolio. This in twould have a negative impact on both our abilityngke distributions to our stockholders anc
market price of our common stock. As of DecemiderZ®12, Annaly owns approximately 4.38% of ourstartding shares of common stock
which entitles them to receive quarterly distribu8. In evaluating investments and other managestiettegies, this may lead our Manager tc
place emphasis on the maximization of revenudseagxpense of other criteria, such as preservaftioapital. Investments with higher yield
potential are generally riskier or more speculatiM@is could result in increased risk to the vadfieur invested portfolio. Annaly may sell
their shares in us at any time. To the extent Ansells some of its shares, its interests mayebe &ligned with our interests.

The management agreement with our Manager was notegotiated on an arm’s-length basis and may not besdavorable to us as if it
had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third party and may be difficult to terminate.

Our President and Chief Executive Officer, Chiafdficial Officer and Secretary, Chief Investmenidc@ff, and Head of Underwriting also
serve as employees of our Manager. Our manageagesement with our Manager was negotiated betwsdated parties, and its terms,
including fees payable, may not be as favorablestas if it had been negotiated with an unaffitiatteird party. Termination of the managen
agreement with our Manager without cause may e lif.

Our board of directors approved very broad investmat guidelines for our Manager and will not approveeach investment decision
made by our Manager.

Our Manager is authorized to follow very broad stmeent guidelines. Our board of directors pedally reviews our investment guidelines
and our investment portfolio, but does not, andoisrequired to review all of our proposed invegitseor any type or category of investment,
except that an investment in a security structoramanaged by our Manager must be approved by arityapf our independent directors. In
addition, in conducting periodic reviews, our boafdlirectors relies primarily on information prded to them by our Manager. Furthermore
our Manager uses complex strategies, and transaaiatered into by our Manager may be difficulingpossible to unwind by the time they
are reviewed by our board of directors. Our Mamndgs great latitude within the broad investmerdejines in determining the types of as

it may decide are proper investments for us, whimlhid result in investment returns that are sultisthnbelow expectations or that result in
losses, which would materially and adversely aftestbusiness operations and results. Furthersides made and investments entered into
by our Manager may not be in the best interestaiostockholders.

We may change our investment strategy, asset alld@an, or financing plans without stockholder consety which may result in riskier
investments.

We may change our investment strategy, asset ébbocar financing plans at any time without thesent of our stockholders, which could
result in our making investments that are diffeffeotn, and possibly riskier than, the investmemgsatdibed in this 2012 Form 10-K. A change
in our investment strategy or financing plans meyéase our exposure to interest rate and defakiland real estate market fluctuations.
Furthermore, a change in our asset allocation caddlt in our making investments in asset categatifferent from those described in this
2012 Form 10-K. These changes could adverselytafieanarket price of our common stock and ouritgltib make distributions to our
stockholders.
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While investments in investment vehicles manageduryManager require approval by a majority of imslependent directors, our Manager
has an incentive to invest our funds in investnvetiicles managed by our Manager because of théogitgof generating an additional
incremental management fee, which may reduce athiestment opportunities available to us. In additwe cannot assure you that
investments in investment vehicles managed by camdder will prove beneficial to us.

Our investment focus is different from those of otlkr entities that have been managed by our Manager.

Our investment focus is different from those ofestantities that have been managed by our Managparticular, entities managed by our
Manager have not purchased whole mortgage loassumtured whole loan securitizations. Accordinglyr Manager’s historical returns are
not indicative of its performance for our investrmstnategy and we can offer no assurance that amalgler will replicate the historical
performance of the Managerinvestment professionals in their previous endeavOur investment returns could be substantialler than th
returns achieved by our Manager’s investment psid@sls’ previous endeavors.

We compete with Annaly for access to our Manager'eesources and investment opportunities.

Some of our Manager’s personnel are also employe&analy and in that capacity are involved in Alyhainvestment process. Accordingly,
we will compete with Annaly for our Manager’s resoes. Annaly has an investment focus that ovesdftsours, which could result in us
competing for access to the benefits that we exparctelationship with our Manager will provideus.

Risks Related To Our Business

Our reported GAAP financial results differ from the taxable income results that impact our dividend dstribution requirements and,
therefore, our GAAP results may not be an accuraténdicator of future taxable income and dividend disributions.

Generally, the cumulative net income we report dlerlife of an asset will be the same for GAAP #adpurposes, although the timing of this
income recognition over the life of the asset cdagdmaterially different. Differences exist in thecounting for GAAP net income and REIT
taxable income which can lead to significant vatemin the amount and timing of when income ansdesre recognized under these two
measures. Due to these differences, our repordesRFinancial results could materially differ froour determination of taxable income
results, which impacts our dividend distributioquéements, and, therefore, our GAAP results maybean accurate indicator of future
taxable income and dividend distributions.

We may generate taxable income in excess of our GRAncome on NonAgency RMBS purchased at a discount to par value, lich may
result in significant timing variances in the recogition of income and losses.

We have acquired and intend to continue to acduine-Agency RMBS at prices that reflect significamdrket discounts on their unpaid
principal balances. For financial statement repgrpurposes, we generally establish a portionisfrttarket discount as a Non-Accretable
Difference. This credit reserve is generally natrated into income for financial statement repgriiurposes. For tax purposes, however, we
are not permitted to anticipate, or establish amesfor, credit losses prior to their occurrerg a result, the entire market discount is accrete
into income in determining taxable income duringqes in which no actual losses are incurred. Losse only recognized for tax purposes
when incurred (thus lowering taxable income in @@siin which losses are incurred). These differemtaccounting for tax and GAAP can
lead to significant timing variances in the recdigmi of income and losses. Taxable income on Noanky RMBS purchased at a discount to
their par value may be higher than GAAP earningsairty periods (before losses are actually incQri@dcause we distribute dividends to our
stockholders based on our taxable income, our eindctistributions could exceed our GAAP incomeeérnigrds during which our taxable
income exceeds our GAAP income on Non-Agency RMB&Ipased at discount to par value.

Failure to procure adequate capital and funding orfavorable terms, or at all, would adversely affecbur results and may, in turn,
negatively affect the market price of shares of oucommon stock and our ability to distribute dividerds to our stockholders.
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We depend upon the availability of adequate fundind capital for our operations. We intend toticeaour assets over the long-term through
a variety of means, including repurchase agreemergdit facilities and securitizations. Our acctscapital depends upon a number of fa
over which we have little or no control, including:

general market condition

the marke's perception of our growth potenti

our current and potential future earnings and désthibutions;
the market price of the shares of our capital staokl

the marke’s view of the quality of our asse

We have used and may in the future use a numisauwtes to finance our investments, including relpase agreements, warehouse facilities
and securitizations. Current market conditions haffected the cost and availability of financingrfr each of these sources — and their
individual providers — to different degrees; some available but at a high cost, and some are llatgaffected. For example, in the
repurchase agreement market, borrowers have besteaf differently depending on the type of segutiey are financing. Non-Agency
RMBS have been harder or more expensive to finade@ending on the type of assets collateraliziegRMBS. The amount, term and margin
requirements associated with these types of fimgschave been negatively impacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finance wholarigrime residential mortgages are generally dvailtom major banks, but at significantly
higher cost and greater margin requirements thaviquisly offered. Many major banks that offer wamabe facilities have also reduced the
amount of capital available to new entrants andequently the size of those facilities offered reves smaller than those previously available.

In addition, the impairment of other financial iihstions could negatively affect us. If one or monajor market participants fail or otherwise
experience a major liquidity crisis, it could adsedy affect the marketability of all fixed incomecsirities and this could negatively impact the
value of the securities we acquire, thus reducingnet book value.

Furthermore, if any of our lenders or any of outgmdial lenders are unwilling or unable to provigewith financing, we could be forced to sell
our securities or residential mortgage loans ahapportune time when prices are depressed.

Our business, results of operations and financiaflition may be materially adversely affected kgrajptions in the financial markets. We
cannot assure you, under such extreme conditibastliese markets will remain an efficient sourcloig-term financing for our assets. If ¢
strategy is not viable, we will have to find altative forms of financing for our assets, which may be available. Further, as a REIT, we are
required to distribute annually at least 90% of R&IT taxable income (subject to certain adjustjettt our stockholders and are, therefore,
not able to retain significant amounts of our eaggifor new investments. We cannot assure youathgtor sufficient, funding or capital will
be available to us in the future on terms thataeeptable to us. If we cannot obtain sufficiemtding on acceptable terms, there may be a
negative impact on the market price of our commonksand our ability to make distributions to otockholders. Moreover, our ability to
grow will be dependent on our ability to procur@idnal funding. To the extent we are not ableaise additional funds through the issuance
of additional equity or borrowings, our growth wilé constrained.

We operate in a highly competitive market for inveiment opportunities and more established competitas may be able to compete mot
effectively for investment opportunities than we ca.

A number of entities compete with us to make thpesyof investments that we plan to make. We compiheother REITS, public and private
funds, commercial and investment banks and comaldicance companies. Many of our competitors atestantially larger and have
considerably greater financial, technical and mmgeresources than we do. Several other REITs haiged, or are expected to raise,
significant amounts of capital, and may have inwestt objectives that overlap with ours, which megate competition for investment
opportunities. Some competitors may have a lowst abfunds and access to funding sources that@ravailable to us. In addition, some of
our competitors may have higher risk tolerancediféerent risk assessments, which could allow theronsider a wider variety of investme
and establish more favorable relationships tham{escannot assure you that the competitive pressuegface will not have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltsof operations. Also, as a result of this cotitipg, we may not be able to take advantag
attractive investment opportunities from time toej and we can offer no assurance that we wilbtbe ta identify and make investments that
are consistent with our investment objectives.
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Loss of our 1940 Act exemption would adversely afte us and negatively affect the market price of shas of our common stock and our
ability to distribute dividends and could result in the termination of the management agreement withur Manager.

We conduct our operations so that neither we ngrofiour subsidiaries are required to registerramaestment company under the 1940 Act.
Because we are a holding company that will condsidtusinesses primarily through wholly-owned sdlasies, the securities issued by these
subsidiaries that are excepted from the definitibtinvestment company” under Section 3(c)(1) oct®m 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act, together
with any other investment securities we may owny ma have a combined value in excess of 40% of/#ihee of our adjusted total assets on
an unconsolidated basis. This requirement limistyipes of businesses in which we may engage througsubsidiaries. In addition, the as:
we and our subsidiaries may acquire are limitethleyprovisions of the 1940 Act, the rules and ragohs promulgated under the 1940 Act
SEC staff interpretative guidance, which may adsigraffect our performance.

If the value of securities issued by our subsidmthat are excepted from the definition of “inmestt company” by Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7)
of the 1940 Act, together with any other investmaaturities we own, exceeds 40% of our adjusted &ssets on an unconsolidated basis, or
one or more of such subsidiaries fail to maintaireaception or exemption from the 1940 Act, we dpaimong other things, be required eithet
(a) to substantially change the manner in whictcamduct our operations to avoid being requirecetpster as an investment company or (k
register as an investment company under the 1940=fber of which could have an adverse effectisand the market price of our securities.
If we were required to register as an investmenigany under the 1940 Act, we would become subgestibstantial regulation with respect to
our capital structure (including our ability to Usgerage), management, operations, transactiahsaffiliated persons (as defined in the 1940
Act), portfolio composition, including restrictiongath respect to diversification and industry comication, and other matters.

Certain of our subsidiaries rely on the exemptimmt registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C)td 1940 Act. Section 3(c)(5)(C) as
interpreted by the staff of the SEC, requires usvest at least 55% of our assets in “mortgagesatiner liens on and interest in real estate” (
Qualifying Real Estate Assets) and at least 80%uofassets in Qualifying Real Estate Assets plakastate related assets. The assets that w
acquire, therefore, are limited by the provisiohthe 1940 Act and the rules and regulations prgatgld under the 1940 Act. On August 31,
2011, the SEC issued a concept release titled “@oiep Engaged in the Business of Acquiring Mortgaayed Mortgage-Related

Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778). Underctheept release, the SEC is reviewing interpretisees related to the Section 3(c)(5)(C)
exemption. The potential outcomes of the SECmas are unclear as is the SEC’s timetable faretgew and actions. If the SEC determine:
that any of our securities are not Qualifying Restlate Assets or real estate related assets onisbebelieves we do not satisfy the exemptior
under Section 3(c)(5)(C), we could be requirecesinucture our activities or sell certain of ousets. The net effect of these factors will be to
lower our net interest income. If we fail to gfyafior exemption from registration as an investmesmpany, our ability to use leverage would
be substantially reduced, and we would not be abé®nduct our business as described. Our businiéidse materially and adversely affected
if we fail to qualify for this exemption.

Certain of our subsidiaries may rely on the exeampprovided by Section 3(c)(6) which excludes frtna definition of “investment company”
any company primarily engaged, directly or througggority-owned subsidiaries, in a business, among othessribed in Section 3(c)(5)(C)
the 1940 Act (from which not less than 25% of saompany’s gross income during its last fiscal yeas derived) together with an additional
business or additional businesses other than iimggseinvesting, owning, holding or trading in saties. The SEC staff has issued little
interpretive guidance with respect to Section &)cgd any guidance published by the staff coulgiire us to adjust our strategy accordingly.

We expect certain of our subsidiaries we may forrthe future to rely on Section 3(c)(7) for thed40 Act exemption and, therefore our
interest in each of these subsidiaries would ctutstan “investment security” for purposes of detieing whether we pass the 40% test.

21




We may in the future, however, organize one or nsoiesidiaries that seek to rely on the 1940 Actrgpt®n provided to certain structured
financing vehicles by Rule 3a-7. If we organizbsidiaries that rely on Rule 3a-7 for an exempfiom the 1940 Act, these subsidiaries will
also need to comply with the restrictions descriipetBusiness—Operating and Regulatory Structure4@l8ct Exemption.” In general, Rule
3a-7 exempts from the 1940 Act issuers that liheirtactivities as follows:

e the issuer issues securities the payment of wiégtends primarily on the cash flow from “eligillesets” that by their terms convert
into cash within a finite time perio

e the securities sold are fixed income securiii¢ed investment grade by at least one rating ag@ixeyl income securities which are
unrated or rated below investment grade may betedltstitutional accredited investors and any séies may be sold to “qualified
institutional buyer” and to persons involved in the organization or apen of the issuer

e the issuer acquires and disposes of eligible agketmly in accordance with the agreements puitsizewvhich the securities are isst
(2) so that the acquisition or disposition doesragtilt in a downgrading of the issuer’s fixed imepsecurities and (3) the eligible
assets are not acquired or disposed of for thegpyipurpose of recognizing gains or decreasingksssulting from market value
changes; an

e unless the issuer is issuing only commercial pahe issuer appoints an independent trustees taasonable steps to transfer to the
trustee an ownership or perfected security intérette eligible assets, and meets rating agermyirements for commingling of cash
flows.

Any subsidiary also would need to be structuredaimply with any guidance that may be issued byDiwesion of Investment Management of
the SEC on how the subsidiary must be organizedaply with the restrictions contained in Rule 3&E@mpliance with Rule 3a-7 may
require that the indenture governing the subsidiaciude additional limitations on the types ofetsshe subsidiary may sell or acquire out of
the proceeds of assets that mature, are refinasroettherwise sold, on the period of time during evh$uch transactions may occur, and on the
amount of transactions that may occur. In lighthaf requirements of Rule Ja-our ability to manage assets held in a specigigse subsidial
that complies with Rule 3a-7 will be limited and way not be able to purchase or sell assets ownérhb subsidiary when we would
otherwise desire to do so, which could lead todsssVe currently limit the aggregate value of oeriests in our subsidiaries that may in the
future seek to rely on Rule JFato 20% or less of our total assets on an uncateget basis, as we continue to discuss with the S&ff the us

of subsidiaries that rely on Rule 3a-7 to finanae @perations.

The determination of whether an entity is a mayeoitvned subsidiary of our company is made by ug T$10 Act defines a majority-owned
subsidiary of a person as a company of which 50%hare of the outstanding voting securities are ahmgsuch person, or by another
company which is a majority-owned subsidiary oftsperson. The 1940 Act further defines voting séiegras any security presently entitling
the owner or holder thereof to vote for the elettid directors of a company. We treat companieshith we own at least a majority of the
outstanding voting securities as majority-ownedssdibries for purposes of the 40% test. We haveemiested the SEC to approve our
treatment of any company as a majootyned subsidiary and the SEC has not done sce IBEC were to disagree with our treatment of or
more companies as majority-owned subsidiaries, agldmeed to adjust our strategy and our assetgligr to continue to pass the 40% test.
Any such adjustment in our strategy could have teri# adverse effect on us.

There can be no assurance that the laws and reqpuda@overning the 1940 Act status of REITs, inglgdhe Division of Investment
Management of the SEC providing more specific &fiedént guidance regarding these exemptions, willahange in a manner that adversely
affects our operations. If we or our subsidiarebtb maintain an exception or exemption from 1940 Act, we could, among other things, be
required either to (a) change the manner in whiettenduct our operations to avoid being requireggister as an investment company, (b)
effect sales of our assets in a manner that, attiate when, we would not otherwise choose to dmis(c) register as an investment company,
any of which could negatively affect the value af common stock, the sustainability of our busimasslel, and our ability to make
distributions which could have an adverse effecbonbusiness and the market price for our shdresramon stock.
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Rapid changes in the values of our RMBS, residentianortgage loans, and other real estate-related irstments may make it more
difficult for us to maintain our qualification as a REIT or our exemption from the 1940 Act.

If the market value or income potential of our RVMB&sidential mortgage loans, and other real estdéted investments declines as a result ¢
increased interest rates, prepayment rates or fabirs, we may need to increase our real estagsiments and income or liquidate our non-
qualifying assets to maintain our REIT qualificatior our exemption from the 1940 Act. If the deelin real estate asset values or income
occurs quickly, this may be especially difficultaocomplish. This difficulty may be exacerbatedtfy illiquid nature of any non-real estate
assets we may own. We may have to make investneeigions that we otherwise would not make absenRiBIT and 1940 Act
considerations.

We may have significant credit risk, especially otNon-Agency RMBS, in certain geographic areas and nyabe disproportionately
affected by economic or housing downturns, naturadlisasters, terrorist events, adverse climate chang@r other adverse events specific
to those markets.

A significant number of the mortgages collateraligour RMBS may be concentrated in certain geodcagrieas. For example, with respect to
our Non-Agency RMBS portfolio, we have significgntligher exposure in California, Virginia, New YoNashington, and New Jersey.
Certain markets within these states (particuladyif@rnia) experienced significant decreases ifdesgial home value during the recent hou
crisis and continue to experience challenging esda@nd real estate conditions. Any event that esbhg affects the economy or real estate
market in these states could have a disproporbnativerse effect on our Nakgency RMBS portfolio. In general, any material lifee in the
economy or significant difficulties in the real &st markets would be likely to cause a declindémalue of residential properties securing the
mortgages in the relevant geographic area. Thisirim would increase the risk of delinquency, d#fand foreclosure on real estate
collateralizing our Non-Agency RMBS in this are&id may then materially adversely affect our crémis experience on our Non-Agency
RMBS in such area if unexpectedly high rates oadkf(e.g., in excess of the default rates forechstnd/or higher than expected loss
severities on the mortgages collateralizing suchirses were to occur.

The occurrence of a natural disaster (such asrdmgeake, tornado, hurricane or a flood) or a digaint adverse climate change may cause a
sudden decrease in the value of real estate anidlwioely reduce the value of the properties samyithe mortgages collateralizing our Non-
Agency RMBS. Since certain natural disasters mayymically be covered by the standard hazard ersce policies maintained by borrowers,
the borrowers may have to pay for repairs duedaltbasters. Borrowers may not repair their prgparimay stop paying their mortgages ur
those circumstances. This would likely cause défaarid credit loss severities to increase on tloé gfamortgages securing our Non-Agency
RMBS which, unlike Agency RMBS, are not guarantasdo principal and/or interest by the U.S. Governtnany federal agency or federally
chartered corporation.

We leverage our investments, which may adverselyfatt our return on our investments and may reduceash available for distribution
to our stockholders.

We leverage our investments through borrowingsegaly through the use of repurchase agreementghease facilities, credit facilities and
securitizations. We are not required to maintaip gpecific debt-to-equity ratio. The amount of lege we use varies depending on our ability
to obtain credit facilities, the lenders’ and rgtagencies’ estimates of the stability of the itwests’ cash flow, and our assessment of the
appropriate amount of leverage for the particutmets we are funding. Under some credit facilities expect to be required to maintain
minimum average cash balances in connection witfoldngs. Our return on our investments and castil@e for distribution to our
stockholders may be reduced to the extent thatggsim market conditions prevent us from leveraginginvestments, require us to decrease
our rate of leverage, increase the amount of @bhtve post, or increase the cost of our finanoatative to the income that can be derived
from the assets acquired. Our debt service paymahiteduce cash flow available for distributiottsstockholders, which could adversely
affect the price of our common stock. We may noable to meet our debt service obligations, anthdécextent that we cannot, we risk the |

of some or all of our assets to foreclosure or sakatisfy the obligations. We leverage certaiowf assets through repurchase agreements. /
decrease in the value of these assets may leadrgimrcalls which we will have to satisfy. We mayt have the funds available to satisfy any
such margin calls and we may be forced to selltasgesignificantly depressed prices due to mar&atitions or otherwise. The satisfaction of
such margin calls may reduce cash flow availablafstribution to our stockholders. Any reductiondistributions to our stockholders or sales
of assets at inopportune times or prices may ctingsealue of our common stock to decline, in soames, precipitously.
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We depend on warehouse and repurchase facilities drcredit facilities to execute our business plan,ral our inability to access funding
could have a material adverse effect on our resultsf operations, financial condition and business.

Our ability to fund our investments depends torgdaextent upon our ability to secure warehouggynehase and credit financing on accept
terms. We can provide no assurance that we wiluoeessful in establishing sufficient warehousgurehase, and credit facilities. In addition,
because warehouse, repurchase, and credit facaiteeshort-term commitments of capital, the lemdeay respond to market conditions, whict
may favor an alternative investment strategy fernthmaking it more difficult for us to secure comgéd financing. During certain periods of
the credit cycle, such as recently, lenders matatdheir willingness to provide financing. If vare not able to renew our then existing
warehouse, repurchase, and credit facilities @nae for new financing on terms acceptable to s, vee default on our covenants or are
otherwise unable to access funds under any of flaegdies, we will have to curtail our asset aigjtion activities.

It is possible that the lenders that provide u$iiitancing could experience changes in their ghith advance funds to us, independent of our
performance or the performance of our investménttyding our mortgage loans. In addition, if tegulatory capital requirements imposed or
our lenders change, they may be required to sagifly increase the cost of the warehouse fadglitiat they provide to us. Our lenders also
may revise their eligibility requirements for thgés of residential mortgage loans they are wiltméinance or the terms of such financings,
based on, among other factors, the regulatory enrient and their management of perceived riskiqodatly with respect to assignee liabili
Financing of equity-based lending, for example, tnagome more difficult in the future. Moreover, graount of financing we will receive
under our warehouse and repurchase facilitieshailllirectly related to the lenders’ valuation af #ssets that secure the outstanding
borrowings. Typically warehouse, repurchase, arditfacilities grant the respective lender theotltte right to reevaluate the market value of
the assets that secure outstanding borrowingsyatirag. If a lender determines in its sole disaetihat the value of the assets has decreased
has the right to initiate a margin call. A margailevould require us to transfer additional assetsuch lender without any advance of funds
from the lender for such transfer or to repay diporof the outstanding borrowings. Any such margaii could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations, financial conditibasiness, liquidity and ability to make distribut#oto our stockholders, and could cause the
value of our common stock to decline. We may beddrto sell assets at significantly depressed ptiweneet such margin calls and to
maintain adequate liquidity, which could causeamctur losses. Moreover, to the extent we aresfbto sell assets at such time, given marke
conditions, we may be forced to sell assets asdnee time as others facing similar pressures taiselar assets, which could greatly
exacerbate a difficult market environment and whiohld result in our incurring significantly greatesses on our sale of such assets. In an
extreme case of market duress, a market may nathe@resent for certain of our assets at any price

Certain financing facilities may contain covenantghat restrict our operations and may inhibit our ability to grow our business and
increase revenues.

Certain financing facilities we may enter into n@ntain extensive restrictions, covenants, andesepmations and warranties that, among 1
things, require us to satisfy specified financagset quality, loan eligibility and loan performarests. If we fail to meet or satisfy any of thes
covenants or representations and warranties, wédvibsuin default under these agreements and odetsrcould elect to declare all amounts
outstanding under the agreements to be immedidtedyand payable, enforce their respective inteeggst collateral pledged under such
agreements and restrict our ability to make adaiitidoorrowings. Certain financing agreements mayaia crossdefault provisions, so that it
default occurs under any one agreement, the lenthelsr our other agreements could also declaréaaltleThe covenants and restrictions we
expect in our financing facilities may restrict @hility to, among other things:

incur or guarantee additional de

make certain investments or acquisitic

make distributions on or repurchase or redeem alagiibck;
engage in mergers or consolidatic

finance mortgage loans with certain attribu

reduce liquidity below certain level

24




grant liens

incur operating losses for more than a specifigtbge
enter into transactions with affiliates; a

hold mortgage loans for longer than establisheé f@riods

Ouir failure to be current in our reporting requists with the SEC diminishes our ability to enalile counterparties who do not have
transparency into our financial performance. Weentty finance only that portion of our portfolibat is Agency RMBS. To date, we have
had any counterparties to our borrowing arrangesiemininate any relationships as a result of ailurtato be current in our reporting
requirements with the SEC, however, we have prealgtreduced the amount of borrowings under ourteragpurchase agreements with
respect to Agency RMBS to ensure that we are ahteget any margin calls or reduce our borrowing ameas required by our counterpart

These restrictions may interfere with our abiliyabtain financing, or to engage in other busirsesvities, which may have a significant
negative impact on our business, financial conadjtiquidity and results of operations. A defauitlaesulting repayment acceleration could
significantly reduce our liquidity, which could neige us to sell our assets to repay amounts due@aistanding. This could also significantly
harm our business, financial condition, resultsérations, and our ability to make distributionbjch could cause the value of our common
stock to decline. A default will also significantiynit our financing alternatives such that we viié unable to pursue our leverage strategy,
which could curtail our investment returns.

The repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities ardedit facilities that we use to finance our invesnents may require us to provide
additional collateral and may restrict us from leveaging our assets as fully as desired.

We will try to use repurchase agreements, warehfacdiies and credit facilities to finance ouvestments. We currently have uncommitted
repurchase agreements with 21 counterparties,dimguRCap, for financing our RMBS. Our repurchageeements are uncommitted and the
counterparty may refuse to advance funds undeagheements to us. If the market value of the l@arsecurities pledged or sold by us to a
funding source decline in value, we may be requingthe lending institution to provide additionallateral or pay down a portion of the funds
advanced, but we may not have the funds availabdi® tso. Posting additional collateral will redwee liquidity and limit our ability to
leverage our assets, which could adversely affecbasiness. In the event we do not have suffidigaidity to meet such requirements,
lending institutions can accelerate repayment ofimdebtedness, increase our borrowing rates,dateiour collateral or terminate our ability
borrow. Such a situation would likely result inagoid deterioration of our financial condition anabpibly necessitate a filing for protection
under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Further, finanicistitutions may require us to maintain a certaimoant of cash that is not invested or to set
aside non-levered assets sufficient to maintaipegified liquidity position which would allow us &atisfy our collateral obligations. As a
result, we may not be able to leverage our assdidlg as we would choose which could reduce etunn on equity. If we are unable to meet
these collateral obligations, then, as describedabour financial condition could deteriorate thpi

If the counterparty to our repurchase transactionsdefaults on its obligation to resell the underlyingsecurity back to us at the end of the
transaction term, or if the value of the underlyingsecurity has declined as of the end of that ternr @ we default on our obligations
under the repurchase agreement, we will lose mon@&n our repurchase transactions.

When we engage in a repurchase transaction, weajlsneell securities to the transaction countepand receive cash from the counterparty.
The counterparty is obligated to resell the seiasriback to us at the end of the term of the tretitag which is typically 30-90 days. Because
the cash we receive from the counterparty whemitilly sell the securities to the counterpartyeiss than the value of those securities (this
difference is referred to as the haircut), if theaterparty defaults on its obligation to resed securities back to us we would incur a loss on
the transaction equal to the amount of the ha{@sguming there was no change in the value ofabarsies). We would also lose money on a
repurchase transaction if the value of the undeglgecurities has declined as of the end of thesaetion term, as we would have to repurcl
the securities for their initial value but wouldeéve securities worth less than that amount. Asgés we incur on our repurchase transaction
could adversely affect our earnings, and thus ash@vailable for distribution to our stockholdéfsve default on one of our obligations un

a repurchase transaction, the counterparty carirtatenthe transaction and cease entering into #rer oepurchase transactions with us. In tha
case, we would likely need to establish a replacemepurchase facility with another repurchaseeatdal order to continue to leverage our
portfolio and carry out our investment strategyefhis no assurance we would be able to estabBsiitable replacement facility.
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Our rights under our repurchase agreements are sulgict to the effects of the bankruptcy laws in the ent of the bankruptcy or
insolvency of us or our lenders under the repurchasagreements.

In the event of our insolvency or bankruptcy, dartepurchase agreements may qualify for spe@akimnent under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code,
the effect of which, among other things, would daltow the lender under the applicable repurclaagseement to avoid the automatic stay
provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and to fluge on the collateral agreement without delayh&event of the insolvency or bankruptcy
of a lender during the term of a repurchase agregrtiee lender may be permitted, under applicaidelvency laws, to repudiate the contract,
and our claim against the lender for damages mdxelged simply as an unsecured creditor. In auidiif the lender is a broker or dealer
subject to the Securities Investor Protection Ad%v0, or an insured depository institution subjeadhe Federal Deposit Insurance Act, our
ability to exercise our rights to recover our s@@s under a repurchase agreement or to be corapehfor any damages resulting from the
lender’s insolvency may be further limited by thasatutes. These claims would be subject to sianiti delay and, if and when received, may
be substantially less than the damages we actinally.

An increase in our borrowing costs relative to thenterest we receive on our assets may adversely edf our profitability, and thus our
cash available for distribution to our stockholders

As our repurchase agreements and other short-termavkings mature, we will be required either toegrihto new borrowings or to sell certain
of our investments. An increase in short-term iggérates at the time that we seek to enter intobmrowings would reduce the spread
between our returns on our assets and the cosirdfasrowings. This would adversely affect our rafuon our assets that are subject to
prepayment risk, including our RMBS, which mightluee earnings and, in turn, cash available foridigion to our stockholders.

If we issue senior securities we will be exposed aolditional risks.

If we decide to issue senior securities in theritit is likely that they will be governed by ardenture or other instrument containing
covenants restricting our operating flexibility. ditionally, any convertible or exchangeable se@sithat we issue in the future may have
rights, preferences and privileges more favoraiae those of our common stock and may result irtidiht to owners of our common stock. '
and, indirectly, our stockholders, will bear thesttof issuing and servicing such securities.

Our securitizations will expose us to additional rgks.

We securitize and may continue to securitize aeréiour portfolio investments to generate cashiudading new investments. We expect to
structure these transactions either as financangstictions or as sales for GAAP. In each suclsaaion, we convey a pool of assets to a
special purpose vehicle, the issuing entity, amddbuing entity issues one or more classes ofrecodrse notes pursuant to the terms of an
indenture. The notes are secured by the pool etads exchange for the transfer of assets tistheng entity, we receive the cash proceeds
the sale of non-recourse notes and a 100% interés¢ equity of the issuing entity. The securiti@a of our portfolio investments might
magnify our exposure to losses on those portfoN@stments because any equity interest we retdhreirssuing entity would be subordinate to
the notes issued to investors and we would, thexeédosorb all of the losses sustained with respegtsecuritized pool of assets before the
owners of the notes experience any losses. Moreasecannot be assured that we will be able tosscttee securitization market, or be able tc
do so at favorable rates. The inability to seczeitour portfolio could hurt our performance and abitity to grow our business.

Hedging against interest rate exposure may adverseaffect our earnings, which could reduce our cashvailable for distribution to our
stockholders.

Subject to maintaining our qualification as a RENVE pursue various hedging strategies to seelkdiaceeour exposure to losses from adverse

changes in interest rates. Our hedging activityegan scope based on the level and volatilityntéiiest rates, the type of assets held and othe
changing market conditions. Interest rate hedgiag fail to protect or could adversely affect usdese, among other things:
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interest rate hedging can be expensive, partiguthrting periods of rising and volatile interesiersy

available interest rate hedges may not correspordtly with the interest rate risk for which prot®n is sought

the duration of the hedge may not match the duraifdahe related liability

the amount of income that a REIT may earn froufgivey transactions (other than through TRSs) teedfinterest rate losses is limited

by federal tax provisions governing REI

e the credit quality of the party owing money or ttedge may be downgraded to such an extent tingpatirs our ability to sell or
assign our side of the hedging transaction;

e the party owing money in the hedging transactiony default on its obligation to pa

Our hedging transactions, which are intended tit limsses, may actually limit gains and increaseesgposure to losses. As a result, our
hedging activity may adversely affect our earningsich could reduce our cash available for distiitouto our stockholders. In addition, some
hedging instruments involve risk since they areaustently traded on regulated exchanges, guardittg@n exchange or its clearing house, ol
regulated by any U.S. or foreign governmental aiities. Consequently, there are no requirements keispect to record keeping, financial
responsibility or segregation of customer funds positions. Furthermore, the enforceability of @gnents underlying derivative transactions
may depend on compliance with applicable statudmg commodity and other regulatory requirements dadending on the identity of the
counterparty, applicable international requiremente business failure of a hedging counterpartir whom we enter into a hedging
transaction will most likely result in its defauefault by a party with whom we enter into a hedgiransaction may result in the loss of
unrealized profits and force us to cover our commaitts, if any, at the then current market pricéh@lgh generally we will seek to reserve the
right to terminate our hedging positions, it may alwvays be possible to dispose of or close owdgimg position without the consent of the
hedging counterparty, and we may not be able terémto an offsetting contract in order to cover osk. We cannot assure you that a liquid
secondary market will exist for hedging instrumegmischased or sold, and we may be required to aiaiatposition until exercise or
expiration, which could result in losses.

Our hedging strategies may not be successful in rigating the risks associated with interest rates.

Subject to complying with REIT tax requirements, iea’e employed and intend to continue to emplofgrigries that limit, or hedge, the
adverse effects of rising interest rates on ourtsleom repurchase agreements. In general, ougihgdtrategy depends on our view of our
entire portfolio, consisting of assets, liabiliti@sd derivative instruments, in light of prevailingarket conditions. We could misjudge the
condition of our investment portfolio or the market

Our hedging activity will vary in scope based oa tavel and volatility of interest rates and prpatirepayments, the type of securities held an
other changing market conditions. Our actual heglgiecisions will be determined in light of the faaend circumstances existing at the time
and may differ from our currently anticipated heudpstrategy. These techniques may include entémognterest rate caps, collars, floors,
forward contracts, futures, options or swap agregs&\Ve may conduct certain hedging transactiomutih a TRS, which will be subject to
federal, state and, if applicable, local income tax

There are no perfect hedging strategies, and sttesiee hedging may fail to protect us from loskeatively, we may fail to properly assess a
risk to our investment portfolio or may fail to cemize a risk entirely, leaving us exposed to Isssighout the benefit of any offsetting hedg
activities. The derivative financial instruments sedect may not have the effect of reducing owerest rate risk. The nature and timing of
hedging transactions may influence the effectivervéshese strategies. Poorly designed strategimspoperly executed transactions could
actually increase our risk and losses. In additr@ulging activities could result in losses if tver® against which we hedge does not occur
example, interest rate hedging could fail to protecor adversely affect us because, among otiregsth

e available interest rate hedging may not corresmbretttly with the interest rate risk for which peation is sought

e the duration of the hedge may not match the duratfdhe related liability

e as explained in further detail in the risk fadgtomediately below, the party owing money in thelgiag transaction may default on its
obligation to pay

e the credit quality of the party owing money or ttedge may be downgraded to such an extent tingpatirs our ability to sell or
assign our side of the hedging transaction;
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e the value of derivatives used for hedging mawdiested from time to time in accordance with actimg rules to reflect changes in
fair value. Downward adjustments, “mark-to-market losse” would reduce our stockhold’ equity.

Whether the derivatives we acquire achieve hedgewsting treatment or not, hedging generally inesleosts and risks. Our hedging
strategies may adversely affect us because hedgingties involve costs that we will incur regaggs of the effectiveness of the hedging
activity. Those costs may be higher in periods afkat volatility, both because the counterpartiesur derivative agreements may demand a
higher payment for taking risks, and because repeadjustments of our hedges during periods ofésteate changes also may increase cost
Especially if our hedging strategies are not effectwe could incur significant hedging-related tsosithout any corresponding economic
benefits.

We have elected not to qualify for hedge accountingeatment.

We record derivative and hedge transactions inrdaree with GAAP. Our interest rate swaps havebeeh designated as hedging
instruments for accounting purposes. Consequettignges in the fair value of swaps are reportedasnponent of net income in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsaelemcome (Loss).

We have experienced declines in the market value ofir assets resulting in us recording impairmentswhich have had an adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial conditia.

A decline in the market value of our RMBS or othesets may require us to recognize an other-thmapeteary impairment (or “OTTI") against
such assets under GAAP. When the fair value oRMBS is less than its amortized cost, the secisitonsidered impaired. We assess our
impaired securities on at least a quarterly basisdesignate such impairments as either temporasther-than-temporary. The determination
as to whether an OTTI exists and, if so, the amaumntonsider other-than-temporarily impaired isjsctive, as such determinations are basec
on both factual and subjective information avaitadl the time of assessment. As a result, the gimimd amount of OTTI constitute material
estimates that are susceptible to significant chahgthe future, we may experience declines irféirevalue of our RMBS and other assets
could result in additional OTTI that will be recaged in earnings.

Declines in the fair values of our investments magdversely affect periodic reported results and creitl availability, which may reduce
earnings and, in turn, cash available for distributon to our stockholders.

A substantial portion of our assets are classiidedccounting purposes as “available-for-sale” eadied at fair value. Changes in the fair

values of those assets will be directly chargedredited to OCI. In addition, a decline in valuéh reduce the book value of our assets. A

decline in the fair value of our assets may advgiaiect us, particularly in instances where weédborrowed money based on the fair valt
those assets. If the fair value of those assetldscthe lender may require us to post additico#iateral to support the loan. If we were un
to post the additional collateral, we would haveed the assets at a time when we might not otisereshoose to do so. A reduction in credit
available may reduce our ability to invest andamenterest income which would reduce cash aviailadr distribution to stockholders.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advergly affect our business.

We may invest in securities or other instrumendd #re not liquid. It may be difficult or impossétiio obtain third party pricing on the
investments we purchase. llliquid investmentscyify experience greater price volatility as adgaarket does not exist. In addition,
validating third party pricing for illiquid investemts may be more subjective than more liquid imaests. The illiquidity of our investments
may make it difficult for us to sell such investrnteif the need or desire arises. In addition, ifave required to liquidate all or a portion of our
portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly keshan the value at which we have previously remtb@lir investments. As a result, our ability
to vary our portfolio in response to changes imeetoic and other conditions may be relatively lidjteshich could adversely affect our results
of operations and financial condition.

We are highly dependent on information systems anthird parties, and systems failures could significatly disrupt our business, which
may, in turn, negatively affect the market price ofour common stock and our ability to pay dividendgo our stockholders.
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Our business is highly dependent on communicatimasinformation systems. Any failure or interruptiof our systems or cyber-attacks or
security breaches of our networks or systems coalde delays or other problems in our securitairig activities, including mortgadecker
securities trading activities, which could have @enial adverse effect on our operating resultsreeghtively affect the market price of our
common stock and our ability to pay dividends to stockholders. In addition, we also face the aékperational failure, termination or
capacity constraints of any of the third partiewvhich we do business or that facilitate our bass activities, including clearing agents or
other financial intermediaries we use to facilitate securities transactions.

Computer malware, viruses, and computer hackingphighing attacks have become more prevalent innguistry and may occur on our
systems in the future. We rely heavily on our fiicial, accounting and other data processing systénis difficult to determine what, if any,
negative impact may directly result from any spedifterruption or cybesttacks or security breaches of our networks aiesys or any failur
to maintain performance, reliability and securifyoar technical infrastructure. However, any sasomputer malware, viruses, and computer
hacking and phishing attacks may negatively affectoperations.

We depend on third-party service providers, includhg mortgage servicers, for a variety of services k&ted to our Non-Agency RMBS
and whole mortgage loans we may acquire. We are,atefore, subject to the risks associated with thirgparty service providers.

We depend on a variety of services provided byltparty service providers related to our Non-AgeR&¥BS and whole mortgage loans we
may acquire. We rely on the mortgage servicers sgmvice the mortgage loans backing our Non-Agen@BR to, among other things, collect
principal and interest payments on the underlyirgtgages and perform loss mitigation services. @artgage servicers and other service
providers to our Non-Agency RMBS, such as trustbend insurance providers and custodians, may erdoin in a manner that promotes our
interests. In addition, recent legislation intenttededuce or prevent foreclosures through, amahnerdhings, loan modifications may reduce
the value of mortgage loans backing our Non-AgeRBIBS or whole mortgage loans that we acquire. Mag&gservicers may be incentivized
by the Federal government to pursue such loan imeatlidns, as well as forbearance plans and oth@racintended to prevent foreclosure,
even if such loan modifications and other actiomsret in the best interests of the beneficial awrmé the mortgage loans. In addition to the
recent legislation that creates financial incergtifee mortgage loan servicers to modify loans ahe tother actions that are intended to preven
foreclosures, legislation has recently been adohiaticreates a safe harbor from liability to ctedi for servicers that undertake loan
modifications and other actions that are intendegrévent foreclosures. Finally, any regulatorp#fto delay the initiation or completion of
foreclosure proceedings on specified types of eggidl mortgage loans (some for a limited periotirag), may limit the ability of mortgage
servicers to take actions that may be essentigserve the value of the mortgage loans underlyiagnortgage servicing rights. Any such
limitations are likely to cause delayed or reduceliections from mortgagors and generally increses®icing costs. As a result, the mortgage
loan servicers on which we rely may not perfornoim best interests or up to our expectations. iftbind-party service providers do not
perform as expected, our business, financial cimmdénd results of operations and ability to maistrithutions to our shareholders may be
materially adversely affected.

The Dodd-Frank Act contains many regulatory changeand calls for future rulemaking that may affect ou business.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetimn Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, contains manyulatory changes and calls for
future rulemaking that may affect our businessiuidiag, but not limited to resolutions involvingrilatives, risk-retention in securitizations,
the origination of residential mortgage loans amofsterm financings. The Dodd-Frank Act’s requients may impact the housing and
mortgage markets, which could have an adversetaifeour business. We are evaluating the poteimipéct of regulatory change under the
Dodd-Frank Act.

The increasing number of proposed federal, state ahocal laws may increase our risk of liability wih respect to certain mortgage loan:
may include judicial modification provisions and cauld increase our cost of doing business.

The United States Congress and various state aatllegislatures are considering legislation, whaiinong other provisions, would permit
limited assignee liability for certain violations the mortgage loan and servicing origination psscand would allow judicial modification of
loan principal in the event of personal bankruptiye cannot predict whether or in what form Congmsthe various state and local
legislatures may enact legislation affecting ousibess.
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For example, the California Homeowner Bill of Righivhich became effective on January 1, 2013, iepogw obligations and potential
liabilities on investors, master servicers, semg@nd subservicers, including ablight and tenant protection provisions. We aral@ating the
potential impact of these initiatives, if enacted,our practices and results of operations. Aesalt of these and other initiatives, we are un
to predict whether federal, state or local authesitvill require changes in our practices in thtife or in our portfolio. These changes, if
required, could adversely affect our profitabilipgrticularly if we make such changes in respoaseetv or amended laws, regulations or
ordinances in any state where we acquire a sigmifiportion of our mortgage loans, or if such clenigesult in us being held responsible for
any violations in the mortgage loan originationqass, or if the principal amount of loans we ow@ in RMBS pools we own are modified
in the personal bankruptcy process.

Risks Related to Our Investments

We might not be able to purchase residential mortgge loans, mortgage-backed securities and other instenents that meet our
investment criteria or at favorable spreads over ouborrowing costs.

To the extent we purchase assets using leveragaepincome depends on our ability to acquiredersiial mortgage loans, mortgage-backed
securities and other investments at favorable sisreser our borrowing costs. Our investments alected by our Manager, and our
stockholders will not have input into such investingecisions. Our Manager has conducted due diigevith respect to each investment
purchased. However, there can be no assuranceuhitanager's due diligence processes will uncelleelevant facts or that any investment
will be successful.

We may not realize income or gains from our investents.

We invest to generate both current income and alagyitpreciation. The investments we invest in nmayyever, not appreciate in value and, in
fact, may decline in value, and the debt secunitiesnvest in may default on interest or principayments. Accordingly, we may not be abl
realize income or gains from our investments. Aaing that we do realize may not be sufficient fseifany other losses we experience. Any
income that we realize may not be sufficient teeffour expenses.

Our investments may be concentrated and will be sijct to risk of default.

We are not required to observe specific diverdiftcacriteria. To the extent that our portfoliocencentrated in any one region or type of
security, downturns relating generally to suchaagir type of security may result in defaults amuanber of our investments within a short
time period, which may reduce our net income ardveidue of our shares and accordingly may reduceloility to pay dividends to our
stockholders.

Our investments in subordinated RMBS are generallyn the “first loss” position and our investments inthe mezzanine RMBS are
generally in the “second loss” position and theref@ subject to losses.

In general, losses on a mortgage loan includedsecaritization will be borne first by the equitylter of the issuing trust, and then by the
“first loss” subordinated security holder and thgnthe “second loss” mezzanine holder. In the egédefault and the exhaustion of any
classes of securities junior to those in which meest and there is any further loss, we will noabke to recover all of our investment in the
securities we purchase. In addition, if the unded mortgage portfolio has been overvalued byathginator, or if the values subsequently
decline and, as a result, less collateral is abiglo satisfy interest and principal payments diughe related RMBS, the securities in which we
invest may effectively become the “first loss” gasi behind the more senior securities, which mesult in significant losses to us. The price:s
of lower credit quality securities are generallgseensitive to interest rate changes than mohdyhigted investments, but more sensitive to
adverse economic downturns or individual issueettgaments. A projection of an economic downtuan,example, could cause a decline in
the price of lower credit quality securities beaatlse ability of obligors of mortgages underlyin§IBS to make principal and interest
payments may be impaired. In such event, exigtiadit support in the securitization structure rhayinsufficient to protect us against loss of
our principal on these securities.

Increases in interest rates could negatively affethe value of our investments, which could resulii reduced earnings or losses and
negatively affect the cash available for distributbn to our stockholders.
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We have invested in and will continue to investdal estate-related assets by acquiring RMBS, easiml mortgage loans, CMBS and CDOs
backed by real estate-related assets. Under aahgreld curve, an investment in these assetsdeitline in value if long-term interest rates
increase. Declines in market value may ultimatebljuce earnings or result in losses to us, which meggatively affect cash available for
distribution to our stockholders. A significantkiassociated with these investments is the riskitbth long-term and short-term interest rates
will increase significantly. If long-term rates veeio increase significantly, the market value esthinvestments would decline, and the
duration and weighted average life of the investisi@ould increase. We could realize a loss if thessets were sold. At the same time, an
increase in short-term interest rates would in@é¢hs amount of interest owed on the repurchaseagents or other adjustable rate financing:
we may enter into to finance the purchase of thssets. Market values of our investments may meelithout any general increase in interes
rates for a number of reasons, such as increaskdanlts, increases in voluntary prepaymentstfosé investments that are subject to
prepayment risk and widening of credit spreads.

In a period of rising interest rates, our interestexpense could increase while the interest we earn our fixed-rate assets would not
change, which would adversely affect our profitabity.

Our operating results will depend in large partluan differences between the income from our assetf credit losses and financing costs.
We anticipate that, in most cases, the income Boah assets will respond more slowly to interetst flactuations than the cost of our
borrowings. Consequently, changes in interest ratasicularly short-term interest rates, may digantly influence our net income. Increases
in these rates will tend to decrease our net incantemarket value of our assets. Interest ratéufions resulting in our interest expense
exceeding our interest income would result in ofyegdosses for us and may limit or eliminate ohility to make distributions to our
stockholders.

Interest rate mismatches between our investments drany borrowings used to fund purchases of these sets may reduce our income
during periods of changing interest rates.

We intend to fund some of our acquisitions of resithl mortgage loans, real estate-related seesii@tind real estate loans with borrowings tha
have interest rates based on indices and repriengs with shorter maturities than the interest mtlices and repricing terms of our
adjustable-rate assets. Accordingly, if short-tartarest rates increase, this may have a negatipact on our profitability.

Some of the residential mortgage loans, real estddted securities and real estate loans we aequér and will be fixed-rate securities. This
means that their interest rates will not vary airee based upon changes in a short-term interesindex. Therefore, the interest rate indices
and repricing terms of the assets that we acquidlzeir funding sources will create an interet raismatch between our assets and
liabilities. During periods of changing intereatas, these mismatches could reduce our net inatimidend yield and the market price of our
stock.

Accordingly, in a period of rising interest rates could experience a decrease in net income et bbgs because the interest rates on our
borrowings adjust whereas the interest rates offixed-rate assets remain unchanged.

Interest rate caps on our adjustable-rate RMBS maydversely affect our profitability.

Adjustable-rate RMBS are typically subject to pditand lifetime interest rate caps. Periodic ies¢rate caps limit the amount an interest rat
can increase during any given period. Lifetimeriesé rate caps limit the amount an interest rateimerease over the life of the security. Our
borrowings typically will not be subject to similestrictions. Accordingly, in a period of rapidhcreasing interest rates, the interest rates pa
on our borrowings could increase without limitatighile caps could limit the interest rates on adjuatable-rate RMBS. This problem is
magnified for hybrid adjustable-rate and adjustabte RMBS that are not fully indexed. Further, samybrid adjustable-rate and adjustable-
rate RMBS may be subject to periodic payment cagsresult in a portion of the interest being deférand added to the principal outstanding
As a result, we may receive less cash income orichgljustable-rate and adjustable-rate RMBS thameed to pay interest on our related
borrowings. These factors could reduce our netésténcome or cause us to suffer a loss.

A flat or inverted yield curve may adversely affectadjustable-rate RMBS prepayment rates and supply.

Our net interest income varies primarily as a tesuthanges in interest rates as well as chamgiegdrest rates across the yield curve. When
the differential between short-term and long-teendhmark interest rates narrows, the yield cunaaid to be “flattening.” We believe that
when the yield curve is relatively flat, borrowdsave an incentive to refinance into hybrids withder initial fixed-rate periods and fixed rate
mortgages, causing our RMBS to experience fastgrgyments. In addition, a flatter yield curve gafigideads to fixed-rate mortgage rates
that are closer to the interest rates availablaRNIs, potentially decreasing the supply of adjutalte RMBS. At times, short-term interest
rates may increase and exceed long-term interest, ausing an inverted yield curve. When thedyeelrve is inverted, fixed-rate mortgage
rates may approach or be lower than mortgage oat@dRMs, further increasing adjustable-rate RMB&paiyments and further negatively
impacting adjustableate RMBS supply. Increases in prepayments on d8§ ldortfolio cause our premium amortization to éexade, lowerin
the yield on such assets. If this happens, we cexperience a decrease in net income or incur bbsgduring these periods, which may
negatively impact our distributions to stockholders
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A significant portion of our portfolio investments will be recorded at fair value as determined in acardance with our pricing policy and,
as a result, there will be uncertainty as to the dae of these investments.

A significant portion of our portfolio of investmemis in the form of securities that are not puplicaded. The fair value of securities and othel
investments that are not publicly traded may natdaelily determinable. It may be difficult or img®ible to obtain third party pricing on the
investments we purchase. We value these investnoenarterly at fair value, as determined in acoozdavith our valuation policy as appro\
by our board of directors. Because such valuatimasnherently uncertain, may fluctuate over speriods of time and may be based on
estimates, our determinations of fair value mafedifnaterially from the values that would have based if a ready market for these securitie:
existed. The value of our common stock could besesbly affected if our determinations regardingfdievalue of these investments were
materially higher than the values that we ultimatellize upon their disposal.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a recession or detlig real estate values could impair our investmestand negatively affect our
operating results.

Many of our investments are susceptible to econatoiwdowns or recessions, which could lead to figiosses in our investments and a
decrease in revenues, net income and assets. Ualfde@conomic conditions also could increase ouodihg costs, limit our access to the
capital markets or result in a decision by lendmisto extend credit to us. These events couldgrens from increasing investments and have
an adverse effect on our operating results.

Changes in prepayment rates could negatively affethe value of our investment portfolio, which couldresult in reduced earnings or
losses and negatively affect the cash available fdistribution to our stockholders.

There are seldom any restrictions on borrowerditegsi to prepay their residential mortgage lodtismeowners tend to prepay mortgage loan:
faster when interest rates decline. Consequeniiypecs of the loans have to reinvest the money veddrom the prepayments at the lower
prevailing interest rates. Conversely, homeownramd hot to prepay mortgage loans when interest rateease. Consequently, owners of the
loans are unable to reinvest money that would latlverwise been received from prepayments at theehigrevailing interest rates. This
volatility in prepayment rates may affect our dlito maintain targeted amounts of leverage onpautfolio of residential mortgage loans,
RMBS, and CDOs backed by real estate-related agsdtmay result in reduced earnings or lossess@nd negatively affect the cash
available for distribution to our stockholders.

To the extent our investments are purchased atraipm, faster than expected prepayments resulfastar than expected amortization of the
premium paid, which would adversely affect our @ags. Conversely, if these investments were puetiat a discount, faster than expected
prepayments accelerate our recognition of income.

The mortgage loans we invest in and the mortgagedas underlying the mortgage-backed and asset-backegcurities we invest in are
subject to delinquency, foreclosure and loss, whictould result in losses to us.

Residential mortgage loans are typically securedibgiefamily residential property and are subject tosisk delinquency and foreclosure
risks of loss. The ability of a borrower to repalpan secured by a residential property is depenggon the income or assets of the borrower.
A number of factors, including a general econonuwdturn, acts of God, terrorism, social unrest eini disturbances, may impair borrowers’
abilities to repay their loans. In addition, weesvin Non-Agency RMBS, which are backed by redidéreal property but, in contrast to
Agency RMBS, their principal and interest is noaganteed by federally chartered entities such asiEaMae and Freddie Mac and, in the ¢
of Ginnie Mae, the U.S. government. The U.S. Departt of Treasury and FHFA have also entered imntfepred stock purchase agreements
between the U.S. Department of Treasury and Faviaeand Freddie Mac pursuant to which the U.S. Bepnt of Treasury will ensure that
each of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains dipesiet worth. Asset-backed securities are bamd®tes backed by loans or other
financial assets. The ability of a borrower to reffeese loans or other financial assets is depéngem the income or assets of these
borrowers. Commercial mortgage loans are secureduifamily or commercial property and are subjectisks of delinquency and
foreclosure, and risks of loss that are greatar #iailar risks associated with loans made on gwaisty of single-family residential property.
The ability of a borrower to repay a loan securg@iv income-producing property typically is depamdeimarily upon the successful
operation of such property rather than upon thsterte of independent income or assets of the Wwerrdf the net operating income of the
property is reduced, the borrower’s ability to ngplae loan may be impaired. Net operating incomarnincome producing property can be
affected by, among other things, tenant mix, sucoésenant businesses, property management desigooperty location and condition,
competition from comparable types of propertiesnges in laws that increase operating expensendrrénts that may be charged, any nee
address environmental contamination at the prop#rgyoccurrence of any uninsured casualty at tbpeguty, changes in national, regional or
local economic conditions or specific industry segis, declines in regional or local real estatees| declines in regional or local rental or
occupancy rates, increases in interest ratesestatie tax rates and other operating expensesggehamgovernmental rules, regulations and
fiscal policies, including environmental legislatjacts of God, terrorism, social unrest and disturbances. In the event of any default undel
a mortgage loan held directly by us, we will beaisk of loss of principal to the extent of any idefncy between the value of the collateral anc
the principal and accrued interest of the mortdaga, which could have a material adverse effeatumcash flow from operations. In the
event of the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan borrotyer mortgage loan to such borrower will be deetodak secured only to the extent of the
value of the underlying collateral at the time ahkruptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy coart)l, the lien securing the mortgage loan wil
be subject to the avoidance powers of the bankyupiistee or debtor-in-possession to the extenlig¢has unenforceable under state law.
Foreclosure of a mortgage loan can be an expeasdengthy process which could have a substamgigdtive effect on our anticipated return
on the foreclosed mortgage loan. RMBS evidencedste in or are secured by pools of residentiatgagie loans and CMBS evidence inter

in or are secured by a single commercial mortgage br a pool of commercial mortgage loans. Acewigi the RMBS and CMBS we invest
in are subject to all of the risks of the respextimderlying mortgage loans.
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We may be required to repurchase mortgage loans andemnify investors if we breach representations athwarranties, which could
negatively affect our earnings.

If we sell loans, we would be required to make aurtry representations and warranties about sudis fwethe loan purchaser. Our residential
mortgage loan sale agreements will require usparahase or substitute loans in the event we braaepresentation or warranty given to the
loan purchaser. In addition, we may be requiregparchase loans as a result of borrower fraud tivé event of early payment default on a
mortgage loan. Likewise, we are required to repaselor substitute loans if we breach a representatiwarranty in connection with our
securitizations. The remedies available to a pweehaf mortgage loans are generally broader thasethvailable to us against the originating
broker or correspondent. Further, if a purchas@reas its remedies against us, we may not betal#aforce the remedies we have against th
sellers. The repurchased loans typically can oslfiflanced at a steep discount to their repurcpase, if at all. They are also typically sold at
a significant discount to the unpaid principal Ibaka. Significant repurchase activity could negagiadfect our cash flow, results of operations,
financial condition and business prospects.

We may enter into derivative contracts that could gpose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualification as a REy&rt of our investment strategy involves enterirtg derivative contracts that could require
us to fund cash payments in certain circumstaridesse potential payments will be contingent lidieii, the value of which are unknown, and
therefore may not appear on our Consolidated Statesvof Financial Condition. Our ability to fundeie contingent liabilities will depend on
the liquidity of our assets and access to capitdieatime, and the need to fund these contingebilities could adversely impact our financial
condition.

Our Manager's due diligence of potential investmerg may not reveal all of the liabilities associatedith such investments and may not
reveal other weaknesses in such investments, whichuld lead to investment losses.

Before making an investment, our Manager asseleestirengths and weaknesses of the originatosoeiif the asset as well as other factors
and characteristics that are material to the perdoice of the investment. In making the assessnmehbtherwise conducting customary due
diligence, our Manager relies on resources avalabit and, in some cases, an investigation by thérties. This process is particularly
important with respect to newly formed originatorsssuers with unrated and other subordinatedt@s of RMBS and ABS because there
may be little or no information publicly availatdéout these entities and investments. There cao lssurance that our Manager’s due
diligence process will uncover all relevant faatdt@mt any investment will be successful.
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Our real estate investments are subject to risks pcular to real property.

We own assets secured by real estate and may alvestate directly in the future, either througtedi investments or upon a default of
mortgage loans. Real estate investments are subjeatious risks, including:

acts of God, including earthquakes, hurricanesdifoand other natural disasters, that may resuhimsured losse:

acts of war or terrorism, including the consequsrafgerrorist attacks, such as those that occume8eptember 11, 20C

adverse changes in national and local economicraarélet conditions

changes in governmental laws and regulationsalffisolicies and zoning ordinances and the reletsts of compliance with laws and
regulations, fiscal policies and ordinanc

e costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhweitvironmental conditions such as indoor mold;

e the potential for uninsured or un-insured property losse

If any of these or similar events occurs, it majuee our return from an affected property or invesit and reduce or eliminate our ability to
make distributions to stockholders.

We may be exposed to environmental liabilities witlmespect to properties to which we take title.

In the course of our business, we may take titie#b estate, and, if we do take title, we couldbigiect to environmental liabilities with resg
to these properties. In such a circumstance, webaadyeld liable to a governmental entity or todparties for property damage, personal
injury, investigation, and clean-up costs incurpgdhese parties in connection with environmentaitamination, or may be required to
investigate or clean up hazardous or toxic subsgrar chemical releases at a property. The cestemted with investigation or remediation
activities could be substantial. If we ever becamkject to significant environmental liabilitiesjrdousiness, financial condition, liquidity, and
results of operations could be materially and asklgraffected.

We may in the future invest in RMBS collateralizedoy subprime mortgage loans, which are subject to oreased risks.

We may in the future invest in RMBS backed by delial pools of subprime residential mortgage lod8sibprime” mortgage loans refer to
mortgage loans that have been originated usingrumitig standards that are less restrictive thanunderwriting requirements used as
standards for other first and junior lien mortgéggn purchase programs, such as the programs ofd-&rae and Freddie Mac. These lower
standards include mortgage loans made to borrowaafing imperfect or impaired credit histories (udihg outstanding judgments or prior
bankruptcies), mortgage loans where the amouriteofoan at origination is 80% or more of the vadfithe mortgage property, mortgage loans
made to borrowers with low credit scores, mortgagas made to borrowers who have other debt tipaésents a large portion of their income
and mortgage loans made to borrowers whose incemetirequired to be disclosed or verified. Duedonomic conditions, including
increased interest rates and lower home priceselss aggressive lending practices, subprime gage loans have in recent periods
experienced increased rates of delinquency, fosecty bankruptcy and loss, and they are likelyotatioue to experience delinquency,
foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss rates that aregnjgand that may be substantially higher, thasdhexperienced by mortgage loans
underwritten in a more traditional manner. Thugawuse of the higher delinquency rates and lossesiased with subprime mortgage loans,
the performance of RMBS collateralized by subprim@tgage loans in which we may invest could beaspondingly adversely affected,
which could adversely impact our results of operadj financial condition and business.
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Our Manager utilizes analytical models and data irconnection with the valuation of our investments, iad any incorrect, misleading or
incomplete information used in connection therewithwould subject us to potential risks.

Given the complexity of our investments and strigggour Manager must rely heavily on analyticalele and information and data supplied
by third-parties (“Models and Data”). Models andt®will be used to value investments or potemtiastments and also in connection with
hedging our investments. When Models and Dataetoe incorrect, misleading or incomplete, angisiens made in reliance thereon
expose us to potential risks. For example, by nglyin Models and Data, especially valuation modris Manager may be induced to buy
certain investments at prices that are too highetbcertain other investments at prices that@dow or to miss favorable opportunities
altogether. Similarly, any hedging based on faMtydels and Data may prove to be unsuccessfulthéumore, any valuations of our
investments that are based on valuation modelspraye to be incorrect.

Some of the risks of relying on analytical modeid ¢éhird-party data are particular to analyzingnétées from securitizations, such as RMBS.
These risks include, but are not limited to, thiéofeing: (i) collateral cash flows and/or liabilistructures may be incorrectly modeled in all or
only certain scenarios, or may be modeled basesingplifying assumptions that lead to errors; (ilormation about collateral may be
incorrect, incomplete, or misleading; (iii) colleakor bond historical performance (such as histdprepayments, defaults, cash flows, etc.)
may be incorrectly reported, or subject to intetgien (e.g., different issuers may report delingpyestatistics based on different definitions of
what constitutes a delinquent loan); or (iv) catat or bond information may be outdated, in whiake the models may contain incorrect
assumptions as to what has occurred since therdatenation was last updated.

Some of the analytical models used by our Manay®t as mortgage prepayment models or mortgagaltefadels, are predictive in

nature. The use of predictive models has inhaiskdé. For example, such models may incorrecttgdast future behavior, leading to potentia
losses on a cash flow and/or a mark-to-market bhseddition, the predictive models used by ouniiger may differ substantially from those
models used by other market participants, withrésailt that valuations based on these predictivéelsanay be substantially higher or lower
for certain investments than actual market pridastthermore, since predictive models are usuahstructed based on historical data supplie
by third-parties, the success of relying on sucld@®may depend heavily on the accuracy and rétiabf the supplied historical data and the
ability of these historical models to accuratelfjest future periods.

All valuation models rely on correct market datauiits. If incorrect market data is entered into exevell-founded valuation model, the
resulting valuations will be incorrect. Howevergeuf market data is appropriately captured inrttaglel, the resulting “model prices” will
often differ substantially from market prices, esp#y for securities with complex characteristissch as derivative securities.

Regulatory and Legal Risks

Violations of federal, state and local laws by theriginator, the servicer, or us may result in resa@sion of the loans or penalties that may
adversely impact our income.

Violations of certain provisions of federal, stated local laws by the originator, the servicer @ras well as actions by governmental agencie:
authorities and attorneys general, may limit outherservicer’s ability to collect all or part diet principal of, or interest on, the residential
mortgage loans we purchase and hold, and loanse¢nat as security for the RMBS we purchase andl hdiolations could also subject the
entity that made or modified the loans to damagelsaaiministrative enforcement (including disgorgetrd prior interest and fees paid). In
particular, a loan seller’s failure to comply witlrtain requirements of federal and state lawsdceubject the seller (and other assignees of tf
mortgage loans) to monetary penalties and restiftarobligors’ rescinding the mortgage loans agdhesseller and any subsequent holders of
the mortgage loans, even if the assignee was spbnsible for and was unaware of those violatiofsese adverse consequences vary
depending on the applicable law and may vary depgrh the type or severity of the violation, by typically include:

e the ability of the homeowner to rescind, or cantted,loan;

e the inability of the holder of the loan to colledt of the principal and interest otherwise duetmnloan;

e the right of the homeowner to collect a refunduefounts previously paid (which may include amotinsnced by the loan), or to set
off those amounts against his or her future lodigations; anc

e the liability of the servicer and the owner oé tlhan for actual damages, statutory damages amitiyeudamages, civil or criminal
penalties, costs and attorn’ fees.
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The terms of the documents under which we intenglitehase loans, and the terms of the documendstasgeate the RMBS we intend to
purchase, may entitle the holders of the loanstla@dpecial purpose vehicles that hold loans in BMdcontractual indemnification against
these liabilities. For example, the sellers ofialaced in a securitization typically represéiat ach mortgage loan was made in complianc
with applicable federal and state laws and reguiatiat the time it was made. If there is a mdtbrizach of that representation, the seller may
be contractually obligated to cure the breach purehase or replace the affected mortgage loathel§eller is unable or otherwise fails to
satisfy these obligations, the yield on the loam$ RMBS might be materially and adversely affectBdie to the deterioration in the housing
and commercial property markets, many of the setleat issued these indemnifications are no loimgbusiness or are unable to financially
respond to their indemnification obligations. Cemsently, holders of interests in the loans and BBy ultimately have to absorb the los
arising from the sellers’ violations. While weaattpt to take these factors into account in theeprige pay for loans and RMBS, we can offer
no assurances concerning the validity of the astomgpwe use in our pricing decisions.

Furthermore, the volume of new and modified lawd wegulations at both the federal and state ldvatsincreased in recent years. For
example, the Dodd-Frank Act established the Consiim@ancial Protection Bureau which, among othergs, restricts and supervises unfair,
deceptive or abusive acts or practices in mortdagding. There is also an increased risk thabtith we and the servicer of loans we purct
or that are held in RMBS we purchase may be inwbladitigation over violations or alleged violatis of recently enacted and proposed
laws. It is possible that these laws might refsuéidditional significant costs and liabilities, iwh could further adversely affect the results of
our operations. Any litigation would increase eMpenses and reduce funds available for distributicour stockholders.

Some local municipalities also have enacted laasithpose potentially significant penalties on Isanvicing activities related to abandoned
properties or real estate owned properties.

Any of these preceding examples could result iaykehnd/or reductions in receipts of amounts duthetoans we intend to purchase or on
loans held in RMBS we intend to purchase, negatigéfecting our income and operating results.

We may be subject to liability for potential violations of predatory lending and other laws, which cold adversely impact our results of
operations, financial condition and business.

Various federal, state and local laws have beenteddhat are designed to discourage predatoryrigmactices and more are currently
proposed. The federal Home Ownership and Equityetion Act of 1994, commonly known as HOEPA, pbitsi inclusion of certain
provisions in residential mortgage loans that haeetgage rates or origination costs in excess@@ibed levels and requires that borrowers
be given certain disclosures before originatioom8 states have enacted, or may enact, similardawegulations, which in some cases img
restrictions and requirements greater than thos#0EPA. In addition, under the anti-predatory liedaws of some states, the origination of
certain residential mortgage loans, including lotuas are not classified as “high cost” loans urajglicable law, must satisfy a net tangible
benefits test with respect to the related borrovildris test may be highly subjective and open terpretation. As a result, a court may
determine that a residential mortgage loan we Holdgxample, does not meet the test even if tteda@ originator reasonably believed that the
test was satisfied.

Failure of residential mortgage loan originatorseivicers to comply with these laws, to the extemyt of their residential mortgage loans
become part of our mortgage-related assets, cobi@c us, as an assignee or purchaser of thedelasidential mortgage loans or RMBS, to
monetary penalties and could result in the borrewescinding the affected residential mortgagedodrawsuits have been brought in various
states making claims against assignees or purchakhigh cost loans for violations of state laWamed defendants in these cases have
included numerous participants in the secondantgage market. If the loans are found to have loeiginated in violation of predatory or
abusive lending laws, we could incur losses, whizhld adversely impact our results of operatiomgrfcial condition and business.

There is the potential for limitations on our ability to finance purchases of loans and RMBS, and fdosses on the loans and RMBS we
purchase, as a result of violations of law by theriginating lenders.

In June 2003, a California jury found a warehoeseler and securitization underwriter liable in gartfraud on consumers committed by a
lender to whom it provided financing and underwgtservices. The jury found that the investmenkbaas aware of the fraud and
substantially assisted the lender in perpetratiegitaud by providing financing and underwriting\éees that allowed the lender to continue to
operate, and held it liable for 10% of the plaifgilamages. This instance of liability is thesficase we know of in which an investment bank
was held partly responsible for violations comnuittey a mortgage lender customer. Shortly afteatimouncement of the jury verdict in the
California case, the Florida Attorney General filedt against the same financial institution, segkin injunction to prevent it from financing
mortgage loans within Florida, as well as damagekscavil penalties, based on theories of unfair dadeptive trade practices and fraud. The
suit claimed that this financial institution aidaxdd abetted the same lender involved in the Caliazase in its commission of fraudulent
representations in Florida.
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In December of 2008, the Massachusetts Supremeidu@urt upheld a lower court’s order enteredigiaa lender that enjoined the lender
from foreclosing, without court approval, on cemtaiortgage loans secured by the borrower’s primcipelling that the court considered
“presumptively unfair.”

In May of 2009, another securitizer of residentirtgage loans entered into a settlement agreemitnthe Commonwealth of Massachusetts
stemming from its investigation of subprime lendargl securitization markets. The securitizer adjtegrovide loan restructuring (including
significant principal writedowns) valued at approximately $50 million to Matassetts subprime borrowers and to make a $10omitiaymer

to the Commonwealth.

If other courts or regulators take similar actianggestment banks and investors in residential@mmercial mortgage loans and RMBS liki
might face increased litigation as they are nansededendants in lawsuits and regulatory actiongnagthe mortgage companies or securitizer
with which they do business or they might be pribibfrom foreclosing on loans they purchased. &amestment banks may charge more
for warehouse lending and reduce the prices thgygrdoans to build in the costs of this potentiigjation or exit the business entirely,
thereby increasing our cost of borrowing. Any sactions by courts and regulators, and any sualeases in our costs of borrowing, could, in
turn, have a material adverse effect on our resfiltgperations, financial condition, and businesspects.

We are required to obtain various state licenses inrder to purchase mortgage loans in the secondamarket and there is no assurance
we will be able to obtain or maintain those license

While we are not required to obtain licenses tachase mortgage-backed securities, we are requirebtain various state licenses to purchas
mortgage loans in the secondary market. There @saorance that we will obtain all of the licentbeg we desire or that we will not experiel
significant delays in seeking these licenses. leuntiore, we will be subject to various informati@porting requirements to maintain these
licenses, and there is no assurance that we Migfgahose requirements. Our failure to obtaim@intain licenses will restrict our investment
options and could harm our business.

The federal government'’s efforts to encourage ref@ncing of certain loans may affect prepayment ratefor mortgage loans in RMBS.

In addition to the increased pressure upon resalenbrtgage loan investors and servicers to engafess mitigation activities, the federal
government is pressing for refinancing of certa@ns, and this encouragement may affect prepayrata® for mortgage loans in RMBS. To
the extent these and other economic stabilizatigstimulus efforts are successful in increasingpayenent speeds for residential mortgage
loans, such as those in RMBS, that could potewptiehe a negative impact our income and opera#nglts, particularly in connection with
loans or RMBS purchased at a premium or our interely securities.

Federal and state agencies have taken enforcementians and enacted regulations and government progms that require government
sponsored enterprises (such as Fannie Mae and Fraddviac), insured depository institutions, and stateéegulated loan servicers to
engage in loss mitigation activities relating to reidential mortgage loans.

Federal and state agencies have taken enforcert@rsaand enacted regulations that require Gk (as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac),
insured depository institutions, and state regdl&tan servicers to engage in loss mitigation # relating to residential mortgage

loans. Other agencies have published policiesstinaihgly recommend these entities to engage mrutigation activities. These loss
mitigation activities may include, for example, tomodifications that significantly reduce interaat payments, deferrals of payments, and
reductions of principal balances. Such modificadimmay adversely affect our business and finacoiadlition.
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We will likely be subject to civil liability if we fail to make required disclosures to consumers.

Purchasers of consumer purpose, residential martigags have affirmative disclosure obligationsdasumers under the Helping Families
Save Their Homes in Bankruptcy Act of 2009, orteSTH Act, which Congress enacted in May 2009 witimmediate effective date. This
new statutory obligation will subject purchasersmufrtgage loans to civil liability if they fail tmake the required disclosures. Specifically,
section 404 of the HFSTH Act amends the Truth indieg Act to provide that a creditor that purchageis assigned a mortgage loan must
notify the borrower in writing of a sale or transéd his or her mortgage loan, not later than 3@sdsfter the transaction’s completion. The
notice must include how to reach an agent or gaatyng authority to act on behalf of the new creithe location of the place where the
transfer of ownership is recorded and any oth&veeit information about the new creditor. Thishtisure would be in addition to any transfel
of servicing notice required under the Real EsEatttlement Procedures Act, or RESPA. Federal coasgredit law does not typically impc
responsibility on assignees to communicate diragitih mortgagors, and the statutory language isiguaus.

Litigation alleging inability to foreclose may limit our ability to recover on some of the loans we pahase or that are held in RMBS.

In October 2007, a judge in the U.S. District Cdartthe Northern District of Ohio dismissed 14es# which plaintiffs sought to foreclose
mortgages held in securitization trusts by rulingttthose plaintiffs lacked standing to sue. Ichezase, the judge found that the plaintiff was
not the owner of the note and mortgage on thettatéoreclosure complaint was filed in court. Sanactions have been initiated in other
states. These actions arise as a result of thenconpractice in the mortgage industry of mortgagmIsellers providing the loan purchasers
unrecorded assignments of the mortgage in blaek the assignments do not name the assignee)e Saumts have held that before a note
holder may initiate a foreclosure, the note holdesst show proof to the court that the mortgagéfitees been properly assigned to the
purchaser each time the mortgage loan has been kagdsometimes difficult to obtain and thenaet originals of each successive
assignment. It is still unclear whether higherre®will uphold the requirements imposed by theseelr courts.

Until the issue is settled, investors in mortgagpnk are at risk of being unable to foreclose dauled loans, or at a minimum will be subject
to delays until all assignments in the chain ofldan’s title are properly recorded. Thus, we may nadlile to recover on some of the loans
purchase or that are held in the RMBS we purchasege may suffer delays in foreclosure, all of whaould result in a lower return on our
loans and RMBS.

In addition, some legislatures are also institustrgngent proof of ownership requirements tha¢riser must satisfy before commencing a
foreclosure action. By way of example, in Janud@rythe New York State Assembly amended statedawduire that any foreclosure
complaint contain an affirmative allegation that fiaintiff is the owner and holder of the note amortgage at issue or has been delegated th
authority to institute the foreclosure action bg thwner and holder of the subject mortgage and nbgmin, laws of this type may limit our
ability to recover on some of the loans we purclagbat are held in the RMBS we purchase, and maswyit in delays in the foreclosure
process, all of which could result in a lower reton our loans and RMBS.

Legislative action to provide mortgage relief anddreclosure moratoriums may negatively impact our bainess.

As delinquencies and defaults in residential maggehave recently increased, there has been aasieg amount of legislative action that
might restrict our ability to foreclose and reshi property of a customer in default. For examgdene recently enacted state laws may re:
the lender to deliver a notice of intent to forasepprovide borrowers additional time to cure amgtate their loans, impose mandatory
settlement conference and mediation requiremesdgsiire lenders to offer loan modifications, andhilbd initiation of foreclosure until the
borrower has been provided time to consult witleétwsure counselors.

Alternatively, new federal legislation and someid&gures provide a subsidy to a customer to petmitustomer to continue to make
payments during a period of hardship. In the cdsesubsidy, it is possible that we might be rezpito forego a portion of the amount
otherwise due on the loan for a temporary period.

Finally, some state legislatures are requiringdlmging lenders to give special notices to tenangsoperties that the lenders are foreclosing
or to permit the tenants to remain in the prop#atya period of time following the foreclosure.
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These laws delay the initiation or completion akfdosure proceedings on specified types of resimlenortgage loans, or otherwise limit the
ability of residential loan servicers to take aotidhat may be essential to preserve the valugeafbrtgage loans on behalf of the holders of
RMBS. Any such limitations are likely to causdayed or reduced collections from mortgagors antegaly increased servicing costs. Any
restriction on our ability to foreclose on a loany requirement that we forego a portion of the am@therwise due on a loan or any
requirement that we modify any original loan telisbkely to negatively impact our business, finehcondition, liquidity and results of
operations.

United States military operations may increase rislof Servicemembers Civil Relief Act shortfalls.

Under the federal Servicemembers Civil Relief Achorrower who enters active military service after origination of his or her mortgage
loan generally may not be required to pay inteabsive an annual rate of 6%, and the note holdestsicted from exercising certain
enforcement remedies, during the period of thedvegr’s active duty status. Several states alse kaacted or are considering similar laws
with varying applicability and effect. As a resaftmilitary operations in Afghanistan and Iracg ttnited States has placed a substantial
number of armed forces reservists and membersedfl#tional Guard on active duty status. It is fldeghat the number of reservists and
members of the National Guard placed on active gi#us may remain at high levels for an extenghae.t To the extent that a member of the
military, or a member of the armed forces reseordsational Guard who is called to active dutya isiortgagor on a loan we purchase or an
underlying loan in a RMBS we may purchase, therésterate limitation of the Servicemembers Civili&eAct, and any comparable state law,
will apply. Anincrease in the number of borrowtaking advantage of those laws may increase segvexpenses for a loan we purchase (
underlying loan in a RMBS we may purchase, and alsy reduce cash flow and the interest paymentsatetl from those borrowers. In the
event of default, the laws may result in delaying@eventing the loan servicer from exercising othge available remedies for default. If
these events occur, they may result in interestfsiis on the loans we purchase or on the undeglyeans in a RMBS we may purchase that
could result in a lower return on our loans or #iddal losses.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock
The market price and trading volume of our shares bcommon stock may be volatile.

The market price of shares of our common stock beakgighly volatile and could be subject to widecfuations. In addition, the trading
volume in our shares of common stock may fluctaaig cause significant price variations to occur.d&ienot assure you that the market price
of our shares of common stock will not fluctuatedecline significantly in the future. Some of tlaetors that could negatively affect our share
price or result in fluctuations in the price ordirag volume of our shares of common stock includisé set forth under “Risk Factors” and
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemeats] in the information incorporated and deemduktincorporated by reference herein,
as well as:

actual or anticipated variations in our quartehgiating results or business prospe

changes in our earnings estimates or publicatioesdarch reports about us or the real estatetiyd
an inability to meet or exceed securities analgstiimates or expectatior

increases in market interest rat

hedging or arbitrage trading activity in our shasésommon stock

capital commitments

changes in market valuations of similar compar

changes in valuations of our ass:

adverse market reaction to any increased indebssdme incur in the future

additions or departures of management perso

actions by institutional shareholde

speculation in the press or investment commu

changes in our distribution polic

regulatory changes affecting our industry generailgur busines:

general market and economic conditions;

future sales of our shares of common stock auritées convertible into, or exchangeable or exsabie for, our shares of common
stock.
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Common stock eligible for future sale may have advse effects on our share price.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futureesabf common stock, or the availability of shamsffiture sales, on the market price of the
common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of comstock, or the perception that such sales cotddro may adversely affect prevailing
market prices for the common stock. Annaly owngpraximately 4.38% of our outstanding shares of mam stock as of December 31,
2012. Our equity incentive plan provides for gsamft restricted common stock and other equity-baseatds up to an aggregate of 8% of the
issued and outstanding shares of our common stock fully diluted basis) at the time of the awasubject to a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares
available for issuance under the plan.

The lock-up period in connection with the sharespased by Annaly has expired. The market pricguofcommon stock may decline
significantly if there are sales of substantial amts of common stock or the perception that sutdssaould occur.

There is a risk that our stockholders may not receie distributions or that distributions may not grow over time.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly $asit of assets legally available to our stockhmsld® amounts such that all or substantially
all of our REIT taxable income in each year isrdisited. Our ability to pay distributions may bevatsely affected by a number of factors,
including the risk factors described herein. Aditdbutions will be made at the discretion of tmaard of directors and will depend on our
earnings, our financial condition, maintenancewfREIT status and other factors as our boardrefcthrs may deem relevant from time to
time.

Our Board of Directors declared common stock cagldehds of $0.11 per common share for the firgtrtgr 2012, $0.09 per common share
for the second quarter 2012, $0.09 per common shatbe third quarter 2012, and $0.09 per comni@res for the fourth quarter 2012. For
four quarters of 2012, we paid cash dividends itoge$0.38 per common share. Of this amount, $& Iharacterized as a return of capital for
federal income tax purposes.

Our Board of Directors declared common stock casldehds of $0.09 per share for each quarter o88200he Board of Directors has also
determined that there will be a regular quarteilydgnd of $0.09 per share for each of the firsh tyuarters of 2014.The Board of Directors
review this program after the conclusion of theosecquarter of 2014. The Board of Directors alsolared a special dividend of $0.20 per
share payable on January 31, 2014 to shareholdecofd on January 8, 2014.

Among the factors that could adversely affect @suits of operations and impair our ability to pl#stributions to our stockholders are:

the profitability of the investments of net procedm our equity raise:

our ability to make profitable investmen

margin calls or other expenses that reduce our ftash

defaults in our asset portfolio or decreases invilee of our portfolio; an

the fact that anticipated operating expense lewalg not prove accurate, as actual results mayfrany estimates

A change in any one of these factors could affectability to make distributions. We cannot assyoa that we will achieve investment results
that will allow us to make a specified level of ealistributions or year-to-year increases in castridutions.

Market interest rates may have an effect on the trding value of our shares.

One of the factors that investors may consideeitiding whether to buy or sell our shares is ostrifiution rate as a percentage of our share
price relative to market interest rates. If maiikétrest rates increase, prospective investorsdeayand a higher distribution rate or seek
alternative investments paying higher dividendmtarest. As a result, interest rate fluctuationd eapital market conditions can affect the
market value of our shares. For instance, if irsterates rise, it is likely that the market pridear shares will decrease as market rates on
interest-bearing securities, such as bonds, inereas

Investing in our shares may involve a high degreef oisk.
The investments we make in accordance with oursitiwent objectives may result in a high amountsK wwhen compared to alternative
investment options and volatility or loss of pripal. Our investments may be highly speculative aygressive, are subject to credit risk,

interest rate, and market value risks, among otlagic therefore an investment in our shares mapastitable for someone with lower risk
tolerance.
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Broad market fluctuations could negatively impact he market price of our common stock.

The stock market has experienced extreme pricevalnidne fluctuations that have affected the markitepof many companies in industries
similar or related to ours and that have been atedlto these companies’ operating performancessérbroad market fluctuations could
reduce the market price of our common stock. Funtioee, our operating results and prospects mayelmwthe expectations of public market
analysts and investors or may be lower than thbserapanies with comparable market capitalizatiovisich could lead to a material decline
in the market price of our common stock.

Future sales of shares may have adverse consequenfm investors, or cause our share price to deckn

We may issue additional shares in subsequent pofbéicings or private placements to make new inmesits or for other purposes. We are not
required to offer any such shares to existing st@ders on a pre-emptive basis. Therefore, it n@ybe possible for existing shareholders to
participate in such future share issues, which dilaye the existing shareholders’ interests in us.

In addition, sales of substantial numbers of shaf@sir common stock in the public market, or tleegeption that such sales might occur, ¢
adversely affect the market price of our commouwlstdhe sale of these shares could also impaiability to raise capital through a sale of
additional equity securities.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that mayinhibit potential acquisition bids that stockholders may consider favorable, and th:
market price of our common stock may be lower as gesult.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that revanti-takeover effect and inhibit a change intmard of directors. These provisions
include the following:

e There are ownership limits and restrictions on serability and ownership in our charteFo qualify as a REIT for each taxable year
after 2007, not more than 50% of the value of aistanding stock may be owned, directly or consitvaly, by five or fewer individuals
during the second half of any calendar year. Inteaig our shares must be beneficially owned by @béhore persons during at least 335
days of a taxable year of 12 months or during @grtionate part of a shorter taxable year for ¢aghble year after 2007. To assist us ir
satisfying these tests, our charter generally jithany person from beneficially or constructivelyning more than 9.8% in value or
number of shares, whichever is more restrictivegrof class or series of our outstanding capitalkstbhese restrictions may discourag
tender offer or other transactions or a changbercomposition of our board of directors or conthalt might involve a premium price
our shares or otherwise be in the best interestsio$tockholders and any shares issued or trardfer violation of such restrictions
being automatically transferred to a trust for argable beneficiary, thereby resulting in a faidee of the additional share

e Our charter permits our board of directors to issteck with terms that may discourage a third péiryn acquiring us Our charter
permits our board of directors to amend the chaviirout stockholder approval to increase the totahber of authorized shares of sti
or the number of shares of any class or series@isdue common or preferred stock, having prefarenconversion or other rights,
voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to demnds or other distributions, qualifications, amie or conditions of redemption as
determined by our board. Thus, our board coult@ige the issuance of stock with terms and camutithat could have the effect of
discouraging a takeover or other transaction irctviiolders of some or a majority of our shares tigbeive a premium for their shares
over the the-prevailing market price of our shar:

e Maryland Control Share Acquisition AMaryland law provides that “control shares” otarporation acquired in a “control share
acquisition” will have no voting rights except tioe extent approved by a vote of two-thirds ofvibtes eligible to be cast on the matter
under the Maryland Control Share Acquisition AtEdntrol shares”means voting shares of stock that, if aggregateid &li other share
of stock owned by the acquirer or in respect ofalutthe acquirer is able to exercise or direct tter@se of voting power (except solely
by a revocable proxy), would entitle the acquiteexercise voting power in electing directors witbne of the following ranges of
voting power: one-tenth or more but less than direkt one-third or more but less than a majorityaanajority or more of all voting
power. A'‘control share acquisiti’’ means the acquisition of control shares, subjecéttain exception:

41




If voting rights or control shares acquired in atrol share acquisition are not approved at a $iolders’ meeting, or if the acquiring person
does not deliver an acquiring person statemergganed by the Maryland Control Share Acquisitioct,Ahen, subject to certain conditions
and limitations, the issuer may redeem any orfathe control shares for fair value. If voting righof such control shares are approved at a
stockholders’ meeting and the acquirer becomefiahto vote a majority of the shares of stockttadito vote, all other stockholders may
exercise appraisal rights. Our bylaws contain &ipion exempting acquisitions of our shares fromMuaryland Control Share Acquisition A
However, our board of directors may amend our bglawthe future to repeal or modify this exemptimnywhich case any control shares of our
company acquired in a control share acquisitiohlv@lsubject to the Maryland Control Share AcqigsitAct.

e Business Combinatior. Under Maryland law, “business combinationsétween a Maryland corporation and an interestezkhblde
or an affiliate of an interested stockholder amhgsited for five years after the most recent datevhich the interested stockholder
becomes an interested stockholder. These businadsirations include a merger, consolidation, skeahange or, in circumstances
specified in the statute, an asset transfer oaisseior reclassification of equity securities. Aterested stockholder is defined

o any person who beneficially owns 10% or more ofubtng power of the corporati’s shares; c

o an affiliate or associate of the corporatidio, at any time within the two-year period beftire date in question, was the
beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting powéthe then outstanding voting stock of the coapion.

A person is not an interested stockholder undestiiite if the board of directors approved in adeathe transaction by which such person
otherwise would have become an interested stockhditbwever, in approving a transaction, the badidirectors may provide that its
approval is subject to compliance, at or aftertime of approval, with any terms and conditionsedetined by the board. After the five-year
prohibition, any business combination between tlayland corporation and an interested stockholdeetnlly must be recommended by the
board of directors of the corporation and apprawethe affirmative vote of at least:

0 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdersut$tanding shares of voting stock of the corporatand

0 two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cashblders of voting stock of the corporation, otttean shares held by the interested
stockholder with whom or with whose affiliate thesiness combination is to be effected or held bgffiiate or associate of
the interested stockholde

These super-majority vote requirements do not aifphe corporation’s common stockholders receiveiaimum price, as defined under
Maryland law, for their shares in the form of caslother consideration in the same form as prelWquaid by the interested stockholder for its
shares. The statute permits various exemptioms fi® provisions, including business combinatidre are exempted by the board of director:
before the time that the interested stockholdeoimes an interested stockholder. Our board of eiredhas adopted a resolution which
provides that any business combination betweemdsay other person is exempted from the provisadrise Maryland Control Share
Acquisition Act, provided that the business combonais first approved by the board of directoiihis resolution, however, may be altered or
repealed in whole or in part at any time. If t@solution is repealed, or the board of directassdnot otherwise approve a business
combination, this statute may discourage othems tnying to acquire control of us and increasedtféculty of consummating any offer.

e Staggered boardOur board of directors is divided into three classkdirectors. Directors of each class are chésethreeyear term:
upon the expiration of their current terms, ancheggar one class of directors is elected by thekbtmlders. The staggered terms of
directors may reduce the possibility of a tendéerabr an attempt at a change in control, evenghautender offer or change in
control might be in the best interests of our shad#ters.

42




e Our charter and bylaws contain other possible dakeover provisions.Our charter and bylaws contains other provisibias may
have the effect of delaying, deferring or prevem@inchange in control of us or the removal of @xgstlirectors and, as a result, could
prevent our stockholders from being paid a premfiontheir common stock over the tt-prevailing market price

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to t&ke action against our directors and officers are thited, which could limit
stockholders’ recourse in the event of actions nam their best interests.

Our charter limits the liability of our directorad officers to us and our stockholders for monayalges, except for liability resulting from:

e actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinieney, property or services;
e afinal judgment based upon a finding of actimd deliberate dishonesty by the director or offitett was material to the cause of
action adjudicated for which Maryland law prohitstech exemption from liability

In addition, our charter authorizes us to obligate company to indemnify our present and formeseators and officers for actions taken by
them in those capacities to the maximum extent figrdnby Maryland law. Our bylaws require us toenthify each present or former director
or officer, to the maximum extent permitted by Mand law, in the defense of any proceeding to whietor she is made, or threatened to be
made, a party because of his or her service tmusldition, we may be obligated to fund the deéetwssts incurred by our directors and
officers.

The fair value of certain of the assets on our Con$idated Statements of Financial Condition as caldated according to GAAP may not
reflect amounts we would receive if we disposed tifose assets.

GAAP requires that we consolidate certain of ourB8e-securitization transactions on our Consaid&tatements of Financial Condition
and report these assets at fair value. Under GAa&iPyalue for these assets is measured by det@érgithe fair value of the underlying RMBS
assets we contributed to the re-securitizatiort aes®pposed to evaluating the fair value of theeeuritized securities we received as a res|
the RMBS re-securitization transaction.

The fair value of the underlying RMBS assets suliiethe RMBS re-securitization transactions mdfedirom the value of the re-securitized
securities we received as a result of the RMBSemnsdtization transaction. Discrepancies arisa essult of market dynamics, the limitations
of the measurement techniques required by GAAP¢dinsolidation accounting principles under GAAP #relsubordinate nature, complex
illiquidity and restrictive features of the re-setized securities we own. These differences betwthe fair values of the underlying RMBS
consolidated on our Consolidated Statements ofrféiahCondition under GAAP presentation and theneaaic value of our investments in the
re-securitized securities can be significant.

A discrepancy where the fair value of the undedyRIMBS assets contained in a re-securitizatiort teudifferent from the amount we would
receive if we sold the re-securitized securitiesows may result in an overstatement or understatéonfeour book value due to the accounting
standards we are required to apply. Reporting hehnigook value than the value of our net investsianassets could have adverse effects on
us. The adverse effects could include the inabititpgree upon covenants with counterparties,rhlility to satisfy collateral demands of
counterparties based on their review of our finalgiatements, or an overestimation in the markeé @f our common stock.

Changes in the fair values of our assets, liabilgls, and interest rate swaps can have adverse effeon us, including earnings volatility,
and volatility in our book value.

The fair values for our assets, liabilities, anigiast rate swaps can be volatile. The fair vataeschange rapidly and significantly from a
variety of factors, including changes in interedes, credit performance, perceived risk, supgyahd, and actual and projected cash flows
and prepayments. Decreases in fair value mayeusssarily be the result of deterioration in futtash flows. Moreover, fair values for
illiquid assets can be difficult to estimate, whinlay lead to volatility and uncertainty of earniragsa result of OTTI, or book value as a result
of increases in unrealized losses.
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For GAAP purposes, we estimate the fair value o$trout not all, of the assets and liabilities an Gonsolidated Statements of Financial
Condition. In addition, valuation adjustments @ntain consolidated assets and our interest raapsare reflected in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Inchos). If we sell an asset below its cost basisyeported earnings will be reduced by
realized losses.

A decrease in the fair value of the securities wa may result in a reduction in our book value thuthe accounting standards we are require
to apply. Reporting a low book value could haveaade effects even if that book value is not indieadf the actual value of our net
investments in assets. The adverse effects codldde the inability to meet or agree upon coveneiitts counterparties, to enter into interest
rate swaps, or a reduction in the market pricevofcommon stock.

Tax Risks
Your investment has various federal income tax risk.

This summary of certain tax risks is limited to federal tax risks addressed below. Additionalgigkissues may exist that are not address
this Form 10-K and that could affect the federalttaatment of us or our stockholders. This isinténded to be used and cannot be used by
any stockholder to avoid penalties that may be segan stockholders under the Internal Revenue Godbe Code. We strongly urge you to
seek advice based on your particular circumstafmoesan independent tax advisor concerning theceffef federal, state and local income tax
law on an investment in common stock and on yodividual tax situation.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to foego otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purmysge must continually satisfy various tests regarthe sources of our income, the nature
and diversification of our assets, the amounts isibute to our stockholders and the ownershipwfstock. To meet these tests, we may be
required to forego investments we might otherwisden We may be required to make distributionsdoldtolders at disadvantageous times o
when we do not have funds readily available fotritigtion. Thus, compliance with the REIT requirerteemay hinder our investment
performance.

We may enter into re-securitization transactions, e tax treatment of which could have a material aderse effect on our results of
operations.

We have engaged in and intend to engage in fuassecuritization transactions in which we trandfen-Agency RMBS to a special purpose
entity that has formed or will form a securitizatieehicle that will issue multiple classes of sé®@s secured by and payable from cash flows
on the underlying Non-Agency RMBS. In the past,hage structured one such transaction as a reaéestatgage investment conduit, or
REMIC, securitization, which, to the extent we hinansferred securities in a re-securitizatioviésved as the sale of securities for tax
purposes. Although such transactions are treatedlas for tax purposes, they have historicallygiogn rise to any taxable gain so that the
prohibited transactions tax rules have not beeridaed (i.e., the tax only applies to net taxajdén from sales that are prohibited
transactions). If a re-securitization transacti@re to be considered to be a sale of propertys$tomers in the ordinary course of a trade or
business, and we recognized a gain on such tramsdot tax purposes, then we could risk exposariaé 100% tax on net taxable income
from prohibited transactions. Moreover, even ifngmined RMBS resulting from a securitization transaction and then subsequenttyy st
securities at a tax gain, the gain could, absemtvailable safe-harbor provision, be charactereedet income from a prohibited transaction.
Under these circumstances, our results of opetionld be materially adversely affected.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to Iquidate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally must ensure @dhe end of each calendar quarter at least T3 walue of our total assets consists of
cash, cash items, government securities and (RéAREIT real estate assets, including certain mgedoans and mortgage-backed securities
The remainder of our investment in securities (othan government securities and qualifying retdtesassets) generally cannot include more
than 10% of the outstanding voting securities gf ame issuer or more than 10% of the total valuthefoutstanding securities of any one
issuer. In addition, in general, no more than 5%hefvalue of our assets (other than governmenirgies, qualifying real estate assets, and
stock in one or more TRSs) can consist of the #Esiof any one issuer, and no more than 25%e¥tiue of our total securities can be
represented by securities of one or more TRSw/elfail to comply with these requirements at thd ehany quarter, we must correct the
failure within 30 days after the end of such calgluarter or qualify for certain statutory relbvisions to avoid losing our REIT status and
suffering adverse tax consequences. As a resulipayebe required to liquidate from our portfolidvetwise attractive investments. These
actions could have the effect of reducing our ine@nd amounts available for distribution to oucktwlders.
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Potential characterization of distributions or gainon sale may be treated as unrelated business taxalincome to tax-exempt investors.

If (1) all or a portion of our assets are subjedtie rules relating to taxable mortgage poolsw@pre a “pension-held REIT,” or (3) a tax-
exempt stockholder has incurred debt to purchaseldrour common stock, then a portion of the dhstions to and, in the case of a
stockholder described in clause (3), gains realarethe sale of common stock by such éaempt stockholder may be subject to federal inc
tax as unrelated business taxable income undéntimnal Revenue Code.

Classification of a securitization or financing armngement we enter into as a taxable mortgage poadud subject us or certain of our
stockholders to increased taxation.

We intend to structure our securitization and firiag arrangements so as to not create a taxablgaga pool. However, if we have
borrowings with two or more maturities and, (1)sadoorrowings are secured by mortgages or mortijagked securities and (2) the payment
made on the borrowings are related to the paymentsved on the underlying assets, then the bongsvaind the pool of mortgages or
mortgage-backed securities to which such borrowinfgte may be classified as a taxable mortgageypater the Internal Revenue Code. If
any part of our investments were to be treatedtagable mortgage pool, then our REIT status wowldbe impaired, but a portion of the
taxable income we recognize may, under regulatiof® issued by the Treasury Department, be claizetl as “excess inclusion” income
and allocated among our stockholders to the exteand generally in proportion to the distributioms make to each stockholder. Any excess
inclusion income would:

e not be allowed to be offset by a stockho's net operating losse

be subject to a tax as unrelated business incomstdckholder were a t-exempt stockholde

e Dbe subject to the application of federal incomewithholding at the maximum rate (without redantfor any otherwise applicable
income tax treaty) with respect to amounts alloeablforeign stockholders; al

e Dbe taxable (at the highest corporate tax ratepfoather than to our stockholders, to the extenexcess inclusion income relates to
stock held by disqualified organizations (generaby-exempt organizations not subject to tax omelated business income, including
governmental organization:

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us to feeral income tax, which would reduce the cash avaible for distribution to our
stockholders.

We qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purmosemmencing with our taxable year ended Decembe2@)7. However, the federal
income tax laws governing REITs are extremely cexpand interpretations of the federal income éaxsl governing qualification as a REIT
are limited. Qualifying as a REIT requires us toetrvarious tests regarding the nature of our assetour income, the ownership of our
outstanding stock, and the amount of our distrdngion an ongoing basis. While we intend to opesatinat we will qualify as a REIT, given
the highly complex nature of the rules governing Ri:the ongoing importance of factual determinatidncluding the tax treatment of certain
investments we may make, and the possibility afrieithanges in our circumstances, no assurandeecgiven that we will so qualify for any
particular year. If we fail to qualify as a REIT amy calendar year and we do not qualify for carsaatutory relief provisions, we would be
required to pay federal income tax on our taxatt®ine. We might need to borrow money or sell agegtay that tax. Our payment of income
tax would decrease the amount of our income aMaili@o distribution to our stockholders. Furthermaif we fail to maintain our qualification
as a REIT and we do not qualify for certain statutelief provisions, we no longer would be reqdite distribute substantially all of our REIT
taxable income to our stockholders. Unless ouuffaito qualify as a REIT were excused under fedaralaws, we would be disqualified from
taxation as a REIT for the four taxable years foltay the year during which qualification was lost.

Failure to make required distributions would subjed us to tax, which would reduce the cash availabl®r distribution to our
stockholders.

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to ourcktwolders each calendar year at least 90% of olif Rixable income (excluding certain
items of non-cash income in excess of a specifiegshold), determined without regard to the deduadir dividends paid and excluding net
capital gain. To the extent that we satisfy the Q08tribution requirement, but distribute less t1#89% of our taxable income, we will be
subject to federal corporate income tax on our striduted income. In addition, we will incur a 4%maeductible excise tax on the amount, if
any, by which our distributions in any calendarryae less than the sum of:
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e 85% of our REIT ordinary income for that ye
e 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for thaayend
e any undistributed taxable income from prior ye

We intend to distribute our REIT taxable incometw stockholders in a manner intended to satisydbPs6 distribution requirement and to
avoid both corporate income tax and the 4% nondéde@xcise tax. REIT taxable income only includéeriax TRS net income to the ext
such TRS distributes a dividend to the REIT. Thenefour REIT dividend distributions may or may imatlude after-tax net income from
our TRS.

Our taxable income may substantially exceed oumueime as determined by GAAP, because, for examgedized capital losses will be
deducted in determining our GAAP net income, buy mat be deductible in computing our taxable incomeaddition, we may invest in ass
that generate taxable income in excess of econmtiene or in advance of the corresponding cash fiom the assets. To the extent that we
generate such non-cash taxable income in a tayahle we may incur corporate income tax and thend#deductible excise tax on that
income if we do not distribute such income to stagllers in that year. In that event, we may beirequo use cash reserves, incur debt, or
liquidate non-cash assets at rates or at timesshaegard as unfavorable to satisfy the distrdoutiequirement and to avoid corporate income
tax and the 4% nondeductible excise tax in that.y®&reover, our ability to distribute cash maylineited by financing facilities we may en
into.

Ownership limitations may restrict change of contrd or business combination opportunities in which oustockholders might receive a
premium for their shares.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT for each tdeajear after 2007, no more than 50% in value ofcautstanding capital stock may be owned,
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individusiduring the last half of any calendar year. “induals” for this purpose include natural
persons, private foundations, some employee bauiafis and trusts, and some charitable trustsr@sepve our REIT qualification, our charter
generally prohibits any person from directly orinedtly owning more than 9.8% in value or in numbéshares, whichever is more restrictive,
of any class or series of the outstanding sharesiofapital stock. This ownership limitation coblave the effect of discouraging a takeover o
other transaction in which holders of our commartkimight receive a premium for their shares okierthen prevailing market price or which
holders might believe to be otherwise in their letsrests.

Our ownership of and relationship with any TRS whid we may form or acquire will be limited, and a faiure to comply with the limits
would jeopardize our REIT status and may result inthe application of a 100% excise tax.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one orendRSs. A TRS may earn income that would not kifying income if earned directly
by the parent REIT. Both the subsidiary and theTRfEUSst jointly elect to treat the subsidiary asRST Overall, no more than 25% of the value
of a REIT’s assets may consist of stock or se@asritf one or more TRSs. A TRS will pay federaltestand local income tax at regular
corporate rates on any taxable income that it edmreeddition, the TRS rules impose a 100% ex@seoh certain transactions between a TRS
and its parent REIT that are not conducted on arisalength basis. Our TRS after-tax net income adaé available for distribution to us but
would not be required to be distributed to us. \Wicgate that the aggregate value of the TRS stmeksecurities owned by us will be less
than 25% of the value of our total assets (inclgdire TRS stock and securities). Furthermore, wemdgnitor the value of our investments in
our TRSs to ensure compliance with the rule thanoeoe than 25% of the value of our assets may sbobiTRS stock and securities (which is
applied at the end of each calendar quarter). diitiad, we will scrutinize all of our transactiomsth taxable REIT subsidiaries to ensure that
they are entered into on arm&agth terms to avoid incurring the 100% excisedegcribed above. There can be no assurance, houleaewe
will be able to comply with the 25% limitation disgsed above or to avoid application of the 100%sextax discussed above.
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We could fail to qualify as a REIT or we could becme subject to a penalty tax if income we recogniZeom certain investments that are
treated or could be treated as equity interests ia foreign corporation exceeds 5% of our gross incoeiin a taxable year.

We may invest in securities, such as subordinatiextasts in certain CDO offerings, that are treatecbuld be treated for federal (and
applicable state and local) corporate income tapgmes as equity interests in foreign corporati@Qaegories of income that qualify for the
95% gross income test include dividends, interedtcertain other enumerated classes of passiveneconder certain circumstances, the
federal income tax rules concerning controlledifymecorporations and passive foreign investmentpaomes require that the owner of an
equity interest in a foreign corporation includecamts in income without regard to the owner’s rptef any distributions from the foreign
corporation. Amounts required to be included irome under those rules are technically neither &divalends nor any of the other
enumerated categories of passive income specifidtei 95% gross income test. Furthermore, theme idear precedent with respect to the
qualification of such income under the 95% groseime test. Due to this uncertainty, we intendrotlour direct investment in securities that
are or could be treated as equity interests ineidn corporation such that the sum of the amowetsre required to include in income with
respect to such securities and other amounts efjmatifying income do not exceed 5% of our gros®ime. We cannot assure you that we
be successful in this regard. To avoid any risfaiing the 95% gross income test, we may be regiuio invest only indirectly, through a
domestic TRS, in any securities that are or coelddnsidered to be equity interests in a foreigpa@tion. This, of course, will result in any
income recognized from any such investment to bgestito federal income tax in the hands of the T®iSch may, in turn, reduce our yield
on the investment.

Liquidation of our assets may jeopardize our REIT gualification.

To qualify as a REIT, we must comply with requirertseregarding our assets and our sources of inclhiwe. are compelled to liquidate our
investments to repay obligations to our lendersmag be unable to comply with these requiremertisnately jeopardizing our qualification
as a REIT, or we may be subject to a 100% tax grresultant gain if we sell assets in transactibas are considered to be prohibited
transactions.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions, including certairmethods of securitizing mortgage
loans that would be treated as sales for federal tome tax purposes.

A REIT’s net income from prohibited transactionsimbject to a 100% tax. In general, prohibitedgeations are sales or other dispositions of
property, other than foreclosure property, butidolg mortgage loans, held primarily for sale tstomers in the ordinary course of business.
We might be subject to this tax if we sold or sé@ed our assets in a manner that was treatedsakedor federal income tax purposes.
Therefore, to avoid the prohibited transactions Y& may choose not to engage in certain salessafta at the REIT level and may securitize
assets only in transactions that are treated asding transactions and not as sales for tax peg@gen though such transactions may not be
the optimal execution on a pre-tax basis. We cautnld any prohibited transactions tax concerneryaging in securitization transactions
through a TRS, subject to certain limitations dixeat above. To the extent that we engage in sudhitas through domestic TRSs, the inca
associated with such activities will be subjectetderal (and applicable state and local) corparateme tax.

Characterization of the repurchase agreements we & into to finance our investments as sales for ¥apurposes rather than as secured
lending transactions would adversely affect our ality to qualify as a REIT.

We have entered into and will enter into repurcteggeements with a variety of counterparties toeaehour desired amount of leverage for
assets in which we invest. When we enter into andmse agreement, we generally sell assets tcoomterparty to the agreement and receive
cash from the counterparty. The counterparty iggak#d to resell the assets back to us at the £tk derm of the transaction, which is
typically 30 to 90 days. We believe that for fedénaome tax purposes we will be treated as theaerwiithe assets that are the subject of
repurchase agreements and that the repurchaseragnsewill be treated as secured lending transastiotwithstanding that such agreement
may transfer record ownership of the assets tethaterparty during the term of the agreemens tassible, however, that the IRS could
successfully assert that we did not own these sisiseing the term of the repurchase agreementghich case we could fail to qualify as a
REIT.

47




Complying with REIT requirements may limit our abil ity to hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Codestantially limit our ability to hedge mortgage-kad securities and related borrowings.
Under these provisions, our annual gross inconma fion-qualifying hedges, together with any otheoime not generated from qualifying real
estate assets, cannot exceed 25% of our annual igasme. In addition, our aggregate gross incawm hon-qualifying hedges, fees, and
certain other non-qualifying sources cannot exd&¥édf our annual gross income. As a result, we triiglre to limit our use of advantageous
hedging techniques or implement those hedges thrautRS, which we may form in the future. This cbimicrease the cost of our hedging
activities or expose us to greater risks associatfdchanges in interest rates than we would etlser want to bear.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulaty tax changes that could reduce the market pricef our common stock.

At any time, the federal income tax laws or regala governing REITs or the administrative intetgtiens of those laws or regulations ma
amended. We cannot predict when or if any new fddecome tax law, regulation or administrativeeipiretation, or any amendment to any
existing federal income tax law, regulation or awistrative interpretation, will be adopted, promatled or become effective and any such law
regulation or interpretation may take effect rettoeely. We and our stockholders could be adveraéfiscted by any such change in, or any
new, federal income tax law, regulation or admmaté¢e interpretation.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the educed tax rates.

Legislation enacted in 2003 generally reduces tagimum tax rate for dividends payable to domesgticldholders that are individuals, trusts
and estates from 38.6% to 15% (through 2012). @ivits payable by REITs, however, are generally ligibke for the reduced rates. Althou
this legislation does not adversely affect the tiaxaof REITs or dividends paid by REITs, the méaeorable rates applicable to regular
corporate dividends could cause investors whoradiwiduals, trusts and estates to perceive investsna REITS to be relatively less attractive
than investments in stock of non-REIT corporatitireg pay dividends, which could adversely affeetyhlue of the stock of REITSs, including
our common stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2012, we do not own any prope@iyr executive and administrative office is lechat 1211 Avenue of the Americas,
Suite 2902, New York, New York 10036, telephonegp454-3759. We share this office space with Aymaid its subsidiaries.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial statatsdor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Comest of our Board of Directors initiated an
internal investigation, with the assistance of mgxounsel and financial advisors engaged by deitsbunsel, regarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Noredgy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakbstants. This investigation is ongoing.

Our Board of Directors has received three derieatigmand letters alleging, among other things,ttreadirectors and our officers, as well as
our Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary dutiesis by failing to institute adequate internahtzols and failing to ensure that we made
accurate financial disclosures. These lettersastjamong other things, that the Board of Dirextake action to investigate and remedy the
alleged breaches of fiduciary duty. The Audit Corttee is currently reviewing the demand lettersanreection with its ongoing investigation
arising from the restatement of our historical fiocial statements. At the conclusion of its invgsstion, the Audit Committee will make
recommendations to the Board of Directors abowtgpropriate response to the letters. At this tiweecannot predict the outcome of the
matters addressed in these shareholder demaneftkese and other potential actions that mafjldzbagainst us, whether with or without
merit, may divert the attention of management fambusiness, harm our reputation and otherwise lmasg a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operatiand cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Rty Securities

Our common stock began trading publicly on the NYU8Her the trading symbol “CIM3n November 16, 2007. As of December 31, 201z
had 1,027,597,458 shares of common stock issuedwstinding which were held by approximately 186,Beneficial holders as of January
14, 2013. The following tables set forth, for thexipds indicated, the high, low, and closing saléses per share of our common stock as
reported on the NYSE composite tape and the casthedids declared per share of our common stock.

Stock Price

High Low Close

Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 2.7¢ $ 2.5: $ 261
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 2381 $ 2.1c $ 271
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 2.9: $ 2.3€ $ 2.3¢
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 3.1z $ 251 $ 2.8¢
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 3.04 $ 251 $ 251
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 354 $ 277 $ 277
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 4.0f $ 3.4C $ 3.4¢
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 4.31 $ 3.9¢ $ 3.9¢

Common
Dividends
Declared Per

Share

Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $0.09
Quarter Ended September 30, 2( $0.09
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $0.09
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $0.11
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $0.11
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $0.13
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $0.13
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $0.14

We pay quarterly dividends and distribute to oockholders all or substantially all of our taxalsieome in each year (subject to certain
adjustments). This enables us to qualify for theltenefits accorded to a REIT under the Code. &ve hot established a minimum dividend
payment level and our ability to pay dividends rbayadversely affected for the reasons describedruithd caption “Risk Factors.” All
distributions will be made at the discretion of dward of directors and will depend on our taxahé®me, our financial condition, maintenal
of our REIT status and such other factors as oardof directors may deem relevant from time toetim

The Board of Directors declared a regular quarterlydend of $0.09 per share for each quarter df20he Board of Directors determined t
there will be a regular quarterly dividend of $0@% share for each of the first two quarters df20'he Board of Directors will review this
program after the conclusion of the second quaft@014. The Board of Directors also declared aigpeividend of $0.20 per share payable
on January 31, 2014 to shareholders of record omaig 8, 2014.

Share Performance Graph

The following graph and table set forth certairomfiation comparing the yearly percentage changennulative total return on our common
stock to the cumulative total return of the Stadd&aiPoor's Composité&00 Stock Index or S&P 500 Index, and the BloomHWE4T Mortgage
Index, or BBG REIT Index, an industry index of ngage REITs. The comparison is for the period fidovember 16, 2007, the day our
common stock commenced trading on the NYSE, to Béee 31, 2012 and assumes the reinvestment ofetiiel The graph and table
assume that $100 was invested in our common studithee two other indices on November 16, 2007. rUpdtten request we will provide
stockholders with a list of the REITs includedive BBG REIT Index.
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The information in the share performance graphtahtk has been obtained from sources believed teliable, but neither its accuracy nor its
completeness can be guaranteed. The historicahiaftion set forth above is not necessarily indieadf future performance. Accordingly,
do not make or endorse any predictions as to fighiaee performance.

The share performance graph and table shall ndebmed, under the Securities Act of 1933, as antemmldéhe Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, to be (i) “soliciting material™fded” or (ii) incorporated by reference by aggneral statement into any filing made by us
with the SEC, except to the extent that we speddlfiadncorporate such share performance graph alole by reference.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

We have adopted a long term stock incentive plaimeentive Plan, to provide incentives to our ipeledent directors and employees of our
Manager and its affiliates to stimulate their ef§aowards our continued success, long-term granthprofitability and to attract, reward and
retain personnel and other service providers. Ibentive Plan authorizes the Compensation Comendfe¢he board of directors to grant
awards, including incentive stock options as defineder Section 422 of the Code, or ISOs, non-fiedlstock options, or NQSOs, restricted
shares and other types of incentive awards. Teentive Plan authorizes the granting of optionstber awards for an aggregate of 40,000
shares of common stock. For a description of ncemtive Plan, see Note 11 to the ConsolidatednEinbStatements.

The following table provides information as of Ded#er 31, 2012 concerning shares of our common stotorized for issuance under our
existing Incentive Plan.
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Number of Securities ~ Weighted Average ~ Number of Securities

to be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Remaining Available
Exercise of Outstanding for Future Issuance
Outstanding Options,  Options, Warrants, Under Equity
Plan Categor Warrants, and Right and Rights Compensation Plar
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Stockhol - - 38,416,34
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Stockéed1) - - -
Total - - 38,416,34

(1) We do not have any equity plans that have rehtapproved by our stockholde

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data are as of fmidhe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, ZY and 2008. The selected financial
data reflect the Restatement and should be reeahijunction with the more detailed information ained in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes thereto contained in Pafihgncial Statements, and “Management's DiscussionAnalysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” in Part Il, Item 7, ud#d elsewhere in this 2012 Form 10-K.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition Higlights
(dollars in thousands, except share and per sleag

December December

December 31 December 31 December 31 31, 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Non-AgencyMortgageBacked Securitie

Senior $ 88 $ 1,02C $ 34257¢ $ 2,02241. $ 603,25(

Senior, interest onl $ 122,86¢ $ 188,67¢ $ 160,96: $ - 3 2,10¢

Subordinate( $ 547,79: $ 606,89 $ 635,45. $ 361,07 $ 7,74¢

Subordinated, interest on $ 16,257 $ 22,01¢ $ 32,44¢ $ 15,37¢ $ -

RMBS transferred to consolidated variable inte

entities (VIES) $ 3,27420- $ 3,270,33' $ 4,357,66/ $ - $ =
Agency Mortgag-Backed securitie $ 180669 $ 3,14453 $ 2,133,558 $ 1,690,020 $ 242,36
Securitized loans held for investme $ 1,300,13 $ 256,63: $ 349,11 $ 470,53: $ 583,34t
Total asset $ 774248 $ 7,747,13' $ 8,069,28' $ 4,618,320 $§ 1,477,50
Repurchase agreemel $ 152802 $ 267298 $ 1,808,79 $ 1,716,39 $ =
Repurchase agreements with affilia $ - $ - $ - $ 259,000 $ 562,11¢
Securitized debt, loans held for investm $ 1,169,711 $ 212, 77¢ $ 289,23t $ 390,35( $§ 488,74
Securitized debt, Non-Agency RMBS transferred 1
consolidated VIE: $ 1,336,26. $ 1,630,27t $ 1,956,07" $ - $ -
Total liabilities $ 4,200,010 $ 4,69951 $ 439069 $ 2,491,761 $ 1,063,04
Shareholders' equi $ 354247 $ 3,04761' $ 3,67858 $ 2,126,56. $ 414,45!
Book value per share ( $ 3.4t $ 297 $ 3.5¢ $ 317 $ 2.3¢
Number of shares outstandi 1,027,597,45 1,027,467,08 1,027,034,35 670,371,58 177,198,21

(1) See discussion of Estimated Economic Book Valudanagement's Discussion and Analysis of Firer€ondition and Results cf
Operations

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income (Loss) Highlights
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

For the For the For the For the For the
Year Endec Year Endec Year Endec Year Endec Year Endec
December 31, December 31, December 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Interest incomt $ 589,44( $ 705,02 $ 576,10 $ 287,68. $ 114,38:
Income expens $ 126,55¢ $ 134,85¢ $ 146,44¢ $ 35,08: $ 53,87«
Net interest incom $ 462,88: $ 570,16t $ 429.65. $ 252,600 $ 60,50¢
Net income (loss $ 327,76° % 137,32¢ $ 248,40 $ 230,69¢ $ (136,11)
Income (loss) per she-basic $ 0.3z $ 0.1z $ 0.3C $ 0.4€ $ (2.20
Average sharebasic 1,026,831,03 1,026,365,19 821,675,80 505,962,84 61,949,62
Dividends declared per share $ 0.3t $ 051 $ 0.6¢ $ 04: $ 0.62

(1) For applicable period as reported in our egrmiannouncement
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of r@ncial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read in catijom with the consolidated financial
statements and notes to those statements incladésh 15 of this 2012 Form 10-K. The discussiayrontain certain forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertaintiewBrd-looking statements are those that are mtbfical in nature. As a result of many
factors, such as those set forth under “Risk Fatiarthis 2012 Form 10-K, our actual results m#fed materially from those anticipated in
such forward-looking statements.

Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojpeiabn November 21, 2007. We acquire, eitherctiyer indirectly through our
subsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed secsritieRMBS, residential mortgage loans, commero@ltgage loans, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Wextamally managed by Fixed Income Discount Adwisdompany, which we refer to as
FIDAC or our Manager. FIDAC is a fixed-income istment management company that is registered es@stment adviser with the

SEC. FIDAC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ann&gpital Management, Inc., or Annaly. FIDAC hagaald range of experience in
managing investments in Agency RMBS, which are gage passarough certificates, collateralized mortgage addiigns, or CMOs, and oth
RMBS representing interests in or obligations bddkg pools of mortgage loans issued or guarantgdehhnie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie
Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debt obligatipor CDOs, and other real estate related invegtne

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, prify through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achii® objective by investing in a diversified intteent portfolio of RMBS, residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitievandus other asset classes, subject to maintaoundREIT status and exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, B3/ and CDOs we purchase may include investmertegaad non-investment grade
classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and noedralasses.

We rely on our Manager's expertise in identifyirggats within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldatre¢ value, risk-adjusted returns, current andggeted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentaogcted supply and demand, credit and markietcoscentration limits, liquidity, cost (
financing and financing availability, as well asintaining our REIT qualification and our exemptifvam registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek sonmiee the returns from our investment
portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined wothr Manager’s experience, will enable us to paydéinds and achieve capital appreciation
through various changing interest rate and credikes and provide attractive long-term returnatestors.

Our targeted asset classes and the principal imezgs we have made and in which we may in the éunwrest are:

Asset Class Principal Investments

RMBS e Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and norestment grade classes,
including the BE-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

e Agency RMBS
e Interes-only RMBS

Residential Mortgage Loans e Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loansctirafbrm to the underwriting
guidelines of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, whiclrefer to as Agency Guidelines; and
jumbo prime mortgage loans, which are mortgageddahat conform to the Agen
Guidelines except as to loan s

e Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans thay have been originated using
documentation standards that are less stringenttigadocumentation standards applied by
certain other first lien mortgage loan purchasegymms, such as the Agency Guidelines,
have one or more compensating factors such asreviber with a strong credit or mortgage
history or significant asse

e FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loans ttmahply to the underwriting
guidelines of the Federal Housing Administratiorlf&) or Department of Veteran Affairs
(VA) and which are guaranteed by the FHA or VA pexdively

e Mortgage servicing rights associated with residgmtiortgage loans, which reflect the ve
of the future stream of expected cash flows froemabntractual rights to service a given
pool of residential mortgage loa
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Commercial Mortgage Loans e First or second lien loans secured by multifamilggerties, which are residential rental
properties consisting of five or more dwelling sniand mixed residential or other
commercial properties; retail properties; officeerties; or industrial properties, which
may or may not conform to the Agency Guideli

Other Asse-Backed Securitie e CMBS
e Debt and equity tranches of CD:!

e Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgesde and non-investment grade
classes, including the E-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

Hedging Instrument e Swaps
e Swaptions
e Futures
e Index Options
e Mortgage Option:

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquiNieg-Agency and Agency RMBS
and on purchasing residential mortgage loans tat been originated by select originators, inclgdhe retail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. Our investment portfolio at Deber 31, 2012 was weighted toward Non-Agency RMBS.December 31, 2012, based
on the outstanding principal balance of our intee@sning assets, approximately 74.6% of our imaest portfolio was Non-Agency RMBS,
14.7% of our investment portfolio was Agency RMB&d 10.7% of our investment portfolio was secwilizesidential mortgage loans. At
December 31, 2011, based on the outstanding pahlsglance of our interest earning assets, app@ateiymn75.4% of our investment portfolio
was Non-Agency RMBS, 21.1% of our investment pdidfavas Agency RMBS, and 3.5% of our investmentfodio was securitized
residential mortgage loans. We expect that oven#a term, our investment portfolio will continimebe weighted toward NoAgency RMBS
subject to maintaining our REIT qualification anagr 4940 Act exemption.

Following our initial public offering we initiallengaged in transactions with residential mortgagdihg operations of leading commercial
banks and other originators in which we identiféed re-underwrote residential mortgage loans oviayeslich entities, and purchased and
securitized such residential mortgage loans. énpdst we have also acquired formerly AAA-rated Mgency RMBS and immediately re-
securitized those securities. We sold the regulAA-rated super senior RMBS and retained thedrateunrated mezzanine RMBS. More
recently we have engaged in transactions with easiadl mortgage lending operations of leading conemébanks and other originators in
which we identified and re-underwrote residentiafrtgage loans owned by such entities, and ratlzer purchasing and securitizing such
residential mortgage loans, we and the originat@nmther entity, such as an investment bank, tstreid the securitization and we purchased
the resulting mezzanine and subordinate Non-Ag&iBS.
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Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We expect to adjust
our strategy to changing market conditions by sigfour asset allocations across these various alesses as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategymhined with FIDAC'’s experience, will enable us typlividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. elfiect to take a long-term view of assets andliligls, and our reported earnings and
estimates of the fair value of our investment$atdnd of a financial reporting period will notrsigcantly impact our objective of providing
attractive risk-adjusted returns to our stockhdaddmrer the long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potertialns and to finance the acquisition of our ass@isr income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income we@aour assets and the cost of our borrowings. eipect to finance our investments using
a variety of financing sources including, when &lae, repurchase agreements, warehouse facitidsecuritizations. We may manage our
debt and interest rate risk by utilizing interesterhedges, such as interest rate swaps, capsn®ptid futures to reduce the effect of interest
rate fluctuations related to our financing sources.

We have elected and believe we are organized areldpgerated in a manner that qualifies us to bedas a REIT under the Code. If we
qualify for taxation as a REIT, we generally wiitrbe subject to federal income tax on our taxateme that is distributed to our
stockholders. Furthermore, substantially all of assets consist of qualified REIT real estatetagsé the type described in Code Section 856
(c)(5)). We calculate that at least 75% of ouetss/ere qualified REIT assets, as defined in théeCfor the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011. We also calculate that our revenuesfigaibior the 75% REIT income test and for the 9B®IT income test for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. We also mBHAI requirements regarding the ownership of ounmmmn stock and the distribution of
our REIT taxable income. Therefore, for the yearded December 31, 2012 and 2011, we believe thatalified as a REIT under the Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from regmtrander the 1940 Act, and therefore we are reguio invest a substantial majority of our
assets in loans secured by mortgages on real estdteal estate-related assets. Subject to nrdigaour REIT qualification and our 1940
Act exemption, we do not have any limitations oa #imounts we may invest in any of our targetedt atzeses.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentageun assets that will be invested in each assesabr whether we will invest in other
classes of investments. We may change our investstieategy and policies without a vote of our ktadders.
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Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be atéelcby various factors, many of which are beyond @ontrol. Our results of operations
will primarily depend on, among other things, theuvel of our net interest income, the market valueoor assets, and the supply of and
demand for such assets. Economic trends, both maas well as those directly affecting the residahtiousing market, and the supply and
demand of RMBS may affect our operations and finaalcresults. We also evaluate market informatioagarding current residential
mortgage loan underwriting criteria and loan defatsl to manage our portfolio of assets, leverage, alwdbt.

Our net interest income, which reflects the amatiin of purchase premiums and accretion of distsowaries primarily as a result of changes
in interest rates, borrowing costs, credit impaintiesses, and prepayment speeds, which is a nesasat of how quickly borrowers pay do
the unpaid principal balance on their mortgage dodrurther description of these factors is progidelow.

Prepayment Speec Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constapéyiment Rate, or CPR, vary according to inteagss, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, anueotfactors, none of which can be predicted with @rtainty. In general, when interest rates
rise, it is relatively less attractive for borrowéo refinance their mortgage loans, and as atrggapayment speeds tend to decrease. When
interest rates fall, prepayment speeds tend tease. For mortgage loan and RMBS investments psednat a premium, as prepayment sp
increase, the amount of income we earn decreashs gsirchase premium on the bonds amortizes fédsiarexpected. Conversely, decrease:
in prepayment speeds result in increased incomeamaxtend the period over which we amortize tivelpase premium.

For mortgage loan and RMBS investments purchasadiacount, as prepayment speeds increase, thenamidincome we earn increases
from the acceleration of the accretion of the disdanto interest income. Conversely, decreas@gseépayment speeds result in decreased
income as the accretion of the purchase discotminterest income occurs over a longer periodceRdy, the correlation between interest
rates and prepayment has not followed normal trémdsertain asset classes. Due to economic higrdstime borrowers have been unable to
refinance their loans as underwriting standardsraree stringent and credit conditions remain regue.

Rising Interest Rate Environme As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prapat speeds generally decrease. Rising inteatest,r
however, increase our financing costs which mayltés a net negative impact on our net interesbme. In addition, if we acquire Agency
and Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly resg#justable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, and threefigaeyear hybrid ARMs, such
interest rate increases could result in decreasesrinet investment income, as the increase iradjuistable rate assets may increase slower
than our adjustable rate financing. We expectdhbatixed-rate assets would decline in value iising interest rate environment and that our
net interest spreads on fixed rate assets coulthdén a rising interest rate environment to tleeat such assets are financed with floating rat
debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is on acquiringessted Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgradealise of defaults in the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegsiich RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a prich ¢hat its loss-adjusted return
profile is in line with our targeted yields. Weain the risk of potential credit losses on altled residential mortgage loans we hold in our
portfolio as well as all of the subordinate Non-Agg RMBS. We attempt to mitigate credit risk i thsset selection process. Prior to the
purchase of investments, we conduct a credit-rilet analysis of the collateral securing our imaest that includes examining borrower
characteristics, geographic concentrations, cuardtprojected delinquencies, current and projesteérities, and actual and expected
prepayment speeds among other characteristicditoats expected losses. We also acquire assetfwigidelieve to be of high credit quality.
We believe this strategy will generally keep owadit losses and financing costs low.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as measingthe aggregate unpaid principal balance of contgage loans
and aggregate principal balance of our mortgagaeelsecurities and the other assets we own,asadtey revenue driver. Generally, as the
size of our investment portfolio grows, the amooifninterest income we receive increases. The fanyestment portfolio, however, may res

in increased expenses if we incur additional irteegpense to finance the purchase of our assets.
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Financial Condition
Estimated Economic Book Value

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotiatas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents ratios base
on GAAP book value. The table and discussion bgdmgent our estimated economic book value. Weulzk and disclose this non-GAAP
measurement because we believe it representsiaratsof the fair value of the assets we own orade to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securitmatand re-securitization transactions where we lietermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfeaesibts to the trusts, which issued tranches @frsand subordinate notes or certificates. We
sold the senior tranches and therefore have naneomg involvement in these trusts other than beirglder of notes or certificates issued by
the trusts, with the same rights as other holdetiseonotes or certificates, except as it reladeS$MC 2012-CIM1, CSMC 2012-CIM2 and
CSMC 2012-CIM3. As it relates solely to CSMC 201AC, CSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC 2012-CIM3, we have #indity to approve loan
modifications and determine the course of actiobgdaken as it relates to loans in technical dgfencluding whether or not to proceed with
foreclosure. The notes and certificates we owhwulesie issued by the trusts are largely subordiheterests in those trusts. The trusts han
recourse to our assets other than pursuant toaglbt®y us of the transaction documents relateldegdransfer of the assets by us to the trusts,
but are presented as if we own 100% of the trust.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan sizations, we present the psecuritized assets transferred into the consolidatests in ou
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as-Ngency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIESecuritized loans held for
investment. Past securitization RMBS assets gelgheesented as liabilities in our Consolidatedest@nts of Financial Condition as
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RM@1l Securitized debt, collateralized by loans feldnvestment. We have presented the
underlying securities we transferred to the trimtshe calculation of GAAP book value at fair valand recorded the corresponding liability
for the notes or certificates sold to third partiesmortized cost. Fair value adjustments thanat credit related are recorded in Other
comprehensive income (loss). Credit related impaim® are deemed other-than-temporary and are egtarcearnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe RMBS or loans we transferred into thdgruge also present our estimated
economic book value. We believe this measure sepits the estimated value of the securities isbyalese trusts that we own. In contrast tc
GAAP book value, our estimated economic book valugsiders only the assets we own or are able posisof, pledge, or otherwise
monetize. To determine our estimated economic lvatike, we consider only the fair value of the saiecertificates issued by the
securitization and re-securitization trusts thatagially own. Accordingly, our estimated econotmiok value does not include assets or
liabilities for which we have no direct ownershgpecifically the notes or certificates of the sé@@ation and re-securitization trusts that were
sold to third parties. We believe this estimafgresents the value of the assets that we ownrarabée to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize as of the measurement date.

At December 31, 2012 the difference between GAA8kb@lue and estimated economic book value wagrmdeted to be $416.1 million. At
December 31, 2011 the difference between GAAP badke and estimated economic book value was detedrtd be $179.3 million. This
difference is primarily driven by the value of tR&BS assets we have retained in these re-sectiotizeiansactions as compared to the value
of consolidated loans and securities net of RMBstsssold and recorded at amortized cost in thaessdctions. In these re-securitization
transactions, we retained the subordinated, tylgicain-rated, first loss notes or certificates extiby the securitization trusts. These securitie:
are complex, typically locked out as to principgbayment, relatively illiquid, and do not necedgaappreciate or depreciate in tandem with
broader Non-Agency RMBS market or with the loanseaurities owned by the trusts. The tables b@i®sent the adjustments to GAAP
book value that we believe are necessary to adelguaflect our calculation of estimated econoniokvalue as of December 31, 2012 and
2011.
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December 31, 201
Estimated
Economic Boo

GAAP Book
Value Adjustments Value
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior $ 88 $ = G 88

Senior intere-only 122,86¢ - 122,86

Subordinatet 547,79 - 547,79:

Subordinated intere-only 16,25: - 16,25

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 3,274,20: (1,730,42) 1,543,78:
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 1,806,69° - 1,806,69
Securitized loans held for investment, net of adaee for
loan losse! 1,300,13: (1,191,60) 108,52-
Other asset 674,45: - 674,45:
Total asset $ 7,742,48: $  (2,922,02) $ 4,820,46!
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 1,528,02! - 1,528,02!
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 1,336,26. (1,336,26) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestmen 1,169,71I (1,169,71) -
Other liabilities 166,01« - 166,01«
Total liabilities 4,200,01! (2,505,97) 1,694,03!
Total stockholders' equit 3,542,47! (416,059 3,126,42.
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,742,48' $  (2,922,02) $ 4,820,46!
Book Value Per Shal $ 3.4t $ (0.40 $ 3.0t
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December 31, 201
Estimated
Economic Boo

GAAP Book
Value Adjustments Value
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior $ 1,02 $ = G 1,02(

Senior intere-only 188,67 - 188,67

Subordinatet 606,89! - 606,89!

Subordinated intere-only 22,01¢ - 22,01¢

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 3,270,33: (2,789,51) 1,480,81:
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 3,144,53: - 3,144,53,
Securitized loans held for investment, net of adaee for
loan losse! 256,63: (232,88() 23,75:
Other asset 257,02 - 257,02
Total asset $ 7,747,13" $  (2,022,39) $ 5,724,74.
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 2,672,98! - 2,672,98
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 1,630,271 (1,630,27)) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestmen 212,77¢ (212,779 -
Other liabilities 183,47. - 183,47.
Total liabilities 4,699,51 (1,843,05) 2,856,46.
Total stockholders' equit 3,047,61! (179,340 2,868,27!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,747,131 $  (2,022,39) $ 5,724,74
Book Value Per Shal $ 297 $ (0.17) $ 2.8C

Our estimate of economic book value has imporiaritdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to significant
judgment, primarily the estimate of the fair vabfedhe securities issued by the trusts which we awnth can freely sell or pledge. Should

sell the assets in our portfolio, we may realizeéanally different proceeds from the sale than \mgehestimated as of the reporting date. See
further discussion under the heading “ Critical &wnating Policies and Estimates ” below.

The calculation of estimated economic book valuscdbed above is used by management to underdtarfdit value of the assets we own anc
the liabilities for which we are legally obligateahd is presented for informational use only. &kémated economic book value should not be
viewed in isolation and is not a substitute for bealue computed in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

During the year ended December 31, 2012, on areggtg basis, we purchased $124.2 million, sold #94lion, and received $1.2 billion
principal payments related to our Agency and Nor#ay RMBS. Securitized loans increased to $1I®biat December 31, 2012 from
$256.6 million at December 31, 2011, primarily dogurchases of $1.5 billion in whole loans whiclrevsubsequently transferred to
consolidated VIEs and $477.6 million in principalyments during 2012.

The following table summarizes certain charactiesssf our portfolio at December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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December December

31, 201z 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands
Interest earning assets at pe-end * $ 7,068,030 $ 7,490,10
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 4,033,990 $ 4,516,04
Leverage at peric-end 1.1:1 1.5:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 0.4:1 0.9:1
Portfolio Composition, at principal valt
Non-Agency RMBS 74.6% 75.2%
Senior 0.C% 0.C%
Senior, interest onl 25.2% 26.1%
Subordinatet 8.8% 9.7%
Subordinated, interest on 2.1% 1.%
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 38.5% 37.1%
Agency RMBS 14.7% 21.1%
Securitized loan 10.7% 3.5%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 75.2% 74.%%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 24.6% 25.1%
Annualized yield on average interest earning ageethe year
ended 4.88% 6.1€%
Annualized cost of funds on average borrowed fuodhe year
ended** 3.91% 2.52%

*  Excludes cash and cash equivale
** Includes the effect of realized losses on interast swaps

The following table presents details of each aslsests in our portfolio at December 31, 2012 anddbdger 31, 2011. The principal or notional
value represents the interest income earning balaheach class. The weighted average figureweighted by each investment’s respective
principal/notional value in the asset class.

December 31, 201

Principal Weightec  Weightec  Weightec Principal
or Notiona Weightec Average  Average  Average Weightec Writedown:
Value at Average Weightec Yield at 3 Month 12 Montt Weighted Average Weighted During
PeriodEnc Amortizec Average Weightec Period- CPR at CPR at Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in Fair Average End Period- Period-  Delinquenc:  Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basi  Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemel  thousands
Non-Agency
Mortgage-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 12¢ $ 57.02 $ 67.0C 0.0(% 11.9(% 22.6(% 38.6(% 0.0(% 0.0(% 12.8% $ -
Senior, interest on $3,012,861 $ 451 $ 4.0¢ 1.7¢% 10.3% 17.35% 17.4% 20.1%% 50.4% 0.0(% $ -
Subordinater $1,057,82 $ 44.7. $ 51.7¢ 3.1&€% 11.01% 17.36% 18.7% 18.7% 51.0% 15.2:% $ 15,80
Subordinatec
interest only $ 256,07. $ 6.3z $ 6.3t 2.2%% 8.9(% 20.9% 16.7% 19.9%% 44.8% 0.0(% $ -
RMBS transferred
to consolidated
variable interest
entities $4,610,10 $ 539 $ 72.5( 4.8t% 15.44% 14.8'% 14.8t% 29.42% 59.02% 22% $ 70,95
Agency Mortgag-
Backed Securitie $1,756,58° $ 103.0¢ $ 108.2¢ 4.65% 3.5% 28.3% 24.1% NA NA 0.0(% $ -
Securitized loan $1,284,84 $ 102.0¢ $ 102.7¢ 4.68% 3.8t% 35.21% 4.45% 0.84% 4.35% 11.1¢% $ 404

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daligjng widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc.
December 31, 201

Principal Weightec  Weightec  Weightec Principal
or Notiona Weightec Average  Average  Average Weightec Writedown:
Value at Average Weightec Yield at 3 Month 12 Montt Weighted Average Weighted During
PeriodEnc Amortizec Average Weightec Period- CPR at CPR at Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in Fair Average End Period- Period-  Delinquenc:  Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basi  Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemel  thousands
Non-Agency
Mortgage-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 111F $ 951 $ 915¢ 1.02% 2.95% 20.2% 14.55% 30.9% 68.4% 75.1% $ =
Senior, interest on $3,734,45.  $ 534 $ 5.0¢ 1.9€% 13.2¢% 15.8(% 17.02% 19.7% 49.9% 0.0(% $ -
Subordinater $1,378,89 $ 474 $ 4401 3.4% 9.51% 16.4¢% 17.56% 19.48% 50.0% 19.0% $ 19,96
Subordinated,
interest only $ 277560 $ 78¢ $ 7.92 2.94% 9.9:% 13.31% 15.01% 24.3% 45.8(% 0.0(% $ -

RMBS transferret
to consolidated

variable interest
entities $5,265,120 $ 5514 $ 62.11 5.32% 14.5¢% 12.4(% 14.7% 32.26% 57.61% 4.15% $ 161,26:



Agency Mortgag-
Backed Securitie $3,018,34 $ 103.0° $ 107.0¢ 4.6€% 3.85% 28.4%% 24.5% NA NA 100.0% $ -
Securitized loan $ 268,12 $ 100.9: $ 83.1« 3.05% 4.71% 24.91% 23.51% 6.17% 39.8% 8.8¢% $ 1,328

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, -month loss, etc.

Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-AgéRRIBS that are not of high credit quality, a pontiof the original purchase discount is
designated as Accretable Discount, which refldmspurchase discount expected to be accretednitgest income, and a portion is designate
as Non-Accretable Difference, which representsctirgractual principal on the security that is nxiexted to be collected. The amount
designated as Non-Accretable Difference may besteljuover time, based on the actual performantieecfecurity, its underlying collateral,
actual and projected cash flow from such collatexabnomic conditions and other factors. If thefgranance of a security is more favorable
than previously estimated, a portion of the amalasignated as Non-Accretable Difference may bessedrinto interest income over time.
Conversely, if the performance of a security is lievorable than previously estimated, the amodesggnated as Non-Accretable Difference
may increase, resulting in an OTTI loss.
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The following table presents changes to Accret&lideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it peddb our entire Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio for assets with purchase discounts ferykars ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

For the Year Ende

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Accretable Non-Accretable Accretable Non-Accretable
Discount Difference Discount Difference

Balance at beginning of perit $ 1,176,01! $ 1,931,931 $ 1,098,06. $ 1,879,47!

Accretion of discoun (151,579 - (142,136 -

Principal Writedown: - (315,44 - (181,22)

Purchase 29,56: 16,06 (11,414 265,38

Sales (47,749 (115,01) 12,82: (169,93)
Net other-than-temporary credit impairmi

losses - 132,25( - 356,91¢

Transfers from credit reser 192,29¢ (192,296 503,86 (503,869

Transfers to credit reser (83,287 83,28’ (285,189 285,18:

Balance at end of peric $ 1,115,26¢ $ 1,540,781 $ 1,176,01' $ 1,931,93i

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Accounting policies are integral to understanding anagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Findr@andition and Results of Operations.
The preparation of financial statements in accactdamith GAAP requires management to make certalgjuents and assumptions, on the
basis of information available at the time of thehcial statements, in determining accountingresés used in the preparation of these
statements. Our significant accounting policies aoebunting estimates are described in Note 2d&timsolidated Financial Statements;
critical accounting policies are described in g@stion. An accounting policy is considered criti€& requires management to make
assumptions or judgments about matters that afdyhigncertain at the time the accounting estimais made or require significant
management judgment in interpreting the accounifegature. If actual results differ from our judgmnts and assumptions, or other accounting
judgments were made, this could have a signifieadtpotentially adverse impact on our financialditan, results of operations and c:

flows. These critical accounting policies were deged by management, and reviewed by our audipoigr;, to being presented to and
discussed with the Audit Committee of the Boar@®ogctors.

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, our accounts, the accourgsrofvholly-owned subsidiaries, and varia
interest entities, or VIEs, in which we are thewmary beneficiary. All significant intercompany bat¢zs and transactions have been eliminatec
in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the repc
amounts of revenues and expenses during the regqréiriod. Although our estimates contemplate cuirtenditions and how we expect them
to change in the future, it is reasonably posdiide actual conditions could be different than@péted in those estimates, which could
materially adversely impact our results of operaiand our financial condition. Management has nséglaficant estimates in several areas,
including OTTI on Non-Agency RMBS, valuation of Agey and Non-Agency RMBS and interest rate swapsrazaime recognition on Non-
Agency RMBS. Actual results could differ matewaitom those estimates.

Interest Income and Impairment on Nc-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Backed Séias

We invest in RMBS representing interests in oblwe backed by pools of mortgage loans. We denkatween (1) Agency RMBS and (2)
Non-Agency RMBS as follows: The Agency RMBS are magg pass-through certificates, collateralized namggobligations (“CMOs”), and
other RMBS representing interests in or obligatibasked by pools of mortgage loans issued or gteedras to principal and/or interest
repayment by agencies of the U.S. Government arédlg chartered corporations such as Ginnie Masxdie Mac or Fannie Mae. The Non-
Agency RMBS are not issued or guaranteed by Favlae Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Mae and are therefobgest to credit risk.
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We hold our RMBS as available-for-sale, record ¢hiesestments at estimated fair value as desciibdidte 5 of our consolidated financial
statements, and include unrealized gains and |lessesdered to be temporary in Other compreherisa@me (loss) in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Inchoss). From time to time, as part of the overalnagement of our portfolio, we may :
any of our RMBS investments and recognize a redigaen or loss as a component of earnings in omsGlalated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Income (Loss) utilizing the dpeidentification method.

Our accounting policies for recognition of interegtome and OTTI related to RMBS are describedateN of the consolidated financial
statements. As noted therein, there are threerdiffeaccounting models that may be applicable tiop@ses of the recognition of interest
income and OTTI on RMBS, and include the following:

ASC 310-20Nonrefundable Fees and Other Co@sSC 310-20) — applies to all Agency RMBS and darbdon-Agency
RMBS of high credit quality that, at the time ofrpase, we expect to collect all contractual cashs and the security
cannot be contractually prepaid in such a wayttieatve would not recover substantially all of oecarded investment.

ASC 310-30Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@redit Quality(ASC 310-30) — applies to Non-Agency
RMBS where there is evidence of deterioration edirquality and that we do not expect to colldctantractual cash flows
of the security.

ASC 325-40Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial As$&iSC 325-40) — applies to certain Non-Agency RMBf n
within the scope of ASC 310-20 or ASC 310-30. Ehieslude Non-Agency RMBS which is not of high dtegliality at the
time of purchase or that can be contractually pcepaotherwise settled in such a way that we wawdtirecover substantially
all of our recorded investment.

The determination of which accounting model to gpgill have a significant impact on the amountsrtérest income and OTTI losses
reflected in the results of operations because aecbunting model has different requirements reggrthe cash flows used to calculate inte
income and impairments (i.e., contractual cashd$lew: expected cash flows) and the manner of saichlations, and the impact of changes in
prepayment assumptions on interest income or O3sads.

For Agency and Non-Agency RMBS accounted for ude€ 310-20, the amount of interest income recomad the life of a security will be
equal to the contractual cash flows of the secuarity the accretion/amortization of any purchaseodist or premium. The amount of interest
income reported in any particular financial repugtperiod will, however, vary depending on the atand estimated prepayments on the
security. For Agency RMBS purchased at a premiuthéqrincipal amount, increases in prepaymentdsped| generally result in a reduction
of the recorded amount of interest income in aipagr financial reporting period whereas decreasgsepayment speeds will generally resull
in an increase in the amount of interest income rarticular financial reporting period. The opp@s$s$ generally the case for Agency RMBS
purchased at a discount to the principal amourdt ) as prepayment speeds increase, intereshaoeported in a particular financial
reporting period will generally increase, wheragstiest income reported in a particular finanaglarting period will generally decrease when
prepayment speeds decline. However, volatilityhi; teported amount of interest income will resuiew there are significant changes in actue
or future expected prepayment speeds regardlgbe alirection of those changes. This volatilithécause the accounting model that we appl
under ASC 310-20 requires us to record a cumulaijestment, on a retrospective basis from theiaitiun date of the security, when there
are changes in prepayment speeds. That cumulatjustment at each reporting date is intended lecethe most current estimate of the
timing of prepayments over the life of the secu(iigth actual prepayments that have occurred ip#is¢ and the timing of prepayments that
will occur in the future).

Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS accounted for uiAR€ 310-20 may experience an OTTI loss. The O®3$ recognized in earnings

will be calculated based on the present value®ttntractual cash flows expected to be colle@etdisequent to recognition of an OTTI loss,
we recognize income on these securities under ARE3B as further described below.
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For Non-Agency RMBS accounted for under ASC 31®B8ASC 325-40, the reported amounts of interesinme and OTTI are significantly
impacted by management judgments around both tleeieinand timing of credit losses (defaults) angpyenents. Interest income on these
Non-Agency RMBS is recognized initially and in subsequperiods based on the timing and amount of flagls expected to be collected, as
opposed to being based on contractual cash floles.atcounting models in ASC 310-30 and ASC 325e40dl provide for delineations
between individual changes in cash flow estimatess®t on expected defaults or prepayments. Sagtdiffly, we are required to consider the
overall impact on the amount and timing of futuastt flows whether due to changes in default exfientor prepayments in order to
determine the amount of interest income to recagritmrthermore, the overall impact on the amoudttaming of future cash flows whether
due to changes in default expectations or prepatgradso impacts the amount of OTTI losses recoghizearnings.

Non-Agency RMBS accounted for under ASC 310-30 or A&26-40 are generally purchased at a discount tpriheipal amount. At the
original acquisition date, we estimate the timimgl amount of cash flows expected to be collectetcafibrate the present value of those
amounts to our purchase price. In each subsequamicfal reporting period, we are required to re\asir estimates of the remaining timing
amount of cash flows expected to be collected. Béipg on the nature of the changes in the timingmount of cash flows expected to be
collected, whether due to changes in default egbiects or prepayment assumptions, the followind edgtur:

. If there is a positive change in the amount andniinof future cash flows expected to be collecteanfthe previous estimate used
accounting purposes, the effective interest rafatime accounting periods may increase resultingn increase in the reported am«
of interest income in future periods. A positiveange in the amount and timing of future cash flewgected to be collected from
previous estimate used for accounting purposes bmusbnsidered significant for Non-Agency RMBS agted for under ASC 310-
30 for the effective interest rate in future acdmgn periods to increase. An OTTI loss will not fezorded in earnings in the pet
we determine there is a positive change in the amand timing of future estimated cash flows. Aipes change in the amount ¢
timing of future cash flows expected to be colldcie considered to have occurred when the net prasdue of future cash floy
expected to be collected has increased from théque estimate. This can occur from a change hreeithe timing of when cash flo
are expected to be collected (i.e., from chang@sdpayment speeds or the timing of estimated éisjaar in the amount of cash flo
expected to be collected (i.e., from reductionsstimates of future defaults). Furthermore, a p@sithange could occur on an ove
basis in situations where the positive impact ohange in the timing of cash flows exceeds the theganpact of increased defau
or when the positive impact of a decline in estedatlefaults exceeds the negative impact of an siterof the timing of receipt
cash flows

. If there is a negative (or adverse) change in theumt and timing of future cash flows expected ¢ocbllected from the previo
estimate used for accounting purposes, and theigesufair value is below its amortized cost, an OTTIslexjual to the advel
change in cash flows expected to be collectedodisied using the securitiesffective rate before impairment, is required t
recorded in current period earnings. For Non-AgeRMBS accounted for under ASC 330; while the effective interest rate use
accrete interest income after an OTTI has beengrézed will be the same, the amount of interesbiine recorded in future peric
will decline because of the reduced amount of thertized cost basis of the investment to which sfééctive interest rate is appli
Additionally, for Non-Agency RMBS accounted for lexdASC 32540, while the effective interest rate used to aecirerest incon
during the period directly after an OTTI has beecognized will be the same, the amount of interesime recorded in such futi
period will decline, absent an increase in casidlexpected to be collected, because of the recarmedint of the amortized cost bi
of the investment to which such effective intenege is applied. An adverse change in the amondttiming of future cash flov
expected to be collected is considered to haveroetwhen the net present value of future cashdlewpected to be collected
decreased from the most previous estimate. Thisgghaan occur from a change in either the timinwloén cash flows are expec
to be collected (i.e., from changes in prepaympaeds or the timing of estimated defaults) or amdamount of cash flows expecte:
be collected (i.e., from increases in estimatefutifre defaults). Furthermore, an adverse changéamccur on an overall basis
situations where the negative impact of a changthéntiming of cash flows exceeds the positive iotpaf a decline in estimat
defaults, or when the negative impact of an in@easstimated defaults exceeds the positive implah shortening of the timing
receipt of cash flows
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Because the accounting models in ASC 310-30 and 22540 are impacted by both assumptions of prepaysrand assumptions of credit
losses (defaults), changes in the amounts of redarderest income or OTTI losses over financipbréng periods cannot be considered to
result solely from the impact of changes in thalitnerofile of the investment or solely from thepact of changes in prepayment speeds.
Furthermore, while there may be some level of datimn between assumptions for defaults and prepaysnas general market interest rates
change, in the recent market conditions that caticel has not been direct and predictable.

Determination of appropriate accounting model fordd-Agency RMBS

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the determination of the appropdat®unting model for Non-Agency RMBS
is dependent on management’s assessment and jutigetadead to the following factors made as of thquasition date:

. Our assessment of the credit quality of the aseetuding its credit rating at the acquisition dated whether the security |
experienced deterioration in credit quality sirtsanception

. Our assessment of the probability of collectiomlbtontractual cash flows.

. Our assessment of whether the security can beamaaily prepaid such that we would not recoverioitial investment.

The most critical judgment inherent in the detemttion of the appropriate accounting model is oseasment of the cash flows expected to b
collected at the acquisition date. In making tltiscaunting judgment, we consider expected defauldspgepayments as further described
below.

Impact of prepayment assumptions on RMBS accounfedunder ASC 31-20

Changes in actual prepayments will impact the amofimterest income recognized in each finanaglarting period for RMBS accounted for
under ASC 310-20. We estimate expected prepaynsefatrther described below.

Impact of default and prepayment assumptions on I-Agency RMBS accounted for under ASC 310-30 and ABX5-40

Management judgments around the estimated amodrtiramg of defaults, and the timing of collectiohcash flows (i.e., prepayments and
the timing of defaults) will have a significant iagt on the reported amount of interest income an@llsses. Furthermore, it is the combil
impact of the assumptions for the amount and tinoihgash flows from defaults and prepayments thktimpact the reported amounts of
interest income and OTTI losses.

Our estimate of cash flows expected to be collertéated to Non-Agency RMBS is based on our rewaéthe underlying securities or
mortgage loans securing the RMBS. We consideotiéstl information available and expected futurefgrenance of the underlying securities
or mortgage loans, including timing of expectedifatcash flows, prepayment rates, default ratss,deverities, delinquency rates, percentag
of non-performing loans, extent of credit suppaedikable, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FICQO”) scoredaan origination, year of origination, loan-
to-value ratios, geographic concentrations, as agetieports by credit rating agencies, such as Meddvestors Services, Inc. (“Moody’s”),
Standard & Poor’s Corporation (“S&P”), Fitch, Irar. DBRS Limited (collectively, “Rating Agencies'§eneral market assessments, and
dialogue with market participants. However, theuasptions underlying these estimates are generatlpased on observable market data, bu
rather reflect unobservable inputs based on managgjedgment. As a result, substantial judgmensid in our analysis to determine the ¢
flows expected to be collected related to Non-AgerRMBS.

In determining the OTTI related to credit lossesNon-Agency RMBS securities accounted for unde€A80-30 and ASC 325-40, we
compare the present value of the remaining castsfexpected to be collected at the purchase datadiodate previously revised) against the
present value of the cash flows expected to bectaltl at the current financial reporting date. diseount rate used to calculate the present
value of expected future cash flows is the effectiterest rate or effective yield used for incameognition purposes.
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Variable Interest Entities

VIEs are defined as entities in which equity ineest(i) do not have the characteristics of a cdimigpfinancial interest, and/or (ii) do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finanite activities without additional subordinateddirtial support from other parties. The entity that
consolidates a VIE is known as its primary benefigi and is generally the entity with (i) the pow@direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performaneead (i) the right to receive benefits from thEE\or the obligation to absorb losses of the
VIE that could be significant to the VIE. For VIEbkat do not have substantial on-going activitibg, power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIES’ economic performaroay be determined by an entity’s involvement wiith design of the VIE.

We use securitization trusts considered to be WWEcuritization and re-securitization transaaio®rior to January 1, 2010, these VIEs met
the definition of Qualified Special Purpose Enst{eQSPE”") and, as such, were not subject to catestibn by us. Effective January 1, 2010,
all such VIEs were considered for consolidationellasn the criteria in ASC 81CQonsolidation.

Our Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiomtain the assets and liabilities related to tmrsolidated variable interest entities, or
VIEs. Due to the non-recourse nature of these VBilifnet exposure to loss from investments in tleesiéies is limited to our retained
beneficial interests.

We currently consolidate four whole loan securttmaand six RMBS re-securitization transactionsolitare VIEs. The whole loan
securitizations contain jumbo prime whole loanspuechased during 2007 and 2008 and securitizedIghloereafter. The RMBS re-
securitization transactions contain Non-Agency RMB®prised of primarily what we classify as coltatdbacked by Alt-A first lien
mortgages of 2005-2007 vintages. We categoridateoal as Alt-A regardless of whether the loansenaiginally described as “prime” if the
behavior of the collateral when we purchased tlearily more resembles typical Alt-A collateral. Wefine Alt-A collateral characteristics to
be evidenced by the 60+ day delinquency bucket®pbol being greater than 5% and the weightedageelFICO scores at the time of
origination as greater than 650.

Our determination to consolidate these ten VIEs sigsificantly influenced by management’s judgmestated to the activities that most
significantly impact the economic performance @& entities and the identification of the partthwine power over such activities. For the
whole loan securitization, we determined that daility to replace defaulting loans with performit@ans resulted in us having the power that
most significantly impacts the economic performaotthe VIE. For the six consolidated RMBS re-s@@ation transactions, we determined
that no party has power over any ongoing activitiethe entities and therefore the determinatiothefprimary beneficiary should be based or
involvement with the initial design of the entiyince we transferred the RMBS to the securitizatiotities, we determined we had the power
over the design of the entity, which resulted irbasg considered the primary beneficiary. Thiedeaination was influenced by the amount of
economic exposure to the financial performancéefantity and required a significant managemergrjueht in determining that we should
consolidate these six entities.

Due to the consolidation of these VIEs, our actwahership interests in the securitization and i@+g8zations have been eliminated in
consolidation and the Consolidated Statementsr@rigial Condition reflect both the assets heldraomrecourse debt issued to third partie:
these VIEs. In addition, our operating results eash flows include the gross amounts related tas$sets and liabilities of the VIEs as oppc
to the actual economic interests we own in the€esVOur interest in these VIEs is restricted tolibeeficial interests we retained in these
transactions. We are not obligated to providefarancial support to these VIEs.

Our Consolidated Statements of Financial Condisieparately present: (i) our direct assets anditiabi and (ii) the assets and liabilities of
consolidated securitization vehicles. Assets lf@hsolidated VIEs can only be used to satisfyabkgations of those VIEs, and the liabilities
of consolidated VIEs are non-recourse to us.

We have aggregated all the assets and liabilifiiseoconsolidated securitization vehicles dueundetermination that these entities are
substantively similar and therefore a further digagated presentation would not be more meaninghd.notes to our consolidated financial
statements describe our direct assets and liasilithd the assets and liabilities of our consaitlaecuritization vehicles. See Note 8 to our
consolidated financial statements for additionfdrimation related to our investments in VIES.
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Fair Value Measurements

The Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FAS8C 820, “ Fair Value Measurements ", defines Yailue, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires certain discksabout fair value measurements under GAAP. iffgaly, this guidance defines fair value
based on exit price, or the price that would beike upon the sale of an asset or the transfadiability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Malutgchniques for RMBS are based on models thagider the estimated cash flows
expected to be collected from the underlying cett@tand an estimated market-based yield reflectivhe unique attributes of the tranche
including, but not limited to, assumptions relategrepayment speeds, the frequency and severdgfallts and attributes of the collateral
underlying such securities. Estimates of thevalue of RMBS are particularly sensitive to assuons related to the expected timing of
prepayments, the extent of defaults, and the sgwafrexpected losses. Management reviews thevédires generated by the model to
determine whether prices are reflective of theentrmarket. Management indirectly corroboratesstimates of the fair value using pricing
models by comparing its results to independeneprrovided by dealers in the securities and/od tharty pricing services, if available.

To the extent the inputs used to estimate fairezale observable, the values would be categonzkdvel 2 of the fair value hierarchy;
otherwise they would be categorized as Level 3colmection with the Restatement, the Company featet its historical conclusion
regarding the Level in the fair value hierarchynich the Non-Agency RMBS have been classified detérmined that the Non-Agency
RMBS market as a whole exhibited characteristicaroinactive market for all periods presented isa Horm 10-K. The Company'’s fair value
estimation process utilizes inputs other than cliptéces that are observed in the market. The Gmoryip estimate of prepayment, default and
severity curves all involve adjustments that arended to be significant to the fair value measurdamescess, which renders the resulting Non
Agency fair value estimates Level 3 inputs in thie ¥alue hierarchy. Level 3 assets represent appaiely 18% and 56% of total assets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis aseceBber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Noneeolidbilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis as of December 31, 2012 and 2 lewel 3.

Our assets and liabilities which are measurediavédue are discussed in Note 5 to our consol@ifitancial statements.
Exposure to European Financial Counterparties

A significant portion of our Agency RMBS is finarttwith repurchase agreements. We secure our bimgeswinder these agreements by
pledging our Agency RMBS as collateral to the lendé&e collateral we pledge exceeds the amourteobbrrowings under each agreement,
typically with the extent of over-collateralizatitweing at least 3% of the amount borrowed. Ifdbenterparty to the repurchase agreement
defaults on its obligations and we are not ableetover our pledged assets, we are at risk ofdasia over-collateralized amount. The amoun
of this exposure is the difference between the arhlmaned to us plus interest due to the countgrend the fair value of the collateral
pledged by us to the lender including accrued @stereceivable on such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouesgttete risks. Under these swap agreements,atlg@lAgency RMBS as collateral as pa

a margin arrangement for interest rate swaps tieainaan unrealized loss position. If a countespasere to default on its obligation, we would
be exposed to a loss to a swap counterparty textemt that the amount of our Agency RMBS pledgesteded the unrealized loss on the
associated swaps and we were not able to recowexttess collateral.

Over the past several years, several large Eurdipearcial institutions have experienced finandidiiculty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these financial usitbns or their U.S. subsidiaries have
provided us financing under repurchase agreementg tiave entered into interest rate swaps with smstitutions. We have entered into
repurchase agreements and/or interest rate swap$ financial institution counterparties as of Beber 31, 2012 that are either domiciled in
Europe or a U.S.-based subsidiary of a Europeanaiethfinancial institution. The following tabummarizes our exposure to such
counterparties at December 31, 2012:
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Repurchase Interest Rate Exposure as a

Number of Agreement Swaps Percentage of
Country Counterpatrtie: Financing at Fair Value Exposure®) Total Asset:

(dollars in thousand:

France 1 199,70° $ -8 10,47¢ 0.1%%
Germany 1 - (14,549 (14,549 -0.1%
Netherlands 1 204,40¢ - 9,29 0.12%
Switzerland 2 249,56t (39,396 (26,17 -0.3%
United Kingdom 1 163,53 - 5,954 0.08%
Total 6 $ 817,21: $ (53,939 $ (14,99) -0.15%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgetléeral to each counterparty less the aggregfatepurchase agreement financi )
and unrealized loss on swaps for each countery

At December 31, 2012, we did not use credit defawulips or other forms of credit protection to hettigeexposures summarized in the table
above.

If the European credit crisis continues to impaese major European financial institutions, itasgble that it will also impact the operations
of their U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings andrapiens could be adversely affected by such eveWs.monitor our exposure to our
repurchase agreement and swap counterpartiesegular basis, using various methods, includingew\of recent rating agency actions,
financial relief plans, credit spreads or otherelepments and by monitoring the amount of cashsadrities collateral pledged and the
associated loan amount under repurchase agreearatits the fair value of swaps with our countelipart We make reverse margin calls on
our counterparties to recover excess collaterpkasitted by the agreements governing our finanaimgngements or interest rate swaps, or
may try to take other actions to reduce the amofiotir exposure to a counterparty when necessary.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended Decemb&l, 2012, 2011 and 2010

All prior results of operations presented belowhis “Managemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior
— Results of Operations for the Years Ended Decei®@bg2012, 2011 and 2010” have been revised teatthe effects of the Restatement.

For the purpose of computing economic net intdrestme and ratios relating to cost of funds meastimoughout this report, interest expense
includes net interest payments on interest rat@sywahich is presented as Realized gains (lossemterest rate swaps in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Inchows). Interest rate swaps are used to hedgadheaise in interest paid on repurchase
agreements in a rising rate environment. Presgiiie net contractual interest payments on inteesgstswaps with the interest paid on interes
bearing liabilities reflects our total contractimterest payments. Management believes this pratsem is useful to investors because this
presentation depicts the economic value of ourstment strategy, by showing actual interest expandenet interest income. Where
indicated, interest expense, including intereshpayts on interest rate swaps, is referred to asomeiz interest expense. Where indicated, ne
interest income reflecting interest payments oarggt rate swaps, is referred to as economic texest income.

The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAfkeasurements reflected in the Management’s Bigmuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.
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Less: Add:

Realized Ne Realized Ne!
Losses on Economic Losses on
GAAP Net Interest Rate Net GAAP Interest Rate Economic
Interest Interest Interest Interest
Income Swaps Income (1) Expense Swaps Expense
For the Year Ended December 31,
2012 $ 462,88. $ 20,22 $ 442,63¢ $ 126,55¢ $ 20,22 $ 146,78
For the Year Ended December 31,
2011 $ 570,16t $ 15,92¢ $ 55422. $ 134,85¢ $ 15,92¢ $ 150,78
For the Year Ended December 31,
2010 $ 429,65. $ 578¢ $ 423,82: $ 146,44¢ $ 578¢ $ 152,23t
For the Quarter Ended December 3
2012 $ 99,67¢ $ 533 $ 94,33: $ 33,87 $ 533 $ 39,20"
For the Quarter Ended September 2
2012 $ 110,34( $ 529¢ 3 105,03¢ $ 34,35¢ $ 529¢ $ 39,65¢
For the Quarter Ended June 30,20 $ 13957. $ 519/ $  13437! $ 21,95 $ 519/ $ 27,14.
For the Quarter Ended March 31,2( $  113,29: $ 439¢ $ 108,89. $ 36,378 $ 4,39¢ $ 40,77

(1) Excludes cash and cash
equivalents

Net Income (Loss) Summary

Our net income for the year ended December 31, 2@K2$327.8 million and earnings per basic shae$@a32. Our net income was
generated primarily by interest income on our mhiif Our net income for the year ended DecembieB811 was $137.3 million and earnings
per basic share was $0.13. Our net income foyehe ended December 31, 2010 was $248.4 millioneandings per basic share was $0.30.
The increase in our net income and our net incoenesipare for the year ended December 31, 2012mgared to December 31, 2011 is
primarily attributable to a decrease in OTTI redagd in earnings on our NoAgency RMBS and increased realized gains on sélpsroarily
Non-Agency RMBS securities, partially offset by a dieelin net interest income.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynaognized approximately $132.3 million of ndtatthan-temporary credit
impairment losses in earnings related to Non-AgeRE\BS as fair values and the present value of 8asls expected to be collected were
below amortized cost. The decrease in OTTI iskatteble to improving fair values as well as favéeathanges in cash flows expected to be
collected. The favorable change in cash flows etgukto be collected is mainly attributable to imFments in expected cash flow of our Non
Agency RMBS, and increasing prepayment speedshwhiult in an increase in the present value df flasvs expected to be collected.

OTTI charges, which were recognized on Negency RMBS, reflect changes in our estimate ohdasvs expected to be collected that incl
consideration of the estimated future performarideeunderlying collateral, including the expectethcipal loss over the term of the security
and changes in the expected timing of receipt shdbws. At December 31, 2012, we had a grossalizesl loss of $317 thousand related to
Agency RMBS and a gross unrealized loss of $291Bomirelated to NorAgency RMBS. Impairments on Agency RMBS in an afized los
position at December 31, 2012 are considered tesmpand not credit related. Unrealized losses on-Ngency RMBS for which no OTTI
was recorded during the year are considered tempbeged on an estimate of the cash flows expeotbd collected for such RMBS, which
considers recent bond performance and expecterefparformance of the underlying collateral. Simaifit judgment is used both in the
Company’s analysis of cash flows expected to blecid for its Non-Agency RMBS and any determinmatié the credit component of

OTTI. During the year ended December 31, 2011regegnized impairment losses of $357.1 million tiylo earnings related to Non-Agency
RMBS. Refer to “Critical Accounting Policies andtisates” above for more information regarding theagnition of OTTI.

Net income decreased by $111.1 million for the yated December 31, 2011 when compared to net méonthe year ended December
2010. We attribute the decrease in net income fo@ease of $225.3 million in OTTI, which incredfeom $131.8 million at December 31,
2010 to $357.1 million at December 31, 2011 Tuweeaase in OTTI is attributable to declines infiédevalues of our Non-Agency RMBS and
adverse changes in cash flows expected to be tadle€he adverse change in cash flows is maintipatable to an increase in expected
severities due to delays in the foreclosure procassed by regulatory changes, a deterioratioharctedit enhancement on our Non-Agency
RMBS, and slowing prepayment speeds, which reswtdecrease in the present value of cash flowsoteg to be collected. This increase in
OTTI was partially offset by an increase in Netnaist income of $140.5 million primarily due toianorease in average earning assets held.

The table below presents the net income (loss) samior the years ended December 31, 2012, 201264d.
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Net Income (Loss)
(dollars in thousand:

For the Year Ende
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net Interest Income:
Interest incomt $ 172,08¢ $ 254,02¢ $ 103,36(
Interest expens (10,679 (11,94) (7,749
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 417,35: 450,99¢ 472,74
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (115,880 (122,91) (138,699
Net interest income (expens 462,88. 570,16t 429,65:
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (47,637 (241,965 (40,837
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigerine
(loss) (84,619 (115,143 (91,019
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (132,25() (357,10Y (131,849
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (9,477 (34,479 (9,98¢)
Realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (20,227 (15,929 (5,789
Gains (losses) on interest rate sw (29,696 (50,407 (15,777
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS 83: (14,54%) 3,84¢
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 85,16¢ 54,35 17,33
Total other gains (losse 56,30: (10,599 5,40z
Net investment income (los 386,93! 202,46: 303,20
Other expenses
Management fee 49,52t 51,96¢ 40,92«
Expense recoveries from Manay (4,712 - -
Net Management fe¢ 44,81 51,96¢ 40,92«
Provision for loan losse 36¢ 5,291 7,10¢
General and administrative expen 13,98¢ 7,261 6,01F
Total other expense 59,167 64,52’ 54,04
Income (loss) before income taxes 327,76¢ 137,93! 249,16:
Income taxe: 1 60€ 75€
Net income (loss) $ 327,76° $ 137,32¢ $ 248,40!

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $10.7 billion48dillion and $8.5 billion for the years ended Bexer 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Our primary source of income isiiest income earned on our assets. Our interestaavas $589.4 million, $705.0 million a
$576.1 million for the years ended December 31220011 and 2010, respectively. The yield on artfplio was 5.50%, 6.16% and 6.79%
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 an@, 284pectively. For the year ended December @12 2s compared to the year ended
December 31, 2011, interest income decreased by.§hdillion due to a decrease in average inte@stieg assets of $717.1 million, and a
decrease in the yield on average earning assé8 lodsis points. Interest income for the year erfdktember 31, 2011 as compared to the
ended December 31, 2010, increased by $128.9 mplionarily due to an increase in average intezasting assets of $2.9 billion and a
decrease in our average cost of funds resultirmg iiproved net interest rate spread.

Our economic net interest income, which equalsé@stencome excluding interest earned on cash asldl equivalents less interest expense ar
realized losses on interest rate swaps, totaled.$44illion and $554.2 million for the years end@ecember 31, 2012 and 2011,

respectively. Our net interest spread, which exjtra yield on our average assets for the pergsithee economic average cost of funds for the
period, was 2.14% and 3.64% for the years endeerker 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. We ateibhut decrease in economic net inte
income in 2012 compared to 2011 to the decreagedrage interest earning assets primarily duedgpgyments and sales of RMBS
investments.

Our economic net interest income totaled $554.8onibnd $423.8 million for the years ended Decen3de 2011 and 2010, respectively. Our
net interest spread, which equals the yield oraeerage assets for the period less the economiaga/eost of funds for the period, was 3.64Y%
and 2.78% for the years ended December 31, 2012@0l respectively. We attribute the increasecomemic net interest income in 2011
compared to 2010 to the increase in interest egrssets following our 2010 secondary offerings.

The table below shows our average earning assktstbal interest earned on assets, yield on @eenaterest earning assets, average debt
balance, economic interest expense (including fiieeteof realized losses on interest rate swap®rage cost of funds, economic net interest
income, and net interest rate spread for the yeaied December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 and theémuters in 2012
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Economic Net Interest Income

Yield
on
Average
Interest Economic Economic  Economic  Net
Average Earned Interesi Net Interes
Earning on Earningc  Average Interest Average Interest
Assets Assets Debt Expense Cost Income Rate

Held (1) (1) Assets Balance (2) of Funds (1) (2) Spreat
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the year ended

December 31, 201 $10,721,30 $589,42( 5.5(% $4,372,03. $ 146,78: 3.36% $ 442,63¢ 2.14%
For the year ended

December 31, 201 $11,438,44. $705,01( 6.16% $5,989,11 $ 150,78 2.52% % 554,22.  3.6&%
For the year ended

December 31,201 $ 8,479,10! $576,06( 6.7%% $3,793,04' $ 152,23t 4.01% $ 423,82:  2.7¢%
For the quarter ende

December 31, 201 $10,956,75 $133,54! 4.86% $4,014,15' $ 39,20" 3.91% % 94,33 0.97%

For the quarter ende
September 30, 201 $12,366,20. $144,69: 4.68% $4,397,21. $ 39,65« 3.61%$ 105,03¢ 1.07%

For the quarter ende

June 30, 201 $ 9,898,15. $161,52: 6.52% $4,718,43 $ 27,14’ 2.3(%$ 134,370  4.22%
For the quarter ende
March 31, 201: $ 9,664,091 $149,66! 6.1%% $4,358,33: $ 40,77: 3.7 % 108,89 2.4t%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
(2) Includes effect of realized losses on interatd swaps

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $4.4 billion, $il0on and $3.8 billion and total economic interexpense of $146.8 million, $15
million and $152.2 million for the years ended Dmber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Oarage cost of funds was 3.36%, 2.t
and 4.01% for the years ended December 31, 20112, 26d 2010, respectively. The average costrudduate increased by 84 basis pc
and the average borrowed funds decreased by $llignhduring the year ended December 31, 2012, wbempared to the year ent
December 31, 2011. The increase in the cost ofsfuvats due to increases in LIBOR and an increagenrecourse liabilities of consolidat
VIEs over the prior year and a reduction in repasghagreements, which generally have a lower fat¢evest.

The average cost of funds rate decreased by 149 fi@iats and the average borrowed funds increbgék®.2 billion during the year ended
December 31, 2011, when compared to the year eébdeember 31, 2010. We attribute the decrease iarthaalized cost of funds to the
increase of Agency RMBS versus Non-Agency RMBSroe over the period as well as to the generalraeti the rate charged to finance
our assets held in securitization and re-secutitizarusts.

The borrowing rate at which we are able to finamgeassets using repurchase agreements is typaaliglated to LIBOR and the term of the
financing. The table below shows our average hoetbfunds, economic interest expense, averageot@snds (inclusive of realized losses on
interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBOR a@eesix-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR rekatb average six-month LIBOR,
and average cost of funds relative to average ame-six- month LIBOR for the years ended Decemhef812, 2011 and 2010 and the four
quarters in 2012.
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Average Cost of Funds

Average
One- Average Average
Month Cost Cost of
LIBOR of Funds Funds
Relative t¢  Relative tc  Relative tc
Average Average Average Average Average
Average Economic  Average One- Six-Month  Six-Month One- Six-Month
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Month
Funds  Expense (1 Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the year ended

December 31, 201 $4,372,03. $ 146,78: 3.36% 0.24% 0.74% (0.4<%) 3.12% 2.62%
For the year ended

December 31, 201 $5,989,11° $ 150,78 2.52% 0.2% 0.51% (0.28%) 2.25% 2.01%
For the year ended

December 31, 201 $3,793,04 $ 152,23 4.01% 0.27% 0.52% (0.25%) 3.74% 3.4%
For the quarter ended

December 31, 201 $4,014,15 $ 39,20" 3.91% 0.24% 0.7*% (0.4%) 3.61% 3.1&%
For the quarter ended

September 30, 201 $4,397,21. $ 39,65¢ 3.61% 0.24% 0.73% (0.4<%) 3.31% 2.88%
For the quarter ended

June 30, 201 $4,718,43. $ 27,14 2.3(% 0.24% 0.7*% (0.4%) 2.0€% 1.57%
For the quarter ended

March 31, 201. $4,358,33. $ 40,77 3.74% 0.2€% 0.7€% (0.5(%) 3.48% 2.98%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interatd swaps
Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we sol@8Mith an amortized cost value of $858.2 million fealized gains of $85.2 million.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, we sol@8Mith an amortized cost value of $2.6 billion fealized gains of $54.4 million.
During the year ended December 31, 2010, we sol@8Mith an amortized cost value of $878.9 million fealized gains of $17.3
million. The sales and realized gains recognizad t® reduce leverage in the portfolio, improvaeiliity and take advantage of market
conditions to realize gains in the portfolio.

Secured Debt Financing Transactions
During the year ended December 31, 2012, we firthtice purchase of $1.5 billion of jumbo prime whidans by securitizing and selli
senior bonds to third party investors for net peatseof $1.4 billion. We retained the subordinaéathes of the securitizations. We did not re

securitize RMBS or jumbo prime whole loans during year ended December 31, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we firatice purchase of $306.6 million of AArted fixed rate bonds related to previo
executed re-securitization transactions by setfiregbonds to third party investors for net procezfd311.0 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we firdtioe purchase of $1.3 billion of AAA-rated fixeate bonds by selling the bonds to third
party investors for net proceeds of $1.3 billion.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Expeses

We incurred management fees of $49.5 million, $52ildon and $40.9 million for the years ended Daber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The management fee is based ontacktwolders’ equity as defined in the investmenhagement agreement.

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses wédre@million, $7.3 million and $6.0 million for theears ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively. Our G&A expenses increasiedarily due to servicing fees associated with @SMC 2012-CIM1, CSMC 2012-
CIM2 and CSMC 2012-CIM3 securitizations and inceshprofessional fees due to the accounting res&ttsmThe costs related to the
accounting restatements have been reimbursedas nsted below.
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Our Manager has agreed to pay all past and futgpenses that we and/or our Audit Committee incu(Ipevaluate our accounting policy
related to the application of GAAP to our Non-Agg®iVIBS portfolio (the “Evaluation”); (2) restate iofinancial statements for the period
covering 2008 through 2011 as a result of the Etadn (the “Restatement Filing”); and (3) investegand evaluate any shareholder derivative
demands arising from the Evaluation and/or the &estent Filing (the “Investigation”); provided, hever, that our Manager’s obligation to
pay expenses applies only to expenses not paidibinsurers under our insurance policies. Expesbal include, without limitation, fees a
costs incurred with respect to auditors (to theeixsuch fees and costs exceed our originally astidiaudit fees of $542.4 thousand), outside
counsel, and consultants engaged by us and/or adit Eommittee for the Evaluation, Restatemenniiland the Investigation. The amount
paid by our Manager related to these expensetéoydar ended December 31, 2012 is $4.7 milliod,isipresented in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Inchoss) as Expense recoveries from Manager.

Total expenses as a percentage of average totdbassre 0.76%, 0.75% and 0.74% for the years ebDéedmber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

We reimburse FIDAC for our pro rata portion of reetephone, utilities, office furniture, equipmemachinery and other office, internal and
overhead expenses of FIDAC and its affiliates negglifor our operations. During the years endedebdxer 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, we
reimbursed FIDAC approximately $447 thousand arb&iousand and $465 thousand for such expensggateely.

The table below shows our total management feeGartbral and Administrative (“G&A”) expenses as pamed to average total assets and
average equity for the years ended December 32,2011 and 2010 and the four quarters in 2012.

Management Fees, G&A Expenses and Operating ExpenBatios
Total
Managemer Total Total
Management Management
Feeand Fee and G&A Fee and G&A
G&A Expenses/Tot Expenses/Averay

Expense! Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in
thousands
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 58,79¢ 0.7¢% 1.78%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 59,23¢ 0.75% 1.7€%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 46,93¢ 0.7¢% 1.62%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 12,65¢ 0.6€% 1.45%
For the quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 15,79¢ 0.8(% 1.92%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 15,44 0.75% 1.95%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 14,89¢ 0.74% 1.92%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $327.8 million, $137.3 milliorde$248.4 million for the years ended Decembe2B12, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
The table below shows our economic net interestrire; realized gains (losses) on sale of assettharatedit related OTTI, realized and
unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swaph$@s), total management fee and G&A expenses,ramainie tax, each as a percentage of
average equity, and the return on average equitshéoperiods presented. Our return on averagiyaquareased from 4.08% for the year
ended December 31, 2011 to 9.95% for the year eDdedmber 31, 2012 primarily due to a decline 8sés related to OTTI and increase in
realized gains on sales of investments, offsetim Ipy lower economic net interest income. Thaegse in OTTI credit losses recognized in
earnings in 2012 and 2011 is directly attributablemproving fair values as well as favorable chemm cash flows expected to be
collected. Our return on average equity decrefreaa 8.56% for the year ended December 31, 204008% for the year ended December
2011 primarily due to an increase in OTTI cred#ides recognized in earnings and net unrealizeddassinterest-only RMBS.
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Components of Return on Average Equity

Realized
and
Unrealized
Gains
Realized (Losses)
Gains on Interest
(Losses) on  Rate Swap Total Return
Economic Sales and and Management Fee on
Net Interest  OTTI/Average 10s/Averag: & G&A Income Tax Average
Income/Averag Expenses/Avera¢ Benefit/Averag
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity

(Ratios have been annualize

For the year ended December 31,

2012 13.44% (1.44%) (0.2€%) (1.7&%) 0.0(% 9.95%
For the year ended December 31,

2011 16.47% (9.1€%) (1.4€%) (1.7€%) (0.02%)  4.08%
For the year ended December 31,

2010 14.6(% (4.15%) (0.21%) (1.62%) (0.02%) 8.5€%
For the quarter ended December &

2012 10.8%% (1.05%) 0.6&% (1.45%) 0.0(% 9.04%
For the quarter ended September :

2012 12.72% 7.11% (2.4C%) (1.92%) 0.0%  15.52%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 16.9:% (8.14%) (1.70%) (1.95%) 0.0(% 5.14%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2 14.01% (4.1€%) 2.41% (1.92%) 0.0(% 10.32%
* Includes the effect of realized losses on interate

swaps

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, purchase RMBS, mortgage
loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay diuis and other general business needs. Our mirstiprces of capital and funds for additic
investments primarily include earnings from ourastments, borrowings under securitizations ansem#itizations, repurchase agreement:
other financing facilities, and proceeds from egofferings.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow fundsénfoinm of repurchase agreements and,
subject to market conditions, other types of finagc The terms of the repurchase transaction bongs under our master repurchase
agreements generally conform to the terms in thiedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishtée Becurities Industry and Financial
Markets Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment, gimarequirements and the segregation of all saearnite have initially sold under the
repurchase transaction. In addition, each lengwcally requires that we include supplemental teand conditions to the standard master
repurchase agreement. Typical supplemental tenthganditions include changes to the margin maarea requirements, cross default
provisions, required haircuts (or the percentagéithsubtracted from the value of RMBS that cellalizes the financing), purchase price
maintenance requirements, and requirements thdispllites related to the repurchase agreemertideedid or arbitrated in a particular
jurisdiction. These provisions may differ for easftour lenders

We also expect to meet our short term liquiditydgely relying on the cash flows generated by owestments. These cash flows are primi
comprised of monthly principal and interest payrsagrteived on our investments. We may also selimmestments and utilize those proceed
to meet our short term liquidity needs or enteo imbn-recourse financing of our assets throughssalsecurities to third parties of re-
securitization transactions that we have completgxtior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetsswill be sufficient to enable us to mee
anticipated short-term liquidity requirements. Hmwer, a decline in the value of our collateral docduse a temporary liquidity shortfall due to
the timing of margin calls on the financing arramgats and the actual receipt of the cash relatedeipal paydowns. If our cash resources
are at any time insufficient to satisfy our liquidiequirements, we may have to sell investmerttergially at a loss, or issue debt or additiona
equity securities in a common stock offering.

To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitalaand funds to continue to be provided
by earnings from our investments, borrowings ursgeuritizations and re-securitizations, repurctageements and other financing facilities,
as well as proceeds from equity offerings. Assalteof our failure to file our SEC filings by tliéing date required by the SEC (including the
grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under thei®ées Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), we areligible to file a new Form S-3
registration statement or use our existing Formr8gistration statements to raise additional eqeafyital until filings with the SEC have been
timely made for a full year. Our ineligibility tase Form S3 during this time period will have a negative irapan our ability to quickly acce:
the public capital markets because we would beiredto file a lon-form registration statement and wait for the SE@dolare sucl



registration statement effective.
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In addition to the principal sources of capitaldésed above, we may enter into warehouse fadliied use longer dated structured repurcha:
agreements. The use of any particular sourcepifadand funds will depend on market conditionaikability of these facilities, and the
investment opportunities available to us.

Current Period

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&&hl.2 million, $206.3 million and $7.2 million Becember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agjppnately $334.9 million, $447.7 million and $322rGllion for the years ended December
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The cash provigeoperating activities decreased for the yededrDecember 31, 2012 when compared
to the year ended December 31, 2011 due to a decieaet interest income earned on the portfoha@hvresulted from the decrease in
average interest earning assets to $10.7 billiothi®year ended December 31, 2012 as comparetditd $illion for year ended December 31,
2011. The cash provided by operating activitieséased for the year ended December 31, 2011 wimepared to the year ended December
31, 2010 due to the increase in net interest inceaneed on the portfolio which resulted from theréase in average interest earning assets tc
$11.4 billion for the year ended December 31, 284 tompared to $8.5 billion for the year ended Bdse 31, 2010 that was primarily
attributable to the consolidation of VIEs.

Our investing activities provided net cash of $888illion in December 31, 2012 and used net caspila#.1 million and $1.6 billion for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respgctieiring the year ended December 31, 2012 wergtsekcash from sales of RME
investments of $943.4 million and principal paynsenft $1.7 billion related to all our investmentetssoffset by purchases of $124.2 million in
RMBS securities and $1.5 billion in jumbo prime Wwhtwans. During the year ended December 31, ¥ (itilized cash to purchase $4.2
billion in securities which were offset by proceddsn asset sales of $2.6 billion and principalmpawnts of $1.4 billion. The increase in cash
provided by investing activities for the year en@stember 31, 2012 when compared to the year dbdeember 31, 2011 is the result of a
decrease in asset purchases offset by fewer adsst During the year ended December 31, 2010tiized cash to purchase $4.0 billion in
securities which were offset by proceeds from asalets of $896.3 million and principal payment$df billion. The decrease in cash uset
investing activities for the year ended December2B11 when compared to the year ended Decemb@030,is the result of increased sales
of RMBS during 2011.

Our financing activities used net cash of $908.Biani and $134.5 million for the years ended Decenil, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and
provided net cash of $1.2 billion for the year eh@®cember 31, 2010. The year ended Decembel032, r2flected net payments on
repurchase agreements of $1.1 billion as compareéttproceeds on repurchase agreements of $8@Michror the year ended December 31,
2011 and net payments from repurchase agreemefifis6f6 million for the year ended December 31,020ih addition, the year ended
December 31, 2012 reflected net proceeds on seedridlebt borrowings of $655.9 million as compaedet payments from securitized debt
borrowings of $414.8 million for the year ended Bmber 31, 2011. There were no secondary stoekiods during the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and sacpistock offerings provided net proceeds of $illlibn for the year ended December
2010. The increase in cash used by financingities\for the year ended December 31, 2012 is piiyndue to increased net payments on
repurchase agreements and payments on securigbédarrowings offset in part by proceeds from séized debt borrowings from CSMC
2012 - CIM1, CSMC 2012 - CIM2 and CSMC 2012IM3. The decrease in cash provided by finaneictiyities for the year ended Decem
31, 2011 is primarily due to proceeds from non-tese financing transactions that occurred durimgymar ended December 31,

2010. Recourse leverage decreased to 0.4:1 atibere31, 2012 as compared to 0.9:1 at Decemb&(31l, reflective of the decrease in
financed Agency RMBS. To date, we have not hadcamyterparties to our repurchase agreement borgoarrangements terminate any
relationships as a result of our failure to be entiin our reporting requirements with the SEC. ideer, for the period from the fourth quarter
of 2011 through December 31, 2012, we proactivetiuced the amount of borrowings under our masgerchase agreements with respect to
Agency RMBS to ensure that we are able to meenzangin calls or reduce our borrowing amounts asired by our counterparties.

We expect to continue to finance our activitiegimanner that is consistent with our current oparatiargely through repurchase
agreements. During the year ended December 32, 2@l received $1.7 billion from principal repayrteeand used leverage on our Agency
RMBS which utilized approximately $1.1 billion imsh. In addition, we may from time to time selius#ties as a source of cash to fund new
purchases.
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At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, thaireéng maturities on our RMBS repurchase agreenismigesented below.

December 31, December 3:

2012 2011

(dollars in thousands
Overnight $ - $ =
1-29 days 732,80¢ 1,368,94
30 to 59 day: 325,91! 836,00
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day 211,13 171,83t
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 258,16: 296,20:
Total $ 1,528,02! $ 2,672,98

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weouggance our operations with RMBS. Our countediipamegotiate a ‘haircut’ when we
enter into a financing transaction, which vary frlender to lender. A haircut is a percentage ithatibtracted from the par value of RMBS -
collateralizes the financing. The size of the haireflects the perceived risk associated with imgjJdhe RMBS by the lender. The haircut
provides lenders with a cushion for daily markdtigamovements that reduce the need for a margiache issued or margin to be returned a
normal daily increases or decreases in RMBS vaiaesr. At December 31, 2012, the weighted avehageut on our repurchase agreements
was 5%. Despite the haircut, repurchase agreeraghjsct us to two types of margin calls. Firstréhare monthly margin calls that are
triggered as principal payments and pre-paymeumtsegeived by us as these payments lower the vélihe collateral. As a result, we expect
to receive margin calls from our repurchase coyateies monthly simply due to the release of uptiédetors from the trustees of the trusts
which issued the RMBS we own. The monthly principayments and pre-payments are not known in advamteary depending on the
behavior of the borrowers of the mortgages undeglyhe trusts. Second, counterparties make maadfis @ return margin as a result of
normal daily increases or decreases in asset vataes counterparty may calculate or manage thesgimcalls differently. In addition, when
financing assets using standard form of Securitidastry and Financial Markets Association Mastep&chase Agreements, the counterpart)
to the agreement typically nets its exposure toruall outstanding repurchase agreements and issaiegn calls if movement of the asset
values in aggregate exceeds their allowable expdsuns. A decline in asset values could creatamgin call, or may create no margin call
depending on the counterparty’s specific poliay.atidition, counterparties consider a number dbfag¢including their aggregate exposure to
us as a whole and the number of days remainingd®#fie repurchase transaction closes prior torigsaiimargin call. See Note 5 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussiohow we determine the fair values of the RMBSatetalizing our repurchase agreeme

The table below presents our average repurchaaadstiuring the period and repurchase balancehtpmaiod end for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for the quartemsdeDddcember 31, 2012, September 30, 2012, Jur03@, and March 31, 2012. Our
balance at period end tends to have little flutuerom the average balances except in periodsewve are adjusting the size of our portfolio
using leverage. For example, subsequent to ouplation of a secondary offering of common stockimiyithe fourth quarter of 2010, our
guarter end repurchase balance increased commacen &verage repurchase balance. Our averagechgse agreement balance at Decembe
31, 2012 decreased compared to our average regeralggeement balance for the year ended Decemp20B1 due to sales of Agency RM
during the fourth quarter of 2011.

Average Repurchase

Repurchase Balance at

Period Balance Period Enc

(dollars in thousand:

Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 2,122,42 % 1,528,02!
Year Ended December 31, 2C $ 3,843,68 $ 2,672,98
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 1,567,60 $ 1,528,02!
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 1,954,95 $ 1,658,901
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 2,412,82 % 2,362,08!
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 2,554,229 $ 2,502,87

We are not required to maintain any specific debquity ratio as we believe the appropriate legerfar the particular assets we are financin
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetassAt December 31, 2012 and December 31, 204 otal debt was approximately $4.0
billion and $4.5 billion, which represented a d&bequity ratio of approximately 1.1:1 and 1.5dspectively. We include repurchase
agreements and securitized debt in the numeratourodebt-to-equity ratio and stockholders’ eqaitythe denominator.
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We do not manage our portfolio to have a pre-dedgeghamount of borrowings at quarter or year éddr borrowings at period end are a
snhapshot of borrowing as of a date, and this nurshheuld be expected to differ from average borrgwiaver the period for a number of
reasons. The mortgage-backed securities we owmatbgpledged as collateral under our repurchaseeatents pay principal and interest on
the 15th or 25th of each month (or the next busimly if such a day is on a weekend or is a hoJiday the mortgage-backed securities we
purchase under repurchase agreements are typsedtlgd on the 12th of each month (or the nextriassi day). As a result, depending on the
amount of mortgage-backed securities we have caeuirid purchase, we may retain the principal atetést we receive in the prior month, or
we may use it to pay down our borrowings. Morepwer borrowings will change as we implement outtfioptio management strategies and
risk management strategies over changing marketittons by increasing or decreasing leverage. Hemnhore, our borrowings will change
during periods when we conduct capital raises,iamertain instances we may purchase additiona@tsssd increase leverage with the
expectation of a successful capital raise. Sinreagerage borrowings and period end borrowingsbeaexpected to differ, we believe our
average borrowings during a period provide a mopeia@te representation of our exposure to the asksciated with leverage.

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiloigion agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiesd,lor UBS. Through this agreement,
we may sell through UBS, as our sales agent, d2%50000,000 shares of our common stock in ordibaoiers’transactions at market prices
other transactions as agreed between us and UBSdidh\hot sell any shares of our common stock utideequity distribution agreement
during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2&14 result of our failure to file our SEC filin@y the filing date required by the SEC
(including the grace period permitted by Rule 1ZbdRder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asnded), we will not be able to issue
shares of our common stock under the equity digfiob agreement until filings with the SEC haverb&mely made for a full year.

On September 24, 2009, we implemented a divideindestment and share purchase plan, or DRSPP DR&PP provided holders of record
of our common stock an opportunity to automaticadiywvest all or a portion of their cash distriloumts received on common stock in additional
shares of our common stock as well as to make rmgiticash payments to purchase shares of our corataok. The DRSPP was administered
by the Administrator, Computershare. During therymaled December 31, 2011 we raised $964 thousaissiing 278,000 shares through
DRSPP. During the year ended December 31, 201@ised $263 thousand by issuing 68,000 sharesghrine DRSPP. The DRSPP was
suspended when we were no longer current on éngsil As a result of our failure to file our SE(NDs by the filing date required by the S
(including the grace period permitted by Rule 1BdRder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asded), we will not be able to issue
shares of our DRSPP until filings with the SEC hbgen timely made for a full year.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 we decthvidbnds to common shareholders totaling $390lom, or $0.38 per share. During
the year ended December 31, 2011, we declarededigizgito common shareholders totaling $523.5 mijlieor$0.51 per share.

The Board of Directors declared a regular quartéijdend of $0.09 per share for each quarter 420 he Board of Directors has determinec
that there will be a regular quarterly dividendb6t09 per share for each of the first two quartéi2014. The Board of Directors will review
this program after the conclusion of the secondtquaf 2014. The Board of Directors also declaegpecial dividend of $0.20 per share
payable on January 31, 2014 to shareholders ofdegoJanuary 8, 2014.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstareingf December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Related Party Transactions Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managenges¢ment with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC isidatl to receive a management

fee and, in certain circumstances, a terminatierafed reimbursement of certain expenses as dedéniltlee management agreement. Such
fees and expenses do not have fixed and deterreipagments.
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The Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managenges¢ment with FIDAC, which provided for an initierm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestitto certain termination rights. The Compensatmmmittee of the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decerbp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, we paid to our Managgraaterly management fee equal
to 1.50% per annum of our gross Stockholders’ Bais defined in the management agreement). Effedtovember 28, 2012, the
management fee was reduced to 0.75% per annunosg Gtockholders’ Equity, which reduction will ramin effect until we are current on
all of our filings required under applicable setias laws.

We are obligated to reimburse our Manager forastincurred under the management agreementditica] the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for its qata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationseSeéhexpenses are allocated between our
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfigmoss assets compared to the gross assets ethbpg@ur Manager as calculated at each
quarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levesdgompared to our Manager’s other funds and a¢spun

March 2013 Amendment to Management Agreel

Because of the Restatement, we amended the manaigagneement on March 8, 2013. In the amendmeninerorialized the reduction in
the management fee. Additionally, our Manager ajtegay all past and future expenses that we aodfoAudit Committee incur to: (1)
evaluate our accounting policy related to the aapion of GAAP to our Non-Agency RMBS portfolio élcvaluation); (2) restate our financial
statements for the period covering 2008 throughL28 a result of the Evaluation (the Restateméinigfyj and (3) investigate and evaluate any
shareholder derivative demands arising from thduimn and/or the Restatement Filing (the Investan); provided, however, that our
Manager’s obligation to pay expenses applies anxpenses not paid by our insurers under our ansar policies. Expenses shall include,
without limitation, fees and costs incurred witlspect to auditors, outside counsel, and consulengaged by us and/or our Audit Committee
for the Evaluation, Restatement Filing and the stigation.

The amendment also provides that the independeettdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 ddige @t any time in their sole discretion
without the payment of a termination fee. Addititywave may terminate the management agreementtafieimmediately if (i) our Manager
engages in any act of fraud, misappropriation otls) or embezzlement against the us, (ii) theam isvent of any gross negligence on the par
of our Manager in the performance of its dutiesarrttie management agreement, (iii) there is a carmnement of any proceeding relating to
our Manager’s bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) thera dissolution of our Manager, or (v) our Manaigeronvicted of (including a plea of nolo
contendere) a felony.

Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar@ 20& Manager earned management fees of $49.bmi$#52.0 million and $40.9
million, respectively and received expense reimémmsnt of $447 thousand, $625 thousand and $465ahdurespectively. From our
inception through 2009, our Manager waived itstrighrequire us to pay our pro rata portion of réslfephone, utilities, office furniture,
equipment, machinery and other office, internal anerhead expenses of our Manager and its afflisgquired for our operations.

Our Manager uses the proceeds from its managemei foart to pay compensation to its officers amgloyees who, notwithstanding that
certain of them also are our officers, receive ashccompensation directly from us.

Clearing Fees
On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administratem@ices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apnto clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfees and charges in return for such

services. RCap may also provide brokerage serwicas from time to time. During the years endedddeber 31, 2012 and 2011, fees paid to
RCap were $138 thousand and $162 thousand, reaplgcti
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Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stookitdManager’s employees and members of our boadéte@ftors during the year ended
December 31, 2008. During the years ended Decegihed012 and 2011, 172,000 and 126,000 shareswfated stock we had awarded to
our Manager’'s employees vested and 20,000 and 2/0@@s were forfeited, respectively. We did mangany incentive awards during the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. At Dege3iib@012 and 2011 there were approximately 5860@ 758,000 unvested share:
restricted stock issued to employees of FIDAC, eetipely. For the years ended December 31, 2002} 2nd 2010, compensation expense
associated with the amortization of the fair vadfi¢he restricted stock was approximately $449 samd, $451 thousand, and $490 thousand,
respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following tables summarize our contractual gdtions at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 204 .estimated principal repayment
schedule of the securitized debt is based on eggeetsh flows of the residential mortgage loarRMBS, as adjusted for projected losses on

the underlying collateral of the debt.

December 31, 201
Three to Fivi Greater Tha

Within One to Thre: or Equal to

Contractual Obligation One Yeal Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:
Repurchase agreements for RV $ 1,528,02! $ - % - $ - $ 1,528,02
Securitized dek 658,42: 793,15( 430,99: 555,71 2,438,28:
Interest expense on RMBS
repurchase agreements 3,481 5 - - 3,48¢
Interest expense on securitized
debt (1) 88,17 113,93: 72,90: 201,72: 476,73
Total $ 2,278,100 $ 907,08t $ 503,89 $ 757,43t $ 4,446,52
(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effsaifeDecember 3:
2012.
December 31, 201
Three to Fivi  Greater Tha

Within One to Thre: or Equal to

Contractual Obligation One Yeal Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:

Repurchase agreements for RV $  2,672,98' $ - % - 3 - $ 2,672,98
Securitized dek 488,88t 598,92: 276,96t 404,38! 1,769,15
Interest expense on RMBS
repurchase agreements 1,34¢ - - - 1,34¢
Interest expense on securitized
debt (1) 79,55¢ 107,36¢ 69,82¢ 244,06! 500,82.
Total $ 3,242,78. $ 706,29( $  346,79: $ 648,45 $ 4,944,331
(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effsatifeDecember 3:
2011.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidiatetities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured finance ol
special purpose entities, which would have beeabéished for the purpose of facilitating off-balargaheet arrangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purposes. Further, we have natrgnteed any obligations of unconsolidated eatii do we have any commitment or
intent to provide funding to any such entities.

Capital Resources

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had no matesiahtitments or capital expenditures.

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetedsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxamb®me (subject to certain adjustments).
We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to stockholders. Before we pay any dividend, whetbet).S. federal income tax purposes or

otherwise, which would only be paid out of avaitabhsh to the extent permitted under our finanfaedities, we must first meet any operat
requirements and scheduled debt service on ounding facilities and other debt payable.
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Inflation

A significant portion of our assets and liabilitix® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a resu#irest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamg@nterest rates do not necessarily correlati inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements apagved in accordance with GAAP and our distributioill be determined by our board of
directors consistent with our obligation to distrié to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKBlde income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, adativities and financial condition are measuredwéference to historical cost and/or fair
market value without considering inflation.

Other Matters

We at all times intend to conduct our businessssaad to become regulated as an investment comyoahgr the 1940 Act. If we were to
become regulated as an investment company, ottyabiluse leverage would be substantially reduced.

Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Adinds an investment company as any issuer thatgaged or proposes to engage in the
business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holdimgrading in securities and owns or proposestuie investment securities having a value
exceeding 40% of the value of the issuer’s totagétss(exclusive of U.S. Government securities asth @iems) on an unconsolidated basis (the
“40% test”). Excluded from the term “investmentséites,” among other things, are securities isdwedajority-owned subsidiaries that rely
on

the exemption from registration provided by Sec®¢c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Addelding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we rfayn in the future, rely on the exempti
from registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C)tleé Investment Company Act. Section 3(c)(5)(Clngarpreted by the staff of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (or the SEC), requiree us/est at least 55% of our assets in “mortgagelsather liens on and interest in real
estate” (or Qualifying Real Estate Assets) aneast 80% of our assets in Qualifying Real Estatefssplus real estate related assets. The
assets that we acquire, therefore, are limitechbyptovisions of and the rules and regulations pitgated under the Investment Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept etabesd “Companies Engaged in the Business of AatgMortgages and Mortgage-
Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778)ddithe concept release, the SEC is reviewingpreéive issues related to the Section 3
(c)(5)(C) exemption. We are monitoring developmeatated to this matter.

Based on our calculations, as of December 31, 2082011, we were in compliance with the exempitiom registration provided by Section
3(c)(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Compaway.

As a result of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reforrd @onsumer Protection Act of 2010, the U.S. Comydelitures Trading Commission (or
CFTC) gained jurisdiction over the regulation dkirest rate swaps. The CFTC has asserted thatath$®s the operators of mortgage real
estate investment trusts that use swaps as ptreiofousiness model to fall within the statutogfidition of Commodity Pool Operator (or
CPO), and, absent relief from the Division or then@nission, to register as CPOs. On December 72,24¥la result of numerous requests for
no-action relief from the CPO registration requiegfor operators of mortgage real estate invedstinests, the Division of Swap Dealer and
Intermediary Oversight of the CFTC issued no-actedief entitled “No-Action Relief from the CommadgiPool Operator Registration
Requirement for Commodity Pool Operators of CerRooled Investment Vehicles Organized as Mortgagpd Rstate Investment Trusts” that
permits a CPO to receive relief by filing a claionpterfect the use of the relief. A claim submittgda CPO will be effective upon filing, so lo
as the claim is materially complete. The cond#itimat must be met to claim the relief are thattlogtgage real estate investment trust must:

. Limit the initial margin and premiums required tstablish its commaodity interest positions to no entivan five percent of the f
market value of the mortgage real estate investtnes’s total asset:

. Limit the net income derived annually from its coodity interest positions that are not qualifyingdheg transactions to less tt
five percent of the mortgage real estate investriren’s gross income

. Ensure that interests in the mortgage real estatsstment trust are not marketed to the publicras a commaodity pool or otherwi
as or in a vehicle for trading in the commodityulets, commaodity options, or swaps markets;

. Either:
0 identify itself as ¢ mortgage REI” in Item G of its last U.S. income tax return onfdt12(-REIT; or
0 if it has not yet filed its first U.S. incont@x return on Form 112BEIT, disclose to its shareholders that it intetodglentify

itself as ¢*mortgage REI” in its first U.S. income tax return on Form 1-REIT.

While we disagree that the CFTC's position thattigage real estate investment trusts that use sagapart of their business model fall within
the statutory definition of a CPO, we have subrditieclaim for the relief set forth in the no-acti@tief entitled “No-Action Relief from the
Commodity Pool Operator Registration RequirementCfommodity Pool Operators of Certain Pooled Invesit Vehicles Organized as
Mortgage Real Estate Investment Trusts” and belexeneet the criteria for such relief set forthréie.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK




The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, rmarket value risk and real estate risk.
While we do not seek to avoid risk completely, vedidwe the risk can be quantified from historicgberience and we seek to actively manage
that risk, to earn sufficient compensation to fystking those risks and to maintain capital lsvansistent with the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiableHoans and face more credit risk on
assets we own which are rated below “AAA”. Thedit risk related to these investments pertairteéability and willingness of the
borrowers to pay, which is assessed before creditanted or renewed and periodically revieweduhout the loan or security term. We
believe that residual loan credit quality, and tthesquality of our assets, is primarily determitgdhe borrowers’ credit profiles and loan
characteristics. We use a comprehensive credigweprocess. Our analysis of loans includes borrgnsfiles, as well as valuation and
appraisal data. We use compensating factors sulidués assets, low loan to value ratios and regiamemployment statistics in evaluating
loans. Our resources include a proprietary podfolanagement system, as well as third party soétspstems. We may utilize a third party
due diligence firm to perform an independent unding review to ensure compliance with existingdglines. In addition to statistical
sampling techniques, we create adverse credit alugition samples, which we individually review. Wgect loans that fail to conform to our
standards and do not meet our underwriting crit@izce we own a loan, our surveillance processided ongoing analysis through our
proprietary data and servicer files. Additionatlye Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS which we acqtoreour portfolio are reviewed by us
to ensure that they satisfy our risk based crit@iar review of Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS ird#g utilizing a proprietary portfolio
management system. Our review of Non-Agency RMB&ather ABS is based on quantitative and qualiéagimalysis of the risk-adjusted
returns on Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS. This gsialincludes an evaluation of the collateral cbnastics supporting the RMBS such
as borrower payment history, credit profiles, gaphiic concentrations, credit enhancement, seasoainngother pertinent factors.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many dast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors Inelyour control. We are subject to interest ratie insconnection with our investments and our
related debt obligations, which are generally repase agreements, warehouse facilities and seetigtn/re-securitization. Our repurchase
agreements and warehouse facilities may be ofduidfuration that are periodically refinanced atenirmarket rates. We intend to mitigate
this risk through utilization of derivative conttacprimarily interest rate swap agreements, swagptfifutures and mortgage options..

Interest Rate Effects on Net Interest Incon

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihces between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderéimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détying asset which collateralizes the financiagcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate asset$ldlmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshairtterm financing, while our fixed intere
rate assets will not be match-funded. During peviofdrising interest rates, the borrowing cost®eissed with our investments tend to increast
while the income earned on our fixed interest raestments may remain substantially unchangeds Wil result in a narrowing of the net
interest spread between the related assets amAbogs and may even result in losses. Furtherpdutiis portion of the interest rate and cr
cycles, defaults could increase and result in ttedses to us, which could adversely affect ayuitlity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adwffect on the spread between interest-earnirggsaanad interest-bearing liabilities. Hedging
techniques are partly based on assumed levelsepapments of our fixed-rate and hybrid adjustabte-mortgage loans and RMBS. If
prepayments are slower or faster than assumedfdataf the mortgage loans and RMBS will be longeshorter, which would reduce the
effectiveness of any hedging strategies we mayndanay cause losses on such transactions.

Interest Rate Effects on Fair Valu

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@ftdhanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the
that the fair value of our assets will increasel@erease at different rates than that of our it#sl including our hedging instruments. We
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratioruofiabilities. Duration essentially measures
market price volatility of financial instruments iaserest rates change. We generally calculatetidarasing various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodologis produce different duration numbers for the saeuarities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond 100
basis points from current levels. Therefore, thiatidy in the fair value of our assets could iease significantly when interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other factosact the fair value of our interest rate-semsithvestments and hedging instruments, suct
as the shape of the yield curve, market expecttarto future interest rate changes and otherahaokditions. Accordingly, in the event of
changes in actual interest rates, the change ifathealue of our assets would likely differ fraimat shown below and such difference might b
material and adverse to our stockholders.
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Interest Rate Cap Ris

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thaedging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thewety’s interest yield may change during .
given period. However, our borrowing costs pursdardur financing agreements will not be subjeditoilar restrictions. Therefore, in a
period of increasing interest rates, interest catts on our borrowings could increase withouttition by caps, while the interest-rate yields
on our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS aveiiiectively be limited. This problem will be mafied to the extent we acquire
adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgapéch are fully indexed. In addition, the mortgagr the underlying mortgages in an
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps #milt in some portion of the interest being deféard added to the principal outstanding.
This could result in our receipt of less cash inean our adjustable-rate mortgages or RMBS thanemeel in order to pay the interest cost on
our related borrowings. These factors could lowerr®t interest income or cause a net loss duréniggbs of rising interest rates, which would
harm our financial condition, cash flows and resoltoperations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Ris

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®MBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdggng, have interest rates based on indice:
and re-pricing terms similar to, but of somewhairtdr maturities than, the interest rate indices r@apricing terms of the mortgages and
RMBS. In most cases the interest rate indicesresmticing terms of our mortgage assets and outifgnsources will not be identical, thereby
creating an interest rate mismatch between assdtkadilities. Our cost of funds would likely rige fall more quickly than would our earnings
rate on assets. During periods of changing inteades, such interest rate mismatches could negjaiivpact our financial condition, cash
flows and results of operations. To mitigate ins¢rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedgindegras discussed above. Our analysis of

is based on FIDAC's experience, estimates, modelsaasumptions. These analyses rely on models witiicte estimates of fair value and
interest rate sensitivity. Actual economic condi@r implementation of investment decisions byraanagement may produce results that
differ significantly from the estimates and assuomng used in our models and the projected reshitiws in this 2012 Form 10-K.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolim@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselyet#fleduring any period as a result of
changing interest rates. The following table gifi@stthe potential changes in net interest incame portfolio value for our Agency RMBS
portfolio should interest rates go up or down 2%,d&nd 75 basis points, assuming parallel movenierke yield curves. All changes in
income and value are measured as percentage cHamgethe projected net interest income and padfealue at the base interest rate
scenario. The base interest rate scenario assnteesst rates at December 31, 2012 and varioiraasis regarding prepayment and all
activities are made at each level of rate shocktu@ results could differ significantly from thesstimates.

December 31, 201

Projected Percentage

Change in
Projected Portfolio Value, with
Percentage Effect of
Change in Net Interest Rate Swaps and
Interest Other

Change in Interest Ra Income (1) Hedging Transactions (
-75 Basis Point (4.74%) 0.96%
-50 Basis Point (3.14%) 0.42%
-25 Basis Point (1.5%%) 0.17%
Base Interest Ra - -
+25 Basis Point 1.4% (0.0€%)
+50 Basis Point 3.31% (0.2€%)
+75 Basis Point 5.52% (0.49%)

(1) Change in annual economic net interest incomeutted interest expense on
interest rate swap

(2) Projected Percentage Change in Portfolio Valuaget on instantaneous move
interest rates

Prepayment Risk
As we receive prepayments of principal on thesesitments, premiums and discounts on such investmgihbe amortized or accreted into
interest income. In general, an increase in pregaymates will accelerate the amortization of pasghpremiums, thereby reducing the interes

income earned on the investments. Conversely, digs®n such investments are accelerated and eddrgbd interest income increasing
interest income.
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Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions déggithe rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the underlying mortgages. In generdlew fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagmé or RMBS are acquired via
borrowings, we may, but are not required to, eimter an interest rate swap agreement or other hgdgstrument that effectively fixes our
borrowing costs for a period close to the anti@padverage life of the fixedite portion of the related assets. This strateglesigned to prote
us from rising interest rates as the borrowingsase effectively fixed for the duration of thedtkrate portion of the related assets. Howew
prepayment rates decrease in a rising intereseratieconment, the life of the fixed-rate portiontbé related assets could extend beyond the
term of the swap agreement or other hedging ingninThis could have a negative impact on our te$tdm operations, as borrowing costs
would no longer be fixed after the end of the hedgnstrument while the income earned on the fixed hybrid adjustable-rate assets would
remain fixed. In extreme situations, we may beddrto sell assets to maintain adequate liquidityictwcould cause us to incur losses.

Basis Risk

We seek to limit our interest rate risk by hedgirogtions of our portfolio through interest rate psand other types of hedging instruments.
Interest rate swaps are generally tied to undeglyireasury benchmark interest rates. Basis rigkeelto the risk of the spread between our
RMBS and underlying hedges widening. Such a widgniay cause a decline in the fair value of our RMBS is greater than the increase in
fair value of our hedges resulting in a net deciimbook value. The widening of mortgage-backedisgges yields and Treasury benchmark
interest rates may result from a variety of facgush as anticipated or actual monetary policyoastior other market factors.

Market Risk

Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported
to changes in interest rates, prepayment speedketiiguidity, credit quality, and other factor&enerally, in a rising interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these sesiwould be expected to decrease; converselg,decreasing interest rate environment
estimated fair value of these securities wouldxXpeeted to increase. As market volatility incresageliquidity decreases, the fair value of our
investments may be adversely impacted.

Real Estate Market Ris

We own assets secured by real property and mayreaproperty directly in the future. Residenfiadperty values are subject to volatility :
may be affected adversely by a number of factaduding, but not limited to, national, regionabdocal economic conditions (which may be
adversely affected by industry slowdowns and othetors); local real estate conditions (such asvamsupply of housing); changes or
continued weakness in specific industry segmemwtssttuction quality, age and design; demographitofa; and retroactive changes to builc

or similar codes. In addition, decreases in prgpeatues reduce the value of the collateral angtitential proceeds available to a borrower to
repay our loans, which could also cause us to iltases.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage
loans, RMBS, and other assets and related debistghe effects of major interest rate changesgéfeerally seek to manage our risk by:

. monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasg¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

. attempting to structure our financing agreementshawe a range of different maturities, terms, ainatibns and interest r¢
adjustment period:

. using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, opionaps, floors and forward sales to adjust therést rate sensitivity of o
investments and our borrowing
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. using securitization financing to lower averagetaidunds relative to shoterm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended peiddime in contrast to short term financing and uniéy dates of the investmel
included in the securitization; al

. actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theesttaate indices, interest rate adjustment periadd, gross reset margins of
investments and the interest rate indices and t@arg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thprieing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with interagt movements. Methods for evaluating interestriskeinclude an analysis of our interest rate
sensitivity “gap”, which is the difference betweaterest-earning assets and interest-bearingiligisiimaturing or re-pricing within a given
time period. A gap is considered positive whenaitmount of interest-rate sensitive assets exceedsntiount of interest-rate sensitive
liabilities. A gap is considered negative whendh®ount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities exdemterest-rate sensitive assets. During a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gapld/tend to adversely affect net interest incomeijenvd positive gap would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income. During a periothlhihg interest rates, a negative gap would tencesult in an increase in net interest income
while a positive gap would tend to affect net ietrincome adversely. Because different typess#tasand liabilities with the same or similar
maturities may react differently to changes in allenarket rates or conditions, changes in inter@sts may affect net interest income
positively or negatively even if an institution vegperfectly matched in each maturity category.

The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imerest-bearing liabilities at December 31,
2012. The amounts of assets and liabilities shaitimn a particular period were determined in ademrce with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period inclvitheir interest rates are first scheduled to
adjust and not in the period in which they maturd does include the effect of the interest ratepsw@ihe interest rate sensitivity of our assets
and liabilities in the table could vary substatyi®lased on actual prepayments.

(dollars in thousands)

Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than 3

Months 3-12 Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 1513,18 $ 1,259,83 $ 1,253,62 $ 7,951,78. $ 11,978,42
Cash equivalent 621,15. - - - 621,15:
Total rate sensitive asse 2,134,33 1,259,83. 1,253,62! 7,951,78. 12,599,57
Rate sensitive liabilitie (18,987 787,39! 76,63¢ 1,879,05. 2,724,10
Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 2153320 $ 47243, $ 1,17698 $ 6,072,73 _$ 9,875,46
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ 215332 $ 262575 $ 3,802,73 $ 9,875,46:
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap ¢
percentage of total rate sensitive as 17% 21% 30% 78%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager'sispce, estimates, models and assumptions. Thagesas rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjtiictual economic conditions or implementatiorirofestment decisions by our manager may
produce results that differ significantly from thstimates and assumptions used in our models angtdfected results shown in the above
tables and in this 2012 Form 10-K. These analgeasain certain forward-looking statements andsaigect to the safe harbor statement set
forth under the heading, “Special Note RegardingMaod-Looking Statements.”

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

Our consolidated financial statements and theadlabtes, together with the Report of Independegiids®ered Public Accounting Firm there
are set forth on pages beginning on F-1 of thi2Zedrm 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

Disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduiedkl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Aetilasigned to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in reports filed or subediinder the Exchange Act is recorded, processedimarized and reported within the time
periods specified in SEC rules and forms and thel $nformation is accumulated and communicateddanagement, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, thosv timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, reviewed and evtddahe effectiveness of the design ant
operation of our disclosure controls and procedasesf the end of the period covered by this 20ffual report. As described below,
management has identified material weaknessestaiteomponents of our internal control over figi@hreporting, which is an integral
component of our disclosure controls and procedues result of these material weaknesses, th@lityato file this Annual Report on Form
10-K within the statutory time period, and the enaion that we have performed, our Chief Execuf¥icer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that the disclosure controls and proesiwere not effective as of December 31, 2012.

(b) Management'’s Report on Internal Control Over Fhancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Untersupervision and with the participation of oumagement, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, wenclucted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofimternal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2012 based on the framework indateControl—Integrated Framework issued by the @itee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO¥eBan that evaluation, our management concluggdrtternal controls over financial
reporting and disclosure were not effective as e@nber 31, 2012 due to the material weaknesseteimal control over financial reporting
described below.

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control Over Finah&eporting

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combimatif deficiencies, in internal control over fingaaeporting such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of ourwairor interim financial statements will not be y@ated or detected on a timely basis. As
previously disclosed in Item 9A of our Annual Refpam Form 10-K for the period ended December 31220e reported material weaknesses
in our internal control over financial reportings (@efined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underExehange Act). The previous Form 10-K
was issued on March 8, 2013, which was subseqaehetperiod covered by this report. Accordinghe previously reported material
weaknesses remain unchanged for this period anediation as described below is ongoing.

Management has identified the following materiabWgess in our internal control over financial rejpgy as of December 31, 2012:

. Our resources and level of technical accountingedige within the accounting function were insu#fitt to properly evaluate a
account for the complexity of our investments innNsgency RMBS securities, Intere®nly Strips, impairment of securitized loi
held for investment, effective interest calculai@nd related disclosures in accordance with géypa@cepted accounting principle

. We did not design and mainta@lequate procedures or effective review and appomrdrols, including the review of journal enti
and reconciliations, over routine processes. Sipatty therewas insufficient evidence that our review contraisre designed al
executed at a precision level that would prevemtatect a material misstateme

. We did not design and maintain adequate reviewagupdoval control®ver significant estimates and their related dsate process
prevent or detect a material misstateme@pecifically, we did not establish adequate procesiwor design effective controls

follows:

0 There was no precise or direct independent reviedv \alidation of inputs used in significant estiggtnd their relat
disclosures, such as the determination of the Value, other-thamemporary impairment, or interest income relate
investments in RMBS and securitized loans heldrfeestment

o} Therewas inadequate evidence of independent validati@aloulations used in significant accounting esti@s to ensure t
accounting policies were appropriately implemen

0 There was inadequate evidence of review of thedidbe supporting the amounts and disclosures iedhsolidated financi

statements by a person, other than the preparérthre necessary competency and authc

. We have identified an overreliance on spreadshamtsisting of manual inputs and complex calculatiased to record transactir
and estimates supporting the financial statememuats and disclosures. Our controls over thistelac data were not performec
a level of precision sufficient to rely on the cdetpness and accuracy of the source data or mamuat. The safeguarding &
management of electronic data was insufficientwidence the existence or extent of managementisweand validation over tl
complex spreadsheets by a person with the necessangetency and authorit

Due to the material weaknesses, management hakideddhat we did not maintain an effective intégantrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on criteria establish#teiCOSO Framewor|



The effectiveness of our internal control over fioi@l reporting as of December 31, 2012 has bediteliby Ernst & Young LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report which is included elsewheseesim.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repaing

Management is committed to the ongoing remediagitorts to address the material weaknesses asawellher identified areas of risk. These
remediation efforts, summarized below, which atlkegiimplemented or in process, are intended th bdtress the identified material
weaknesses and to enhance our overall financiafaaemnvironment.

After the issuance of the interim financial statetseor the third quarter of 2011, our managemeettmnore frequently with the Audit
Committee of the CompargBoard of Directors to update them on the Restemfforts. The Audit Committee, assisted by iraeent lege
counsel and outside accounting experts engaged bypunsel, has initiated an internal investigatida the facts and circumstances leading to
the restatement of the Company’s financial statesn@nd will make recommendations for appropriateedial measures based on its
findings. This investigation is ongoing and thedkiCommittee has not presented a final recommému&b the Board of Directors.

The Company engaged a leading accounting firm ¥@ésadnanagement with respect to accounting stasdasgarch support and engaged a
leading professional services organization spaingiin accounting and reporting matters to aid agament with key facets of the
Restatement. During 2012 and 2013, we have add#tkf resources in accounting policy, middle @&fand financial reporting roles,
including technical accounting subject matter resesiand a new Chief Financial Officer. The addil resources have remediated the
material weakness described in the 2011 Form 10Qrkosnding the lack of resources and level of té@diraccounting expertise within the
accounting function to properly evaluate and actfomthe complexity of the Company’s investmemtdNion-Agency RMBS securities,
Interest-Only Strips, impairment of securitizedriedneld for investment, and related disclosurexoordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.
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Additionally, we have been adding resources andgsges to remediate the aforementioned materidngsa regarding the direct independen
review and validation of inputs used in significastimates such as the determination of the faireyampairment, or interest income related tc
our investments in RMBS and securitized loans Faldnvestment, including the formalization of addie office function. While the new
resources and processes were not in place foildth2 i2porting period, they have been implemente2Dit8.

Further, growing the accounting policy, middle offiand financial reporting group has increaseapiportunity to further segregate duties,
improve the technical competency of the accourftimgtion and improve our control environment. Téessources will provide improved
documentation and evidence of review of the schesdsilipporting the amounts and disclosures in theotidated financial statements with the
necessary competency and authority.

Based upon the substantial work performed duriegRbstatement process and the procedures perfahmoedyh the filing of this Form 10-K,
we have concluded that the consolidated finant@kments for the periods covered by and includetis Form 10-K are prepared in

accordance with GAAP and fairly present in all mialeaespects, our financial position, results pémtion and cash flows for each of the
periods presented herein.

For these and other reasons, notwithstanding therrmeBweaknesses noted above, our management] bpee the substantial work performed
during the restatement process, has concludeatinatonsolidated financial statements for the pkyicovered by and included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K are prepared in accordance @AAP and fairly present in all material respecis; financial position, results of
operation and cash flows for each of the periodsemted herein.
Other than the ongoing remediation efforts desdriigove, there have been no changes in our inteon&lol over financial reporting during
the quarter ended December 31, 2012 that have ialbt@ffected, or are reasonably likely to mathyiaffect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance
Directors
The following are our directors and officers aPacember 24, 2013.
We have three classes of directors. Each of casdl Class Il and Class Ill directors will beotdsl at our next annual meeting of
stockholders. Our Class | directors will serveilunir annual meeting of stockholders for 2017.r Glass |l directors will serve until our

annual meeting of stockholders for 2015. Our ClHgdirectors will serve until our annual meetinfistockholders for 2016. Set forth below
are the names and certain information on each rofliogictors.
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Class | Directors

Paul Donlin, age 52, was appointed as one of cas<lI Directors and our Nonexecutive Chairman efBbard of Directors on November 15,
2007. Mr. Donlin left Citigroup in 2007, after areer that spanned 21 years. For the previougafsat Citigroup, Mr. Donlin was in the
securitization business, with his most recent pmsibeing the Head of Global Securitization in @lebal Securitized Markets Business within
Fixed Income. Earlier in his career at Citigrolvpr, Donlin managed the Structured Finance and AayisJnit of Citigroup’s Private

Bank. None of the corporations or organization teve employed Mr. Donlin during the past five ngeia a parent, subsidiary or other affili
of us. Mr. Donlin has an M.B.A. from Harvard Uniggy and a Bachelor's Degree from Georgetown Unsitg.

The Board believes that Mr. Donlin’s qualificatianslude, among other things, his significant eigreze in the residential mortgage-backed
securities market from his years of managemenboaedsight of securitization activities and his exjge in financial matters.

Mark Abrams, age 65, was appointed as one of cagdl Directors on November 15, 2007. Mr. Abraersed as Chief Investment Officer of
the Presidential Life Insurance Company from Noven#003 to December 2012 and as Executive Vicdad@misfrom 2005 to December
2012. He was Senior Vice President of the Presi@drife Insurance Company from 2001 to 2005, aetbre that, Mr. Abrams served as v
President of the Presidential Life Insurance Comggsance October 1994. None of the corporationsrganizations that have employed Mr.
Abrams during the past five years is a parent,ididry or other affiliate of us. Mr. Abrams ha8achelor’'s Degree from Hobart College.

The Board believes that Mr. Abrams’s qualificatiamslude, among other things, his experience dsef mvestment officer and his
prior executive experience with other companies.

Gerard Creagh, age 55, was appointed as one @flass | Directors effective as of April 1, 2010fitba newly created directorship on the
board of directors. Since May 2011, Mr. Creaghdwsed as a Managing Partner at CVC Advisers ld flhancial consulting firm. From
September 2005 through April 2010, Mr. Creagh stasthe President and a member of the Board etiirs of Duff & Phelps

Corporation. From September 2005 to September,200Creagh served as President of Duff & Phelpguisitions, LLC. Prior to its
merger with Duff & Phelps in September 2005, Mre&gh served as executive managing director of Stdr& Poor's Corporate Value
Consulting practice. Mr. Creagh joined StandarBdor’s from PricewaterhouseCoopers, where he helgésition of North American
Valuation Services practice leader. Mr. Creaglvipresly served as the U.S. leader for the ValuaRoactice of Coopers & Lybrand. None of
the corporations or organizations that have empldyte Creagh during the past five years is a pamartisidiary or other affiliate of us. Mr.
Creagh received Bachelor's Degree and Master's &eigr mechanical engineering from Manhattan Colegehas an M.B.A. in finance from
New York University's Leonard N. Stern School ofsBiess

The Board believes that Mr. Creaglgjualifications include, among other things, higegience in the oversight of risk management pedian
procedures, his significant background as a leagacate executive and his prior board experiendk ather companies.

Class Il Directors

Paul A. Keenan, age 47, was appointed as one dfkass Il Directors on November 15, 2007. Mr. Kaehas been a partner in the law firr
Kelley Drye and Warren LLP since 2002 and speaislin real estate finance. None of the corporat@rorganizations that have employed
Mr. Keenan during the past five years is a pauisidiary or other affiliate of us. Mr. Keenarst@J.D. from Seton Hall University and a
Bachelor's Degree from Rutgers, the State UniyeddiNew Jersey.

The Board believes that Mr. Keenan'’s qualificatiomdude, among other things, his experience asvditm partner specializing in real estate
finance and his knowledge of the real estate finandustry.

Dennis M. Mahoney, age 72, was appointed as onarClass Il Directors effective as of April 1, ZDtb fill a newly created directorship on
the board of directors. Before retiring in 2007, Miahoney was Senior Vice President of ColumbialkBand was responsible for the
development and expansion of alternative investrpesducts. Prior to joining Columbia Bank in 1984, Mahoney was Executive Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer of First Atia Savings. Mr. Mahoney joined First AtlanticBags in 1988 from Carteret Savings Bt
where he was Executive Vice President, TreasuMene of the corporations or organizations that fewployed Mr. Mahoney during the past
five years is a parent, subsidiary or other atfliaf us. Mr. Mahoney received a Bachelor's Degndeconomics and Business Administration
from Roanoke College.
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The Board believes that Mr. Mahoney’s qualificaionclude, among other things, his significant klezlge of the banking and investment
industry and his experience as an executive iffitla@cial services industry.

Matthew Lambiase, age 47, has served as our Pn¢sidd Chief Executive Officer, and one of our diogs since August 2007. He is
Managing Director for Annaly Capital Management,.Jror Annaly, and our Manager. He joined thesamanies in June 2004. Before join
Annaly and FIDAC, Mr. Lambiase was a Director ixéd Income Sales at Nomura Securities Internatidnel Over his 11 year employment
at Nomura, Mr. Lambiase was responsible for th&itigion of commercial and residential mortgageisal securities to a wide variety of
institutional investors. Mr. Lambiase also helgifions at Bear, Stearns & Company as Vice Presiddnstitutional Fixed Income Sales and
as a mortgage analyst in the Financial Analytia &tructured Transaction Group. Mr. Lambiase leshtwuring the past five years and is
currently employed at Annaly and our Manager. Mimbiase has a Bachelor's Degree in Economics fhantniversity of Dayton.

The Board believes that Mr. Lambiase’s qualificasignclude, among other things, his significanustdy knowledge and experience and his
current position as our Chief Executive Officer d&résident provides him with knowledge of our ldegn strategy and operations.

Class Ill Directors

John P. Reilly, age 65, was appointed as one o€tass Ill Directors effective as of April 1, 20id®fill a newly created directorship on the
board of directors. Mr. Reilly co-founded and re$tdent and Chief Executive Officer of Keltic Fntéal Services, LLC, a privately owned
finance company providing asset based loans tourredize companies. Prior to founding Keltic Finah8ervices, LLC, in 1999, Mr. Reilly
spent 22 years at Citicorp in various senior exeeyiositions in the Leverage Lending, Capital Mask Corporate Finance and Private
Banking Businesses. Since 2001, Mr. Reilly hageskas a director of Scan Source, Inc. None ottiporations or organizations that have
employed Mr. Reilly during the past five years igaaent , subsidiary or other affiliate of us. Reilly has a M.B.A. from Fairleigh Dickinson
University, Teaneck , New Jersey, and a Bacheldegree from King’'s College, Wilkes-Barre, Pennsyiza

The Board believes that Mr. Reilly’s qualificatioimelude, among other things, his knowledge offthence industry and prior experience as a
director of another company.

Executive Officers

The following sets forth certain information witkspect to our current executive officers:

Name Age Position Held with Ut
Matthew Lambias: 47 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
Robert Colligar 42 Chief Financial Officer and Secrete
Mohit Marria 35 Chief Investment Office
William B. Dyer 66 Head of Underwriting

Biographical information on Mr. Lambiase is prowid&bove. Certain biographical information for Moll@an, Mr. Marria and Mr. Dyer is s
forth below.

Robert Colligan is our Chief Financial Officer aBdcretary. Before joining FIDAC as a Managing Bioe in May 2013, Mr. Colligan was tl
Controller at Starwood Capital Group for the presidive years. Prior to Starwood Capital Groupnfr2002 to 2008 Mr. Colligan was a
Managing Director at Bear Stearns and from 19980f@2 a Vice President at Merrill Lynch in financiaporting, strategy and investor
relations roles. Mr. Colligan began his careerratevaterhouseCoopers where from 1993 to 1999 Hedlas in both audit and national tax.
He has a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting from Yidhza University, a Master's Degree in Taxation fi@aorge Washington University and is
a Certified Public Accountant.
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Mohit Marria is our Chief Investment Officer and Brecutive Vice President of FIDAC. Mr. Marriafed FIDAC in August 2005. While at
FIDAC, Mr. Marria has had responsibility for thevéédopment and implementation of Chimera’s traditrgtsgies in residential mortgage-
backed securities, residential mortgage loans @ndkrivatives portfolio. He has been a membénhefinvestment team since Chimera'’s
inception. Mr. Marria joined FIDAC from Americanternational Group (AlIG). Prior to working at AlGIr. Marria worked at Metropolitan
Life Insurance Company. Mr. Marria earned a BaotIDegree in Finance and a M.B.A., each fromRluégers University.

William B. Dyer is our Manager’'s Executive Vice Bident and serves as our Head of Underwriting.oigfoining FIDAC in August 2007,
Mr. Dyer was Vice President, Credit Risk ManagenfenPHH Mortgage Corporation from 1997 where leisponsibilities included
supervision of the Credit Solutions Department.. Blyer was Vice President at the Fixed-Income Davioof Nomura Asset Capital
Corporation from 1994 to 1997, where he managetre&sted activities critical for the securitizatior sale of the mortgage loans. Mr. Dyer
has an M.B.A. from St. John’s University and a BaoHs Degree from St. Francis College.

Corporate Governance

We believe that we have implemented applicableaate governance policies and observe good cogpgmternance procedures and
practices. We have adopted a number of writteitigs| including corporate governance guidelineslecof business conduct and ethics, and
charters for our audit committee, compensation cidteemand nominating and corporate governance ctieni

Board Oversight of Risk

The board of directors is responsible for oversgeunr risk management practices and committedsedboard of directors assist it in fulfilling
this responsibility.

As required by its charter, the audit committediraly discusses with management our significask exposures and the actions managemen
has taken to limit, monitor or control such expesyincluding guidelines and policies with resgeatur assessment of risk and risk
management. At least annually, the audit commitg&Ews with management our risk management progvhith identifies and quantifies a
broad spectrum of enterprise-wide risks, and rdlatgion plans. In 2012, our full board of direstparticipated in this review and discussion
and expects to continue this practice as parsabie in the oversight of our risk managementtiras. In addition, our Manager's employees
report to the audit committee on various matteleted to our risk exposures on a regular basisaerfrequently if appropriate. At their
discretion, members of the board of directors niay directly contact management to review and dis@ny risk-related or other concerns tha
may arise between regular meetings.

Our board of directors reviewed with the compemsatiommittee its compensation policies and prastggplicable to our Manager that could
affect our assessment of risk and risk managentesitowing such review, our board of directors detimed that our compensation policies
and practices, pursuant to which we pay no castpeasation to our Manager’s employees since theg@rensated by our Manager, do not
create risks that are reasonably likely to haveatenal adverse effect on us. Our board of dimscatso considered that while we may grant
Manager's employees equity awards, such grants tligjr interests with our interests and do noateisks that are reasonably likely to have
a material adverse effect on us. As part of #k assessment and management activities going ffidywar compensation committee also
determined that our compensation committee wouttettake an annual review of our compensation msiand practices as they relate to |
the results of which will be shared with our futldrd of directors.

Board Leadership Structure
We have separated the roles of principal execuiifieer and chairman of the board. Our principaeeutive officer is Matthew Lambiase, w
is our Chief Executive Officer, President and agbior. Our chairman of the board of directorsasii®onlin, who is an independent

director. The board of directors believes this@dktion of responsibilities between these two jpwsit provides for dynamic board leadership
while maintaining strong independence and is tloeesfin effective and appropriate leadership stractu
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Board Committees and Charters
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsizthhich sets forth the basic principles and diride for resolving various legal and
ethical questions that may arise in the workplawtia the conduct of our business. This codfsieable to all our named executive officers
and directors, as well as to our Manager’s officdiiectors and employees when such individualsatiag for or on our behalf.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsE#lihin the meaning of Item 406(b) of Regulat®&. This Code of Business Condi
and Ethics applies to our principal executive @fjgrincipal financial officer and principal accting officer. This Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics ipublicly available on our website at www.chimeraoaim. If we make substantive amendments toCGbide of Business Condt
and Ethics or grant any waiver, including any irapphvaiver, we intend to disclose these eventsumaebsite.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have adopted Corporate Governance Guidelineshwin conjunction with the charters and key pasiof our board committees, provide
the framework for the governance of our company.

Other Charters

Our compensation committee, audit committee andimating and corporate governance committee haweaalepted written charters which
govern their conduct.

Where You Can Find Our Corporate Governance Docunen

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Corpdatesrnance Guidelines, Compensation Committee €haktidit Committee Charter and
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee €hart available on our website (www.chimeraremfoWe will provide copies ¢
these documents free of charge to any stockholtiersends a written request to Investor Relatiohén€ra Investment Corporation, 1211
Avenue of the Americas, Suite 2902, New York, Nearky10036.

Compensation Committee

Our board of directors has established a compemsatimmittee, which is composed of each of ourpedeent directors, Messrs. Abrams,
Creagh, Donlin, Keenan, Mahoney and Reilly. MreKan chairs the compensation committee, whoseipaihitinctions are to:

. evaluate the performance of our officers;

. evaluate the performance of our Manager;

. review the compensation and fees payable to oualglnunder our management agreement;

. recommend to the board of directors the compens#tioour independent directors; and

. administer the issuance of any securities undeequity incentive plan to our executives or the lEyges of our Manager.

For additional information on the compensation catte®, please see “Compensation Committee Repettn

Audit Committee

Our board of directors has established an auditwittee, which is composed of each of our independeactors, Messrs. Abrams, Creagh,
Donlin, Keenan, Mahoney and Reilly. Mr. Mahonewichk our audit committee as our board of direchas determined that Mr. Mahoney is

audit committee financial expert, as that termafribd by the SEC. Each of the members of thet@odamittee is “financially literate” under
the rules of the NYSE. The committee assists tadin overseeing:
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. our accounting and financial reporting processes;

. the integrity and audits of our consolidated firiahstatements;

. our compliance with legal and regulatory requiretagn

. the qualifications and independence of our indepehdegistered public accounting firm; and
. the performance of our independent registered puataicounting firm.

The audit committee is also responsible for engagur independent registered public accounting,fremiewing with the independent
registered public accounting firm the plans andltef the audit engagement, approving professismices provided by the independent
registered public accounting firm, reviewing thdependence of the independent registered publamuatiog firm, considering the range of
audit and non-audit fees and reviewing the adequofoyr internal accounting controls.

Our board of directors has determined that alhefdirectors serving on the audit committee arepeddent members of the audit committee
under the current NYSE independence requirememtS&C rules. The activities of the audit commities described in greater detail below
under the caption “Report of the Audit Committee.”

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committ

Our board of directors has established a nominairdycorporate governance committee, which is caeghof each of our independent
directors, Messrs. Abrams, Creagh, Donlin, Keeiahoney and Reilly. Mr. Donlin chairs the comnettevhich is responsible for seeking,
considering and recommending to the full boardidaors qualified candidates for election as dvecand recommending a slate of nominee
for election as directors at the annual meetingt@fkholders. It also periodically prepares aruhsits to the board for adoption the nomina
and corporate governance committee’s selectioar@ifor director nominees. It reviews and male®mmendations on matters involving
general operation of the board and our corporatemg@ance, and annually recommends to the boardneanifor each committee of the

board. In addition, the nominating and corporateegnance committee annually facilitates the assestsof the board of directors’
performance as a whole and of the individual doecaind reports thereon to the board.

Our board of directors has determined that alhefdirectors serving on the nominating and corgogatvernance committee are independent
members of the nominating and corporate governeoeenittee under the current NYSE independence rexpgints and SEC rules.

Our nominating and corporate governance committeeotly considers the following factors in makitgyrecommendations to the board of
directors: background, skills, expertise, accéldyitand availability to serve effectively on theard of directors. Our nominating and
corporate governance committee also conducts iieguinto the background and qualifications of pttérandidates. Although the
nominating and corporate governance committee doekave a formal diversity policy, it believesttasersity is an important factor in
determining the composition of the board of direstoAdditionally, the committee believes thasitritical to have a board of directors with
diverse backgrounds in various areas as this dotés to our success and is in the best interéstsrstockholders. The nominating and
corporate governance committee will consider noesmecommended by our stockholders. These recodatiens should be submitted in
writing to our Secretary.

Our nominating and corporate governance commitses a variety of methods for identifying and evahganominees for director. Our
nominating and corporate governance committee aglguhssesses the appropriate size of the boatulemftors, and whether any vacancies on
the board of directors are expected due to retirtimeotherwise. In the event that vacancies atieipated, or otherwise arise, our nominating
and corporate governance committee considers sagotential candidates for director. Candidateg ocmmne to the attention of our
nominating and corporate governance committee gir@urrent members of our board of directors, msifsal search firms, stockholders or
other persons. These candidates are evaluatedwdar or special meetings of our nominating anpa@te governance committee, and me
considered at any point during the year. As dbedrabove, our nominating and corporate governenicenittee considers properly submitted
stockholder nominations for candidates for the Badrdirectors. Following verification of the stdwlder status of persons proposing
candidates, recommendations are aggregated andiemtsby our nominating and corporate governanoentittee at a regularly scheduled or
special meeting. If any materials are providedlsgockholder in connection with the nominatioraafirector candidate, such materials are
forwarded to our nominating and corporate goveraammmittee. Our nominating and corporate govermanmmittee also reviews materials
provided by professional search firms or otheripaiin connection with a nominee who is not propdsga stockholder. In evaluating such
nominations, our nominating and corporate goveraaunmittee seeks to achieve a balance of know]edgerience and capability on the
board of directors.
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Communications with the Board of Directors

Interested persons may communicate their complamtencerns by sending written communication$éohtoard of directors, committees of
the board of directors, the non-management dire@od individual directors by mailing those comneations to:

Chimera Investment Corporation
[Applicable Addressee*]
1211 Avenue of the Americas

Suite 2902
New York, NY 10036
Phone: (646) 454-3759
Facsimile: (212) 696-9809
Email: investor@chimerareit.com
Attention: Investor Relations

Audit Committee of the Board of Direcso

Compensation Committee of the Boardokctors

Nominating and Corporate Governance @Guitee of the Board of Directors
Non-Management Directors

Name of individual director

* % X X %

These communications are sent by us directly tepeeified addressee.

We require each member of the board of directoegttnd our annual meeting of stockholders exaapalisences due to causes beyond the
reasonable control of the director.

Board and Committee Meeting

Our board of directors held forty two meetings @12. During 2012, the compensation committee fmld meetings, the audit committee h
twenty six meetings, and the nominating and coreagavernance committee held one meeting. Eaeletdir attended at least 75% of the
aggregate number of meetings held by our boardre€trs during the portion of the last fiscal y&arwhich he was a director. Each director
attended at least 75% of the aggregate number efimgs of each committee on which the director sgmuring the portion of the last fiscal
year for which he was a committee mem|

Meetings of No-Management Directors

Our corporate governance guidelines require tleabtard have at least two regularly scheduled mgetach year for our non-management
directors. These meetings, which are designedampte unfettered discussions among our non-managedirectors, are presided over by
Paul Donlin or Mark Abrams. During 2012, our nonrragement directors had two meetings.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

We believe that based solely upon our review ofeopf forms we have received or written repres@nta from reporting persons, during the

fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, all filinguisgments under Section 16(a) of the SecuritieshBmge Act of 1934, as amended, applic
to our officers, directors and beneficial ownersmafre than ten percent of our common stock wereptiechwith on a timely basis.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Our Compensation Discussion and Analysis descobhegsompensation program, objectives and poli@estfe individuals who were serving
as our executive officers at December 31, 2012aquired under item 402(a)(3) of Regulation S-K (heal executive officers”) and our

executive officers generally.

Certain of our executive officers have changed betwDecember 31, 2012 and the date we are filisgtinual report. Our named executive
officers who were serving as our executive offictr®ecember 31, 2012 are:

Name Current Age Position Held with U
Matthew Lambias: 47 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
Christian J. 53 Head of Investments
Woschenkc
A. Alexandra 43 Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
Denahar
William B. Dyer 66 Head of Underwriting

Since the end of 2012, Ms. Denahan has resignedrashief Financial Officer and Secretary and Miod&henko has resigned as our Head of
Investments. The names and biographical informétio our current executive officers are set fatiove under the heading “Executive
Officers.”

Overview of Compensation Program and Philosophy

We have no employees. We are externally managedibilanager pursuant to a management agreemenédetwur Manager and us. All of
our named executive officers are employees of camdger. We have not paid, and do not intend tograycash compensation to our named
executive officers. We do not provide our nameelceitive officers with pension benefits, perquisitesther personal benefits to them. We
have no arrangements to make cash payments tamachexecutive officers upon their termination freenvice as our officers. While we do
not pay our named executive officers any cash cosgi®n, our compensation committee may grant aared executive officers equity
awards intended the align their interests withioterests.

Cash and Other Compensation

Our named executive officers and other personnel edmduct our regular business are employees d¥lamager. Accordingly, we do not pay
or accrue any salaries or bonuses to our officers.

Equity-Based Compensation

Our compensation committee may, from time to tigrant equity awards in the form of restricted statlick options or other types of awards
to our named executive officers pursuant to ouitgducentive plan. These awards are designedigm éhe interests of our named executive
officers with those of our stockholders, by allogiour named executive officers to share in thetimeaf value for our stockholders through
stock appreciation and dividends. These equity dsvare generally subject to vesting requiremenés awsnumber of years, and are designed t
promote the retention of management and to actsgwaeg performance for our company. These awandseuprovide flexibility to us in our
ability to enable our Manager to attract, motivael retain talented individuals. We have not grdrany equity awards to employees of our
Manager since January 2, 2008.

We believe our compensation policies are partitpkppropriate since we are an externally manadeld RREIT regulations require us to g
at least 90% of our earnings to stockholders aslelids. As a result, we believe that our stockéisidire principally interested in receiving
attractive risk-adjusted dividends and growth widgnds and book value. Accordingly, we want tovidte an incentive to our directors and
management that rewards success in achieving ¢foede. Since we do not have the ability to ret@mings, we believe that equity-based
awards serve to align the interests of our Managariployees with the interests of our stockhold@ersceiving attractive risk-adjusted
dividends and growth. Additionally, we believettkguity-based awards are consistent with our $iolders’ interest in dividend and book
value growth as these individuals will be incertad to grow book value and the dividend for stoddtéis over time. We believe that this
alignment of interests provides an incentive tolanager’s employees to implement strategies tlilaemhance our long-term performance
and promote growth in dividends and growth in buoalue.

Our equity incentive plan permits the granting pfions to purchase shares of common stock intetalgdalify as incentive stock options
under the Internal Revenue Code, and stock optimtsdo not qualify as incentive stock options.e Bixercise price of each stock option may
not be less than 100% of the fair market valueusfaares of common stock on the date of grant. cOmpensation committee will determine
the terms of each option, including when each optiay be exercised and the period of time, if afigr retirement, death, disability or
termination of employment during which options nteyexercised. Options become vested and exereisabistallments and the
exercisability of options may be accelerated bycitwapensation committee.
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Our equity incentive plan also permits the grantihghares of our common stock in the form of feted common stock. A restricted comn
stock award is an award of shares of common stoatknhay be subject to forfeiture (vesting), retiits on transferability and such other
restrictions, if any, as the compensation committeg impose at the date of grant. The shares rastyand the restrictions may lapse
separately or in combination at such times, undeh gircumstances, including, without limitationsecified period of employment or the
satisfaction of pre-established criteria, in sutdtallments or otherwise, as our compensation ctteeinay determine.

We may also grant unrestricted shares of commark stehich are shares of common stock awarded ababto the participant or for a
purchase price determined by the compensation ctisenunder our equity incentive plan. The compgas committee may also grant she

of our common stock, stock appreciation rightsjd#ind equivalent rights, and other stock and nonksbased awards under the equity
incentive plan. These awards may be subject tb sanditions and restrictions as the compensatomngittee may determine, including, but
not limited to, the achievement of certain goalsamtinued employment with us through a specifiGqee Each award under the plan may not
be exercisable more than 10 years after the dajeaot.

Our equity incentive plan provides that the compéina committee has the discretion to provide #tladr any outstanding options and stock
appreciation rights will become fully exercisatd#,or any outstanding stock awards will becomdegsind transferable and all or any
outstanding options and awards will be earnedyradiny outstanding awards may be cancelled in exgghéor a payment of cash or all or any
outstanding awards may be substituted for awamtsiiil substantially preserve the otherwise amllle terms of any affected awards
previously granted under the equity incentive pfdahere is a change in control of us.

Our compensation committee does not use a spéaifitula to calculate the number of equity awards atier rights awarded to executives
under our equity incentive plan. Our compensatimmmittee does not explicitly set future award Isigpportunities on the basis of what the
executives earned from prior awards. While the camsption committee will take past awards into antatiwill not solely base future awards
in view of those past awards. Generally, in deteimg the specific amounts to be granted to arviddal, the compensation committee will
take into account factors such as the individuyad'sition, his or her contribution to our companyrket practices as well as the
recommendations of our Manager.

We have not and do not intend to either backdatekstptions or grant stock options retroactiveBresently, we do not have designated dates
on which we grant stock option awards. We do ntarid to time stock options grants with our relegfsmaterial nonpublic information for tl
purpose of affecting the value of executive comptas.

We have designed our compensation policy in anteifgprovide the proper incentives to our Managiernployees to maximize our
performance in order to serve the best interestsiostockholders. We seek to achieve this objedtirough the granting of restricted stock
under our equity incentive plan. Consistent witin wiew that this component of compensation isglesil to provide long term incentives, we
expect the restricted stock to vest in equal ifratatts over four, five or ten year periods from dla¢e of grant. Consistent with the foregoing,
all grants of restricted stock we made in 2008 havesting period of ten years.

Consideration of “Say on Pay” Voting Results

The Compensation Committee considered the resulteeadvisory stockholder “say on pay vote” at 2041 annual meeting of stockholders
in making equity-based compensation decisions @d112Because our stockholders approved our eqaigd compensation program as
described in our 2011 proxy statement, the compiemseommittee believes that stockholders suppartcompensation policies. Therefore,
compensation committee continued to apply the ganneiples with regard to executive compensatio0a2. We will conduct a “say on pay
vote” at our next annual meeting of stockholders.

92




Compensation Committee Report

Our Compensation Committee has reviewed and diedube Compensation Discussion and Analysis redjloyeltem 402(b) of Regulation S-
K with management and, based on such review amdigisons, the Compensation Committee recommendibe Board that the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis be includddigiForm 10-K.

Paul A. Keenan, Chair
Mark Abrams

Gerard Creagh

Paul Donlin

Dennis M. Mahoney

John P. Reilly

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Partipation

Our compensation committee is comprised solelheffollowing independent directors: Messrs. Keef@imir), Abrams, Creagh, Donlin,
Mahoney and Reilly. None of them is serving or $@wved as an officer or employee of us or anyiat#ior has any other business relation
or affiliation with us, except his service as adtor.

Summary Compensation Table

We do not provide any of our executive officershaany cash compensation or bonus. Nor do we pecaity executive officers with pension
benefits or nonqualified deferred compensationglawe granted shares of restricted stock to onrelexecutive officers during the year
ended December 31, 2008 but have not granted atjcted stock or option awards since such time= NAve not entered into any employn
agreements with any persons, and are not obligatathke any cash payments upon termination of empat or a change in control of

us. We did not pay any compensation to our narmedwive officers during the three year period ehBecember 31, 2012.

Grants of Plan Based Awards in 2012

We did not grant any shares of restricted stockpop or other incentive compensation to our nameztutive officers during the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End
The following table provides information about datgling equity awards of our named executive ofiees of the end of 2012.
Stock Awards

Equity Incentive
Equity Incentive Ple Plan Awards:
Market
Awards: Number ¢ or Payout Value of
Unearned Shares Unearned Shares,
Units or Other Righ Units or Other
Rights That Have

That Have Not Not Yet
Name Vested(#)(1) Vested($)(2)
Matthew Lambias: 45,000 $ 117,45(
Christian Woschenk 45,000 $ 117,45(
A. Alexandra Denaha 35,000 $ 91,35(
William Dyer 35,000 $ 91,35(

 The columns for “Option Awards” have been omitbetause they are not applicable.
(1) Reflects a restricted stock award grante¢héonamed executive officer on January 2, 2008, lwists in equal installments on the first

business day of each fiscal quarter over a peridd ¢ears beginning January 2, 2008.
(2) Reflects fair value of unvested shares usiegdbnber 31, 2012 closing price of $2.61.
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Options Exercised and Stock Vested

The following table sets forth certain informatiaith respect to our named executive officers reiggrdtock vested during the calendar year
2012.

Stock Awards
Name Number of Value
Shares Realized on
Acquired on Vesting(1)
Vesting (#) %)
Matthew Lambias: 9,00C $ 24,03(
Christian Woschenk 9,00C % 24,03(
A. Alexandra Denaha 7,000 $ 18,69(
William Dyer 7,00C $ 18,69(

(1) Reflects fair value of vested shares usioging price on date of vesting.
Pension Benefits
We do not provide any of our named executive officgith pension benefits.
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
We do not provide any of our named executive officgith any nonqualified deferred compensation glan
Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment

We do not have any employment agreements with &nyronamed executive officers and are not oblidatemake any payments to them u
termination of employment.

Potential Post-Employment Payments and Payments anChange in Control
None of our named executives has the right to teteiemployment and receive severance paymentsusand we are not required to mi
payments to an executive upon a change of contued.o However, all unvested shares of restristedk we have granted under our equity
incentive plan will vest immediately upon the extaceis death. The following table presents théeptial value our named executive officers
would be entitled to in connection with such vegtamd assumes that the triggering event took madeecember 31, 2012.

Termination

with Cause Termination

or without Death or Other Post

Voluntary Cause or for Disability Employment

Name Benefit Termination  Good Reasol (1) Obligations
Matthew Lambias: Stock vesting $ - $ - % 117,450 $ -
Christian Woschenk Stock vesting $ - % - % 117,45 $ -
A. Alexandra Denaha Stock vesting $ - $ - $ 91,35( $ -
William Dyer Stock vesting $ - $ - $ 91,35( $ -

(1) We have valued the benefit based on the patagdin executives would have realized if thenestd stock had vested on December 31,
2012.

Compensation Policies and Practices as They ReldteRisk Management

We did not pay any compensation of any sort tormmed executive officers and did not have any epage during the year ended December
31, 2012 and, therefore, our compensation polanespractices are not reasonably likely to haveateral adverse effect on us. We pay our
Manager a management fee that is a percentage sfamkholdersequity. This management fee is not tied to oufguerance and, as a rest
we believe this management fee is not reasonat#lylio have a material adverse effect on us. e tdesigned our compensation policies
and practices and the incentives established bgdheies and practices, as such policies and igexctelate to or affect risk taking by our
Manager on our behalf, in a manner that we beleillenot cause our Manager to seek to make higis&rinvestments as the compensation
payable to our Manager avoids placing undue emploesthe maximization of net income at the expefiggher criteria, such as preservation
of capital, to achieve higher management fees.hé¥e designed our compensation policy in an effoprovide the proper incentives to our
Manager's employees to maximize our performancadier to serve the best interests of our stocksld®ur board of directors monitors our
compensation policies and practices to determingtin its risk management objectives are beingwithtrespect to incentivizing our
Manage’s employees
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Director Compensation

We compensate only those directors who are indeggnchder the NYSE listing standards. Any memli@uo board of directors who is also
an employee of our Manager is not considered inutdgr@ under the NYSE listing standards and doesateive additional compensation for
serving on our board of directors.

During 2012, our Compensation Committee, togeth#r RPL Associates L.P., a nationally-recognizethpensation consulting firm (“FPL"),
reviewed the components of the compensation armaegts offered to our independent directors. As$ @lthis process, our Compensation
Committee considered, among other things, the slatie responsibilities associated with their posgtiand emerging trends and best practice
in director compensation.

Based upon the recommendations of FPL and our Casagien Committees review of FPL’s analysis, oumpensation Committee
determined to make the following changes to thepmmsation arrangements offered to our independegttdrs beginning in 2012: (i)
increase the cash retainer from $45,000 to $50(@00 the independent directors continuing toénghe right to elect to receive shares of our
common stock in lieu of cash), (ii) increase thawal equity grants in value from $45,000 to $50,d01) increase the Audit Committee
Chairperson retainer from $10,000 to $12,500,€stpblishment of a retainer of $5,000 for each Peason of additional committee, (v)
eliminate meeting fees of the Board and commitieayever, to the extent the combined number of Beardmittee meetings exceed 25 in a
calendar year, each independent director shaliveeemeeting fee of $750 for each meeting theeeditith the same fee shall apply to both in
person and telephonic meetings).

We also reimburse our directors for their travgdenses incurred in connection with their attendatdall board and committee meetings. !
independent directors are eligible to receive iesti common stock, option and other stock-baseatd@swnder our equity incentive plan.

The Compensation Committee will, on an ongoingd)azintinue to examine and assess our director eosapion practices relative to our
compensation philosophy and objectives, as watbaspetitive market practices and total stockhotdaurns, and will make modifications to
the compensation programs, as deemed appropriate.

The table below summarizes the compensation paigstig our independent directors for the year emdezbmber 31, 2012.

Change in
Pension
Fees Non-Equity Value and
Earned or Stock Incentive Deferred
Paid in Awards Option Plan Compensatior All Other
Name Cash (2) Awards Compensatior Earnings Compensatior Total
Mark Abrams $ 80,00 $ 50,00 $ - $ - 8 - 8 - 8 130,00(
Gerard Creag $ 7851 $ 50,00C $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 128,511
Paul Donlin $ 86,75( $ 50,00 $ - 8 - % - % - 8 136,75(
Paul A. Keenan(1 $ 83,75( $ 50,00C $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 133,75
Dennis M. Mahone' $ 99,25( $ 50,00C $ - $ - % - $ - $ 149,25
John P. Reilly $ 83,75( $ 50,00 $ - $ - 8 - 8 - $ 133,75(

(1) Elected to receive common stock in lieu ofrcpayment for Board of Director fees earned dugi@g2. The granting of such shares of
common stock in lieu of cash payment has been iafemtil the Company is current in its filings wihe Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act o188 amended.

(2) For amounts under the column “Stock Awardss”disclose the expenses associated with the aweadured in dollars and calculated in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 71&8empensation — Stock Compensation
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management and Related Stockholder Matts

The following table sets forth certain informatias of December 13, 2013 relating to the benefaialership of our common stock by (i) all
persons that we know beneficially own more thand%ur outstanding common stock, (ii) each of oamed executive officers and directors,
and (iii) all of our executive officers and dirert@s a group. Knowledge of the beneficial owniprehour common stock is drawn from
statements filed with the SEC pursuant to Sect(d)lor 13(g) of the Securities Act of 1934, as adezl. Except as otherwise indicated, to
our knowledge, each stockholder listed below héswating and investment power with respect toghares beneficially owned by the
stockholder.

Unless otherwise indicated, all shares are ownextillf and the indicated person has sole votingiawestment power. Except as indicated in
the footnotes to the table below, the businessemdduf the stockholders listed below is the adds€esir principal executive office, 1211
Avenue of the Americas, Suite 2902, New York, Nearky10036.

Amount and Nature of Percent of
Name of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership Class

Matthew Lambiase(1 525,00( *
Robert Colligan(2 0 *
Mohit Marria(3) 131,58 *
William B. Dyer(4) 99,64¢ *
Mark Abrams(5 112,03: *
Gerard Creagh(t 228,17( *
Paul Donlin(7) 654,13 *
Paul A. Keenan(8 136,35 *
Dennis M. Mahoney(9 81,30 *
John P. Reilly(10 130,92 *

All Directors and Officers As a Grot 2,099,16! *
Wells Fargo & Company(1] 63,019,86 6.15%
BlackRock, Inc.(12) 56,082,75 5.4€%
Thornburg Investment Management Inc.(? 64,181,67 6.25%
Leon G. Cooperman(1- 55,120,97 5.3%

* Less than 1 percent.

(1) Mr. Lambiase, our Chief Executive Officer, Sident and one of our directors, is the benefimiaher of 90,000 shares of restricted
common stock issued under our equity incentive plaith vests in equal installments on the firstibess day of each fiscal quarter ¢
a period of ten years beginning on January 2, 2008udes 54,000 shares of restricted common dfuatkhave vested as of December
13, 2013; 2,250 shares of restricted common stoakwill vest within 60 days after December 13, 20dnd 33,750 shares which vest
more than 60 days after December 13, 2013. Incld86300 shares of common stock held by Mr. Lambiase401(k) plan

(2) Mr. Colligan was named our Chief Financial Offieerd Secretary in May 201

(3) Mr. Marria, our Chief Investment Officer, iset beneficial owner of 20,000 shares of restrictmdmon stock issued under our equity
incentive plan which vests in equal installmentgtanfirst business day of each fiscal quarter avperiod of ten years beginning on
January 2, 2008. Includes 12,000 shares of resdrimommon stock that have vested as of Decemh&013; 500 shares of restricted
common stock that will vest within 60 days aftercBmber 13, 2013; and 7,500 shares which vest rhare@0 days after December 13,
2013. Includes 54,000 shares of common stocktheldr. Marria in a 401(k) plar
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(4)

()
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Mr. Dyer, our Head of Underwriting, is the ledicial owner of 69,649 shares of restricted commsimtk issued under our equity
incentive plan which vests in equal installmentgtonfirst business day of each fiscal quarter avperiod of ten years beginning on
January 2, 2008. Includes 42,000 shares of resdrimommon stock that have vested as of Decemh&013; 1,750 shares of restricted
common stock that will vest within 60 days aftercBmber 13, 2013; and 26,250 shares which vest thane60 days after December
2013.

Mr. Abrams is one of our director

Mr. Creagh is one of our directo

Mr. Donlin is one of our directors. Includes 2@0hares of common stock held by Mr. Donlin in anfa Trust.

Mr. Keenan is one of our directo

Mr. Mahoney is one of our directol

Mr. Reilly is one of our directors. Includes 1405¢hares of common stock held by members of MidlfF's immediate family

The address for this stockholder is 420 Montgry Street, San Francisco, CA 94104. The shamgrsas beneficially owned by Wells
Fargo & Company reflect shares owned on its owralietnd on behalf of the following subsidiaries: W&€apital Management
Incorporated; Wells Fargo Advisors Financial Netkydrl C; Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC; Wells Fargo Fuianagement, LLC; and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. Aggregateddicial ownership reported by Wells Fargo & Comp#s on a consolidated basis
and includes any beneficial ownership of a subsjdi/ells Capital Management Incorporated repoltedeficially owning 61,316,782
shares of common stock with the sole power to vot® direct the vote of zero shares, the sharegepto vote or to direct the vote of
12,636,442 of common stock, the sole power to disw to direct the disposition of zero sharesoofimon stock and the shared power
to dispose or to direct the disposition of 61,38&,8hares of common stock. Wells Fargo & Compapygnted beneficially owning
63,019,860 shares of common stock with the solegpdavvote or to direct the vote of 3 shares of icmm stock, the shared power to
vote or to direct the vote of 62,989,808 of comrstotk, the sole power to dispose or to direct fepasition of 3 shares of common
stock and the shared power to dispose or to dinectlisposition of 63,019,860 shares of commorkstBased solely on information
contained in a Schedule 13G/A filed by Wells Fa8gGompany on March 29, 201

The address for this stockholder is 40 EastiSStreet, New York, NY 10022. The shares showpeagficially owned by BlackRock,
Inc. reflect shares owned on its own behalf andemalf of the following subsidiaries: BlackRock Asrs, LLC; BlackRock Investme
Management, LLC; BlackRock Life Limited; BlackRoglsset Management Australia Limited; BlackRock Addenagement Canada
Limited; BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited; BlackRodkund Advisors; BlackRock International Limited;aBkRock Institutional Trust
Company, N.A.; BlackRock Japan Co. Ltd. and BlaadRimvestment Management (UK) Limited. Aggregatadfiial ownership
reported by BlackRock, Inc. includes any benefioiahership of a subsidiary. BlackRock, Inc. repdibeneficially owning 56,082,750
shares of common stock with the sole power to vot® direct the vote of 56,082,750 shares of comstock, the shared power to vote
or to direct the vote of zero shares of commonkstthe sole power to dispose or to direct the digfum of 56,082,750 shares of
common stock and the shared power to disposedirdot the disposition of zero shares of commonkstBased solely on information
contained in a Schedule 13G filed by BlackRock, tJanuary 30, 201

The address for this stockholder is 2300 N&idgetop Road Santa Fe, NM 87506. Thornburg nvelst Management Inc. reported
beneficially owning shares of common stock with ¢loée power to vote or to direct the vote of 64,680 shares of common stock, the
shared power to vote or to direct the vote of arares of common stock, the sole power to disposedirect the disposition of
64,181,670 shares of common stock and the sharedrpo dispose or to direct the disposition of z&mares of common stock. Based
solely on information contained in a Schedule 1B&lfby Thornburg Investment Management Inc. orudan31, 2013
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(14) The address for this stockholder is 2700 Miditary Trail, Suite 230, Boca Raton FL 33431. Téares shown as beneficially owned by
Leon G. Cooperman reflect shares owned on his @talband on behalf of the following entities: Oradggapital Partners, L.P.; Ome
Capital Investors, L.P.; Omega Equity Investor®.]. Omega Overseas Partners, Ltd.; a limited numbklanaged Accounts; JCF
Metrowest of NJ; the Cooperman Family Fund forwidie Future; the Michael S. Cooperman WRA Trust; thiTMA account for Ashe
Silvin Cooperman; Toby Cooperman and Michael S.g@oman. Mr. Cooperman reported that he may be deémeebeneficial owner
of 55,120,975 shares. This consists of 9,598,4@6eshowned by Omega Capital Partners, L.P.; 2,38608ares owned by Omega
Capital Investors, L.P.; 3,920,380 shares owne@imgga Equity Investors, L.P.; 8,989,553 shares diiyeOmega Overseas Partners,
Ltd.; 17,161,489 shares owned by a limited nundf@nanaged accounts; 50,000 shares owned by thpe@man Family Fund for a
Jewish Future; 10,019,200 shares owned by Mr. Googre 600,000 shares owned by Toby Coopermar0Qishares owned by the
UTMA account for Asher Silvin Cooperman; 64,00@ses owned by JCF Metrowest of NJ; 1,000,000eshawned by Michael S.
Cooperman; and 1,000,000 shares owned by the Miéh&ooperman WRA Trust. Mr. Cooperman reportedriy the sole power to
vote or to direct the vote of 37,959,486 shares stiared power to vote or to direct the vote 087,489 shares, the sole power to
dispose or to direct the disposition of 37,959,488éres, and the shared power to dispose or ta diredisposition of 17,161,489
shares. Based solely on information contained$iclzedule 13G filed by Leon G. Cooperman on Felgriay 2013

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

We have adopted an equity incentive plan to proindentives to our independent directors, employdesir Manager and its affiliates, and
other service providers to stimulate their efféotward our continued success, long-term growth@no#itability and to attract, reward and
retain personnel.

The following table provides information as of Dedwer 31, 2012, concerning shares of our commork stothorized for issuance under our
existing equity incentive plan.

Number of
Number of Securities
Securities Weighted Averag Remaining
to be Issued Upa Available
Exercise of Exercise Price of for Future Issuant
Outstanding Outstanding
Options, Options, Warrant: Under Equity
Warrants, and Compensation
Plan Categor Rights and Rights Plans
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved
by Stockholder: - - 38,416,34
Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Stockholders ( - - -
Total - - 38,416,34

(1) We do not have any equity plans that have renhtapproved by our stockholde
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdmns, and Director Independence
Management Agreement
The Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengee¢ment with FIDAC, which provided for an initterm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestibo certain termination rights. The CompemsatCommittee of the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decermp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, we paid to our Managguarterly management fee equal
to 1.50% per annum of our gross Stockholders’ Bais defined in the management agreement). Eféeblovember 28, 2012, the
management fee was reduced to 0.75% per annunosd Gtockholders’ Equity, which reduction will raman effect until we are current on
all of our filings required under applicable setias laws.

We are obligated to reimburse our Manager forattincurred under the management agreementditian, the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for its qata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationbede expenses are allocated between ou
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfignoss assets compared to the gross assets ethbpg@ur Manager as calculated at each
guarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levesdgompared to our Manager’s other funds and ad¢spun
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March 2013 Amendment to Management Agreel

Because of the Restatement, we amended the manaigagneement on March 8, 2013. In the amendmentnemorialized the reduction in
the management fee. Additionally, our Manager egte pay all past and future expenses that weoandf Audit Committee incur to: (1)
evaluate our accounting policy related to the ipfibn of GAAP to our NorAgency RMBS portfolio (the Evaluation); (2) restaigr financia
statements for the period covering 2008 throughL.28 a result of the Evaluation (the Restateméinigfyj and (3) investigate and evaluate any
shareholder derivative demands arising from thdu&gimn and/or the Restatement Filing (the Investan); provided, however, that our
Manager’s obligation to pay expenses applies anxpenses not paid by our insurers under ouramser policies. Expenses shall include,
without limitation, fees and costs incurred witlspect to auditors, outside counsel, and consulengaged by us and/or our Audit Committee
for the Evaluation, Restatement Filing and the stigation.

The amendment also provides that the independeettdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 ddige @t any time in their sole discretion
without the payment of a termination fee. Addiatip, we may terminate the management agreemesttafé immediately if (i) our Manager
engages in any act of fraud, misappropriation afif) or embezzlement against us, (ii) there isvanteof any gross negligence on the part of
our Manager in the performance of its duties unldemanagement agreement, (iii) there is a comnmeactof any proceeding relating to our
Manager’s bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there dissolution of our Manager, or (v) our Managecasivicted of (including a plea of nolo
contendere) a felony.

Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar@ 20& Manager earned management fees of $52.omi$#52.0 million and $40.9
million, respectively and received expense reimémmsnt of $625 thousand, $625 thousand and $465ahdurespectively. From our
inception through 2009, our Manager waived itstrigirequire us to pay our pro rata portion of réslfephone, utilities, office furniture,
equipment, machinery and other office, internal anerhead expenses of our Manager and its afflisgquired for our operations.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 111,528 shares of stock to our indeperdieectors during the year ended December 312 2dHich vested immediately. During
the year ended December 31, 2012, approximately’08Xhares of restricted stock we had awardedrtdlanager's employees during 2008
vested and 19,696 shares were forfeited. At Deeerdb, 2012 there are approximately 586,000 undesiares of restricted stock issued to
our Manager’'s employees.

Financing Arrangements with RCap

In September 2009, we entered into a residentialgage-backed securities repurchase agreemenR@#p. This agreement contains
customary representations, warranties and covené&vitshave not borrowed any amounts under thisemgeet since April 30, 2010 and
currently have no amounts outstanding under thiseagent. We have been in compliance with all cam&of this agreement since we ent
into this agreement.

Other Relationships

Matthew Lambiase, our President and Chief Execu@iffecer, one of our directors and the Managingeldior of our Manager, is the son of «

of Annaly’s directors, John A. Lambiase. James¥adnak, Senior Vice President, Structured ProdoicEIDAC, is the son-in-law of Dennis
Mahoney, one of our Directors.
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Approval of Related Person Transactions

Our code of business conduct and ethics requites alr personnel to be scrupulous in avoidingafiict of interest with regard to our
interests. The code prohibits us from entering ambusiness relationship with an immediate famigmber or with a company that the
employee or immediate family member has a substdimancial interest unless such relationshipiseldsed to and approved in advance by
our board of directors.

Each of our directors and executive officers isurefl to complete an annual disclosure questiorraid report all transactions with us in
which they and their immediate family members hadidl have a direct or indirect material interegith respect to us. We review these
guestionnaires and, if we determine it is necesshsguss any reported transactions with the ehtierd of directors. We do not, however,
have a formal written policy for approval or ratdtion of such transactions, and all such transastare evaluated on a case-by-case basis. |
we believe a transaction is significant to us aigles particular conflict of interest issues, wk eiscuss it with our legal counsel, and if
necessary, we will form an independent board cotemivhich has the right to engage its own legalfarzhcial counsel to evaluate and
approve the transaction.

In addition, we will not invest in any collateradid debt obligation or security structured or madadgeour Manager or any of its affiliates
unless the investment is approved in advance bgjarity of our independent directors.

Independence of Our Directors

New York Stock Exchange rules require that at laas@jority of our directors be independent of campany and management. The rules
require that our board of directors affirmativebtermine that there are no material relationshgiséen a director and us (either directly or as
a partner, stockholder or officer of an organizatioat has a relationship with us) before suchctiirecan be deemed independent. We have
adopted independence standards consistent withWekStock Exchange rules. Our board of directas reviewed both direct and indirect
transactions and relationships that each of owctbrs had or maintained with us and our managent@ut board of directors, based upon the
fact that none of our independent directors hawenaaterial relationships with us other than asaoes and holders of our common stock,
affirmatively determined that six of our direct@n® independent directors under New York Stock Brgle rules. Our independent directors
are Mark Abrams, Gerard Creagh, Paul Donlin, Pal{éenan, Dennis M. Mahoney and John P. Reilly.tthdav Lambiase is not considered
independent because he is an employee of our Manage

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Ernst & Young LLP, or Ernst & Young, was our indedent registered public accounting firm for thedisyear ending December 31, 2012.
During this time, Ernst & Young and its affiliatedtities, or EY, performed accounting and audisegices for us. Prior to the appointmer
Ernst & Young, Deloitte & Touche LLP, or Deloitias our independent registered public accountimg fiom our formation in June 2007
through the year ended December 31, 2011. Duhisgime, Deloitte and its affiliated entities, D&T, performed accounting and auditing
services for us.

Relationship with Independent Registered Public Acgunting Firm

In addition to performing the audits of our finaaicstatements and managemsrassessment of the effectiveness of the inteordra ove
financial reporting in 2012, EY provided audi#fated services for us during 2012. Expensesgareerally accrued when services
provided. The aggregate fees billed for 2012 &l Xor each of the following categories of sersiaee set forth below:

Audit Fees: The aggregate fees incurred by EY for audits mwitws of our 2012 financial statements were axiprately $3.5 million. W
estimate that our Manager will reimburse the Comgfan approximately $2.8 million of the fees billeg EY. The aggregate fees incurrec
EY for the audit of the Comparg/internal control over financial reporting werepagximately $570 thousand for 2012. The aggre e
billed by D&T for audits and reviews of our 201hdncial statements were $3.8 million. We estinthge our Manager will reimburse 1
Company for approximately $3.3 million of the fd®led by D&T. The aggregate fees incurred by D&F the audit of the Compars/interna
control over financial reporting were approximat$§0 thousand for 2011.

Audit-Related Fees No fees were billed by EY for audit-related sees during 2012. The aggregate fees billed by O&Tauditrelatec

services during 2011 were $60 thousand. The aaldited services in 2011 principally included dulkgence and accounting consultat
relating to our equity distribution agreements.

100




Tax Fees The aggregate fees billed by EY for tax servimes2012 were $66 thousand. The aggregate fdlesl iy EY for tax services f
2011 were $66 thousand.

All Other Fees. The aggregate fees billed by EY for other sewifor 2012 were $99 thousand. The other serbitiesl in 2012 were relat
to advisory services provided by EY in 2011 primB&Y being appointed as our Independent Registewddic Accounting Firm. D&T did n
perform any other kinds of services for us duri6g 2

The audit committee has also adopted policies ancepures for pre-approving all non-audit work perfed by our independent registered
public accounting firm. Specifically, the auditnomittee pre-approved the use of EY for the follayvirategories of non-audit services: mergel
and acquisition due diligence and audit servi@sservices; internal control reviews; employeedfieplan audits; and reviews and proced
that we request EY to undertake to provide asserananatters not required by laws or regulationgdch case, the audit committee also set
specific annual limit on the amount of such sersiadich we would obtain from EY, and required maragnt to report the specific
engagements to the audit committee on a quartaesispand also obtain specific pre-approval froeahdit committee for any engagement
over five percent of the total amount of revenussreated to be paid by us to EY during the thementrfiscal year. Our audit committee
approved the hiring of EY to provide all of the\dees detailed above prior to EY’s engagement. é\airthe services related to the Audit-
Related Fees described above was approved by tlitecatnmittee pursuant to a waiver of pre-apprgralisions set forth in the applicable
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
1. Financial Statements.
2. Schedules to Financial Statements.

All financial statement schedules have been omlitathuse they are either inapplicable or the inddion required is provided in our Financial
Statements and Notes thereto, included in Paltel) 8, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

3. Exhibits:
EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chimeva$tment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company'’s Registration Statement on Amendment No.Form S-11 (File No. 333-145525) filed on Septem
27, 2007 and incorporated herein by referel

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment Corpiora (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the CompasyReport on Fori
8-K filed on May 28, 2009 and incorporated hereirrdéfgrence

3.3 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment Corpiora (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the CompasyReport on Fori
8-K filed on November 5, 2010 and incorporated hebgimeference

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investmerpdation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Companisport
on Form i-K filed on December 19, 2011 and incorporated Inclogireference

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimera Innesit Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Comya

Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Forbd $rile No. 333-145525) filed on September 2Q726nd
incorporated herein by referenc

10.1 Form of Management Agreement between Chimera Imegst Corporation and Fixed Income Discount Advisory
Company (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Regtion Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form $Fl&
No. 33:-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragzein by referenci
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10.2 Form of Amendment No. 1 to the Management Agreerbetween Chimera Investment Corporation and Fixed
Income Discount Advisory Company (filed as Exhibit2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-1514@8) on October 14, 2008 and incorporated hergin b
reference

10.3 Form of Amendment No. 2 to the Management Agreerhetween Chimera Investment Corporation and Fixed
Income Discount Advisory Company (filed as Exhibix1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8kdfion
October 20, 2008 and incorporated herein by retex

10.4 Amendment No. 3 to the Management Agreement betWdgmera Investment Corporation and Fixed Income
Discount Advisory Company (filed as Exhibit 10.4tlhe Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed\darch
8, 2013 and incorporated herein by referel

10.5t Form of Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit.2Qo the Company’s Registration Statement on Anmreamit No.
1to Form -11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragzein by referenci

10.6F Form of Restricted Common Stock Award (filed as iBith.0.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement o
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-145528) on September 27, 2007 and incorporated hdrgin
reference

10.7t Form of Stock Option Grant (filed as Exhibit 1004the Company’s Registration Statement on AmendiNentl
to Form $11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdriagzein by referenct

10.8 Form of Master Securities Repurchase Agreemetdd(éis Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s RegistratitateSnent
on Amendment No. 3 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-1455ed on November 13, 2007 and incorporated indog
reference

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Char

21.1 Subsidiaries of Registra

31.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Executi®#icer and President of the Registrant, pursuar8dction
302 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Robert Colligan, Chief Financiaff@er of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 30the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Executi®ficer and President of the Registrant, pursuardi® U.S.C.
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 9€¢@darban-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Robert Colligan, Chief Financiaff@er of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.teac1350 as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002
Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Instance Document *
Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen
Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documen
Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL  Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created*
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documen
Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documgl

T Represents a management contract oresapory plan or arrangement

** Submitted electronically herewith. Attasthas Exhibit 101 to this report are the followdaruments formatted in XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of the years emdetember 31, 2012 and December 31,
2011; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operatiorss@amprehensive Income (Loss) for the years endsmbibber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010;
(iii) Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Egir the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 aid; Ziv) Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2@12, @nd 2010; and (v) Notes to Consolidated Firsi8tatements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Financial Stateme
Consolidated Statements of Financial ConditionfdBexember 31, 2012 and 20

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comps@élemcome (Loss) for the Years Enc
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholBqtsty (Deficit) for the Years Ende
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEadgd
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2(

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Chimera Investment Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednseateof financial condition of Chimera Investmerdr@oration (the “Company”as o
December 31, 2012 and the related consolidatednseatts of operations and comprehensive income)(lokanges in stockholdersquity
(deficit), and cash flows for the year ended DecemBl, 2012. These financial statements are #sponsibility of the Compan
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on out. aud

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ifq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our auditigges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respect® tonsolidated financial position of
Company at December 31, 2012, and the consolidatadts of its operations and its cash flows fa ylear ended December 31, 201:
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountinigciples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States), the Company’
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2012, based on criteria establishedtérrial Controlntegrated Framework isst
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Theadway Commission and our report dated DecerBbeP013 expressed an adw
opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Y oung LLP
New York, New York
December 31, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chimera Investment Corporation

We have audited Chimera Investment Corporasianternal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 2012, based on crit
established in Internal Controlktegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commis
(1992 Framework) (the COSO criteria). Chimera Iwest Corporatiors management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal contrc
over financial reporting, and for its assessmenthef effectiveness of internal control over finahgieporting included in the accompany
Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over FimgnReporting. Our responsibility is to express @inion on the Compang’interna
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversight @ nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiafuthe design and operating effectiveness ofriratiecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaaudit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatbueficiencies, in internal control over finaricieporting, such that there is a reason
possibility that a material misstatement of the pany’s annual or interim financial statements will net firevented or detected on a tin
basis. The following material weaknesses have kmhrtified and included in management’s assessment.

« The Companys resources and level of technical accounting eiggewithin the accounting function were insuffitigo properl
evaluate and account for the complexity of the Canyfs investments in Non-Agency RMBS securitiegedastOnly Strips
impairment of securitized loans held for investmeffiiective interest calculations and related disates in accordance with gener
accepted accounting principle

« Management identified that its design, procedueesl execution of review controls, including theiegv of journal entries ar

reconciliations, for routine processes were ingffec Specifically there was insufficient evidertbat the Companyg'review control
were designed and executed at a precision leveWihiald prevent or detect a material misstaterr
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« Management identified that the Compamnyeview controls over significant estimates aneirtielated disclosure process were
designed precisely enough to prevent or detecttarrmbmisstatement as follow

0 There was no precise or direct independent reviegv\alidation of inputs used in significant estissiand their relat
disclosures, such as the determination of the \falue, other-thatemporary impairment, or interest income relate
investments in RMBS and securitized loans heldrfeestment

o There was inadequate evidence of independent vialidaf calculations used in significant accountesgimates to ensure
accounting policies were appropriately implemen

0 There was inadequate evidence of review of the cidhe supporting the amounts and disclosures inctmsolidate
financial statements by a person, other than thpaer, with the necessary competency and auth

« Management has identified an overreliance on sgrests consisting of manual inputs and complexutaions used to recc
transactions and estimates supporting the finastément amounts and disclosures. Managementots over this electronic di
were not performed at a level of precision suffitie rely on the completeness and accuracy o$duece data or manual input. ~
safeguarding and management of electronic data imstdficient to evidence the existence or extehim@anagement's review g
validation over the complex spreadsheets by a pessith the necessary competency and authc

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolids
statement of financial condition of Chimera Investrn Corporation as of December 31, 2012 and theteklconsolidated statements
operations and comprehensive income (loss), changst®ckholdersequity (deficit) and cash flows for the year end¥tember 31, 201
These material weaknesses were considered in dategnthe nature, timing and extent of audit tegiplied in our audit of the 2012 finant
statements, and this report does not affect ounrtegated December 31, 2013, which expressed analifigd opinion on those financ
statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the matarieaknesses described above on the achieveméin¢ abjectives of the control critel
Chimera Investment Corporation has not maintairféetve internal control over financial reportirag of December 31, 2012, based or
COSO criteria.

/sl Ernst & Y oung LLP
New York, New York
December 31, 2013




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chimera Investment Corporation
New York, NY

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednstate of financial condition of Chimera Investmertr@oration and subsidiaries (
"Company") as of December 31, 2011, and the relatatbolidated statements of operations and compsale income (loss), changes
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each ef tiho years in the period ended December 31, 2Uhése financial statements are
responsibility of the Company's management. Oyrarsibility is to express an opinion on the finahsitatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigled and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaaeferred to above present fairly, in all matergspects, the financial position of Chim
Investment Corporation and subsidiaries as of Déeer81, 2011, and the results of their operationb their cash flows for each of the 1
years in the period ended December 31, 2011, ifoomity with accounting principles generally acasgin the United States of Americ

As discussed in Note 17a to the consolidated filshustatements, the consolidated statements ofatipes and comprehensive income (lc
changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flonShimera Investment Corporation and subsidiarieshferyear ended December 31, 2010
previously been restated to correct errors.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New York
March 8, 2013 (December 31, 2013 as to Note 17b)




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per sliag

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale $ 621,15 $ 206,29¢
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior 88 1,02(
Senior intere-only 122,86¢ 188,67¢
Subordinatel 547,79: 606,89!
Subordinated intere-only 16,25: 22,01¢
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 1,806,69 3,144,53
Accrued interest receivab 15,24¢ 22,70¢
Other asset 13,97( 1,40:
Subtotal 3,144,07. 4,193,55!
Assets of Consolidated VIEs
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated variabtergst entitie("VIES"), at fair value 3,274,20. 3,270,33
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloge for loan losses of $11.6 million and $1:
million, respectively 1,300,13 256,63:
Accrued interest receivab 24,08 26,61¢
Subtotal 4,598,41 3,553,58
Total asset $ 7,742,48 $ 7,747,13
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS ($1.6 billi@h$h9 billion pledged as collateral,
respectively’ $ 1,528,02! $ 2,672,98
Accrued interest payab 2,441 3,29¢
Dividends payabl 92,43: 112,93
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 1,17C 1,68’
Investment management fees and expenses payadifditde 7,67¢ 12,95¢
Interest rate swaps, at fair val 53,93¢ 44,46°
Subtotal 1,685,68. 2,848,33
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VIEs
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMEE3.3 billion and $3.3 billion pledged as
collateral, respectively 1,336,26. 1,630,27
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifiwestment ($1.3 billion and $238.0 million
pledged as collateral, respective 1,169,711 212,77
Accrued interest payab 8,35¢ 8,13(
Subtotal 2,514,32! 1,851,18.
Total liabilities $ 4,200,011 $ 4,699,51
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1000000hares authorized, 0 shares issued and
outstanding, respective - -
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,500000Chares authorized, 1,027,597,458 and
1,027,467,089 shares issued and outstanding, tesge: 10,26¢ 10,26
Additional paic-in-capital 3,604,55. 3,603,73'
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 989,93t 433,45!
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (1,062,279 (999,840
Total stockholders' equi $ 3,542,47 $ 3,047,61!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,742,48° $ 7,747,13

See accompanying notes to consolidated financissients
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per sliag

For the Year

Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Net Interest Income:
Interest incomt 172,08¢ $ 254,02¢ $ 103,36
Interest expens (10,679 (11,94) (7,749
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 417,35: 450,99¢ 472,74
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VI (115,880 (122,91) (138,699
Net interest income (expens 462,88 570,16t 429,65:
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (47,637 (241,967 (40,83
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (84,619 (115,14 (91,01
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (132,250 (357,109 (131,84%)
Other gains (losses)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s (9,479 (34,479 (9,989
Net realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (20,227) (15,929 (5,789
Net gains (losses) on interest rate swa (29,696 (50,407 (15,777)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS 83:< (14,545 3,84¢
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 85, 16¢ 54,35: 17,33
Total other gains (losse 56,30 (10,599 5,40:
Net investment income (los 386,93! 202,46 303,20¢
Other expenses:
Management fee 49,52¢ 51,96¢ 40,92
Expense recoveries from Manay (4,712) - -
Net Management fee 44,81 51,96¢ 40,92¢
Provision for loan losses, n 36¢ 5,291 7,10¢
General and administrative expen 13,98¢ 7,267 6,01F
Total other expense 59,16" 64,52’ 54,04¢
Income (loss) before income taxe 327,76¢ 137,93! 249,16:
Income taxe: 1 60€ 75€
Net income (loss 327,760 $ 137,32¢ $ 248,40!
Net income (loss) per share available to common stedolders:
Basic 032 $ 0.1 $ 0.3(
Diluted 032 $ 0.1 $ 0.3(C
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin
Basic 1,026,831,03 1,026,365,19 821,675,80
Diluted 1,027,499,25 1,027,171,38 822,617,31
Dividends declared per share of common stoc 0.3t $ 051 $ 0.6¢
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income (loss 327,76° $ 137,32¢ $ 248,40!
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni 509,39¢ (549,42) 555,83!
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includeatkt income (loss) for
other-than-

temporary credit impairment loss 132,25( 357,10! 131,84!
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeis) included in net
income (loss (85,166 (54,357 (17,339
Other comprehensive income (lo 556,48. (246,670 670,34
Comprehensive income (los 884,25( $ (109,34) $ 918,75:




See accompanying notes to consolidated financ@dstents




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Accumulated Retained
Common Additional Other Earnings
Stock Paid - Comprehensiv  (Accumulate:
Par Value in Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 6,69: $ 2,290,61 $ 9,77¢ $ (180,52) $ 2,126,56
Net income (loss - - - 248,40! 248,40"
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ - - - (104,109 (104,109
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-saleisges,

net - - 555,83! - 555,83!
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for

otherthar- temporary credit impairment loss - - 131,84! - 131,84!
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeis)

included in net income (los - - (17,339 - (17,339
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinverst - 504 - - 504
Proceeds from common stock offerir 3,561 1,310,05 - - 1,313,62.
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 1 71t - - 71€
Common dividends declared, $0.69 per sl - (577,469 (577,469
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26 $ 3,601,891 $ 680,12: $ (613,68) $ 3,678,58
Net income (loss - - - 137,32¢ 137,32¢
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-saleisges,

net - - (549,42) - (549,42)
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for

otherthar- temporary credit impairment loss - - 357,10! - 357,10!
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeims)

included in net income (los - - (54,359 - (54,359
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinverst 4 1,11¢€ - - 1,12(
Proceeds from common stock offerir - 22 - - 22
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 2 711 - - 713
Common dividends declared, $0.51 per sl - - - (523,48)) (523,48)
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,267 $ 3,603,73' $ 433,450 $  (999,84) $ 3,047,61
Net income (loss - - - 327,76 327,76°
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-saleisges,

net - - 509,39¢ - 509,39¢
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includeatkt

income (loss) for

otherthar- temporary credit impairment loss - - 132,25( - 132,25(
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggais)

included in net income (los - - (85,16¢) - (85,16¢)
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinverst 1 11€ - - 117
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 69¢ - - 69¢
Common dividends declared, $0.38 per sl - - - (390,200 (390,209
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26¢ $ 3,604,55 $ 989,93t $ (1,062,27) $ 3,542,47

See accompanying notes to consolidated financdstents
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousand:

December 31, 201

For the Year Ende

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net income (loss $ 327,76° $ 137,32¢ $ 248,40!

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigem by (used in) operating activitie

(Accretion) amortization of investment discountsfpiums, ne (67,267) (60,705 (66,48)

Amortization of deferred financing cos 8,54¢

Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetsipremiums, ne 6,98¢ 12,55: 16,65¢

Net unrealized losses (gains) on interest rate s 9,47: 34,47¢ 9,98¢

Net unrealized losses (gains) on inte-only RMBS (839 14,54t (3,846

Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investr (85,16¢) (54,357 (17,339

Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 132,25( 357,10! 131,84!

Provision for loan losses, n 36¢€ 5,291 7,10¢

Equity-based compensation expe! 44¢ 713 71€

Changes in operating asse
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivabt 9,111 (672) (27,570
Decrease (increase) in other as (34¢) (290 282

Changes in operating liabilitie
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and adbdities (517 1,29¢ (79
Increase (decrease) in investment management fidlesxpenses

payable to affiliate (5,289 53¢ 3,90:
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payahl (625) (217) 8,40¢

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 334,91t $ 447,70 321,99¢

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

RMBS portfolio:

Purchase (124,216 (4,174,74) (4,022,95)
Sales 943,35( 2,628,99 896,26
Principal payment 717,35 677,19( 808,67

Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI
Principal payment 505,77¢ 668,92: 619,79!

Securitized loans held for investme
Purchase (1,531,019 - -
Principal payment 477,55! 85,52¢ 113,33l

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ 988,80t $ (114,11) $ (1,584,88)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem 6,826,541 15,247,54 15,370,11
Payments on repurchase agreem (7,971,51) (14,383,35) (15,536,71)
Net proceeds from common stock offerir - 22 1,313,62.
Payment of deferred financing co (9,489 - -
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, colddiszd by loans held

for investmen 1,426,98 - -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaitardlby loans held

for investmen (470,78)) (80,18) (106,18)
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, coldditeed by Non-

Agency RMBS 181,20: 310,97: 1,295,65
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatazdlby Non-Agenc)

RMBS (481,469 (645,60 (574,399
Net proceeds from direct purchase and dividendresimen 367 1,12C 504
Common dividends pai (410,719 (584,989 (516,81)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ (908,86) $ (134,46) $ 1,245,78;

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ 414,85¢ 199,12t (17,106

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 206,29¢ 7,17: 24,27¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 621,15. $ 206,29¢ $ 7,17:

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest receive $ 530,57t $ 640,19¢ $ 521,64.
Interest paic $ 120,73 $ 120,68¢ $ 129,41
Taxes paic $ - $ - $ 75€
Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 54,80¢ $ 51,38: $ 37,21.




Non-cash investing activities:

Payable for investments purchat - $ ) 127,69:

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie 556,48. $ (246,670 $ 670,34
Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet p 92,43. $ 112,93 $ 174,44!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisgsients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Compamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial jirbffering. The Company elected to be taxed esahestate investment tru“REIT”)
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendddegulations promulgated thereunder (the “Qodehe Company formed the
following wholly-owned qualified REIT subsidiarie€himera Securities Holdings, LLC in July 2008;iiGéra Asset Holding LLC and
Chimera Holding LLC in June 2009; and Chimera Sgddblding LLC in January 2010 which is a wholly-o&d subsidiary of Chimera Asset
Holding LLC. In July 2010, the Company formed Clivading Company LLC, a wholly-owned taxable REIDsidiary (“TRS").

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apximately 4.38% of the Company’s common shardse Company is managed by
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company (“FIDAC™y) smvestment advisor registered with the Securiied Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemamdisrelated notes of the Company have been prepaeetordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United St@t@®AP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustits considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's financial positi@suits of operations and cash flows have beendeduCertain prior year amounts have beer
reclassified to conform with the current year'sgenetation.

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, tbeusats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
and variable interest entities (“VIES”) in whichet@ompany is the primary beneficiary. All signifitantercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

VIEs are defined as entities in which equity ineest(i) do not have the characteristics of a cdimigpfinancial interest, and/or (ii) do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finanite activities without additional subordinateddirtial support from other parties. The entity that
consolidates a VIE is known as its primary benefigi and is generally the entity with (i) the pow@direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performaneed (i) the right to receive benefits from thEE\or the obligation to absorb losses of the
VIE that could be significant to the VIE. For VIHsat do not have substantial on going activities,power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIES’ economic performaroay be determined by an entity’s involvement wiita design and structure of the VIE.

The Company uses securitization trusts considerée tVIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaatiransactions. Prior to January 1, 2010,
these VIEs met the definition of Qualified Spedtalrpose Entities (“QSPE") and, as such, were rigjestito consolidation by the Company.
Effective January 1, 2010, all such VIEs were co@asd for consolidation based on the criteria ilCA8.0,Consolidationresulting in the
consolidation of certain VIEs that were not pregiguconsolidated. No#gency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs am@posed entirel
of senior certificates.

(b) Statements of Financial Condition Presentation
The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Finamaldition separately present: (i) the Company’satiassets and liabilities, and (ii) the

assets and liabilities of consolidated securittratiehicles. Assets of each consolidated VIE cdy lo@ used to satisfy the obligations of that
VIE, and the liabilities of consolidated VIEs arenarecourse to the Company.
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The Company has aggregated all the assets anlitigsbdf the consolidated securitization vehialie to the determination that these entities
are substantively similar and therefore a furthisagigregated presentation would not be more mefuifithe notes to the consolidated
financial statements describe the Company’s dasséts and liabilities and the assets and liaslinf consolidated securitization vehicles. Se
Note 8 for additional information related to then@many's investments in consolidated securitization vkdsic

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handashddeposited overnight in money market fundschvare not bank deposits and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Inser@&orporation. There were no restrictions on eeshcash equivalents at December 31,
2012 and 2011.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Baeld Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baskeedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in ohtigns backed by pools of mortgage
loans. The Company delineates between (1) AgedBRand (2) Non-Agency RMBS as follows: Agency RMBI® mortgage pass-through
certificates, collateralized mortgage obligatiof@MOs"), and other RMBS representing interests in or oliigatbacked by pools of mortge
loans issued or guaranteed by agencies of theGb®rnment, such as Ginnie Mae, or federally chedteorporations such as Freddie Mac ol
Fannie Mae where principal and interest repayma@guaranteed by the respective agency of theGbh$ernment or federally chartered
corporation. Non-Agency RMBS are not issued or goted by a U.S. Government Agency or other in&iituand are subject to credit

risk. Repayment of principal and interest on NageAcy RMBS is subject to the performance of thetgage loans or RMBS collateralizing
the obligation.

The Company classifies its RMBS as available-fde;sa&cords investments at estimated fair valugessribed in Note 5 of these Consolidatec
Financial Statements, and includes unrealized gaiddosses considered to be temporary on all RMR&uding interest-only strips, in Other
comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidatete8tants of Operations and Comprehensive IncomesjLdsterest-only strips are recorded
at estimated fair value and all unrealized gairtslaases are included in earnings in the Cons@di8tatements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss). From time to timeyas of the overall management of its portfoltee Company may sell any of its RMBS
investments and recognize a realized gain or Isss@mponent of earnings in the Consolidated Btatés of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss) utilizing the average cost method.

The Company’s accounting policy for interest incaane impairment related to its RMBS is as follows:

Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on RMBS secesitraries depending on the characteristics ofeberity as follows:

Agency RMBS and No-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

ASC 310-20Nonrefundable Fees and Other CogSC 310-20") is applied to the recognition ofénést income for the following securities:

e Agency RMBS
e Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following condits at the acquisition date (referred to hereafsefNonAgency
RMBS of High Credit Qualit”):

1. Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized drealiing agency. The Company uses the lowestgatuailable
2. The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow
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3. The security cannot be contractually prepaid shehthe Company would not recover substantiallyfils recorde
investment

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premswuand discounts associated with the acquisitidghede securities, is recognized over the
life of such securities using the interest methasda on the contractual cash flows of the securityapplying the interest method, the
Company considers estimates of future principgb@yenents in the calculation of the constant eféecyield. Differences that arise between
previously anticipated prepayments and actual yrepats received, as well as changes in future grepat assumptions, result in a
recalculation of the effective yield on the segudh a quarterly basis. This recalculation resulthe recognition of an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the security based on the revsepayment assumptions and a corresponding Be@adecrease in reported interest
income.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS that are purchased at a discount laaidatre not of high credit quality at the time afghase are accounted for under ASC
310-30,Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@¥edit Quality(*ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-4Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial AssefsASC 325-40") (referred to hereafter as “Non-AggmMBS Not of High Credit Quality”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-3beffollowing conditions are met as of the acqigsidate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit qyadit the security from its inceptio
2. It is probable that the Company will be unabledbect all contractual cash flows of the secur

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if atttguisition date:

1. The security is not of high credit quality (definaslrated below AA or is unrated),
2. The security can contractually be prepaid or otlimagettled in such a way that the Company woutdemover substantially all of
recorded investmen

Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gt&luality is recognized using the interest methaded on management’s estimates o
cash flows expected to be collected. The effedtiterest rate on these securities is based on mamag’s estimate for each security of the
projected cash flows, which are estimated baseabgervation of current market information and idlel@ssumptions related to fluctuations in
prepayment speeds and the timing and amount oit dosdes. Quarterly, the Company reviews andpjifrapriate, makes adjustments to its
cash flow projections based on inputs and analyesesved from external sources, internal modeld,tha Company’s judgments about
prepayment rates, the timing and amount of credieés, and other factors. Changes in the amoufdraimding of cash flows from those
originally projected, or from those estimated & ldist evaluation date, are considered to be qithgtive changes or adverse changes. For
securities accounted for under ASC 325-40, anytipesir adverse change in cash flows that doeseasuflt in the recognition of an other-than-
temporary impairment (“ OTTI ") results in a ppestive increase or decrease in the effectiveastaate used to recognize interest income.
For securities accounted for under ASC 310-30, sigygificant positive changes are reflected propely in the effective interest rate used to
recognize interest income. Adverse changes in tawsis expected to be collected are generally ée@bnsistently for RMBS accounted for
under ASC 325-40 and ASC 310-30, and generalhtrestecognition of an OTTI with no change in teifective interest rate used to
recognize interest income.

Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all RMBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale RMB3eiss than its amortized cost the security isidensd impaired. On at least a quarterly
basis the Company evaluates its securities for OTflthe Company intends to sell an impaired sig&guor it is more-likely-than-not that the
Company will be required to sell an impaired sagusefore its anticipated recovery, then the Comgpanst recognize an OTTI through a
charge to earnings equal to the entire differerte/den the investment’s amortized cost and itsvinte at the measurement date. If the
Company does not intend to sell an impaired sgcant it is not more-likely-than-not that it woute required to sell an impaired security
before recovery, the Company must further evaltieesecurity for impairment due to credit lossd® €redit component of OTTI is
recognized in earnings and the remaining or nodiccemponent is recorded as a component of Oth@pecehensive income (loss) (“ OC).”
Following the recognition of an OTTI through eaigsna new amortized cost basis is establishedhéosécurity and subsequent recoveries in
fair value may not be adjusted through earnings.
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When evaluating whether the Company intends toaseiinpaired security or will more-likely-than-nm required to sell an impaired security
before recovery, the Company makes judgments tratider among other things, its liquidity, leveragentractual obligations, and targeted
investment strategy to determine its intent antitphto hold the investments that are deemed ingghirThe determination as to whether an
OTTI exists is subjective as such determinatioeshaised on factual information available at theetohassessment as well as the Company’s
estimates of future conditions. As a result, teednination of OTTI, its timing and amount, is éd®n estimates that may change materially
over time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its RMBS is based on its reviewtsf tinderlying securities or mortgage
loans securing the RMBS. The Company consideterigal information available and expected futuegfprmance of the underlying securit
or mortgage loans, including timing of expectedifatcash flows, prepayment rates, default rates,deverities, delinquency rates, percentag
of non-performing loans, extent of credit suppedikable, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FICQO”) scoredaan origination, year of origination, loan-
to-value ratios, geographic concentrations, as agetieports by credit rating agencies, such as Weddvestors Service, Inc., Standard &
Poor’s Rating Services or Fitch Ratings, Inc., gehmarket assessments and dialogue with markétipants. As a result, substantial
judgment is used in the Comp¢s analysis to determine the expected cash flowg§dRMBS.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of Higredit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHiredit Quality involves comparing the presentgaf the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized cost@ecurity at the assessment date. The discatentised to calculate the present value of the
expected future cash flows is based on the se@udffective interest rate as calculated under 830-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in the
security as of the last measurement date). Ipthsent value of the remaining cash flows expeittdut collected is less than the amortized
cost basis, an OTTI is recognized in earningsterdifference. This amount is considered to becthdit loss component; the remaining
difference between amortized cost and the fairevalithe security is considered to be the portiblogs recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss).

Following the recognition of an OTTI through eaugsrfor the credit loss component, a new amortized lsasis is established for the security
and subsequent recoveries in fair value may neaidjested through earnings.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Nothigh Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily ingghwhen the following two
conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less the amortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwarse change in cash flows expected to be
collected from the last measurement date (i.e e@vchanges in either the amount or timing of das¥s from those previously expected).

The OTTI is separated into a credit loss compotiettis recognized in earnings and the portioros$ Irecognized in other comprehensive
income (loss). The credit component is compriseth@fimpact of the fair value decline due to changeassumptions related to default
(collection) risk and prepayments. The portionasfsl recognized in other comprehensive income (tm@sprises the change in fair value of the
security due to all other factors, including chamgebenchmark interest rates and market liquiditydetermining the OTTI related to credit
losses for securities, the Company compares ttseptealue of the remaining cash flows adjustegfepayments expected to be collected at
the current financial reporting date to the presafite of the remaining cash flows expected todilected at the original purchase date (or the
last date those estimates were revised for acaauptirposes). The discount rate used to calctilatpresent value of expected future cash
flows is the effective interest rate used for ineoracognition purposes as determined under ASC4824- ASC 310-30.
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Following the recognition of an OTTI through eamérfor the credit component, a new amortized casishis established for the security and
subsequent recoveries in fair value may not bessaljuthrough earnings. However, to the extentttteat are subsequent increases in cash
flows expected to be collected, the OTTI previousigorded through earnings may be accreted indwdast income following the guidance in
ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is suligestgnificant judgment and management’s
estimates of both historical information availabtehe time of assessment, the current market@mwient, as well as the Company’s estimate:
of the future performance and projected amounttianithg of cash flows expected to be collected andbcurity. As a result, the timing and
amount of OTTI constitutes an accounting estimaa¢ may change materially over time.

(e) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in interest-only (“O”) Agerayd Non-Agency RMBS. 10 RMBS represent the Comisanght to receive a specified
proportion of the contractual interest flows of tia#lateral. The Company has accounted for |0 RMB#fir value with changes in fair value
recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statenwr@perations and Comprehensive Income (Losse Qémpany has elected the fair
value option to account for IO RMBS to simplify treporting of changes in fair value. The IO RM&8 included in RMBS, at fair value, on
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Finh@andition. Interest income on IO RMBS is acabased on the outstanding notional
balance and the security’s contractual terms, amafization of any premium or discount is calcudhite accordance with ASC 325-40.
Changes in fair value are presented in Net unmedigains (losses) on interest-only RMBS on the Glateted Statement of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss). Interest income tepdayn 1O securities was $23.1 million, $32.5 roilliand $18.8 million for the years enc
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

(f) Securitized Loans Held for Investment and Relagd Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratedoaviortgage loans are designated as
held for investment, and are carried at their ppialcbalance outstanding, plus any premiums, lesdnts and allowances for loan

losses. Interest income on loans held for investriserecognized over the expected life of the $oasing the interest method. Nonrefundable
fees and costs related to acquiring the Compamgsritized residential mortgage loans are recoginémeexpenses over the life of the loans as
an adjustment of yield. Income recognition is susieel for loans when, based on information fromséicer, a full recovery of interest

or principal becomes doubtful. Income recognii®resumed when the loan becomes contractuallgictiand performance is demonstrated t
be resumed. The Company estimates the fair vdlseauritized loans for disclosure purposes onlglescribed in Note 5 of these consolidatet
financial statements.

(g) Allowance for Loan Losses — Securitized Loansétd for Investment

The securitized loan portfolio is comprised prirhaef nonconforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbaijnge loans that are r
guaranteed as to repayment of principal or inter8sicuritized loans are serviced and modified Kyira-party servicer. The Company is
involved in the loan modification process, except ia relates to the CSMC 2012-CIM1, CSMC 2012-Cidad CSMC 201ZIM3
securitization vehicles consolidated by the Comptinay are collateralized by residential mortgagenf As it relates solely to CSMC 2012
CIM1, CSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC 20123 , the Company has the ability to approve éer@an modifications and determine the co

of action to be taken as it relates to loans ihnéal default, including whether or not to procedth foreclosure.

The Company has established an allowance for lossek related to securitized loans that is compokadgeneral and specific reserve.
general reserve relates to loans that have not heéividually evaluated for impairment and is acoted for under ASC 45
Contingencies The general reserve is based on historical fates for pools of loans with similar credit chaesistics, adjusted for curre
trends and conditions.
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Certain loans are individually evaluated for impant under ASC 31(Receivables including securitized loans modified by the seevian
loans more than 60 days delinquent. Loan modifioat made by the servicer are evaluated to deterrfithey constitute troubled de
restructurings (“TDRs").A restructuring of a loan constitutes a TDR if tervicer, for economic or legal reasons relatethéoborrower'
financial difficulties, grants a concession to ti@rower that it would not otherwise consider. linpent of modified loans considered to
TDRs is measured based on the present value ot&xpeash flows discounted at the I@affective interest rate at inception. If the pre
value of expected cash flows is less than the dembinvestment in the loan, an allowance for lazsés is recognized with a correspon
charge to the provision for loan losses. Impairnanall other loans individually evaluated is me@slias the difference between the un
principal balance and the estimated fair valuehef ¢ollateral, less estimated costs to sell. Tomgany charges off the corresponding
allowance and related principal balance when tindic reports a realized loss. A complete disarssif securitized loans held for investrr
is included in Note 4 to these consolidated finahsiatements.

(h) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifiggortion of its Agency mortgage-backed securitiéih repurchase agreements. The
Company examines each of the specified criteri@3& 860,Transfers and ServicingASC 860"), at the inception of each transactiowl &as
determined that each of the Company’s repurchaseagents meet the specified criteria in this guiéan be accounted for as secured
borrowings. None of the Company’s repurchase agee&srare accounted for as components of linkedacions. As a result, the Company
separately accounts for the financial assets p@stexbllateral and related repurchase agreemetiie mccompanying consolidated financial
statements.

(i) Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferreda Consolidated VIEs, and Securitized Debt, Loans He for Investment

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarmeartion of its residential mortgage loan and RMB&folios. Certain transactions
involving residential mortgage loans are accoumeds secured borrowings, and are recorded asifieed loans held for investment” and
the corresponding debt as “Securitized debt, et for investment” in the Consolidated StatemeftSinancial Condition. These
securitizations are collateralized by residentijlistable or fixed rate mortgage loans that hawemlpdaced in a trust and pay interest and
principal to the debt holders of that securitizatidRe-securitization transactions classified actiBitized debt, Non-Agency RMBS transferred
to consolidated VIES” reflect the transfer to astraf fixed or adjustable rate RMBS which are dfées$ as “Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs” that pay interest and principathe debt holders of that re-securitization. dReuritization transactions completed by the
Company that did not qualify as sales are accouioteas secured borrowings pursuant to ASC 860tt@year ended December 31, 2012, th
Company did not have any continuing involvemertieothan as a passive investor, with any loangaurities previously sold, except as it
relates to the loans in the CSMC 2012-CIM1, CSMC2CIM2 and CSMC 2012-CIM3 securitizations ashartdescribed above. The
holders of securitized debt have no recourse t€trapany and the Company does not receive anyesiter principal paid on such debt. As
of December 31, 2012 and 2011 the Company recd@édbillion and $1.9 billion in principal on sedired debt and accrued interest paye
respectively. The associated securitized deldriser] at amortized cost. The Company estimatefathgalue of its securitized debt for
disclosure purposes as described in Note 5 to tmwwsolidated financial statements.

(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note £
these consolidated financial statements.

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s investment policies permit it to eiéo derivative contracts, including interesteratvaps and interest rate caps, as a means
managing its interest rate risk. The Company indenduse interest rate derivative instruments toage interest rate risk rather than to enh
returns. Interest rate swaps are recorded ag @iisets or liabilities in the Consolidated Statet:ief Financial Condition and measured at fail
value. Net payments on interest rate swaps aheded in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Fésas component of net income

(loss). Unrealized gains (losses) on interestsai@ps are removed from net income (loss) to agiveash flows from operating activities. The
Company estimates the fair value of interest rai@ps as described in Note 5 of these consolidateddial statements.
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The Company elects to net by counterparty thevigine of interest rate swap contracts. These aotsticontain legally enforceable provisions
that allow for netting or setting off of all inddial swaps receivable and payable with each cquantgrand, therefore, the fair value of those
swap contracts are reported net by counterparhe cfedit support annex provisions of the Compaimg&rest rate swap contracts allow the
parties to mitigate their credit risk by requirithge party which is in a net payable position totmudlateral. As the Company elects to net by
counterparty the fair value of interest rate swaiptiacts, it also nets by counterparty any colidtexchanged as part of the interest rate swap
contracts.

() Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionafich it sells financial assets, such as RMB#, mortgage loans. Gains and losses on
sales of assets are calculated using the averagjenethod whereby the Company records a gain erdoghe difference between the average
value of the asset and the proceeds from the saladdition, the Company from time to time sednei$ or re-securitizes assets and sells
tranches in the newly securitized assets. Thassadctions may be recorded as either sales aradsets contributed to the securitization are
removed from the Consolidated Statements of Fidu@dndition and a gain or loss is recognized,sosecured borrowings whereby the asset
contributed to the securitization are not derecogphibut rather the debt issued by the securitizaidity are recorded to reflect the term
financing of the assets. In these securitizatamtsre-securitizations, the Company may retainoseisubordinated interests in the securitize
and/or re-securitized assets.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REITnédds to comply with the provision of the Codethwespect thereto. Accordingly, the
Company will not be subject to federal, state caloncome tax to the extent that qualifying distitions are made to stockholders and as long
as certain asset, income, distribution and stoakewship tests are met. If the Company failed tdifyuas a REIT and did not qualify for cert:
statutory relief provisions, the Company would bbjsct to federal, state and local income taxesmaag be precluded from qualifying as a
REIT for the subsequent four taxable years follgntime year in which the REIT qualification was IoBie Company and CIM Trading made a
joint election to treat CIM Trading as a TRS. AslsuCIM Trading is taxable as a domestic C corponatnd subject to federal, state, and It
income taxes based upon its taxable income.

The provisions of ASC 740ncome Taxe§'ASC 740", clarify the accounting for uncertairityincome taxes recognized in financial
statements and prescribe a recognition threshaldregasurement attribute for tax positions takeexpected to be taken on a tax return. The
Company does not have any unrecognized tax betieditsvould affect its financial position. The Coamy has not taken any tax positions tha
would require disclosure under ASC 740. No acaria penalties and interest were necessary agcémber 31, 2012 or December 31, 2|

(n) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadévliling net income for the period by the basiighted-average shares of its common
stock outstanding for that period. Diluted netome per share takes into account the effect ofiddunstruments, such as unvested restricted
stock, but uses the average share price for thedigr determining the number of incremental sh#hes are to be added to the diluted
weighted average number of shares outstanding.

(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDA&fgiates in accordance with
ASC 505-50Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employ¢ASC 505-50"). Pursuant to ASC 505-50 the Compargasures the fair value of the
equity instrument using the stock prices and otheasurement assumptions as of the earlier of dlileedtate at which a performance
commitment by the recipient is reached or the datghich the recipient’s performance is completemPensation expense related to the gran
of stock is recognized over the vesting periodusthsgrants based on the fair value of the stockamin quarterly vesting date, at which the
recipient’s performance is complete.
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The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the Company’s independent direatoaccordance with ASC 718,
Compensation — Stock CompensafkSC 718"). Compensation expense for equity bamedrds granted to the Company’s independent
directors is recognized pro-rata over the vestiagog of such awards, based upon the fair valisioh awards at the grant date.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the repc
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqreiriod. Although the Company’s estimates contataprurrent conditions and how it
expects them to change in the future, it is reasignaossible that actual conditions could be matridifferent than anticipated in those
estimates, which could have a material adversedtathe Companyg results of operations and its financial conditidlanagement has ma
significant estimates in accounting for income gation and OTTI on Agency and Non-Agency RMBS #ARMBS (Note 3), valuation of
Agency and Non-Agency RMBS (Notes 3 and 5), anerest rate swaps (Notes 5 and 9). Actual resalikidiffer materially from those
estimates.

(q) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Presentation

Balance Sheet (Topic 210)

On December 23, 2011, the FASB released Accouiagdards Update (“ASU”) 2011-1Ralance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about
Offsetting Assets and LiabilitiesUnder this update, the Company will be requicedisclose both gross information and net inforarabbout
both instruments and transactions eligible foretffa the statement of financial position and teati®ns subject to an agreement similar to a
master netting arrangement. The scope would iectigtivatives, sale and repurchase agreementesaarse sale and repurchase agreements
and securities borrowing and securities lendingragements. This disclosure is intended to erfatdacial statement users to understand the
effect of such arrangements on the Company’s filmhposition. This update is effective for ther@many for financial statements presented
beginning in the first quarter of 2013. This umdaill result in additional disclosure but will heawo impact on total assets, liabilities,
stockholders’ equity, or Net income (loss).

Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)

In June 2011, the FASB released ASU 2011a@mprehensive Income: Presentation of Comprehehsooene, which attempts to improve
the comparability, consistency, and transparendinahcial reporting and increase the prominencitenis reported in OCI. ASU 2011-05
requires that all non-owner changes in stockhold=ysity be presented either in a single continustatement of net income and
comprehensive income or two separate consecutitensents. Either presentation requires the prasenton the face of the financial
statements any reclassification adjustments fanstéhat are reclassified from OCI to net incomthstatements. There is no change in wha
must be reported in OCI or when an item of OCI niesteclassified to net income. This update isatife for fiscal years, and interim peric
within those years, beginning after December 18,120The Company adopted the provisions of ASU 208 &ffective January 1,

2012. Adoption of ASU 2011-05 did not have a digant impact on the Company’s consolidated finahstatements.

On December 23, 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201 LdRprehensive Income: Deferral of Effective DateMimendments to the Presentation
of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulatede®Comprehensive Income In ASU No. 2011+0Bich defers those changes in ASU 2011-
05 that relate to the presentation of reclassificaadjustments out of accumulated OCI. This defemas made to allow the FASB time to re-
deliberate the presentation, on the face of thenfiral statements, of the effects of reclassificatiout of accumulated OCI on the components
of net income and OCI. No other requirements udd&d 2011-05 are affected by ASU 2011-12. FASRdtvely decided not to require
presentation of reclassification adjustments owagfumulated OCI on the face of the financial st&tets and to propose new disclosures
instead.
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In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 20133@Mprehensive Income: Reporting of Amounts Refieg$ut of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive IncomeThis update addresses the disclosure issuedeft at the deferral under ASU 2011-12. This updeqeires the
provision of information about the amounts reclésgiout of accumulated OCI by component. In additit requires presentation, either on
face of the statement where net income is presemtadthe Notes, significant amounts reclassifieitlof accumulated OCI by the respective
line items of net income, but only if the amourtdlassified is required under GAAP to be reclasdif@net income in its entirety in the same
reporting period. For other amounts that are nguired under GAAP to be reclassified in their extjirto net income, a crossference must k
provided to other disclosures required under GARd& provide additional detail about those amouFitss update is effective for the Company
for financial statements presented beginning irfiisequarter of 2013. Adoption of ASU 2013-0hist expected to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

Broad Transactions

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820)

In May 2011, the FASB released ASU 2011-B4dir Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmentsctieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.Re#ol IFRSfurther converging U.S. GAAP and IFRS by providowmmon fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements. FASB ofatgges to the fair value measurement guidandehviriclude: 1) prohibiting the
inclusion of block discounts in all fair value maemments, not just Level 1 measurements, 2) adglindance on when to include other
premiums and discounts in fair value measuremesjtgjarifying that the concepts of “highest andthgese” and “valuation premisepply only
when measuring the fair value of non-financial &saed 4) adding an exception that allows the nreasent of a group of financial assets and
liabilities with offsetting risks (e.g., a portfolof derivative contracts) at their net exposura garticular risk if certain criteria are met. AS
2011-04 also requires additional disclosure rel&tetems categorized as Level 3 in the fair vdligrarchy, including a description of the
processes for valuing these assets, providing gatwe information about the significant unobsdnesinputs used to measure fair value an
certain cases, explaining the sensitivity of tHewalue measurements to changes in unobservablgsn The Company adopted this standarc
in the first quarter 2012. Adoption of ASU 2011i64reased the footnote disclosure, but had no ilnpathe Company's consolidated
financial statements.

Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860)

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-03ansfers and Servicing: Reconsideration of Effec€ontrol for Repurchase Agreements a
typical repurchase agreement transaction, an engitgfers financial assets to the counterpargxchange for cash with an agreement for the
counterparty to return the same or equivalent firedrassets for a fixed price in the future. Ptmthis update, one of the factors in determi
whether sale treatment could be used was whethdrghsferor maintained effective control of ttensferred assets and, in order to do so, the
transferor must have the ability to repurchase ssslets. In connection with the issuance of ASULAWE, the FASB concluded that the
assessment of effective control should focus aarssferors contractual rights and obligations with respedtansferred financial assets, rat
than whether the transferor has the practicaltghidi perform in accordance with those rights digatiions. ASU 2011-03 removes the
transferor’s ability criterion from consideratioheffective control. The Company adopted this dtad in the first quarter 2012. As the
Company records repurchase agreements as securedibgs and not sales, this update has no sigmifieffect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Financial Services Investment Companies (Topic 946)

In June 2013, the FASB finalized ASU 2013-08 amegdhe scope, measurement and disclosure requitemeder Topic 946 — Financial
Services-Investment Companies. The Board decidetbraddress issues related to the applicabifitpy\@stment company accounting for real
estate entities and the measurement of real estatstments at this time. Further, as stated i€ 286-10-15-3, the guidance in Topic 946
does not apply to real estate investment trustsflaus has no effect on the Company’s consolidfiethcial statements.
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3. Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as sesinior interest-only, subordinated, subordinatéetest-only, and Non-Agency
RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs. The Compaley invests in Agency RMBS. Senior interestiiam-Agency RMBS are considered
to be entitled to the first principal repaymentshiair pro-rata ownership interests at the repgrtiate. The total fair value of the Non-Agency
RMBS that are held by the re-securitization trestssolidated pursuant to ASC 810 was $3.3 billiod $3.3 billion at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. See Note 8 of these conselitifibancial statements for further discussionafsolidated VIEs.

The following tables present the principal or nptibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains,
gross unrealized losses, and net unrealized gazss)(felated to the Company’s available-for-saleBS\portfolio as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, by asset class.

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Net
Principal ot Gross Gross  Unrealizet
Notional Total Total Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizec  Gain/
Value  Premiun Discount Cost  Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 12€ $ -3 (54) $ 72 % 88 $ 16 $ -$ 1€
Senior intere-only 3,012,86! 135,86¢ - 135,86¢ 122,86¢ 7,97¢  (20,97H (12,999
Subordinatet 1,057,82. - (584,77) 473,04¢ 547,79 81,49: (6,747 74,74*
Subordinated intere-only 256,07: 16,18( - 16,18( 16,25 1,46¢ (1,399 73
RMBS transferred to
consolidated variable interes
entities ("VIES") 4,610,10 8,95t (2,088,12) 2,437,04: 3,274,20. 837,35! (297 837,15t
Agency RMBS 1,756,58( 51,50: - 1,720,59° 1,806,69 86,41¢ (317) 86,10:
Total $10,693,57 $212,50! $(2,672,95) $4,782,81; $5,767,90' $1,014,72: $ (29,629 $ 985,009.
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Net
Principal o1 Gross Gross  Unrealizet
Notional Total Total Amortized Unrealizec Unrealizec  Gain/
Value Premiun Discount Cost  Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,11t $ -$ (56)$ 1,05¢3% 1,020(% 23 41 % 39
Senior intere-only 3,734,45; 199,28t - 199,28t 188,67 11,30¢ (21,91 (10,609
Subordinatet 1,378,89. - (724,739 654,15. 606,89 30,997 (78,259 (47,25)
Subordinated intere-only 277,56(  21,91( - 21,91( 22,01¢ 1,66: (1,559 10¢
RMBS transferred to
consolidated variable interes
entities ("VIES") 5,265,121 19,86¢ (2,382,99) 2,902,00. 3,270,33. 420,50¢ (52,17Y) 368,33(
Agency RMBS 3,018,34 90,40 (159 3,027,28! 3,144,53  117,60: (355) 117,24t
Total $13,675,49 $331,47( $(3,107,94)) $6,805,691 $7,233,47' $ 582,07¢ $ (154,290 $ 427,78!

The table below presents changes in AccretabledY@lthe excess of the security’s cash flows etgueto be collected over the Company’s
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahiga-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Year Ende
December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
(dollars in thousand:

Balance at beginning of peric $ 2,342,46; $ 2,521,72.
Purchase 86,84" 139,34
Accretion (364,28) (392,77
Reclassification (to) from n«accretable differenc 64,01" 127,97¢
Sales (21,657 (53,807
Balance at end of peric $ 2,107,38 $ 2,342,46.

The table below presents the outstanding prindipkince and related amortized cost for the yeatsceBecember 31, 2012 and 2011 as it
pertains to the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfaazounted for according to the provisions of AS0-30.
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For the Year Ende
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands

Outstanding principal balanc

Beginning of perioc $ 5,245,18 $ 5,264,48

End of perioc $ 4,508,47' $ 5,245,18
Amortized cost

Beginning of perioc $ 2,649,30. $ 2,761,67.

End of perioc $ 2,268,75 $ 2,649,30:

The following tables present the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the Company’s RM§length of time that such securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss posiidecember 31, 2012 and 2011. All securitieqin@realized loss position have been
evaluated by the Company for OTTI as discussedaie 19(d).

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Le Unrealized Loss Position for 12

than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimate: Number Estimate: Number Number
Fair Unrealizet of Fair  Unrealizet of Estimated Unrealize« of
Value Losses Securitie. Value Losses Securitie FairValue Losses Securitie:
Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ - $ - - $ -$ - - $ -$ - -
Senior intere-only 17,76« (2,82¢) 12 52,92( (18,147 26 70,68 (20,97Y 38
Subordinatec - - - 54,77 (6,747 5 54,77 (6,747 5
Subordinated intere-only - - - 9,65¢ (1,399 1 9,65¢ (1,399 1

RMBS transferred to consolidated
VIEs - - - 22,49( (297 1 22,49( (197 1
Agency RMBS 234 (76) 2 99z (247 2 1,223 (317) 4
Total $ 17,99¢ $ (2,909 14 $140,83t $ (26,72) 35 $ 158,83: $ (29,629 49

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands

Unrealized Loss Position for Le Unrealized Loss Position for 1

than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimate: Number Estimate: Number Number
Fair Unrealizet of Fair Unrealizet of Estimatec Unrealizet of
Value Losses Securitiee Value Losses Securitie FairValue Losses Securitie
Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ -3 - - % 127 $ (41) 1% 127 $ (41) 1
Senior intere-only 99,35! (18,75¢) 26 17,64" (3,16)) 12 116,99¢ (21,919 38
Subordinate 321,41¢ (52,82 33 111,16 (25,430 17 432,58 (78,254 50
Subordinated intere-only 16,30( (1,559 2 - - - 16,30( (1,559 2

RMBS transferred to consolidated
VIEs - - - 594,36¢ (52,17%) 18 594,36¢ (52,17%) 18
Agency RMBS 3,88¢ (355) 2 - - - 3,88¢ (355) 2
Total $440,95! $ (73,489 63 $723,31( $ (80,807 48 $1,164,26! $ (154,296 111

At December 31, 2012, the Company did not intengktbany of its RMBS that were in an unrealizesklposition, and it was not more likely
than not that the Company would be required totkebe RMBS before recovery of their amortized basis, which may be at their maturity.
With respect to RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, dbdity of any entity to cause the sale by the Hor to the maturity of these RMBS is
either expressly prohibited, not probable, orrisiteéd to specified events of default, none of whielve occurred to date.

Gross unrealized losses on the Compaygency RMBS were $317 thousand and $355 thousebBeécember 31, 2012 and 2011, respecti
Given the credit quality inherent in Agency RMBBg tCompany does not consider any of the currensiimments on its Agency RMBS to be
credit related. In evaluating whether it is makelly than not that it will be required to sell aimypaired security before its anticipated recov
which may be at their maturity, the Company considiee significance of each investment, the amotimpairment, the projected future
performance of such impaired securities, as wethasCompany’s current and anticipated leveragaaigpand liquidity position. Based on
these analyses, the Company determined that anibeze31, 2012 and 2011 unrealized losses on ite@&gBMBS were temporary.

Gross unrealized losses on the Com['s Nor-Agency RMBS (including Nc-Agency RMBS held by consolidated VIEs) were $29illion



and $153.9 million at December 31, 2012 and 204dpectively. Based upon the most recent evaluatienCompany does not consider these
unrealized losses to be indicative of OTTI and dugdelieve that these unrealized losses aretarddied, but rather are due to other factors.
The Company has reviewed its Non-Agency RMBS thairaan unrealized loss position to identify theseurities with losses that are other-
than-temporary based on an assessment of changashrilows expected to be collected for such RMBS¢h considers recent bond
performance and expected future performance ofitickerlying collateral.

A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for ylears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is predesitmd. Refer to Note 17 for
additional details regarding prior year OTTI.
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For the Year

Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(dollars in

thousands)
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (47,63) $ (241,96) $ (40,839
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (84,61%) (115,14 (91,017
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (132,250 $ (357,109 $ (131,84%

The following table presents a roll forward of #redit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Majency RMBS for which a portion of
loss was previously recognized in OCI. The taleléingates between those securities that are rexagr®TTI for the first time as opposed to
those that have previously recognized OTTI.

For the Year

Ended
December 31, 20: December 31, 20. December 31, 20:
(dollars in
thousands)
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 452,06( $ 237,74t $ 128,58:
Additions:
Other-than-temporary impairments not previousl
recognizec 98,32« 268,79! 55,77
Reductions for securities sold during the pel (34,57°) (1,300 (9,709
Increases related to other-than-temporary
impairments on securities with previously
recognized oth«-thar-temporary impairment 33,92¢ 88,31( 76,07
Reductions for increases in cash flows expected
be collected over the remaining life of the seoesi (39,644 (141,49) (12,977
Cumulative credit impairment loss ending bala $ 510,08t $ 452,06 $ 237,74t

Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaapdeary credit impairment losses recognized iniegmare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs usechéasure the component of OTTI recognized in agenfor the Company’s Non-Agency
RMBS are summarized as follows:

For the Year Ende

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Loss Severity

Weighted Averag: 52% 59%

Range 39%- 63% 34%- 97%
60+ days delinquet

Weighted Averag: 19% 30%

Range 12%- 34% 0% - 68%
Credit Enhancement (.

Weighted Averag: 17% 10%

Range 0% - 59% 0%-91%
3 Month CPFk

Weighted Averag: 14% 15%

Range 1%- 22% 0% - 83%
12 Month CPF

Weighted Averag: 22% 16%

Range 10%- 27% 4% - 56%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancenoghetRe-REMIC and underlying from
each of their respective capital structu

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at December 31, 2012 and d@ferest-only RMBS included in the
tables below represent the right to receive a fipdqgbroportion of the contractual interest casiwi of the underlying principal balance of
specific securities. At December 31, 2012, inteoedy RMBS had a net unrealized loss of $4.8 willand had an amortized cost of $166.0
million. At December 31, 2011, interest-only RMB&dha net unrealized loss of $5.7 million and hadrmortized cost of $237.8 million. The
fair value of 10s at December 31, 2012 and 2011 $i#4 .2 million, and $232.1 million, respectiveMl changes in fair value of IOs a



reflected in Net income (loss).
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December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Gai Unrealized Los
Included in Ac Gross Included in Gross
cumulated Unrealized Gai Accumulated Unrealized Los
Other Included in Total Gros: Other Included in Total Gros:
Comprehensiv. Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensiv.  Accumulated  Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 13 $ - $ 16 $ - % - $ -
Senior intere-only - 7,971 7,97¢ - (20,97%) (20,97%)
Subordinate 81,49( - 81,49: (6,747) - (6,747)
Subordinated interest-
only - 1,467 1,46¢ - (1,399 (1,399
RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIE: 829,31! 8,04: 837,35: (2197 - (297)
Agency RMBS 86,06: 357 86,41¢ - (317) (317)
Total $ 996,88( $ 17,84¢ $ 1,014,72. $ (6,949 $ (22,687 $ (29,629
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross
Unrealized Gai Unrealized Los
Included in Gross Included in Gross
Accumulated Unrealized Gai Accumulated Unrealized Los
Other Included in Total Gros:! Other Included in Total Gros:!
Comprehensiv. Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensiv.  Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 2 3 - $ 2 3 41) $ - $ (42)
Senior intere-only - 11,30¢ 11,30¢ - (21,91) (21,91)
Subordinatet 30,99" - 30,99 (78,25¢) - (78,259
Subordinated interest-
only - 1,66° 1,667 - (1,559 (1,559
RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIE! 415,68t 4,817 420,50! (52,17Y - (52,17
Agency RMBS 117,23t 36E 117,60: - (355) (355)
Total $ 563,92! $ 18,15 $ 582,07¢ $ (130,470 $ (23,820 $ (154,299

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andfleass expected to be collected, among other iteares affected by the collateral
characteristics of each asset class. The portflioost heavily weighted to contain Non-Agency RMBith credit risk. The Company
chooses assets for the portfolio after carefullgle@ating each investment’s risk profile.

The following tables provide a summary of the Comps RMBS portfolio at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Principal Principal
or or
Notional Weightec Notional Weightec
Value at Average Value at Average
Period- Weighted Weighte( Yield at Period- Weighted Weightec Yield at
End Average Average Weightec  Period- End Average Average Weightec Period-
(dollars in Amortizec  Fair  Average End (dollars in Amortizec  Fair  Average End
thousands Cost Basi Value Coupon (1) thousands CostBasi Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 12¢ $ 57.02$ 67.0( 0.0(% 11.9(%%$ 1,11t$ 9515 $ 91.5¢ 1.02% 2.95%
Senior, interest
only $3,012,86! $ 451% 4.0¢ 1.7¢% 10.3€% $3,734,45. $ 534% 5.0t 1.9€% 13.2(%
Subordinatec  $1,057,82. $ 44.7z2$ 51.7¢ 3.18% 11.0%%1,378,89. $ 47.4¢$ 44.0] 3.4% 9.51%
Subordinated,
interestonly $ 256,07: $ 6.3z 6.3 2.2%%  8.9(%$ 277,56( $ 78<% 7.9t 2.94% 9.9%%



RMBS

transferred to

consolidated

variable interes

entities $4,610,100' $ 53.9¢ $ 72.5( 4.88% 15.44%%$5,265,12 $ 55.1¢$ 62.11 5.32% 14.5¢%
Agency Mortgage
Backed Securitie $1,756,58/ $ 103.0¢ $ 108.2 4.65% 3.5¢9% $3,018,34' $ 103.07 $ 107.0¢ 4.66% 3.8%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availablehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
AAA 0.01% 0.53%
AA 0.46% 0.14%
A 0.00% 0.45%
BBB 0.00% 1.54%
BB 1.41% 0.00%
B 1.19% 0.43%
Below B or not rate! 96.93¥% 96.91¥%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemthiae stated contractual maturities. Actual méasgiof the Company’s RMBS are affected
by the contractual lives of the underlying mortgageeriodic payments of principal and prepaymehtsiacipal. The following tables provide
a summary of the fair value and amortized coshefGompany’s RMBS at December 31, 2012 and 201drdicg to their estimated weighted-
average life classifications. The weighted-avedags of the RMBS in the tables below are basetifetime expected prepayment rates using
an industry prepayment model for the Agency RMB8&fpltio and the Company’s prepayment assumptionshie Non-Agency RMBS. The
prepayment model considers current yield, forwaettly steepness of the interest rate curve, cumamtgage rates, mortgage rates of the
outstanding loan, loan age, margin, and volatility.
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December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater than

one Greater than
year and less five Greater than
Less than on than years and les ten
year five years than ten yeai years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - % - $ 88 $ - % 88
Senior intere«-only 35¢ 47,20¢ 66,92’ 8,37¢ 122,86
Subordinatet 4,09z 23,94¢ 359,31( 160,44« 547,79«
Subordinated intere-only - - 9,65¢ 6,59¢ 16,25
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 12,11¢ 312,69( 2,055,56! 893,82! 3,274,20.
Agency RMBS 14¢€ 1,802,72 3,831 - 1,806,69
Total fair value $ 16,71« $ 2,186,556, $ 249538 $ 1,069,24f $ 5,767,90
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - $ 72 % - $ 72
Senior intere-only 657 58,03} 70,04« 7,13( 135,86
Subordinatet 2,64¢ 20,59: 318,42. 131,38! 473,04
Subordinated intere-only - - 11,05 5,12¢ 16,18(
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 11,18« 248,69¢ 1,493,64 683,51¢ 2,437,04:
Agency RMBS 157 1,716,96. 3,47¢ - 1,720,59!
Total amortized cos $ 1464 $ 2,044,29. $ 1,896,711 $ 827,16. $ 4,782,81
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater thar
one Greater thar
year and les five Greater thar
Less than on than years and les ten
year five years than ten yeai years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 89z $ - $ 126 $ - $ 1,02(
Senior intere«-only - 85,63: 69,20« 33,84. 188,67
Subordinatet 6,53( 101,98: 259,54¢ 238,83 606,89!
Subordinated intere-only - - 1,81z 20,20 22,01¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 25,37¢ 338,61t 2,119,03 787,31: 3,270,33
Agency RMBS 17,93: 1,735,10 824,64! 566,84t 3,144,53
Total fair value $ 50,72¢ $ 2,261,33 $ 3,274,360 $ 1,647,004 $ 7,233,47
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 891 $ - $ 166 $ - $ 1,05¢
Senior intere-only - 95,97 69,95 33,36: 199,28
Subordinatet 5,61¢ 98,651 300,48 249,39( 654,15:
Subordinated intere-only - - 1,94¢ 19,96¢ 21,91(
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 32,80¢ 296,14 1,827,001 746,05: 2,902,00:
Agency RMBS 17,61( 1,663,91 798,63 547,12t 3,027,28!
Total amortized cos $ 56,92: $ 2,15469. $ 2,998,180 $ 1,59589. $ 6,805,69

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to credk. The Company seeks to mitigate credit risktigh its asset selection process. The
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralizdxry what the Company classifies as Alt-A first limortgages. The Company
categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardless of whethe loans were originally described as “prinfahé behavior of the collateral when the
Company purchased the security more typically rédesAlt-A. The Company defines Alt-A collaterddaracteristics to be evidenced by the
60+ day delinquency bucket of the pool being grrethizn 5% and the weighted average FICO scordmdinhe of origination as greater than
650. At December 31, 2012, 99.5% of the Non-AgeRMBS collateral was Alt-A. At December 31, 2097,4% of the Non-Agency RMBS
collateral was A-A.



The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the fallog collateral characteristics at December 31,228xd 2011.
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December 3: December 3:

201z 2011

Weighted average maturity (yea 24.¢ 25.7

Weighted average amortized loan to value 71.6% 71.5%

Weighted average FICO ( 717 718.

Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $453.. $469.(

Weighted average percentage owner occu 85.1% 85.3%

Weighted average percentage single family resid 65.5% 65.6%

Weighted average current credit enhancer 3.1% 4.5%

Weighted average geographic concentration of to CA 36.7% CA 38.1%
five states

FL  8.7% FL 8.5%

NY  6.4% NY  6.1%

VA  2.4% NJ  2.7%

NJ  2.8% VA  2.4%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the colhta the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The table below presents the origination year efuhderlying loans related to the Company’s pddfof Non-Agency RMBS at December &
2012 and 2011.

Origination Yeal December 31, 20.  December 31, 20:
2000 0.2% 0.0%
2001 0.2% 0.2%
2002 0.0% 0.0%
2003 0.4% 0.9%
2004 0.6% 1.3%
2005 14.3% 13.8%
2006 34.6% 31.8%
2007 46.7% 48.7%
2008 3.0% 3.3%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coyngald RMBS with a carrying value of $858.2 milli€or realized gains of $85.2
million. During the year ended December 31, 2@hé& ,Company sold RMBS with a carrying value of $alBon for realized gains of $54.4
million.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company is considered to be the primary beiagfiof VIEs formed for the purpose of securitiziwdole mortgage loans. Refer to Note &
for additional details regarding the Company’s irement with VIEs.

The securitized loans held for investment are edrait their principal balance outstanding, plusnordized premiums, less unaccreted
discounts and an allowance for loan losses. Duling/ear ended December 31, 2012, the Company lidetea the CSMC 2012-CIM1,
CSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC 2012-CIM3 Trusts (the “ GSNIrusts”). The CSMC Trusts are securitization$ateralized by high quality,
jumbo, prime, residential mortgage loans. The Comigeansferred $1.5 billion in principal value teetCSMC Trusts that was recorded i
secured borrowing pursuant to ASC 860. In theses#aetions, the Company financed $1.4 Billion of Afated, AA-rated, and A-rated fixed
rate bonds by selling the bonds to third party stees for net proceeds of $1.4 billion.

The following table provides a summary of the chemin the carrying value of securitized loans Hietdnvestment at December 31, 2012 and
2011:

December 3: December 3:
2012 2011
(dollars in thousands

Balance, beginning of peric $ 256,63: $ 349,11;
Purchase 1,531,01. -
Principal paydown (477,559 (85,526)
Net periodic amortization (accretio (9,597 (1,669
Change to loan loss provisi (36¢) (5,297
Balance, end of peric $ 1,300,13 $ 256,63.

The following table represents the Comg’s securitized residential mortgage loans classdieteld for investment at December 31, 2012



2011:
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December 3: December 3:
2012 2011

(dollars in thousand:

Securitized loans, at amortized ¢ $ 1,311,75! $ 270,57(
Less: allowance for loan loss 11,62¢ 13,93¢
Securitized loans held for investme $ 1,300,13 $ 256,63

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizeddmyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 32.6% were originated during 2012,
44.1% were originated during 2011, 9.3% during 2@I@ the remaining 14.0% of the loans were origith@rior to 2010. A summary of key
characteristics of these loans follows.

December 3: December 3:

201z 2011

Number of loan: 1,61¢ 392

Weighted average maturity (yea 28.2 25.¢

Weighted average loan to value 71.2% 75.5%

Weighted average FICO ( 76€ 752

Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $794.: $684.(

Weighted average percentage owner occu 94.6% 91.1%

Weighted average percentage single family resid 70.6% 58.1%

Weighted average geographic concentration of to CA 38.1% CA 36.0%
five states

VA  6.3% FL 6.1%

NY  6.3% AZ  5.8%

WA  5.2% NJ  5.4%

NJ  4.6% IL  5.3%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the codlase the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan
origination.

The following table summarizes the changes in tlesvance for loan losses for the securitized mayggan portfolio for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

For the Year
Ended

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(dollars in thousands

Balance, beginning of peric $ 13,93¢ $ 11,00¢ $ 4,551
Provision for loan losse 36¢ 5,291 7,10¢
Charge-offs (2,6872) (2,359 (654
Balance, end of peric $ 11,62 $ 13,93¢ $ 11,00¢

The Company has established an allowance for lnsseb related to securitized loans that is composadjeneral and specific reserve. The
balance in the allowance for loan losses relataétiéaeneral reserve at December 31, 2012, 2012@t@was $5.0 million, $6.3 million, and
$6.1 million, respectively. The balance in the@athnce for loan losses related to the specificrvesat December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
$6.6 million, $7.6 million, and $4.9 million, respively.

The Company'’s overall provision for loan lossedédscribed in Note 2(g). The Company’s generalrvesis based on historical loss rates for
pools of loans with similar credit characteristiadjusted for current trends and market conditiordyding current trends in delinquencies anc
severities. The Company has established a speetfarve that reflects consideration of loans rtlome 60 days delinquent, loans in
foreclosure, borrowers that have declared bankyypitd real estate owned. The loan loss provistated to these loans is measured as the
difference between the unpaid principal balancethadestimated fair value of the property secutirgmortgage, less estimated costs to

sell. The specific reserve also reflects constitaraf concessions granted to borrowers by theicarin the form of modifications (i.e.,
reductions). Loan loss provisions related to thresdifications are based on the contractual pradcimd interest payments, post-modification,
discounted at the loan’s original effective int¢mage.

The total unpaid principal balance of impaired wé&r which the Company established a specificrieseas $29.1 million, $32.9 million and
$27.2 million at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2@4€pectively. Interest income on impaired loansoissignificant. The Company’s
recorded investment in impaired loans for whichrehie a related allowance for credit losses at Béxer 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $21.8
million, $14.3 million and $22.3 million, respeatly. The total unpaid principal balance of -impaired loans for which the Compa



established a general reserve was $1.3 billion5$28illion and $328.8 million at December 31, 202Q@11 and 2010, respectively. The
Companys recorded investment in loans that are not imgdwewhich there is a related general reserveffedit losses at December 31, 2(
2011 and 2010 was $1.3 billion, $228.9 million &322.7 million, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the outstanding @pal balance of loans 30 days delinquent and gree reported by the servicer at
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinqguent Bankruptcy  Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:
December 31, 201 $3,11( $1,18¢ $4,04¢ $C $4,24° $1,39( $13,97!
December 31, 201 $1,34. $1,82¢ $2,33¢ $1,65¢ $3,62¢ $5,20: $15,99:

With the exception of its ability to approve loamwdifications solely as it relates to CSMC 2012-CIMEMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC 2012-
CIM3 as further described in Note 2(g), the Compdogs not service or modify loans held for investmélhe trustee and servicer of the
respective securitization are responsible for sérgiand modifying these loans. The Company isiired to make certain assumptions in
accounting for loans held for investment due tolitinéation of information available to the Companyhe following table presents the loans
that were modified by the servicer during the yexaded December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Unpaid Principal Unpaid Principal Amortized Cost of Amortized Cost of
Balance of Balance of Modified Loans For Modified
Modified Modified Which Loans For Which
Number of Loans (Pre- Loans (Post- There is an Allowanc There is
Loans modification) modification)  Amortized Cost for No Allowance for
Modified During of Loan Losses Loan
Period Modified Loans Losses
(dollars in thousand:
Year Endec
December 31, 201 9 $5,163 $5,312 $5,256 $5,256 $0
December 31, 201 7 $5,496 $5,867 $5,931 $5,931 $0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a methodss mitigation. Based on the information availableing the year ended December 31,
2012, the Company determined that all loans matlifie the servicer were considered troubled deltuetsirings, as defined under GAAP. A
troubled debt restructuring is generally any madifion of a loan to a borrower that is experiendingncial difficulties, where a lender agrees
to terms that are more favorable to the borrowan tire otherwise available in the current mark#toAn modifications during the years en
December 31, 2012 and 2011 included a reductidheo$tated interest rated.oans modified by the servicer have been indiviguassessed
for impairment and measurement of impairment i€bam the excess of the recorded investment ifotlreover the present value of the
expected cash flows, post modification, discouretthe loan’s effective interest rate at inceptitmthe absence of additional loan
modifications by the servicer in future periodstthe considered to be TDR'’s, the $4.8 million #iiceserve related to TDR’s as of
December 31, 2012 will be recognized in net incamfeiture periods by way of a decrease in the pmiowi for loan losses.

As of December 31, 2012, there were no loans tlea¢ wodified in the past twelve months and delintjoa scheduled payments.
5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accomawith GAAP to account for its financial instrunt&nThe Company categorizes its
financial instruments, based on the priority of ity@uts to the valuation technique, into a threeldair value hierarchy. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted @siin active markets for identical assets or liabd (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs ugecheasure the financial instruments fall withirfeliént levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level inpat s significant to the fair value measuremerthefinstrument. Financial assets and liabill
recorded at fair value on the Consolidated StatésnefrFinancial Condition or disclosed in the rethhotes are categorized based on the inpu
to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology aretgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.
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Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imigquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukktm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

Fair value measurements categorized within Lewak3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value
such changes could result in a significant incresisecrease in the fair value. For the Compamysstments in Non-Agency RMBS
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hiefay, the significant unobservable inputs include discount rates, assumptions relating to
prepayments, default rates and loss severitiesifitignt increases (decreases) in any of the disttaies, default rates or loss severities in
isolation would result in a significantly lower @fier) fair value measurement. The impact of chaimgpsepayment speeds would have
differing impacts on fair value, depending on tbaiserity of the investment. Generally, a changthindefault assumption is accompanied by
directionally similar changes in the assumptiorsdu®r the loss severity and the prepayment speed.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtkisy management to ensure the changes are agteopks markets and products evolve
and the pricing for certain products becomes nramsparent, the Company will continue to refinevékiation methodologies. The
methodology utilized by the Company for the peripdssented is unchanged. The methods used togeadiair value calculation may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflectivefofure fair values. Furthermore, while the Comphasiieves its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market pggits, the use of different methodologies, or agxions, to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in datiént estimate of fair value at the reporting datee Company uses inputs that are current as
of the measurement date, which may include permddsarket dislocation, during which price transpememay be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time and continues to existotigervability of prices and inputs can be
difficult for certain NonAgency RMBS. If third party pricing services amaible to provide a price for an asset, or if thiegpprovided by the

is deemed unreliable by the Company, then the agiidte valued at its fair value as determinediny Company without validation to third-
party pricing. In addition, validating third pantyicing for the Company’s investments may be nsuigjective as fewer participants may be
willing to provide this service to the Companyliguiid investments typically experience greatecenolatility as an active market does not
exist. Observability of prices and inputs can wsignificantly from period to period and may causgtruments to change classifications within
the three level hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by empany to estimate the fair value of its finan@iatruments by instrument class follows:
Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, aeduad interest payable are considered to
be a reasonable estimate of fair value due tohbe term nature of these financial instruments.

Agency and Nc-Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair valuigsahvestment securities utilizing an internatprg model that incorporates such factors a
coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted average difleteral composition, borrower characteristicgyeoted interest rates, life caps, periodic
caps, reset dates, collateral seasoning, expemiedd, expected default severity, credit enhandgiuesh other pertinent factors. Management
reviews the fair values generated by the modekterthine whether prices are reflective of the mtrnearket. Management indirectly
corroborates its estimates of the fair value uginging models by comparing its results to indepmrigrices provided by dealers in the
securities and/or third party pricing services.rt@ia very liquid asset classes, such as Agen®&dfpate pass-throughs may be priced using
independent sources such as quoted prices for TaABeunced (“TBA”) securities.
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The Agency RMBS market is considered to be an actiarket such that participants transact with sigffit frequency and volume to provide
transparent pricing information on an ongoing hasie liquidity of the Agency RMBS market and thmiarity of the Companys securities t
those actively traded enable the Company to obsgreted prices in the market and utilize thosegsrigs a basis for formulating fair value
measurements. Consequently, the Company hasfidds&gency RMBS as Level 2 inputs in the fair v@hierarchy.

The Company'’s fair value estimation process for Maency RMBS utilizes inputs other than quoted @sithat are observed in the market.
The Company’s estimate of prepayment, default averity curves all involve Management judgment assumptions that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement processch renders the resulting Non-Agency fair valstreates Level 3 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy.

Interest Rate Sway

The Company utilizes dealer quotes to determindainealues of its interest rate swaps. The Camypaompares the dealer quotations
received to its own estimate of fair value to easdufor reasonableness. The dealer quotes in@goommon market pricing methods,
including a spread measurement to the Treasurg giglve or interest rate swap curve as well asnlyidg characteristics of the particular
contract. Interest rate swaps are modeled by tmep@ay by incorporating such factors as the termaturity, Treasury curve, LIBOR rates,
and the payment rates on the fixed portion of tiherest rate swaps. The Company has classifietebitRate Swaps as Level 2 inputs in the
fair value hierarchy.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company ¢jeshits discount rate assumption used to deterthméair value of interest rate swaps fr
LIBOR to the overnight index swap rate in respaiesehanges in market valuation practices for irderate swaps that are collateralized.

The Company'’s financial assets and liabilitiesiedrat fair value on a recurring basis, includihg evel in the fair value hierarchy, at
December 31, 2012 and 2011 is presented below.

December 31, 201
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ -9 = & 88
Senior intere-only - - 122,86¢
Subordinatel - - 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only - - 16,25
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,274,20:
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 1,806,69° -
Liabilities:

Interest rate sway - 53,93¢ -
Total $ -$ 186063 $ 3,961,20
December 31, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ -9 - $ 1,02(
Senior intere-only - - 188,67
Subordinatel - - 606,89!
Subordinated intere-only - - 22,01¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,270,33.
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 3,144,53: -
Liabilities:
Interest rate sway - 44,46, -
Total $ - $ 3,18899 $ 4,088,94!
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The table below provides a summary of the chanyésa fair value of securities classified as Le&zel

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
(dollars in thousand:

For the Year Ende

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

Non-Agency RMBS
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 408894 $ 552910
Transfers in to Level 3 asse¢ - -
Transfers out of Level 3 asst - -
Purchase 122,50¢ 446,20

Principal payment (516,37() (695,27)

Sales (328,26 (631,64

Accretion of purchase discour 98,80: 81,22
Gains (losses) included in net inco

Other than temporary credit impairment los (132,25() (357,109

Realized gains (losses) on s¢ 48,43t 44~

Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS 804 (14,717
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensivenTa

Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe 578,59: (269,299

Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,961,200 $§ 4,088,94

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 forykars ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.
Sensitivity of Significant Inputs

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Company’s non-agency RIsi® the weighted average discoun
rates, prepayment speed (CPR), cumulative defat@f and the loss severity.

Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constapaynent Rate, or CPR, vary according to intergesrdhe type of investment, conditions in
financial markets, and other factors, none of wiuah be predicted with any certainty. In genexdilen interest rates rise, it is relatively less
attractive for borrowers to refinance their mortgdmans, and as a result, prepayment speeds telettease. When interest rates fall,
prepayment speeds tend to increase. For RMBS imead$ purchased at a premium, as prepayment sipeeedase, the amount of income we
earn decreases as the purchase premium on the bmatzes faster than expected. Conversely, dsegsin prepayment speeds result in
increased income and can extend the period overhwie amortize the purchase premium. For RMBSstments purchased at a discount, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of incongameincreases from the acceleration of the d@oaref the discount into interest income.
Conversely, decreases in prepayment speeds nesldtieased income as the accretion of the purchssaunt into interest income occurs
over a longer period.

Cumulative default rates represent an annualiziedafadefault on a group of mortgages. The constafdult rate represents the percentage of
outstanding principal balances in the pool thatim@efault, which typically equates to the homefeast 60-day and 90-day notices and in
the foreclosure process. When default rates iserezxpected cash flows on the underlying collbtbrereases. When default rates decrease
expected cash flows on the underlying collaterelénses.

Loss severity rates reflect the amount of loss etgaefrom a foreclosure and liquidation of the uhdeg collateral in the mortgage loan

pool. When a mortgage loan is foreclosed the tldis sold and the resulting proceeds are wsedttle the outstanding obligation. In many
circumstances, the proceeds from the sale do Hgtrépay the outstanding obligation. In theseesas loss is incurred by the lender. Loss
severity is used to predict how costly future Iesaee likely to be. An increase in loss sevegssutts in a decrease in expected future
cashflows. A decrease in loss severity resultmimcrease in expected future cashflows

The discount rate refers to the interest rate usddscounted cash flow analysis to determine ttesgnt value of future cash flows. The
discount rate takes into account not just the tialae of money, but also the risk or uncertaintyubiire cash flows. An increased uncertainty
of future cash flows results in a higher discowatér The discount rate used to calculate the ptesdue of the expected future cash flows is
based on the discount rate implicit in the secua#tyf the last measurement date. As discourd matee up, the discounted cash flows are
reduced.
A summary of the significant inputs used to estarthe fair value of Non-Agency RMBS as of Decentiigr2012 follows:

December 31, 201

Significant Inputs

Weighted
Average



Discount  Prepayment Cumulative
Rate Speed (CPR Default Rate Loss Severity

Range
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior 7.5% 11%-11% 0%- 3% 50%- 58%
Senior intere-only 13.9% 1%- 25% 0%-25%  50%- 85%
Subordinatet 25.9% 1%- 18% 0%-21% 50%- 85%
Subordinated intere-only 13.3% 4%-11% 0%-21%  50%- 68%
RMBS transferred to consolidate 58% 1%-15% 0%-36% 50% - 85%

VIEs

All of the significant inputs listed have some degof market observability, based on the Compakysvledge of the market, information
available to market participants, and use of commarket data sources. Collateral default and legerity projections are in the form of
“curves” that are updated quarterly to reflect@mmpany’s collateral cash flow projections. Methoded to develop these projections
conform to industry conventions. The Company usssi@ptions it considers its best estimate of futah flows for each respective security.

The discount rates applied to the expected caslsfto determine fair value are derived from a ramfggbservable prices on securities backed
by similar collateral. As the market becomes nwrkess liquid, the availability of these obseneainiputs will change.

The prepayment speed specifies the percentage abthateral balance that is expected to pay offagh point in the future. The prepayment
speed is based on factors such as collateral Fl©@ sloan-to-value ratio, debt-to-income ratiod antage on a loan level basis and is scalec
up or down to reflect recent collateral-specifieayment experience as obtained from remittancertsepnd market data services.

Default vectors are determined from the currenpépne” of loans that are more than 30 days dekmguin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are real
estate owned (“REQO")These delinquent loans determine the first 30 nwafttihe default curve. Beyond month 30, the défaulve transition
to a value that is reflective of a portion of therent delinquency pipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s expass severity is based on collateral-speciffieeience with consideration given to other
mitigating collateral characteristics. Charact@&ssuch as seasoning are taken into considerddicause severities tend to initially increase ol
newly originated securities, before beginning tolide as the collateral ages and eventually sizdsili Collateral characteristics such as loan
size, loan-to-value, and geographic location ofatetal also effect loss severity.
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Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company carries securitized loans held forstment at principal value, plus unamortized prensiuless unaccreted discounts and
allowance for loan losses. The Company estimaeéair value of its securitized loans held foraatment by considering the loan
characteristics, including the credit charactersstif the borrower, purpose of the loan, use ottikateral securing the loan, and managensen
expectations of general economic conditions instixetor and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreemet

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finati@ngactions utilized by the Company to acquire@stment securities. Due to the short tern
nature of these financial instruments, the Compastinates and records the fair value of these objise agreements using the contractual
obligation plus accrued interest payable at maturit

Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferred twsGladated VIEs and Securitized Debt, Loans Heldrfeestment

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compagecuritization or re-securitization
transactions treated as secured borrowings pursa&8C 860. The Company carries securitized dettie principal balance outstanding plus
unamortized premiums, less unaccreted discountsded in connection with the financing of the loen&RMBS with third parties. The
premiums or discounts associated with the finanointfpe notes or certificates are amortized overdbntractual life of the instrument using
interest method. The Company estimates the failevaf securitized debt by estimating the futurehcBiows associated with the underlying
assets collateralizing the secured debt outstandiing Company models the fair value of each ugdeylasset by considering, among other
items, the structure of the underlying securitypan, servicer, actual and expected defaults, bahthexpected default severities, reset
indices, and prepayment speeds in conjunction mvéhket research for similar collateral performaand management’s expectations of
general economic conditions in the sector and athenomic factors.

The following table presents the carrying value taidvalue, as described above, of the Compafigancial instruments at December 31, Z
and 2011. The level in the fair value hierarchyhia table below refers to December 31, 2012.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Level in
Fair
Value  Carrying Carrying

Hierarchy Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS 3 $3,961,20! $3,961,20! $ 4,088,94! $ 4,088,94!
Agency RMBS 2 1,806,69 1,806,69 3,144,53. 3,144,53
Securitized loans held for investm 3 1,300,123 1,320,691 256,63: 237,97
Repurchase agreeme 2 (1,528,02) (1,531,51) (2,672,98) (2,677,40)
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency

RMBS 3 (1,336,26) (1,334,55) (1,630,270) (1,546,23)
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans held fi

investmen 3 (1,169,710 (1,194,74) (212,77) (222,92)
Interest rate swag 2 (53,939 (53,939 (44,467 (44,467

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.5 billion and $2lio of repurchase agreements with weighted ayefzorrowing rates of 0.52% and
0.35% and weighted average remaining maturitiegsalays and 48 days as of December 31, 2012 arid B8spectively. At December 31,
2012 and 2011, Agency RMBS pledged as collaterdéuthese repurchase agreements had an estimatedldi of $1.6 billion and $2.9
billion, respectively. The average daily balancethe Companys repurchase agreements for the year ended Dec@&hb2012 and 2011 we
$2.1 billion and $3.8 billion, respectively. Thadrest rates of these repurchase agreements amtigimdexed to the one-month or the three-
month LIBOR rate and re-price accordingly.
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At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the repurchase ragrés collateralized by Agency RMBS had the follogvremaining maturities.

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

(dollars in thousands
Overnight $ - $ =
1-29 days 732,80¢ 1,368,94
30 to 59 day: 325,91! 836,00
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day 211,13 171,83t
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 258,16 296,20:
Total $ 152802 $§ 2,672,98

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company didhae¢ an amount at risk under its repurchase agrgsrgesater than 10% of its equity
with any counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateratl by residential mortgage loans or Non-AgencyB8M For financial reporting purposes,
the Company’s securitized debt is accounted faeasred borrowings. Thus, the residential mortdeges or RMBS held as collateral are
recorded in the assets of the Company as secudritaas held for investment or Non-Agency RMBS s$farred to consolidated VIEs and the
securitized debt is recorded as a non-recourstitjaib the accompanying Consolidated StatemefitSimancial Condition.

At December 31, 2012 the Company’s securitized deltateralized by residential mortgage loans hadrecipal balance of $1.2 billion. The
debt matures between the years 2023 and 2042.eéé¢rber 31, 2012 the debt carried a weighted agarags of financing equal to 3.37%.
December 31, 2011, the Company’s securitized dalzteralized by residential mortgage loans hadrecjpal balance of $222.9 million. At
December 31, 2011, the debt carried a weightedhgeerost of financing equal to 5.48%.

At December 31, 2012 the Company’s securitized delateralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principalance of $1.4 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2035 and 2047. At Demre®ih 2012 the debt carried a weighted averageofdimancing equal to 4.41%. At
December 31, 2011, the Company'’s securitized dellzteralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principaibioae of $1.7 billion. At December
31, 2011, the debt carried a weighted averageatdstancing equal to 5.09%.

The carrying value of securitized debt is base@tamortized cost, net of premiums or discounistee to sales of senior certificates to third
parties. The following table presents the estighaténcipal repayment schedule of the securitizelok @t December 31, 2012 and 2011, basec
on expected cash flows of the residential mortdages or RMBS, as adjusted for projected lossehemninderlying collateral of the debt. All
of the securitized debt recorded in the Companged0lidated Statements of Financial Condition is-recourse to the Company.

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

(dollars in thousands
Within One Yeal $ 658,42 $ 488,88t
One to Three Yeal 793,15( 598,92:
Three to Five Year 430,99: 276,96!
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 555,71 404,38t
Total $ 2,438,28 $ 1,769,15

Maturities of the Compang’securitized debt are dependent upon cash flovesverl from the underlying loans. The estimatéhefrtrepaymet
is based on scheduled principal payments on therlyiiglg loans. This estimate will differ from act@amounts to the extent prepayments
and/or loan losses are experienced. See Noted 8 for a more detailed discussion of the secwriied loans collateralizing the securitized
debt.
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8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Othevariable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VbEs$he purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laan®-securitizing RMBS and obtaining
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compaajuated its interest in each VIE to determineiff the primary beneficiary.

Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE reasrsignificant judgment. The Company determined fibr the securitizations it
consolidates, its ownership of substantially al@dinate interests provided the Company with thiegation to absorb losses and/or the right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could be #igant to the VIE. In addition, the Company isnsidered to have the power to direct the
activities of the VIEs that most significantly inqtdhe VIES' economic performance (“power”) or iempany was determined to have power
in connection with its involvement with the purpas® design of the VIE. Two trusts formed priodémuary 1, 2010 that were evaluated by
the Company did not meet the requirements for dategmn due to the Company’s inability to contoartain activities of the VIEs.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s Consolid8tatements of Financial Condition includes tensotidated VIE’s with $4.6 billion of
assets and $2.5 billion of liabilities. As of Dedeer 31, 2011, the Company’s Consolidated Statesr@rftinancial Condition includes seven
consolidated VIE's with $3.6 billion of assets &9 billion of liabilities.

The Company’s interest in the assets held by theseritization vehicles, which are consolidatedrtenCompany’s Statements of Financial
Condition, is restricted by the structural provimm®f these entities, and a recovery of the Comipanyestment in the vehicles will be limited
by each entity’s distribution provisions. The ligigs of the securitization vehicles, which are@mtonsolidated on the Company’s Statements
of Financial Condition, are non-recourse to the @any, and can generally only be satisfied from esstturitization vehicle’s respective asset
pool.

The Company is not obligated to provide, nor hgsavided, any financial support to these consédidaecuritization vehicles.
VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whihle Company is the primary beneficiary are typyctide subordinated tranches of these re-
securitizations and in some cases the Company widyiriterests in additional tranches. The restttomsolidation at December 31, 2012 is
the inclusion of $3.3 billion of Non-Agency RMBSfair value representing the underlying securitiethe trusts, the inclusion of $1.3 billion
of securitized loans held for investment, the redtgon of $1.3 billion of securitized debt assoemiwvith Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs and $1.2 billion of securitizexbtlassociated with loans held for investmentdaition, at December 31, 2012 the Comg
recognized $24.1 million and $8.4 million of acaluaterest receivable and accrued interest payadsegectively, of the securitizations.

The trusts are structured as pass through ertitééseceive principal and interest on the undegyéollateral and distribute those payments to
the certificate holders. The assets held by thargezation entities are restricted in that they ©nly be used to fulfill the obligations of the
securitization entity. The Company’s risks asseciavith its involvement with these VIEs are lindito its risks and rights as a certificate
holder of the bonds it has retained. There haea Io® recent changes to the nature of risks asedaidgth the Company’s involvement with
VIEs.

The securitization entities are comprised of seci@sses of RMBS and jumbo, prime, residential gagge loans. See Notes 3 and 4 for a
discussion of the characteristics of the securéies loans in the Company’s portfolio.

The table below reflects the assets and liabilitse®rded in the Consolidated Statements of Fiahu@mndition related to the consolidated V
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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December 31, December 31,

Assets

Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V

Securitized loans held for investme
Accrued interest receivab
Liabilities

Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS

Securitized debt, collateralized by loans
investmen
Accrued interest payab

$

$
held for

2012 2011
(dollars in thousands
3,274,20. $  3,270,33.
1,300,13. 256,63.
24,08: 26,61¢
1,336,26. $ 1,630,27
1,169,711 212,77
8,35¢ 8,13(

Income and expense and OTTI amounts related tomtidated VIES recorded in the Consolidated StatamehOperations and Comprehens

Income (Loss) is presented in the table below.

For the Year

Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V. $ 417,35. $ 450,99t $ 472,74
Interest expense, Non-recourse liabilities c
VIEs (115,88() (122,91) (138,699
Net interest incom $ 301,47: $ 328,07 $ 334,04
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: $ (7,619 $ (113,04) $ (19,589
Portion of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (los (76,699 $ (145,51) $ (68,407
Net othe-than-temporary credit impairment
losses $ (84,31¢) $ (258,559 $ (87,990

The amounts recorded on the Consolidated Stateroéftash Flows related to consolidated VIEs is @nésd in the table below for the periods

presented.

For the Year

Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands

Amortization of deferred financing cos 8,54t $ 1,73¢ 1,49¢
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetmipremiums, ne 6,98¢ 12,55 16,65¢
Payment of deferred financing co (9,48¢) - (5,039
Principal payments, Non-Agency RMBS transferreddnsolidated
VIE's 505,77¢ 668,92: 619,79!
Principal payments, Securitized loans held for gtreent 477 ,55! 85,52¢ 113,33(
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, colddized by loans hel
for investmen 1,426,98: - -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatedlby loans held
for investmen (470,789 (80,187 (106,18¢)
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, coltditezd by Non-
Agency RMBS 181,20: 310,97. 1,295,65
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaiardlby Non-
Agency RMBS (481,469 (645,60 (574,399
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei 2,53¢ (4,832 27,98t
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa 22¢ (1,83¢) 8,03
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated Vv $ 1,648,07 $ 347,25: $ 1,397,33i

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Bierefy

The Company has interests in the following VIEgdldition to the RMBS described in Note 3.

The Company'’s involvement with VIEs for which itrist considered the primary beneficiary generallinithe form of owning securities
issued by the trusts, similar to its investmentstirer RMBS that do not provide the Company wittoatrolling financial interest. Tk



Company’s maximum exposure to loss does not inctiber-than-temporary impairments or other writevds that the Company previously
recognized through earnings.

The table below represents the carrying amountskassification of assets recorded on the Compgacgnsolidated financial statements rel
to its variable interests in non-consolidated Vigswell as its maximum exposure to loss as atrebitk involvement with these VIEs, which
is represented by the fair value of the Companwsstments in the trusts.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 72 $ 85 $ 16€ $ 127
Senior intere-only - 12¢ 12¢ 26€
Subordinatec 581 2,26¢ 4,651 4,85¢
Agency RMBS 1,19¢ 1,001 1,89( 2,27¢
Total $ 1,851 $ 3,48( $ 6,837 $ 7,52¢
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9. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company’s interest rate nsknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate risk by
entering into derivative financial instrument camtts in the form of interest rate swaps. The Camisaswaps are used to lock in a fixed rate
related to a portion of its current and anticipgtagiments on its repurchase agreements. The Contyyaioglly agrees to pay a fixed rate of
interest (“pay rate”) in exchange for the rightéceive a floating rate of interest (“receive rataer a specified period of time. These
derivative financial instrument contracts are nesignated as hedges under ASC &érjvatives and Hedging The use of interest rate swaps
creates exposure to credit risk relating to po&htisses that could be recognized if the countdgsato these instruments fail to perform their
obligations under the contracts. In the event défault by the counterparty, the Company coulcetdifficulty obtaining its RMBS pledged as
collateral for swaps. The Company periodically ftams the credit of its counterparties to determifrieis exposed to counterparty credit risk.
See Note 13 for further discussion.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf interest rate swaps reported in the Conatdidl Statements of Financial Condition as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Location on
Consolidated Net Estimated Fair Valt
Statements of Financial Net Estimated Fair of Agency RMBS
Condition Notional Amount Value/Carrying Value Pledged as Collater
(dollars in thousands
December 31, 201 Liabilities $ 1,355,000 $ (53,939 $ 60,38:
December 31, 201 Liabilities $ 950,000 $ (44,46°) $ 46,64

The effect of the Company’s interest rate swaptherConsolidated Statements of Operations and Gelmepsive Income is presented below.

Location on Consolidated Statements of
Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Los
Net Unrealized Gains Net Realized Gains
(Losses) (Losses)
on Interest Rate Swa on Interest Rate Swa
(dollars in thousands

For the Year Ende

December 31, 201 $ (9,479 $ (20,229
December 31, 201 $ (34,479 $ (15,929
December 31, 201 $ (9,989 $ (5,788

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’seistteate swaps at December 31, 2012 was 1.81%hanwkighted average receive rate
was 0.21%. The weighted average pay rate on thep@oy’s interest rate swaps at December 31, 20512v@8% and the weighted average
receive rate was 0.29%. The weighted averagegiayon the Company’s interest rate swaps at DeaeB®ihb@010 was 2.59% and the
weighted average receive rate was 0.26%.

The following table summarizes the notional amowamd unrealized gains (losses) of interest ratgwatracts on a gross basis, amounts

offset in accordance with netting arrangementsraichmounts as presented in the Consolidated Staterof Financial Condition as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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December 31, 201
Interest Rate Swaj- Asset  Interest Rate Sway- Liability

Unrealized Unrealized
Notional Gains Notional Losses
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amountt $ - $ - $ 1,35500 $ 53,93¢
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amounts $ -3 - $ 1,355,000 $ 53,93¢
December 31, 201
Interest Rate Swaj- Asset  Interest Rate Sway- Liability
Unrealized Unrealized
Notional Gains Notional Losses
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amount: $ - $ - $ 950,000 $ 44,46
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amounts $ -3 - $ 950,00( $ 44,46

All of the Company’s derivative contracts are sgbje International Swaps and Derivatives AssosiaiMaster Agreements (“ISDA”) which
contain provisions that grant counterparties centigihts with respect to the applicable ISDA uplea dccurrence of (i) negative performance
that results in a decline in net assets in excespexified thresholds or dollar amounts over seitggls of time, (ii) the Company’s failure to
maintain its REIT status, (iii) the Company’s fadito comply with limits on the amount of leveragad (iv) the Company’s stock being
delisted from the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)ob the occurrence of items (i) through (iv), teemterparty to the applicable ISDA |
a right to terminate the ISDA in accordance withgtovisions. The aggregate fair value of all d&rixe instruments with credit-risk-related
contingent features that are in a net liabilityipos at December 31, 2012 is approximately $53iian including accrued interest, which
represents the maximum amount the Company woutédugired to pay upon termination, which is fullflateralized.

10. Common Stock

On January 28, 2011 the Company entered into aityetjstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Setias LLC (“UBS”). Through this
agreement, the Company may sell through UBS, aslés agent, up to 125,000,000 shares of its constozk in ordinary brokers’
transactions at market prices or other transacasregreed between the Company and UBS. The Cgndidinot sell any shares of its
common stock under the equity distribution agredrdeanng the years ended December 31, 2012 and. 283 % result of the Comparsytela)
in filing its SEC reports by the filing date reqedrby the SEC (including the grace period permitigdRule 12b-25 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), the Companynaflbe able to issue shares of its common stodkmtme equity distribution agreement
until filings with the SEC have been timely made ddull year.

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedidddid Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan (‘DRSFRe DRSPP provides
holders of record of its common stock an opportutdtautomatically reinvest all or a portion of theash distributions received on common
stock in additional shares of the Company’s comstook as well as to make optional cash paymersiichase shares of its common stock.
Persons who are not already stockholders may ailsdhase the Comparsyfcommon stock under the plan through optional pagiments. Th
DRSPP is administered by the Administrator, Comsitere. The DRSPP was suspended during the geaded March 31, 2012 when the
Company was no longer current in its filings witle tSEC. During the year ended December 31, 2@ Zdmpany raised $117 thousand by
issuing 39,000 shares through the DRSPP. Duhieg¢ar ended December 31, 2011 the Company rd@&tthousand by issuing 278,000
shares through the DRSPP. As a result of the Coy'gdelay in filing its SEC reports by the filingtk required by the SEC (including the
grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under thaei®tées Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), the Gompwill not be able to issue shares
under the DRSPP until filings with the SEC haverbimely made for a full year.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 the Comgechared dividends to common shareholders tot&i889.2 million, or $0.38 per

share. During the year ended December 31, 201Cdhgpany declared dividends to common sharehotdeabng $523.5 million, or $0.51
share.
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Earnings per share for the years ended Decemb@032,and 2011, respectively, is computed as falow

For the Year

Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:
Numerator:
Net income $ 327,76 $ 137,32¢ $ 248,40!

Effect of dilutive securities: - - -
Dilutive net income available to

stockholders $ 327,76 $ 137,32¢ $ 248,40!
Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,026,831,03 1,026,365,19 821,675,80
Effect of dilutive securities 668,22. 806,19( 941 51|
Weighted average dilutive shares 1,027,499,25 1,027,171,38 822,617,31
Net income per average share attributi

to common stockholders - Basic $ 0.3z $ 0.1 $ 0.3(
Net income per average share attributi

to common stockholders - Diluted $ 0.3z $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3(

11. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptareto provide incentives to its independentaes and employees of FIDAC and its
affiliates, to reward their efforts, to attractwerd and retain personnel and other service prosi@ad to align their interest with the common
share investors. The incentive plan authorizeimpensation Committee of the board of directorgraint awards, including incentive stock
options, non-qualified stock options, restrictedrsis and other types of incentive awards. Theifspaevard granted to an individual is based
upon, in part, the individual’s position within FAT, the individual’s position within the Companyistor her contribution to the Company’s
performance, as well as the recommendations of EIDAhe incentive plan authorizes the grantingpifams or other awards for an aggregate
of the greater of 8.0% of the outstanding shareh@fCompany’s common stock up to a ceiling of @0,000 shares.

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrgttedk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 share$DAE’'s employees and the Company’s
independent directors. The awards to the indeperdieectors vested on the date of grant and therdsvo FIDAC’s employees vest quarterly
over a period of 10 years. Of these shares, Beoémber 31, 2012, 715,000 shares have vestedsad@06shares were forfeited. As of
December 31, 2012 there was $10.4 million of torakecognized compensation costs related to nordestare-based compensation
arrangements granted under the long term inceptarg based on the closing price of the shareb®gitant date. As of December 31, 2012
there was $1.4 million of total unrecognized congaion costs related to non-vested shEased compensation arrangements granted unc
long term incentive plan, based on the closingepoitthe shares at year end. That cost is expéatee recognized over a period of 5.0 years.
The total fair value of shares vested, less thodeifed, during the years ended December 31, 220P1 and 2010 was $401 thousand, $443
thousand and $481 thousand , respectively, basétbariosing price of the stock on the vesting ddter the years ended December 31, 2012
2011 and 2010, compensation expense associateth@ittmortization of the fair value of the res&tstock was approximately $449
thousand, $451 thousand, and $490 thousand, resgect

The Company’s independent directors receive a fdathr amount of the Company’s common stock inmefor services provided to the
Company. Equity based awards granted to the inakye directors vest during the year of servicer the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, the Company recognized $300 thou$276 thousand, and $236 thousand, respectivesipok based compensation to
independent directors.

The following table presents information with resp® the Company' restricted stock awards during the years endedmber 31, 2012 a
2011:
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For the Year Ende

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Grant Date Fai Number of Grant Date Fai
Shares Value Shares Value
Unvested shares outstanding -
beginning of periot 758,40( 17.72 884,80( 17.7:2
Granted 111,52¢ 2.6¢ 98,54« 2.7¢
Vested (264,23) 17.72 (222,99 11.1¢€
Forfeited (19,696 17.72 (1,950 17.72
Unvested shares outstandingnd o
period 586,00( 17.72 758,40( 17.72

12. Income Taxes

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compasyguelified to be taxed as a REIT under Code @e856 through 860. As a REIT,
Company is not subject to federal income tax toetktent that it makes qualifying distributions akable income to its stockholders. To
maintain qualification as a REIT, the Company ndistribute at least 90% of its annual REIT taxab®me to its shareholders and meet
certain other requirements such as assets it mdy ihoome it may generate and its shareholder asitipn. It is generally the Company’s
policy to distribute to its shareholders all of thempany’s taxable income.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which @@mpany is subject to tax-filing obligations renag the Company’s status as a REIT, and
therefore, the Company generally does not pay igctax in such jurisdictions. The Company may, havebe subject to certain minimum
state and local tax filing fees and its TRS is sabjo federal, state, and local taxes.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@hd, the Company recorded income tax expenseldhdiisand, $606 thousand, and
$756 thousand, respectively.

In general, common stock cash dividends declarethdCompany will be considered ordinary incomsttazkholders for income tax
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitalsgaii return of capital. For the year
ended December 31, 2012, $0.12 of the income biiggi in the form of dividends declared is chamdzmte as a return of capital for federal
income tax purposes. For the years ended Decedib@011 and 2010, all income distributed in thenfof dividends declared is characteri
as ordinary income.

The Company'’s effective tax rate differs from ignbined federal, state and city corporate statusxyate primarily due to the deduction of
dividend distributions required to be paid unded€&ection 857(a).

The Company’s 2010, 2011 and 2012 federal, statdcmal tax returns remain open for examination.
13. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeelit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to interest rate risk in
connection with its investments in Agency and NayeAcy RMBS, residential mortgage loans, and bomgw/under repurchase

agreements. When the Company assumes interesistgti attempts to minimize interest rate riekaugh asset selection, hedging and
matching the income earned on mortgage assetgheitbost of related liabilities. The Company atsrto minimize credit risk through due
diligence and asset selection by purchasing loadsmwritten to agreed-upon specifications of sel@ariginators. The Company has
established a whole loan target market includingi@hborrowers with FICO scores generally greatanté50, Alt-A documentation,
geographic diversification, owner-occupied propeatyd moderate loan-to-value ratios. These faeti@<sonsidered to be important indicators
of credit risk.

By using derivative hedging instruments and repasetagreements, the Company is exposed to courtyecpadit risk if counterparties to the
contracts do not perform as expected. If a countgyrgails to perform on a derivative hedging instient, the Company’s counterparty credit
risk is equal to the amount reported as a derigasset on its balance sheet to the extent thairgreaceeds collateral obtained from the
counterparty or, if in a net liability position,atextent to which collateral posted exceeds thmlityato the counterparty. The amounts reported
as a derivative asset/(liability) are derivativenracts in a gain/(loss) position, and to the eixéebject to master netting arrangements, net of
derivatives in a loss/(gain) position with the sasnanterparty and collateral received/(pledgedéfcounterparty fails to perform on a
repurchase agreement, the Company is exposea#ss &0 the extent that the fair value of collatpiatiged exceeds the liability to the
counterparty. The Company attempts to minimizentenparty credit risk by evaluating and monitorthg counterparty’s credit, executing
master netting arrangements and obtaining collatnd executing contracts and agreements withipheiitounterparties to reduce exposure tc
a single counterparty, where appropriate.
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14. Management Agreement and Related Party Transéons

The Company entered into a management agreemdnEWAC, which provided for an initial term througrecember 31, 2010 with an
automatic one-year extension option and subjecettain termination rights. The Compensation Cottamiof the Board of Directors renewed
the management agreement through December 31, 202011 and 2010, the Company paid FIDAC a quigrteanagement fee equal to
1.50% per annum of the gross Stockholders’ Eqaitydefined in the management agreement) of the @aynpEffective November 28, 2012,
the management fee was reduced to 0.75% per anhgrass Stockholders’ Equity, which reduction wéimain in effect until the Company is
current on all of its filings required under applite securities laws.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for degsyended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 werg fllion, $52.0 million, and
$40.9 million respectively.

Under the management agreement, the Company gatddi to reimburse FIDAC for its costs incurredemitie management agreement. In
addition, the management agreement permits FIDA@daire the Company to pay for its pro rata portdrent, telephone, utilities, office
furniture, equipment, machinery and other officegeinal and overhead expenses that FIDAC incurredmnnection with the Company’s
operations. These expenses are allocated betwB&CFand the Company based on the ratio of the Gomis proportion of gross assets
compared to the gross assets managed by FIDAG@datad at each quarter end. FIDAC and the Comyppath modify this allocation
methodology, subject to the approval of the Comjsbgard of directors if the allocation becomegjimtable (i.e., if the Company becomes
very highly leveraged compared to FIDAC's otherdarand accounts). During the year ended Decembhe&03.2, the Company reimbursed
FIDAC approximately $447 thousand for such experBesing the year ended December 31, 2011, the @agnpeimbursed FIDAC
approximately $625 thousand for such expensesinBtine year ended December 31, 2010, the Compampursed FIDAC approximately
$465 thousand for such expenses.

The Company and FIDAC amended the management agre@m March 8, 2013. In the amendment, the résluat the management fee w
memorialized. In addition, FIDAC agreed to paypalst and future expenses that the Company atit¥okudit Committee of the Company
incur to: (1) evaluate the Company’s accountinggyalelated to the application of GAAP to its Nomé&ncy RMBS portfolio (the
“Evaluation”); (2) restate the Company’s finangtdtements for the period covering 2008 throughl2dxla result of the Evaluation (the
“Restatement Filing”); and (3) investigate and ea#¢ any shareholder derivative demands arising fhe Evaluation and/or the Restatement
Filing (the “Investigation”); provided, however,ahFIDAC'’s obligation to pay expenses applies dolgxpenses not paid by the Company’s
insurers under its insurance policies. Expensal isiclude, without limitation, fees and costsuned with respect to auditors, outside cout
and consultants engaged by the Company and/orudé S&ommittee of the Company for the Evaluatiorsftement Filing and the
Investigation. The amount paid by FIDAC relatedhese expenses for the year ended December 32,i284.7 million, respectively, and is
presented in the Consolidated Statements of Opesatind Comprehensive Income (Loss) as Expenseenées from Manager.

The amendment also provides that the independeettdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 ddige @t any time in their sole discretion
without the payment of a termination fee. The admeent also provides that the Company may termitgtenanagement agreement effective
immediately if (i) FIDAC engages in any act of fcaumisappropriation of funds, or embezzlement agjahre Company, (ii) there is an event of
any gross negligence on the part of FIDAC in thégrenance of its duties under the management ageegrtiii) there is a commencement of
any proceeding relating to FIDAC’s bankruptcy adlvency, (iv) there is a dissolution of FIDAC, (@) FIDAC is convicted of (including a
plea of nolo contendere) a felony.

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an adtrative services agreement with RCap Securities (“RCap”). RCap is a SEC-
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsjddf Annaly that clears the Company’s securitiades in return for normal and
customary fees that RCap charges for such servR€=ap may also provide brokerage services to tregany from time to time. During the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, feesm@BRI@AP were $137 thousand $162 thousand, resphct
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During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2021000 shares and 126,000 shares of restrictek istsued by the Company to FIDAC's
employees vested, respectively.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoimedhrious claims and legal actions arising indhdinary course of business. In
connection with certain re-securitization transatsi engaged in by the Company, the Company hasbifgation under certain circumstances
to repurchase assets from the VIE upon breachrtdingepresentations and warranties. Managersamdtiaware of any contingencies that
require accrual or disclosure under ASC 450ntingencies as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

16. Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors declared and paid commockstash dividends of $0.09 per common share fofitsiethree quarters of 2013. The
Board of Directors has declared common stock divideof $0.09 per common share for the fourth quaft2013. The Board of Directors has
also determined that there will be a regular quigrtiividend of $0.09 per share for each of thetftvo quarters of 2014. The Board of
Directors also declared a special dividend of $@&0share payable on January 31, 2014 to shaesisadfi record on January 8, 2014. The
special dividend may be characterized as a refucamital for federal income tax purposes.

17. Restatements and Summarized Quarterly Resul{§€/naudited)
(a) Restatements

The Company restated its previously issued (i) Gbaated Statements of Financial Condition includeds Annual Report on Form 10-K as
of December 31, 2010 and (ii) Consolidated StatesnehOperations and Comprehensive Income (Los®)s@lidated Statements of Changes
in Stockholders’ Equity, and Consolidated StatemeniCash Flows for the year ended December 310,20&luding the cumulative effect of
the Restatement on Retained earnings (accumulefegitdas of the earliest period presented (thestfatement”) as part of its Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2011. Refer to Notd & Form 10-K as of December 31, 2011 issuellarch 8, 2013 for further details of
the Restatement and the impact on prior periods.

From the Company’s inception in 2007 through treoed quarter of 2011, the Company applied the GAaidance in ASC 320-10 and ASC
310-20 as the basis for recognizing interest incameother-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI") fés investments in Non-Agency RMBS.
The Company should have also applied the guidané&C 325-40 for securities not of high credit diyaland ASC 310-30 for certain of its
investments in Non-Agency RMBS with deteriorateedir quality. Specifically, the Company determiridt it had incorrectly recognized
interest income and OTTI on certain Non-Agency RM&B®e the Company’s inception. The Company deteeththat these errors were
material therefore requiring the Restatement.

The Restatement resulted in a decrease in Net lagwaviously reported for the year ended Decembg2@10 of $284.4 million, or $0.35 per
fully diluted share. The Restatement also restfiedreduction of net interest income previouslyorted for the year ended December 31, .
of $173.6 million. The Restatement also reduceaimet! earnings previously reported as of Decembg?®10 by $409.9 million

and reduced total equity previously reported byt $4illion for the same period.

(b) Immaterial Restatements

The Company corrected amounts previously reportéitbtal other-than-temporary impairments (“OTTIBsbes and the Portion of loss
recognized in other comprehensive income (losH)enConsolidated Statements of Operations and Gelmepsive Income (Loss) as the
previous presentation was reported on a cumulatess. The current presentation reflects only ploation of Total other-than-temporary
impairments loss and the Portion of loss recognizedher comprehensive income (loss) that is imenetal for the reporting period by giving
consideration to both the credit and portions offOfEported in Other comprehensive income (loss) récognized in prior periods. For the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the petyimported Total oth-than-temporary impairments losses of $418.1 nmland $295.4
million was reduced by $176.2 million and $254.8liom, respectively. This change was fully offegtan adjustment to the previously
reported Portion of loss recognized in other comensive income (loss) of $61.0 million and $163iBiom, respectively. The corrections h
no impact on any previously reported Net other-tteanporary credit impairment losses, Net incomes{lo®ther comprehensive income (lo
Net income (loss) per share available to commonesindders or Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl
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In the Company’s 2012 Form 10-Q for the period egdVlarch 31, 2012, the Company did not present @Ta’| correctly when total
cumulative credit losses are greater than total I The Consolidated Statements of OperationsGuoriprehensive Income (Loss). Total
OTTI losses should be reported net of unrealizéalsgan a security when they occur in the same geatoa credit loss. The previously repol
total OTTI and portion of loss recognized in OCi floree month period ending March 31, 2012 of $%iillon and $8.6 million, respectively,
were reduced by $24.9 million. Additionally, ther@pany noted an error in the presentation of rsifleation items within Comprehensive
income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of@jmas and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for thetquanded March 31, 2012. This el
would result in a reduction of $47.1 million betwednrealized gains (losses) on available-for-satristies, net, an increase in
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetket income (loss) for other-than-temporary griedpairment losses of $62.6 million and a
reduction in Reclassification adjustment for netflieed losses (gains) included in net income (lo$§$15.5 million. These adjustments are
solely between the components of Accumulated atberprehensive income (loss) and have no impactobal $tockholders’ equity. The
errors noted related to the financial statementghi® period ended March 31, 2012 will be corredtetthe Company’s future filings that
presents such information. The fiscal year endeceBer 31, 2012 reflects the correction of the M&t, 2012 errors. The correction had nc
impact on any previously reported Net other-thangerary credit impairment losses, Net income (lo&sher comprehensive income (loss),
Net income (loss) per share available to commonesizdders or Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl

The following is a presentation of the results pétions for the quarters ended December 31, ZH@ember 30, 2012, June 30, 2012 and
March 31, 2012. The amounts below reflect the ihpathe immaterial restatement as described above.

December 31, September 30,
2012 2012 June 30, 201 March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Net Interest Income:

Interest incom $ 133,55: $ 144,69¢ $ 161,52: $ 149,66¢
Less interest expen (33,879 (34,356 (21,957 (36,379
Net interest income (expens 99,67¢ 110,34( 139,57: 113,29:
Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (36¢) (2,719 (12,479 (32,077
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive

income (loss (7,819 (7,309 (53,217 (16,287
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (8,185 (10,019 (65,687 (48,364)
Net gains (losses) on interest rate sw (199 (9,725 (16,18¢) (3,586
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS 811 (15,399 (2,539 17,947
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investr 1 69,15¢ - 16,01(
Total other expense 13,42 16,29¢ 14,38t 15,06¢
Net income (loss $ 78,688 $ 128,06¢ $ 40,78. $ 80,23
Net income (loss) per shar-basic and diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1z $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢

The following is a presentation of the results pé@tions for the quarters ended December 31, ZHdtember 30, 2011, June 30, 2011 and
March 31, 2011. The amounts below reflect the ichpathe Restatement and immaterial restatemedéssribed above.

December 31, September 30,
2011 2011 June 30, 201 March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Net Interest Income:

Interest incom: $ 167,54. $ 185,58. $ 179,85¢ $ 172,04:
Less interest expen: (30,69¢) (32,797 (35,799 (35,577
Net interest income (expens 136,84! 152,78 144,06t 136,46
Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary 